
BR/04/03/02 

London Borough of Barking and Dagenham 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 

THE EXECUTIVE 
 

Tuesday, 28 October 2003 - Town Hall, Barking, 7:00 pm 
 
Members: Councillor C J Fairbrass (Chair); Councillor C Geddes (Deputy Chair); 
Councillor J L Alexander, Councillor G J Bramley, Councillor S Kallar, Councillor M E 
McKenzie, Councillor B M Osborn, Councillor J W Porter, Councillor L A Smith and 
Councillor T G W Wade. 
 
Declaration of Members Interest: In accordance with Article 1, Paragraph 12 of the 
Constitution, Members are asked to declare any direct/indirect financial or other 
interest they may have in any matter which is to be considered at this meeting  
 
17.10.03    Graham Farrant 
        Chief Executive 
 

Contact Officer Barry Ray 
Tel. 020 8227 2134 
Fax: 020 8227 2171 

Minicom: 020 8227 2685 
E-mail: barry.ray@lbbd.gov.uk 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 21 

October 2003 (to follow)   
 
Business Items  

 
Public Item 3 is a business item.  The Chair will move that this be agreed without 
discussion, unless any Member asks to raise a specific point. 
 
Any discussion of a Private Business Item will take place after the exclusion of the 
public and press.  

 
3. Neighbourhood Renewal Fund - Future Funding Allocations (Pages 1 - 3)  
 
Discussion Items  

 
4. Single Status (Pages 5 - 17)  
 
5. Health and Social Care Management Arrangements (Pages 19 - 27)  
 
6. Social Services Annual Review of Performance (Pages 29 - 39)  
 



BR/04/03/02 

7. Tackling Health Inequalities: Delivering Change Through The Local 
Strategic Partnership (Pages 41 - 71)  

 
8. Implementing Electronic Government Statement (IEG3) (Pages 73 - 101)  
 
9. Local Authority Business Growth Incentives (Pages 103 - 112)  
 
10. Economic Development Strategy (Pages 113 - 156)  
 
11. Tantony Green: Potential Partnership Arrangement with Marks Gate Local 

Agenda 21 (Pages 157 - 163)  
 
12. Professional Services Term Consultancy Contract (Pages 165 - 169)  
 
13. Any other public items which the Chair decides are urgent   
 
14. To consider whether it would be appropriate to pass a resolution to 

exclude the public and press from the remainder of the meeting due to 
the nature of the business to be transacted.   

 
Private Business 

 
The public and press have a legal right to attend Council meetings such as the 
Executive, except where business is confidential or certain other sensitive 
information is to be discussed.  The list below shows why items are in the 
private part of the agenda, with reference to the relevant legislation (the 
relevant paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972).  

 
Discussion Items  

 
15. Thames Accord Repairs and Maintenance Partnership - First Quarter 

Review (Restricted Circulation; circulated separately)   
 
 Concerns a Contractual Matter (paragraph 7)  

 
16. Millard Terrace Security Works - Tender Acceptance and Budget Approval 

(Restricted Circulation; circulated separately)   
 
 Concerns a Contractual Matter (paragraph 7)  

 
17. Information Systems and Technology - Review of Service (Restricted 

Circulation; circulated separately)   
 
 Concerns a Staffing Matter (paragraph 1)  

 
Business Items - None 

 
18. Any other confidential or exempt items which the Chair decides are 

urgent   
 



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

28 OCTOBER 2003 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE STRATEGY 
 

NEIGHBOURHOOD RENEWAL FUND - FUTURE YEARS 
FUNDING ALLOCATION 
 

FOR DECISION 

This report is of strategic significance to the Council in supporting the Community, 
Regeneration, and Neighbourhood Renewal Strategies.  
 
Summary 
 
This report informs the Executive of the latest position with regard to the work of the 
Neighbourhood Renewal Steering Group in relation to the NR Fund and programme, and 
seeks approval of the recommendations for future year’s allocation of funding. On the 8 
October 2003 the Borough Partnership received a similar report on this matter and 
endorsed these recomendations 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is asked to: 
 

1. Note the contents of this report; 
 

2. Endorse the recommendations of the Neighbourhood Renewal (NR) Steering 
Group held on 1st September with regard to the allocation of future years NR 
funding for 2004-06 as set out in Appendix ‘1’; and  

 
3. Note that a further report detailing recommendations for the remaining allocation 

of NR funding will be submitted to a future meeting following consultation and 
appraisal in conjunction with the revised Community Strategy. 

 
Reasons 
 
The Neighbourhood Renewal Fund and Programme is one of the major providers of 
funding and support to tackle deprivation and achieve the social and economic objectives 
embodied in the Community, Regeneration and Neighbourhood Renewal Strategies. 
 
Contact Officer: 
Sally Penessa 
 
 
 
 
Riley Cullum 
 
 

 
Policy and Review 
Manager, 
 
 
 
Policy and Review 
Officer 
 

 
Tel: 020 8227 2219  
Fax: 020 8227 2035 
Minicom: 020 8227 2685 
E-mail: sally.penessa@lbbd.gov.uk 
 
Tel: 020 8227 2244 
Fax: 020 8227 2035 
E-mail: riley.cullum@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3

Page 1



1. Background 
 
1.1 As Members will be aware, the Neighbourhood Renewal Steering Group, acting in 

its capacity as a sub-group of the Barking and Dagenham Partnership has since 
March 2001 been tasked with the responsibility for co-ordinating the Borough’s 
Neighbourhood Renewal programme.   

 
1.2 Notification was received from Government Office for London in the summer that 

the Partnership had secured additional neighbourhood renewal funding for 2004/05 
and 2005/06 commensurate with the level of funding granted for 2003/04. This 
amounts to £3,266,000. 

 
1.3 Over the summer months, officers have been reviewing the performance of the 

neighbourhood renewal Programme activities as part of the ongoing monitoring and 
evaluation process and also with a view to informing the process of reviewing the 
Community and Neighbourhood Renewal Strategies.  

 
1.4 At the Neighbourhood Renewal Steering Group meeting held on 1st September, 

consideration was given to potential future years funding of the programme 
activities with a view to how they have been performing against their targets, their fit 
with the criteria for the emerging revised Community Strategy, and the potential 
human resource implications where the approval of funding previously has had 
staffing implications. 

 
2. Allocation of Future Years Neighbourhood Renewal Funding 
 

Set out in Appendix ‘1’ is a schedule of those activities which the Steering Group 
has recommended for future years funding in 2003/04, subject to continued 
satisfactory performance as part of the monitoring and evaluation regime. The 
Barking and Dagenham Partnership received a similar report at their meeting on 8th 
October and have endorsed the recommendations presented regarding the NR 
financial allocation. The Executive is asked to approve the Neighbourhood Renewal 
Steering Group’s recommendations on behalf of the Council acting as the 
Accountable Body for the grant. 

 
Approval to the funding allocation set out in Appendix’1’ will account for £2,313,576 
out of the £3,266,000 of Neighbourhood Renewal funding available in 2004/06. This 
leaves a sum of £952,424 to be allocated as part of the review of the Community 
Strategy, including a number of existing NR activities which the Steering Group 
have requested be reviewed in greater depth. 
 
 
 

Background Papers 
• Barking and Dagenham Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy  
• Reports and minutes of the Neighbourhood Renewal Steering Group - 21st July and 

1st September 2003 
 

Page 2



 
 

APPENDIX 1 
 

Neighbourhood Renewal Activities Recommended for Future Years 
Funding 

Projects Current 
Funding Level

Direct 
Staffing 

Implications 
Bringing it all Together   
Neighbourhood Co-ordination 143,000 Y 
Better Education and Skills   
Reading Partners Scheme 25,000 N 
Learning Mentors 122,000 Y 
ESOL Plus 35,000 Y 
Alternative Learning Programme 117,000 Y 
Welfare to Work 47,500 N 
Health, Housing and Social Care   
Health Help Pilot  29,163 Y 
Healthy Eating Sure Start 83,556 Y 
Improving the Health of the Mentally Ill 10,000 N 
Improving Primary Care for people with 
Learning Difficulties  

69,000 Y 

Neighborhood Nursery Development 
Officer 

35,000 Y 

Cleaner, Greener, and Safer   
Neighbourhood Wardens 105,890 Y 
Motor Vehicle Activity 9,000 N 
Community Reparation 56,000 Y 
Support for Parents of Young People at 
Risk 

58,500 Y 

Work with Young Victims of Crime 34,151 Y 
Provision of services to Reduce Street 
Crime 

39,748 Y 

MPS Anti-Social Behaviour Patrols 137,280 N 
   
Total of allocated future funding  

2004/05 1,156,788  
2005/06 1,156,788  

Total Recommended NRF allocation 
2004/06 

2,313,576  

  
 

Neighbourhood Renewal Fund - Potential Allocation from 
existing activities 2004 - 2006 

Further NRF available £3,266,000
Recommended Allocation 2004/05 £1,156,788
Recommended Allocation 2005/06 £1,156,788
Total Recommended Allocation £2,313,576
Unallocated £952,424
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE 
 

28 OCTOBER 2003 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE STRATEGY 
 

SINGLE STATUS 
 

FOR DECISION 

This report concerns issues relating to the implementation of the single status agreement for 
staff covered by the National Joint Council for Local Government Services. This is a matter 
for the Executive to determine. 
 
Summary 
 
This report gives the background to single status in employment and proposes that the 
Executive agree to the allocation of £200,000 from reserves to enable dedicated resources to 
be allocated specifically to this project. 
 
A key element of single status is to carry out a pay and grading review of all staff whose 
conditions of service are determined by the National Joint Council for Local Government 
Services. This is a significant project and will require considerable input by Human Resources 
staff at both corporate and departmental level, managers, all staff covered by the single 
status agreement and the trade unions. We will need additional temporary staffing resources 
to carry out logistical tasks to support the programme of job evaluating over 1300 different 
types of job. We also need to acquire some expert advice in relation to a review of our pay 
and grading structure and conduct a major staff communication programme. 
 
The London Agreement requires all London Boroughs to introduce a 36 hour working week 
for blue collar staff by 1 April 2004. The working week of these staff is currently based on 37 
hours. This report outlines the anticipated cost implications of implementing this requirement. 
 
Initial consultations with the trade unions regarding a package of measures designed to 
achieve single status have generally been positive and this report outlines a process for their 
development. 
 
Recommendations 
 
It is recommended that: 
 

1. The sum of £200,000 is allocated from reserves to support the process leading to 
single status, including a pay and grading review and that the Chief Executive is given 
delegated authority to allocate these resources as appropriate. 

 
2. A working week based on 36 hours for full time staff is introduced for blue collar staff 

with effect from 1 April 2004 in accordance with the London Agreement. 
 

3. The Council adopts the Greater London Provincial Council job evaluation scheme for 
staff covered by the National Joint Council for Local Authority Services. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4

Page 5



4. The proposed structure for negotiations with the trade unions described in paragraph 
6.1 is adopted and that further reports are brought to the Executive for decisions as 
required. 

 
Reason 
 
To ensure compliance with the requirements of the London Agreement in relation to the 
working hours of blue collar staff and to facilitate progress towards implementation of single 
status. 
Contact Officer 
Keith Warrior 

 
Employee Relations 
Advisor 
 

 
Tel:  020 8227 2355 
Fax: 020 8227 2918 
Minicom: 020 8227 2685 
E-mail keith.warrior@lbbd.gov.uk
 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to: 
 

• Provide the Executive with an overview of the main elements of the Single Status 
Agreement 

 
• Seek the allocation of £200,000 from reserves to resource this project in the context 

that single status is a major Human Resources issue facing the Authority 
 

• Obtain authorisation of a reduction in the working week for manual staff to 36 hours 
in accordance with the London Agreement and to note the anticipated financial 
implications of this 

 
2. Background 

 
2.1 The national Single Status Agreement (SSA) was signed in 1997. It applies to all staff 

whose conditions of service are governed by the National Joint Council for Local 
Authority Services (NJC).  

 
2.2 The following four principles underpin the SSA. 

 
1. High quality services provided by a well trained and motivated workforce, that has 

security of employment 
 

2. Equalities are to underpin both service provision and employee relations 
 

3. There is to be a flexible approach to service provision meeting the needs of the 
community, employers and the community 

 
4. Stable industrial relations and negotiation between local authorities and trade 

unions 

Page 6



2.3 In addition to an implementation agreement, it consists of ‘key national provisions’ 
(Part 2 Items), which are for implementation by all local authorities covered by the SSA 
Appendix 1, ‘other national provisions’ (Part 3 Items which may be modified by local 
agreement) Appendix 2.  

 
2.4 The main features of the SSA include the following: 
 

• A single 49-point national pay spine instead of separate scales for white and blue-
collar employees. (There is a separate 70-point pay spine for London Boroughs). 

 
• A requirement to review the grading of all employees covered by the agreement  

 
• Pay protection (with local agreement on detail) 
 
• The introduction of a 37 hour working week for all employees (36 in London) 
 
• Equality of opportunity not just in relation to gender, race, religion, age and 

disability, but also between employment groups such as blue & white collar and full 
and part time and permanent and temporary employees 

 
• A core of national conditions of service with the provision for local detailed 

arrangements to be negotiated and agreed at local level 
 
• Implementation to be at minimum cost which is to be offset where possible via 

increased productivity 
 
2.5 At a regional level, the Greater London Provincial Council introduced the London 

Agreement in 2000. It established the London-wide arrangements relating to the 
introduction of single status including pay spines for inner and outer London Boroughs 
and a commitment that the working hours provisions of the SSA will be introduced by 
all London Boroughs by 1 April 2004.  

 
2.6 Although hailed as a step forward in terms of equalities it poses a number of significant 

issues for all local authorities in relation to the practical implications and associated 
costs of implementation. London local authorities also have to respond to an 
increasingly difficult financial environment. Unsurprisingly, progress nationally, 
regionally and locally has been slow. 

 
3. The Working Week 
 
3.1 Currently, the working week of LBBD's manual staff is based on 37 hours. The London 

Agreement requires all London Boroughs to introduce a 36 hour working week by 1 
April 2004. In summary the overall cost is estimated to be approximately £640,000 per 
annum and a breakdown by Department is at Appendix 3. 

 
3.2 Under a long-standing local arrangement, the working week of white collar staff is 

currently based on 35 hours per week. The introduction of a 36 hour working week for 
manual staff reduces but does not eliminate the current disparity in the working week. 

Page 7



A longer-term strategy for harmonising the working week will be the subject of a further 
report in due course. 

 
4. Pay and Grading 
 
4.1 The overall aim for the Council’s pay structure must be to enable the recruitment and 

retention of the staff required to achieve the Councils community priorities. It must also 
be fair, transparent and robust enough to withstand a legal challenge under equalities 
related legislation. The achievement of such a pay structure will also be a significant 
contribution to the Council’s aspirations in relation to equalities and diversity in 
employment. 

 
4.2 Under the national SSA implementation agreement, blue-collar staff were assimilated 

onto a single pay spine, based on the one that had previously applied to white-collar 
staff. Following this assimilation there is a need to review the Council's pay and 
grading structure for staff covered by the SSA, using common criteria. 

 
4.3 Arising from this a job evaluation (JE) process is required. JE is a mechanism for 

assessing jobs against common criteria to give them a points score that enables them 
to be ranked from the highest to the lowest. There is a separate activity to place jobs 
within a grading structure, which requires a decision regarding the points required 
(usually a range) to achieve each grade. 

 
4.4 There are a number of JE schemes available in the market place. Within the local 

government community, there are the National and Greater London Provincial Council 
(GLPC) JE schemes which have been developed specifically for local government. The 
GPLC scheme is a regional variation to the National scheme with the intention of more 
adequately reflecting the demands of London Boroughs. The most recent survey by 
the Association of London Government (ALG) shows that 96% of the respondents 
would be using the GLPC scheme. 

 
4.5 The Management Team has considered this issue and recommends that the GLPC JE 

scheme is adopted. The use of the GLPC scheme is supported by the trade unions. 
 
5. The Approach 
 
5.1 Discussions with the trade unions have resulted in broad agreement that the 

implementation of single status needs to be progressed via a package of measures 
covering pay and conditions of service. Further reports will be brought to the Executive 
as the package is developed. 

 
6. Structure for Negotiations 
 
6.1 It is proposed that there is a central negotiating group for single status. It is proposed 

that this consists of 2 elected members, the Chief Executive, Director of Corporate 
Strategy, Head of Organisational Development and Employee Relations, Directors and 
departmental Heads of Human Resources as required and trade union 
representatives. 

 

Page 8



7. Resources 
 
7.1 The pay and grading review is a major project that will require both dedicated 

resources and substantial commitments throughout the organisation.  
 
7.2 The resources needed to conduct a pay and grading review at LBBD  include: 
 

7.2.1 Technical advice in relation to establishing a revised pay structure, which is not 
currently available in-house.  

 
7.2.2 Dedicated additional administrative resources to deal with the considerable 

logistics of the project. This will ensure that panels and staff who are engaged in 
the evaluation process are co-ordinated and that the associated paperwork is 
prepared, distributed and collated over a period of at least one year and 
covering over 1300 job evaluations (not including appeals). 

 
7.2.3 Training of job evaluators, managers and staff to the appropriate standard to 

enable them to participate in the JE process. 
 

7.2.4 Training Elected Members to the appropriate standard to enable them to hear 
local JE appeals. 

 
7.2.5 Local trade union representatives will be required to spend time supporting and 

guiding staff during the job evaluation process and consequently trade union 
facility time will increase during this period. 

 
7.2.6 Staff communication during the pay and grading review. This is a particularly 

sensitive issue and adequate communication with staff will be essential. 
 

7.2.7 Finance Support to assisting in costing exercises. 
 
7.3 Regular progress reports will be brought to the Executive during the project. 
 
7.4 It should be noted that the £200,000 is connection with the process leading to single 

status and that any costs and other outcomes that arise from this process will be 
brought to the Executive for decisions as required. 

Page 9



 
 

Single Status Agreement 
 
Part 2 -  Items Key National Provisions - For Application Nationally 
 
 
1. Equalities 
 
Covers disability, gender, race, religion, age, sexuality and marital status. 
Local arrangements are more comprehensive. 
 
2. Official Conduct 
 
Local codes – central government are to introduce requirement to include common provisions 
re ethical standards. 
 
3. Training and Development 
 
Equality of access for all – including part-timers. Resources to be allocated equitably across 
all employment groups. 
 
4. Health Safety & Welfare 
 
A duty of care exists on the part of both the employer and employees. 
 
5. Pay & Grading 
 
National pay spine (London one is provincial arrangement). Single point or increments but 
any differences must be objectively justified. 
 
6. Working Time 
 
37 hour week (36 in London). This may be calculated over a period other than a week.  
Therefore, annualised hours or reference periods possible. 
 
Employees working non-standard patterns of work shall be compensated in accordance with 
Part 3 Section 2 (but able to negotiate changes locally) 
 
7. Leave 
 
Minimum is 20 days +2 extra statutory days + 5 after 5 years continuous service. Public 
holidays are additional. 
 
Paid leave granted for public duties – jury service, serving on public bodies or undertaking 
public duties. (Employee to pay any allowance to the Authority). 
 
Maternity support leave (5 days) to nominated carer at or around the time of the birth. 
 

Appendix 1

Page 10



Recommended that adoption leave be introduced with local detailed arrangements. 
 
Time off for medical (cancer) screening. 
 
Special leave (with or without pay) is at the discretion of the Authority. 
 
Entitlement to annual, public and extra statutory leave may be expressed in hours. 
 
Normal pay includes all earnings that would be paid in a period of normal working but 
excludes any payments not made on a regular basis. 
 
8. Part Time Employees 
 
Pro-rata conditions except for training and car allowances, which will be on the same basis as 
full timers. 
 
9. Temporary Employees 
 
Pay and conditions shall be equivalent to permanent employees (excludes casuals). 
 
10. Sickness Scheme 
 
Details are as per Green Book. 
 
11. Maternity Scheme 
 
Details are as per Green Book. 
 
12. Car Allowances 
 
Details are as per Green Book (but part 3 and negotiable). 
 
13. Reimbursement of Expenditure 
 
Approved additional expenses re travel, meals or overnight. 
 
Local arrangements in relation to compulsory change in workplace. 
 
Reimbursement for special driving licences (e.g. HGV, PSV etc). 
14. Continuous Service 
 
For annual leave, sick pay and maternity leave, continuous service includes that with 
Redundancy Payments Modification Order organisations. 
 
15. Period of Notice to Terminate Employment 
 
Employer minimum obligation is as per Employment Rights Act. 
 
Employee minimum is pay interval. 

Page 11



 
16. Grievance Procedures 
 
Should be known to employees and accord with ACAS guidance. 
 
17. Disciplinary Procedures 
 
Should be known to employees and accord with ACAS Code of Practice. 
 
18. Trade Union Facilities  
 
Local Authorities are to provide necessary facilities for carrying out function and operate 
‘check off’ 
 
19. London & Fringe Area Allowances 
 
Continue until changed by agreement. 
 
 
 

Page 12



 
 

Single Status Agreement 
 

Part 3 Items – Other National Provisions (May Be Modified Locally) 
 
 
1. Pay & Grading 
 
An employee promoted to a higher grade should have an immediate pay increase. 
 
Local arrangements for acting up into a higher graded post. 
 
2. Working Arrangements 
 
Local arrangements for working week with an average consistent with the 37 (36) hour 
working week 
 
Employees graded at or below SCP 28 are entitled to compensation as follows (alternatively 
inclusive pay may be agreed). 
 
Additional Hours  

 
Mon – Sat   Time & a half* 
 
Sun & Public/Extra Stat  Double time (min 2 hours)* 

 
* Part timers are entitled to these enhancements only when full timers would qualify. 
Otherwise they must work a full week before the enhancements apply. 
 
Saturday & Sunday as Part of Normal Working Week 

 
Sat  Time & a half 
 
Sun  Time & a half (> SCP 11) 
    Double time (< SCP 11) 
 
 

Night Work as Part of Normal Working Week 
 
From 8.00 pm – 6.00 am Time & a third 
 

 
Public & Extra Statutory Holiday’s 

 
Normal pay + plain time for all hours worked within their normal working hours for that day 
+ time off with pay as follows: 
 

Appendix 2

Page 13



Time worked < half the normal working hours on that day  Half Day 
 
Time worked > half the normal working hours on that day  Full Day 

 
Sleeping-in Duty 

 
National rate, which includes 30 minutes call out per night, after which the additional hours 
rates apply. 

 
Other non-standard working patterns are for local determination. 
 
For employees > SCP 28 the above allowances (except additional hours) may be paid, or 
inclusive pay may be applied. For planned additional hours, an additional payment may be 
made. 
 
3. Training & Development 
 
Key aspects include equality, flexible delivery, operational priorities and continuous 
development, evaluation. 
 
Financial Assistance 

 
Payment of normal earnings, all prescribed fees and other relevant expenses. Locally 
determined. 
 

Leave for Examinations 
 
Paid leave for sitting examinations. Leave may also be granted for final revision. 
 

4. Sickness Scheme 
 
Conditions for payment. Details are as per Green Book.  
 
5. Child Care & Dependants 
 
Reasonable steps should be taken to ensure adequate support for employees with 
responsibilities for children and dependants. 
 
6. Car Allowances 
 
Employees required to use their vehicle will receive allowances where authorised by the LA 
which shall determine whether the use is casual or essential and the cc of car considered 
appropriate. Authorised users may apply to the authority for assistance to purchase a car. 
 
Conditions re car not in use (e.g. illness or mechanical breakdown) Details are as per Green 
Book. 
 
Cannot require provision of car by employees < SCP 13. 
 

Page 14



7. Payments in the Event of Death or Permanent Disablement Arising From Assault 
 
Details are as per Green Book. 
 
8. Meals & Accommodation Charges 
 
Former purple and white book arrangements re free meals and accommodation and meal 
charges to remain in place until local agreement. In meantime review re appropriate sectors 
of the RPI. 
 
9. Retained Employees & Nursery Employees in Educational Establishments 
 
Details are as per Green Book (Appendix 2 to Part 3). 
 

Page 15



 
 

 
Estimated Costs of Reducing Blue Collar Staff from 37  

to 36 Hours Per Week 
 

Department Cost (£) 
  
Corporate Strategy Nil 
  
Finance Nil 
  
Education Arts & Libraries 
 
Catering 
The additional staffing costs represent 2.7% 
of the current paybill for these staff. The 
current price per meal is £1.30 (Primary) and 
£1.45 (Secondary). In order to fund the 
increase in staff costs the price would need 
to increase by 1.5p per meal. 
 
Transport 
The additional staffing costs represent 2.32% 
of the current paybill for these staff. This 
increased cost would be passed onto client 
in-house services (i.e. Social Services and 
the Special Needs Service). 
 
Schools 
Additional staffing costs relate to 
approximately 500 Midday Assistants and 
cleaning staff. 

 
 

46,450 
 
 
 
 
 
 

45,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

35,000 

  
Housing & Health 
 
The creation of the new Neighbourhood 
Caretaking Service has provided an 
opportunity to introduce improved 
management, supervisory and team working 
arrangements which will enable the 
increased cost to be absorbed within existing 
resources. 

48,000 

Appendix 3

Page 16



 
Leisure & Environmental Services 
 
Environmental Management 
 
Leisure & Community Services 
 

 
 
 
 
 

180,000 
 

100,000 
  
 
Social Services 
 
The additional cost represents 2.7% of the 
paybill. Care standards apply and clients 
must receive the hours of care specified in 
their assessment. This generally prevents 
efficiency savings through increased 
productivity. It is likely that the increased 
costs will be resourced by a re-prioritisation 
of growth monies rather than by cuts from 
elsewhere in Social Services. 

 
185,000 

  
Total Cost 639,450 
 
 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



 

THE EXECUTIVE 
 

28 OCTOBER 2003 
 

REPORT FROM DIRECTOR OF SOCIAL SERVICES 
 

FUTURE ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE MANAGEMENT 
OF INTEGRATED HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE 
SERVICES 
 

FOR DECISION 

This report sets out proposals for future management arrangements of integrated 
services between the Council and the Primary Care Trust. 
 
Summary 
 
This report re-affirms the commitment of the Council to continue integrated working with 
the PCT on health and social care services for the benefit of the local community. 
 
The report sets out proposals for future management arrangements for integrated health 
& social care, and clarifies accountability and reporting lines. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is asked to agree: 
 

1. To re-affirms its commitment to integrated working with the PCT, integrated posts 
and service delivery for the benefit of the local community; 

 
2. The clarifications and new accountabilities outlined in the report including the 

Accountability Framework; and 
 

3. That officers of the Council will not be accountable to the PCT Board for the 
delivery of services.  They will, however, be accountable through the Acting Chief 
Executive of the PCT on health matters and may attend Board meetings to deliver 
and discuss appropriate reports. 

 
Reason 
 
The above recommendations will allow for continued integration of service delivery, and 
ensure lines of accountability and management of performance objectives so that each 
parent Authority can exercise its responsibilities within a framework that sustains 
integrated working, delivery of services, stability and development. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5

Page 19



 

Contact Officers: 
Julia Ross  
 
 
 
 
Alan Clarke   
 
 
 
Rebecca Scott 

 
Director of Social Services 
 
 
 
 
Director of Organisational  
Development and Corporate 
Affairs 
 
Acting Chief Executive 

 
Tel: 020 8227 2332 
Fax: 020 8227 2241 
Mini-com: 020 8227 2462 
E-mail: julia.ross@lbbd.gov.uk 
 
Tel: 020 8532 6250 
E-mail: 
alan.clarke@bdpct.nhs.uk 
 
Tel: 020 8532 6346 
E-mail: 
rebecca.scott@bdpct.nhs.uk 
 

 
1. Background  
 
1.1 The Council and the PCT agreed to the appointment of an Executive Director of 

Health and Social Care in 2001 as the best means of delivering a three year 
programme for creating integrated seamless front line services for the benefit of the 
local community 

 
1.2 Following the decision to withdraw from this arrangement of an Executive Director 

of Health & Social Care, the Director of Social Services has returned to her 
substantive post, and the PCT have appointed an Acting Chief Executive.  These 
officers have jointly developed proposals for future management arrangements of 
integrated services. 

 
2. Progress 
 
2.1 This report sets out proposals for the future management arrangements for 

integrated health and social care services.  The proposed framework reflects the 
separation of the roles of PCT Chief Executive and Director of Social Services, and 
the commitment of the Council and the PCT Board to continue integrated working 
and delivery of services and performance improvement.  The proposal sets out lines 
of accountability and management of performance objectives so that each parent 
Authority can exercise its responsibilities within a framework that sustains 
integrated working, delivery of services, stability and development.  

 
2.2 To consider future management arrangements we have: 
 

• identified services where existing integrated delivery arrangements are 
priorities to continue, and within these, posts where accountability needs 
clarification.  These services are set out in Appendix 1. 

 
• reviewed each joint Director level post to clarify/confirm roles and line-

management, and line-management responsibilities and accountabilities 
where these are direct reports to the Director of Social Services or Acting 
Chief Executive.  These posts are identified in Appendix 2. 

 
• reviewed all senior management posts to clarify and confirm roles, and line 

management responsibilities and accountabilities  

Page 20



 

 
• drafted an Accountability Framework for the affected posts.  This is attached 

at Appendix 3. 
 

• discussed with the senior management team on these arrangements. 
 
2.3 It is not anticipated that there are any services where existing integrated working 

arrangements will discontinue; clearly there are services where integrated working 
is critically significant for the purpose of modernising health and social care in the 
Borough. 

 
3. Next Steps 
 
3.1 Further proposals will: 
 

• detail how accountability for budgets, personnel, information and premises to 
the NHS & local authority will operate in practice and suggest arrangements 
for resolving any financial implications in the form of cross charges / 
recharges that emerge 

 
3.2 The Health & Social Care integration “framework" will include a statement of shared 

values, joint protocols and individual and team performance management systems 
that will ensure clear and organisation-specific accountability.  

 
3.3 As an interim measure (and without prejudice to individual salary protection rights) 

no change in salary levels for Directors and Heads of Service will arise from these 
changes for the period up to end of March 2004. 

 
3.4 At that stage, final structures will reflect the continuing integration plus joint working 

arrangements and the impact of new initiatives at local and national level eg. 
Children’s Services. 

 
3.5 Due to possible changes to the configuration of Children’s Health Services, the 

Integrated Child Health Service will be line managed through the Acting Chief 
Executive at the PCT.  However, given the direction set by the Green Paper with the 
need for much closer links with Social Care and Education, this will be subject to 
further discussion and consultation. 

 
4. The attached accountability framework will be put to effect for each post as 

follows: 
 

4.1   Director of Social Services: Statutory Chief Officer for social work and 
         responsible to the Council, and the Council’s Chief Executive for all social 
         services matters (employed by the Council). 
4.2   Director of Services to the Community directly accountable to the Director 
         of Social Services for Adults Services and Children’s Services and to the 
         Acting Chief Executive of the PCT for health service matters relating to 
         services to adults (employed by the Council). 
4.3   Head of Finance accountable to the Director of Social Services and to the 
         Director of Finance in the Council.  The Head of Finance will have direct 
         line responsibility to the Section 151 officer in the Council (employed by the 
         Council)  

Page 21



 

4.4     Director of Older People’s Services directly accountable to the Director of 
          Social Services and to the Chief Executive of the PCT for specific health 
          services (employed by the Council) 
4.5    Director of Organisational Development and Corporate Support jointly       
          accountable to the Acting Chief Executive and Director of Social Services 
         for organisational development (including HR) in the PCT and Social 
         Services (employed by the PCT) 
4.6   Director of Public Health: Accountable for public and environmental health  
         matters to the PCT Board and the Acting Chief Executive and to the 
         Council through the Chief Executive (employed by the PCT). 
4.7   Director of Commissioning Accountable to the Acting Chief Executive for 
         health commissioning. Joint commissioning functions need to be 
         considered further (employed by the PCT). 
4.8   Acting Chief Executive: Accounting Officer for the PCT and responsible to 
         the PCT Board for all matters relating to the PCT (employed by the PCT) 
4.9   Joint Medical Directors: Accountable to PCT Board through the Acting 
         Chief   Executive for clinical leadership of the PCT (employed by the PCT) 
4.10 Director of Clinical Development/Lead Nurse Accountable to the Acting 
           Chief Executive of the PCT (employed by the PCT) 
4.11 Director of Primary Care Accountable to the Acting Chief Executive of the 
           PCT for primary care development  (employed by the PCT) 
4.12 Director of Finance (PCT) statutory accountability to the PCT Board and  
           the Acting Chief Executive of PCT for all financial matters (employed by  
           the PCT)  
4.13 Acting Director of Child and Families Service Accountable to the Acting 
            Chief Executive (employed by the Council) 

 
 
 
Background Papers: 
 
Joint Director of Public Health (26.2.02) 
Future Arrangements for the Integration of Health & Social Care (9.4.02) 
Integrating Health & Social Care: Stage Two (17.9.02) 
Human Resources Strategy: LBBD/PCT (8.10.02) 
(Governance Arrangements for Health & Social Care in Barking & Dagenham 
Integration between Health & Social Care: Management Structure Appointments) 
(17.12.02) 
Urgent Action: Future Management of Social Services and the Primary Care Trust (9.9.03) 

 

Page 22



 

 
Appendix 1 

 
Joint arrangements for Governance of Services 

 
This chart only lists those services where existing joint delivery arrangements are priorities 
to continue, and where governance/partnership arrangements need clarification. 
 
 
Adult services: 

 
Learning Difficulties: 

 
section 31/partnership board in place; 
(action: review membership of board) 
 

  
Substance Misuse: 

 
Add: management of smoking cessation 
services; SLA to be agreed with targets 
and reporting arrangements – consider 
S.28A agreement 
   

  
Community Dentistry: 

 
Memorandum of Agreement to set out 
targets; continues to report to Head of 
Adult Services 
 

  
Mental Health: 

 
formalise LIT as partnership board; 
formalise " LIT Business Group" as 
commissioning & delivery vehicle; 
memorandum of agreement to set out 
accountability to PCT and Social Services 
 

  
Physical Disability: 

 
Commissioning arrangements to be 
clarified for NHS Services 
 

 
Policy 

Including equalities & 
diversity 

 
Management via Social Services: 3 way 
quarterly meeting on accountability 
 

 
Regeneration & 
Community 
Partnership 
 

  
joint accountability via 3 way quarterly 
meeting 

 
Children’s Health 
Services 
 

  
Acting Director of ICHS reports to ACE; 
children’s strategy group deals with future 
strategy 

 
 
Organisational 
Development & 
Corporate Support 

  
 
joint Accountability – 3 way quarterly 
meetings 

Page 23



 

 
Older Peoples Services 
 

 
Line Management through DSS; accountability 
agreement to ACE/PCT and quarterly 3-way 
meetings 

 
Public Health 
 

 
Continued joint accountability to Director of Health 
and Housing and ACE 
 

 
Commissioning 
 

 
Line management to ACE, covers Acute & health 
dimensions of mental health and older people’s 
services.  All other commissioning functions will be 
subject to further discussion. 
 

 
 

Page 24



 

 
 
 

Appendix 2
 
A chart clarifying accountabilities and direct reports to Director of Social Services/Acting Chief Executive

*Acting 
Chief  

Executive 
**Director of 

Social  
Services 

Joint Medical Directors  

Director of Services for the Community 

*Director of Public Health ** 

Director of Organisational Development 
and Corporate Support  

Director of Clinical Development/ Lead 
Nurse  

Director of Primary Care  

*Director of Finance (PCT)  

Head of Finance (SS)  

Director of Older People  Services 

Director of Commissioning  

NB: Accountability for budget management is held directly from same manager to the appropriate Accountable Officer i.e. ACE (PCT) DSS (Council) 

Direct 

Accountability 

Acting Director of Children’s 
Services (ICHS)  

*  Accountable to PCT Board 
**  Accountable to Council Executive 

Council 

Page 25



 

Appendix 3 
 

Accountability Framework 
 
Post 
 
 
 
Post Holder 
 

(Job Title) 
 
 
(Person in Post) 

Accountable for 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Source 

(Core functions) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Job Description 

Performance objectives 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Source 

(4/5 key deliverables/outcomes & timescale) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Performance objectives 

Performance objectives agreed by 
 
 
 

e.g Chair, PCG board. Elected  members. Chief 
executive, director, line manager, as appropriate 

Line Manager 
 
 

 

Direct Reports 
 
 
 

 

Professional accountability  
 
 

Where different to above 

 
 
Signed:………………………………………………                 Review Date………………… 
            ……………………………………………… 
            ……………………………………………….. 
         
  

Page 26



 

A
pp

en
di

x 
4 

So
ci

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
an

ag
em

en
t C

ha
rt 

                             

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 
O

rg
an

isa
tio

na
l 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t &
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

up
po

rt
 

. H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
. C

or
po

ra
te

 A
ff

ai
rs

 
. C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 

. P
A

Ls
 

. C
us

to
m

er
 C

ar
e 

 

H
ea

d 
of

  F
in

an
ce

 
. F

in
an

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
. C

on
tra

ct
s 

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
es

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
. A

ss
es

sm
en

t t
ea

m
s 

. J
oi

nt
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
. H

om
e 

Su
pp

or
t 

. R
es

id
en

tia
l C

ar
e 

. D
ay

 C
ar

e 
. I

nt
er

m
ed

ia
te

 &
 tr

an
si

tio
na

l 
ca

re
 

. D
is

tri
ct

 N
ur

si
ng

 
. C

om
m

un
ity

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t 

. O
ut

 o
f h

ou
rs

 
. I

ni
tia

l C
on

ta
ct

 S
er

vi
ce

 

D
ire

ct
or

 fo
r S

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 

th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

H
ea

d 
of

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
. A

ss
es

sm
en

t t
ea

m
s 

. L
ea

vi
ng

 te
am

s 
. F

am
ily

 S
up

po
rt 

. D
ay

 C
ar

e 
an

d 
Fo

st
er

in
g 

. J
oi

nt
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 

H
ea

d 
of

 A
du

lt 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

. M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 
. D

is
ab

ilit
y 

. P
hy

si
ca

l D
is

ab
ilit

y 
. D

ru
gs

,A
lc

oh
ol

 &
 

Sm
ok

in
g 

. D
en

tri
st

y 
. J

oi
nt

 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
 

. P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
. I

T 
. P

ol
ic

y 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

&
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

er

D
IR

EC
TO

R
 O

F 
SO

C
IA

L 
SE

R
VI

C
ES

 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

28 OCTOBER 2003 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
SOCIAL SERVICES ANNUAL REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE 
 

FOR INFORMATION 

 
Summary 
 
All Councils with Social Services Responsibilities are subject to the Performance 
Assessment Framework. As part of this, the Social Services Inspectorate meets annually 
with councillors, senior managers and partner agencies to review progress over the 
previous year, taking into account performance indicators, inspections and other evidence. 
 
The attached letter is the result of this process and the Council is required to present it to 
the Executive (or equivalent). 
 
Star ratings will be announced shortly informed by this process. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The Executive is asked to note the report. 
 
Contact Officer: 
Cathryn Williams 
 

 
Director of Services for 
the Community 
 

 
Tel: 020 8227 2086 
Minicom: 020 8 227 2462 
E-mail: cathryn.Williams@lbbd.gov.uk
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 6

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
15 September 2003 
 
 
Ms Julia Ross 
Director of Social Services 
London Borough of Barking and Dagenham 
Civic Centre 
Dagenham 
Essex 
RM8 7BW 
 
 
 
Dear Ms Ross 
 

ANNUAL REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE  
 
Summary:  
 
This letter accompanies a report of the Social Services Inspectorate’s 
annual review of your council’s social services performance. You are 
asked to present it in open session to the council’s relevant executive 
committee, within two months of the date of this letter.   
 
Thank you for arranging our recent annual review meeting. This letter sets out 
the Inspectorate’s view of the performance of social services in your area 
during the last year and comments on improvements planned for the year 
ahead.  
 
The recommendations made in this letter and its annexed report are intended 
to help the council improve outcomes and the quality of service to service-
users and carers. They are also intended to improve the prospects of 
improved performance ratings in the future.  
 
In assessing performance, SSI reaches judgements about performance 
against a set of standards and criteria,  drawing on evidence from a number of 
standard sources. These include: 
 
• the published PAF performance indicators and other statistical data up to 

2002-03, plus data supporting planned targets for 2003-04; 
  
• monitoring information from the position statement completed in June and 

October 2002, and the delivery and improvement statement completed in 
May 2003; and 

 
 

6th Floor 
Eileen House 
80-94 Newington Causeway
London SE1 6EF 
 
Tel: 020 7972 2000 
Fax: 020 7972 2921 
Minicom: 020 7972 2915 

Page 31



 
 
 
 
• the audit of services to children in need carried out in response to the 

report of the Victoria Climbié Inquiry. 
 
Details of the standards and criteria have been published, and are available 
from SSI, or may be seen on the Department of Health’s performance 
website.  A summary of the evidence used has also been sent to you 
separately.  
  
The annex to this letter summarises the key strengths of performance over 
the last year, and highlights priorities for improvement in the year ahead. The 
annual review does not attempt to review all aspects of performance. It 
focuses on the main performance issues for which SSI has current 
information. 
 

 Progress will be reviewed at the next scheduled monitoring meeting.  
       
 This report will form part of SSI’s performance record for the council, and will 

be published on the Department of Health’s web-site in November.  You are 
asked:  
 
• to present it to an open meeting of the relevant executive committee of the 

council, within two months of the date of this letter, and to advise me of the 
date on which this will take place; 

 
• to make the report available to members of the public at the same time; 

and 
 
• to copy  this letter and report to the council’s appointed auditor, and to 

NHS partner organisations.  
 
Progress will continue to be monitored during 2003-04 through our usual 
processes, and a further Annual Review meeting will take place during 2004-
05.  
 
Performance (Star) Ratings will be confirmed in November, based on an 
assessment of overall performance using all admissible evidence.  The 
evidence summarised in this letter will be used to help arrive at the rating.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
Eileen Dunnachie 
Link Inspector  
Social Services Inspectorate (London) 
Copy to: Graham Farrant – Chief Executive  

Page 32



\                  
          

 
 

 
                
          

PERFORMANCE REVIEW REPORT 2003: 
 
LONDON BOROUGH OF BARKING & DAGENHAM 
 

 
SERVICES FOR CHILDREN AND FAMILIES 
 
 
Improvements observed since the previous annual review 
 
Assessment has highlighted the following improvements to services since the last 
Annual Review: 
 
• good performance on the stability of placements of children looked after has 

been maintained.  There has however been no improvement in the long term 
stability; (Standard 3) 
 

• good performance in placing children looked after with family or friends, which 
is above the outer London average; (Standard 3) 
 

• the percentage of children looked after who have had the relevant health 
checks and immunisations has improved.  This was raised as an area for 
development in last year’s Annual Review; (Standard 3) 
 

• almost all reviews of children looked after have been completed within the 
required timescales.  This is above the outer London average and this 
improvement needs to be maintained and continued.  This was an area for 
development in last year’s Annual Review; (Standard 3) 
 

• virtually all children looked after have an allocated social worker.  This needs 
to be sustained; (Standard 3) 
 

• there has been a reduction in the percentage of children looked after who 
missed more than 25 days schooling, and the number of children permanently 
excluded from school is less than half the outer London average; (Standard 3) 
 

• the percentage of care leavers engaged in education, training or employment 
has improved.  The SSI inspection of children’s services in May 2002 noted 
that the leaving care team provided a good service to care leavers; (Standard 
1) 
 

Page 33



• all relevant care leavers have a pathway plan in place and an allocated 
personal adviser; (Standard 1) 
 

• some additional foster carers have been recruited; (Standard 3) 
 

• in July 2003 all children on the Child Protection Register had an allocated 
social worker.  Earlier in the year there were a number of unallocated cases 
reported and it is imperative that the current level of allocation is sustained; 
(Standard 3) 
 

• there has been an improvement in reviewing children on the Child Protection 
Register and 98 per cent are now completed within the required timescale.  
Continued improvement is required to achieve 100 per cent compliance.  This 
was noted as an area for development in last year’s Annual Review; 
(Standard 3) 
 

• there has been a reduction in the unit cost of foster care; (Standard 2) 
 

• performance has improved in the percentage of children registered on the 
Child Protection Register who had been previously registered.  This was 
noted as an area for development in last year’s Annual Review; (Standard 3) 
 

• there is a developed system for managing performance and ranges of 
enhanced monitoring activities are in place and are planned; (Standard 1) and 
 

• appropriate advocacy and interpreter services are available when required. 
(Standard 5) 
 

 
Areas for Improvement  
 
Assessment has highlighted the following concerns about performance: 
 
• there has been a reduction in the number of children adopted, and 

performance is now in the lowest band.  This issue was raised as an area for 
development in last year’s Annual Review.  Additionally, no child adopted last 
year had been placed for adoption within 12 months of the best interest 
decision being made.  However, permanency planning is a priority for 2003/04 
and 20 children have been placed for adoption during last year, with more 
adoption orders being made already in 2003-4 than 2002-3; (Standard 1) 
 

• the percentage of children looked after placed in foster care or for adoption 
remains low and below the outer London average.  There is a comparatively 
low number of approved adopters and foster carers as a percentage of the 
number of children looked after.  A comparatively high proportion of children 
looked after are mostly unaccompanied asylum seeking children in residential 
care placements.  The percentage of young children looked after in foster 
care or placed for adoption has improved. This was an area of development 

Page 34



identified in last year’s Annual Review; (Standard 3) 
 

• the recent National Care Standards Commission inspection of fostering 
services raised significant concerns about procedures for placing 
unaccompanied asylum seeing children.  At the time of the inspection 
70 children and young people were placed through an agency whose foster 
carers had not been through the usual checks and some of whom were 
actually operating as unregistered children’s homes. This situation has now 
been remedied;  (Standard 3) 
 

• performance has deteriorated in relation to the percentage of young people 
leaving care with at least one GCSE grade A*-G and is now in the lowest 
band.  Pupils are now individually tracked with education colleagues and it is 
envisaged that performance will improve. Only 40  per cent of children looked 
after have access to a computer where they are living and this is below the 
outer London average (68.3 per cent);  (Standard 1) 
 

• only 50 per cent of children looked after directly communicated their views to 
a statutory review last year, which is below the outer London average (77.4  
per cent) and needs to be improved; (Standard 4) 
 

• performance is poor in undertaking assessments within the timescales laid 
down.  Only 4 per cent of initial assessments are done within 7 days, a 
deterioration in performance from last year.  It is planned that this should rise 
to 40 per cent in 2003-2004 but this is still well below the outer 
London average this year of 60.1 per cent.  38 per cent of core assessments 
are done within 35 days, below the outer London average of 46.6 per cent; 
(Standard 4) 
 

• while performance has improved slightly in the duration on the Child 
Protection Register, further improvement is required to ensure that children do 
not remain on the register for more than 2 years; (Standard 3) 
 

• the unit cost of residential care for children is very high and has risen by 
£1100 a week since last year.  Commissioning options for children’s care 
need to be explored to ensure Best Value is obtained; (Standard 2) 
 

• the self assessment audit which was recently undertaken following the 
Victoria Climbié Inquiry showed a need for improvement in the following 
areas; (Standard 4): 
 
• the number of unallocated Child in Need cases; 

 
• the number of AEB trained social workers needs to be increased; 

 
• Area Child Protection Committee guidance on children from overseas is 

required; and 
 

Page 35



• a mechanism to record unmet need should be developed.  This is being 
addressed. 
 

• actions arising from recommendations in the SSI inspection of children’s 
services in 2002 need to be completed. 

 
 
Capacity for Improvement (Standard 6) 

 
Assessment has highlighted the following improvements to capacity: 
 
• the council has adopted the Balanced Scorecard to assist with performance 

management in children services.  A performance management and quality 
assurance culture must be embedded throughout the department to promote 
continued improvement in services; 
 

• there is an increase in funding for children’s services in 2003-04; 
 

• there is a commitment at Chief Officer and Member level to secure the 
improvements necessary in children’s services; and 
 

• a Financial and Commissioning Framework has been agreed for 2003-06, 
focusing on service modernisation, integration and the redirection of 
resources to Children and Families services.  

 
 
Assessment has highlighted the following concerns about capacity: 
   
• recruitment and retention of children and families staff remains an issue, 

which could impede the council’s ability to deliver, service improvements.  A 
strategy has been put in place and its implementation should address the 
difficulties in recruiting to key social care posts.  A workforce strategy across 
health and social care sectors is being developed; 
 

• a low percentage of the staffing budget is committed to training.  The 
percentage of social workers who have attained the PQ1 award in child care 
is very low compared with the outer London average.  Similarly a low 
percentage of residential child care staff have achieved NVQ3.  It is 
recognised that a significant number of staff are being supported to undertake 
Dip SW training; and 
 

• work needs to continue to ensure that equality issues become integrated into 
all the mainstream work of the department. 

 
 
 

Page 36



SERVICES TO ADULTS 
 
Improvements observed since the previous annual review. 

 
Assessment has highlighted the following improvements to services since the last 
Annual Review: 
 
• there has been an increase in the amount of intensive home care and an 

improvement in the provision of intensive home care as a proportion of 
intensive home care and residential/nursing care and performance is now in 
the top band.  Alongside this there are plans to further increase intermediate 
care services and extra care housing tenancies; (Standard 1) 
 

• the number of assessments of older people has risen and performance in this 
area is now good.  There has been an associated rise in the percentage of 
assessments, which have led to the provision of a service; (Standard 5) 
 

• the number of adults with learning disabilities helped to live at home has 
slightly increased from last year and this trend needs to be continued.  This 
was raised in the Annual Review 2002; (Standard 3) 
 

• there has been a reduction in the number of delayed transfers of care from 
the local acute hospital.  This improvement needs to be sustained.  The 
council was designated as a ‘hotspot’ and the issue of high levels of delayed 
discharges was highlighted in the Annual Review in 2002; (Standard 1) 
 

• there has been an improvement in the percentage of people who receive a 
statement of their needs following an assessment.  This was raised as an 
issue in last year’s Annual Review.  Continued improvement is still required; 
(Standard 3) 
 

• there has been a good increase in the percentage of people receiving a 
review and performance is now in the top band; (Standard 3) 
 

• revised eligibility criteria which are compliant with Fair Access to Care were 
put in place and operational by April 2003; (Standard 4) 
 

• there has been an improvement in the unit costs of intensive social care and 
the residential care of older people; (Standard 2) 
 

• a fully integrated health and social care commissioning structure and team is 
almost complete; (Standard 1) and 
 

• appropriate advocacy and interpreter services are available when required. 
(Standard 5) 

Page 37



Areas for Improvement  
 
Assessment has highlighted the following concerns about performance: 

 
• despite the improvements in intensive home care and the reduction in 

admissions to residential/nursing care, performance in helping older people to 
live at home remains poor. This was raised as an issue in the Annual Review 
last year; (Standard 3) 
 

• there has been a slight reduction in the numbers of older people admitted to 
residential or nursing home care but admissions are still significantly above 
the outer London average.  There needs to be continuing efforts to further 
reduce residential and nursing home placements and to provide more support 
in the community and greater independence for older people; (Standard 2) 
 

• performance has deteriorated in the number of adults waiting more than 
6 weeks from first contact to a service being provided.  There are also waiting 
lists for occupational therapy assessments, which need to be reduced; 
(Standard 4) 
 

• few service users are as yet receiving Direct Payments and these numbers 
need to be increased.  It is noted that current scheme members include older 
people and people with learning disability as well as younger physically 
disabled service users and this is encouraging; (Standard 3) 
 

• some slippage has been reported on the implementation of plans for a 
number of Valuing People objectives, including transition into adult life, more 
choice and control, good health, moving into employment, quality and 
partnership working.  The percentage of adults with a learning disability 
getting short term breaks has halved from last year and is much lower than 
the outer London average.  The momentum in improving services for adults 
and young people with learning disabilities needs to be maintained; (Standard 
3) and 
 

• there has been an improvement in the percentage of equipment delivered 
within 3 weeks but this is still below the outer London average. (Standard 3)  
 

 
 

Page 38



Capacity for Improvement (Standard 6) 
 

Assessment has highlighted the following improvements to capacity: 
 
• a Financial and Commissioning Framework has been agreed for 2003-2006, 

focusing on service modernisation, integration and the redirection of 
resources to Mental Health services; 

 
• integrated teams have been developed with health colleagues to develop 

improved services. 
 

• there is a commitment at Chief Officer and Member level to secure 
improvements in adult services; 
 

• there is an increase in funding for social services in 2003-04.  A capital 
programme worth £15 million over three years has been agreed; and 
 

• the council has adopted the Balanced Scorecard in adult’s services to assist 
with performance management.  A performance management and quality 
assurance culture must be embedded throughout the department to promote 
continued improvement in services. 

 
 
Assessment has highlighted the following concerns about capacity: 
 
• recruitment and retention of adults’ staff remains an issue, which could 

impede the council’s ability to deliver service improvements.  A strategy has 
been put into place and its implementation should address the difficulties in 
recruiting to key social care posts.  A workforce strategy across health and 
social care sectors is being developed; 
 

• a low percentage of the staffing budget is committed to training for adults 
staff, but there are plans to increase the number of students supported 
through DipSW training; 
 

• the council has not yet completed the necessary processes to implement the 
Caldicott Standard into social care and there is uncertainty that the timetable 
will be met.  Action is being taken to rectify this; and 
 

• it has taken some time to develop the integrated PCT/social services structure 
following the joint appointment of PCT Chief Executive and Director of Social 
Services.  It is hoped that greater evidence of benefits to service users 
resulting from more integration and better partnership working will be seen in 
the coming year. The challenges faced by the PCT are likely to impact on the 
improvement agenda for social services. 

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

28 OCTOBER 2003 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF HOUSING AND HEALTH 
 

TACKLING HEALTH INEQUALITIES: DELIVERING CHANGE 
THROUGH THE LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 
 

FOR DISCUSSION 

 
Summary 
 
The latest Department of Health publication, Tackling Health Inequalities: A Programme 
for Action provides a coherent focus for our own local work programme to tackle health 
inequalities (Annex 1 summarises headline messages). It also identifies a key role for 
Local Strategic Partnerships (LSPs) in addressing health inequalities at the local level. 
Along with local authorities and Primary Care Trusts (PCTs), LSPs are seen as central to 
delivery, with a role to play in setting priorities for action and in the strategic planning of 
local activity, and supporting partners to work together to reshape their services to narrow 
the health gap.  
 
PCTs have the leadership role for health inequalities within LSPs, leading work to agree a 
set of local priorities to address health inequalities that all partners can sign up to and 
support. 
 
The purpose of this report is to update The Executive on the approach and action already 
taken to deliver change through the LSP.  
 
Recommendation / Reason 
 
The Executive is asked to endorse the approach and support members of the Health 
Partnership Group (HPG) in order to focus on tackling health inequalities and devise / 
agree a local basket of indicators, which will be regularly monitored and report on 
annually. 
 
Contact Officer 
Matthew Cole 

 
Director of Public Health

 
Tel: 020 8532 6362 
Fax: 020 8532 6354 
E-mail: matthew.cole@bdpct.nhs.uk 
 

 
1. Background 

 
1.1 The following are a few of the key intervention areas highlighted by the Cross 

Cutting Review and Tackling Health Inequalities as likely to have the greatest 
potential impact on health inequalities:  

 
1.1.1 To increase life expectancy 

 
• Reducing smoking in manual social groups through smoking cessation 

services and other tobacco control programmes 

AGENDA ITEM 7

Page 41



• Preventing and managing other risk factors such as poor diet and obesity, 
physical inactivity and high blood pressure 

• Improving environmental health, including housing conditions and 
reducing the risk of accidents 

• Targeting the over-50s to make greatest short term impact. 
 

1.1.2 To reduce infant mortality 
 

• Improving the quality and accessibility of antenatal care and early years 
support in disadvantaged areas – building on the lessons of Sure Start 

• Reducing smoking and improving nutrition in pregnancy and early years, 
including increasing the number of mothers who breastfeed 

• Preventing teenage pregnancy and supporting teenage parents 
• Improving housing conditions, especially for children in disadvantaged 

areas. 
 
1.2 Importantly, delivering change to address these two targets is primarily underpinned 

by improvements in housing, education, employment and transport as well as the 
NHS.  

 
2. Previous work in Barking and Dagenham 

 
2.1 Barking and Havering Health Authority and subsequently Barking and Dagenham 

PCT has been working in partnership with the London Borough of Barking and 
Dagenham to tackle the health inequalities agenda since 2001.  A Health 
Partnership Group which included senior management membership from all five 
local authority departments together with the Health Authority / PCT was 
established as a vehicle for action.     
 

2.2 The Health Partnership Group quickly recognised that successful action to address 
health inequalities could only be facilitated if each organisation / department keenly 
appreciated: 
 
• the evidence for the way in which health is determined by socio-economic 

factors; 
• the relevance of their departments specific policies, action and progress in 

addressing health inequalities  
• where these may need to be developed together with targets and indicators 
 

2.3 To build relationships and address the above three points the public health 
directorate undertook an evaluation of each local authority department’s policies in 
relation to 19 Acheson Inquiry recommendations.  
 

2.4 The responses exceeded expectations and demonstrated that each local authority 
department did have policies, targets, indicators and some evidence of success in 
relation to the majority of relevant inquiry recommendations. However, the quality of 
the responses also suggested there was limited capacity within most of the 
departments to produce standardised reports documenting evidence of annual 
progress in relation to departmental policy objectives. The Health Partnership 
Group acknowledged this weakness.  
 

Page 42



2.5 Spurred on by the process and results, the Health Partnership Group started to set 
some health inequality targets for the borough. The eventual outcome was a 
‘Balanced Score Card for Health’.  However, with all the organisational change the 
Health Partnership Group lost it’s way and the group were not able to get formal 
agreement for its inclusion in the local authority's performance management 
framework.  

 
3. The Proposed Health Partnership Group Approach 

 
3.1 The Health Partnership Group has now been reconstituted, as a recognised sub-

group of the LSP and chaired by the Director of Public Health.  Core membership of 
the group include: 

 
Matthew Cole  (Chair) Joint Public Health Directorate 
Dr Peter Messent Joint Public Health Directorate 
Jenny Crossley  Education Arts & Libraries 
Lesley Millis  Housing & Health 
Nick Kingham Leisure & Environmental Services 
Lawrence Ashelford Health & Social Care 
Philip Baldwin Regeneration and Community Development 
Robin Tuddenham Corporate Strategy 
Cllr Osborn  Executive 
Crystal Carter  Community Forum Representative 

 
3.2 Part of the Health Partnership Group remit is to focus on tackling health inequalities 

and devise / agree a local basket of indicators, which it will regularly monitor and 
report on annually. To facilitate this process the Health Partnership Group will 
repeat the evaluation approach described earlier using the latest Department of 
Health publication Tackling Health Inequalities: A programme for action as a basis.  
Below in tabular form (Table 1) is a summary of which agency is responsible for 
each of the forty-two objectives within the publication (pages 24-36). 

 
Table 1. Delivering Change (Tackling Health Inequalities: A programme for action) 

  Delivery mechanism  Number of 
objectives 

Maternity and child health and child 
development 

PCT  
Social Services + 
PCT 

4 
 

1 
Improving life chances for children and young 
people 

LA & School  
Prison services  
LA & PCTs 

4 
1 
1 

 
 
 
Supporting families, mothers 
and children 

Reducing teenage pregnancy and supporting 
teenage mothers 

PCT 
Sure Start 

1 
1 

Engaging communities and 
individuals 

 LAS 
PCTs 
DATs 

6 
4 
1 

Reducing risk through prevention PCT 
PCT & LA 

2 
2 

Early detection, intervention and treatment  PCT 3 

Preventing illness and 
providing effective treatment 
and care 

Improving access to effective treatment  PCT 2 
Addressing the underlying 
determinants of health 

 LA 
Learning and Skills 
Council  
JobCentre plus 

6 
 

1 
2 

 
3.3 As a preliminary, a letter was sent to Directors with responsibility for front line 

services requesting them to complete a template for each of the forty-two objectives 
outlined in Tackling Health Inequalities: A programme for action directly relevant to 
their department.  

Page 43



3.4 The responses have been encouraging and describe plenty of examples of where 
the directorates are delivering against the forty-two objectives (Annex 2, 3, and 4). 
However, it’s also clear that currently co-ordination across the Council and the PCT 
remains variable. Overall the programme for action is extremely ambitious and will 
require from each directorate i) strong leadership; ii) good communication; iii) and 
robust evaluation, monitoring and reporting systems for the PCT and the Council to 
effectively deliver this agenda. It is suggested that this could be co-ordinated as the 
Health and Well Being Strategy for the borough. There was previously a joint health 
Strategy with the borough and the health agencies, but this is now out of date. 
 

3.5 The Barking and Dagenham programme will also form an integral component of the 
evolving North East London strategy for Tackling Health Inequalities: A Programme 
for Action. 

 
4. Proposal 

 
4.1 It is proposed that the Health Partnership Group conduct a more rigorous evaluation 

of current activity against each of the forty-two objectives. The results can then be 
used to: 

 
i) agree existing or develop some additional local targets, indicators;  
ii) develop a joint delivery plan for tackling health inequalities;  
iii) agreed a monitoring and reporting framework . 

 
4.1 Timescale 

 
It is the intention of the Health Partnership Group to complete this piece of work by 
March 2004.  

 
 
 
Background Papers 
None. 

Page 44



 1

TACKLING HEALTH INEQUALITIES      ANNEX 1 
A programme for action  
Headline messages 
 
Launched in 2003 with pan-Government commitment. The document: 
 
1. Highlights four themes 
• Supporting families, mothers and children 

• Maternity and child health and child development 
• Improving life chances for children and young people 
• Reducing teenage pregnancy and supporting teenage mothers 

 
• Engaging communities and individuals 

 
• Preventing illness and providing effective treatment and care 

• Reducing risk through effective prevention 
• Early detection, intervention and treatment 
• Improving access to effective treatment 

 
• Addressing the underlying determinants of health. 

 
2. Identifies national headline indicators 
• Twelve national headline indicators are proposed (Annex 2).  
• These will be complemented by additional indicators selected locally. 
• These data are generally either not yet available at all, or available but not yet analysed to 

enable progress to be assessed. Work is now in hand to begin to develop the national 
indicators.  

• As yet there has been no discussion of the links to CHAI and star ratings, although this is likely 
to be only a matter of time. 

 
3. Sets out roles and responsibilities 
• Recognises that action must be cross cutting at the national level as well as locally 
• Local Strategic Partnerships are crucial, although it is recognised that these are not always 

well developed especially outside NRF areas. They should take the lead in encouraging: 
• A “committed, collaborative and systematic approach” 
• Pooling budgets and sharing resources 
• Health equity audits 
• Developing local priorities 
• Agreeing the local basket of indicators. 
• Tackling health inequalities is a priority for every Local Authority, with the national health 

inequalities target included in the local public sector agreement “national” targets: 
• The “Shared Priorities” programme includes promoting healthier communities and narrowing 

health inequalities 
• Local Government has a statutory duty to promote community well being 
• The remit of Overview and Scrutiny Committees includes public health and health inequalities 
• Within the local NHS there are three roles: 
• PCTs have the local lead for leading and supporting the partnership work which will be crucial 
• PCTs and NHS Trusts (working with the Modernisation Agency) should ensure that service 

modernisation and improvement narrow health inequalities 
• PCTs and NHS Trusts should promote regeneration through their role as corporate citizen in 

supporting local economies maximising the access to high quality health services for people 
from disadvantaged communities and wherever health needs are high. 

• The SHA should: 

Page 45



 2

• Ensure that health inequalities are central to planning and performance management 
• Support NHS organisations in meeting the targets and contributing to effective partnerships 
• Build capacity throughout the public health network and more widely 
• Enable pan-PCT approaches 
• Ensure that local communities benefit from local job opportunities. 
 
4. National headline indicators 
• Access to primary care 
• Numbers of primary care professionals (initially GPs) per 100,000 population 
• Accidents 
• Road accident casualties in disadvantaged communities (88 Neighbourhood Renewal Fund 

(NRF) areas compared to England as a whole) 
• Child poverty 
• Proportion of children living in low income households 
• Diet 5-a-day 
• Proportion of people consuming five or more portions of fruit and vegetables per day in the 

lowest quintile of household income distribution 
• Education 
• Proportion of those aged 16 who get qualifications equivalent to 5 GCSEs at Grades A to C 
• Homelessness 
• Number of homeless families and children living in temporary accommodation 
• Housing 
• Proportion of households living in non-decent housing 
• Influenza immunisations 
• Percentage uptake of flu immunisations by older people (aged 65+) 
• PE and school sport 
• Percentage of schoolchildren who spend a minimum of two hours each week on high quality 

PE and school sport within and beyond the curriculum 
• Smoking prevalence 
• Prevalence of smoking among people in manual social groups, and among pregnant women 
• Teenage conceptions 
• Rate of under-18 conceptions 
• Mortality from the major killer diseases 

• Age-standardised death rates per 100,000 population for the major killer diseases (cancer, 
circulatory diseases) under 75 (for the 20% of areas with the highest rates compared to the 
national average). 

 
 

Page 46



C
or

po
ra

te
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

/ N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 R

en
ew

al
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

nn
ex

 2
 

  Ar
ea

 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

LB
BD

 W
rit

te
n 

po
lic

y 
Si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 w
or

k 
un

de
rw

ay
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 o

f s
uc

ce
ss

 
Ev

id
en

ce
 o

f 
su

cc
es

s 
Su

pp
or

tin
g 

fa
m

ilie
s,

 
m

ot
he

rs
 a

nd
 

ch
ild

re
n 

To
 re

du
ce

 
te

en
ag

e 
pr

eg
na

nc
y 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t 

te
en

ag
e 

m
ot

he
rs

, 
H

el
p 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 

Su
re

St
ar

t 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

s 

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 

R
en

ew
al

 S
tra

te
gy

, 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

St
ra

te
gy

, 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tra

te
gy

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
ro

un
d 

te
en

ag
e 

pr
eg

na
nc

y 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

pe
er

 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

an
d 

tra
in

in
g,

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f 

gu
id

an
ce

 fo
r y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

 fr
ie

nd
ly

 
se

rv
ic

es
, t

ra
in

in
g 

se
ss

io
ns

 fo
r y

ou
ng

 
m

ot
he

rs
 a

nd
 fa

th
er

s,
 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 y

ou
ng

 m
en

 
ar

ou
nd

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 
 YO

T 
pr

oj
ec

t f
or

 
fa

m
ilie

s 
ar

ou
nd

 a
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t 

To
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 c

on
ce

pt
io

ns
 to

 
un

de
r 1

8s
 b

y 
5%

 p
er

 
ye

ar
 b

or
ou

gh
 w

id
e 

an
d 

5%
 in

 G
as

co
ig

ne
 

an
d 

Fa
ns

ha
w

e 
w

ar
ds

 
  

? 

Pr
ev

en
tin

g 
illn

es
s 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

tre
at

m
en

t 
an

d 
ca

re
 

W
or

k 
w

ith
 

pa
rti

cu
la

r 
se

ct
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 
he

al
th

, 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 

R
en

ew
al

 S
tra

te
gy

, 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

St
ra

te
gy

,C
om

m
un

ity
 

St
ra

te
gy

 

 
To

 im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 
lo

ca
l i

nt
er

im
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 

N
R

S 
Fu

nd
in

g 
se

cu
re

d 
fo

r G
ra

y’
s 

C
ou

rt 

Page 47



se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r 

di
sa

dv
an

ta
ge

d 
ha

rd
 to

 re
ac

h 
an

d 
bl

ac
k 

an
d 

m
in

or
ity

 e
th

ni
c 

gr
ou

ps
 

En
ga

gi
ng

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 

an
d 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

Em
po

w
er

in
g 

Lo
ca

l p
eo

pl
e 

to
 in

flu
en

ce
 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y;

 
In

cr
ea

se
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 a
nd

 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n;
 

To
 e

m
po

w
er

 
an

d 
en

ga
ge

 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
by

 o
ffe

rin
g 

tra
in

in
g,

 
le

ar
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s;

 
To

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

flo
w

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

es
pe

ci
al

ly
 to

 
ha

rd
-to

-re
ac

h 
gr

ou
ps

 
To

 s
ee

k 
th

e 
ac

tiv
e 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 

R
en

ew
al

 S
tra

te
gy

, 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

St
ra

te
gy

,C
om

m
un

ity
 

St
ra

te
gy

 

G
ro

un
dw

or
k 

Tr
us

t h
as

 
be

en
 c

om
m

is
si

on
ed

 to
 

de
ve

lo
p 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

Ac
tio

n 
Pl

an
s 

in
 e

ac
h 

C
om

m
un

ity
 F

or
um

 
ar

ea
 b

y 
co

ns
ul

tin
g 

an
d 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l 
pe

op
le

; 
Tw

o 
pi

lo
t 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 C

o-
or

di
na

tio
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 in
 

W
el

lg
at

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
Fo

ru
m

 a
re

a 
an

d 
Ab

be
y,

 G
as

co
ig

ne
 a

nd
 

Th
am

es
. 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
Pe

op
le

’s
  

ac
ce

ss
 to

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

fo
ru

m
s 

by
 s

up
pl

yi
ng

 
cr

èc
he

 p
la

ce
s,

 
tra

ns
la

tio
ns

 a
nd

 
tra

ns
po

rt,
 

W
or

k 
is

 b
ei

ng
 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
to

 h
el

p 
en

ga
ge

 w
ith

 h
ar

d-
to

-
re

ac
h 

gr
ou

ps
 

To
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

2 
pi

lo
t 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

sc
he

m
es

 
To

 d
ev

el
op

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e 
fo

r t
he

ir 
ar

ea
s 

To
 h

el
p 

lo
ca

l 
co

m
m

un
ity

 d
ev

el
op

 
an

d 
de

liv
er

 
To

 in
cr

ea
se

 b
y 

10
%

 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
ns

 s
ec

ur
in

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

fro
m

 o
th

er
 

fu
nd

in
g 

so
ur

ce
s.

 

Al
l l

oc
al

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
G

ro
un

dw
or

k,
 th

ey
 

ar
e 

no
w

 in
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 
im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
th

e 
ac

tio
ns

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
pl

an
s.

 
 In

cr
ea

se
 in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
rs

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
at

te
nd

in
g 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fo

ru
m

s 
– 

ho
w

ev
er

 u
pt

ak
e 

of
 c

rè
ch

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
er

e 
lim

ite
d.

 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
of

 th
e 

nu
m

be
rs

 o
f g

ro
up

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

 2 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fo
ru

m
 

m
ew

sl
et

te
rs

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

by
 

Page 48



in
vo

lv
em

en
t o

f 
ha

rd
 to

 re
ac

h 
gr

ou
ps

 a
nd

 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 

in
 p

ro
m

ot
in

g 
ci

tiz
en

sh
ip

 
an

d 
ci

vi
c 

pr
id

e

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 s
es

si
on

s 
fo

r 
co

m
m

un
ity

 re
ps

. 
Fu

nd
in

g 
w

or
ks

ho
ps

 fo
r 

th
e 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
ec

to
rs

 

lo
ca

l p
eo

pl
e 

in
 

Ab
be

y,
 G

as
co

ig
ne

 
an

d 
Th

am
es

 a
nd

 
Pa

rs
lo

es
, 

Be
co

nt
re

e 
an

d 
Va

le
nc

e 
 Tr

an
sl

at
io

ns
 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r c

ou
nc

il 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fo
ru

m
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
Ad

dr
es

si
ng

 
th

e 
un

de
rly

in
g 

de
te

rm
in

an
ts

 
of

 h
ea

lth
 

R
ai

si
ng

 S
ki

lls
, 

R
ai

si
ng

 L
oc

al
 

Pe
op

le
’s

 
in

co
m

e 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

ab
ilit

y,
 

  

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 

R
en

ew
al

 S
tra

te
gy

, 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

St
ra

te
gy

,C
om

m
un

ity
 

St
ra

te
gy

, 
 

N
R

S 
fu

nd
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

s:
 

R
ea

di
ng

 P
ar

tn
er

s 
Sc

he
m

e;
 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 M
en

to
rs

 fo
r 

Sc
ho

ol
 A

ge
 c

hi
ld

re
n;

 
ES

O
L 

pr
ov

is
io

n;
 

H
ea

lth
y 

H
el

p 
Pr

oj
ec

t t
o 

en
su

re
 lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e 
ar

e 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

al
l b

en
ef

its
 

en
tit

le
d 

to
 th

em
, 

pa
rti

cu
la

rly
 o

ld
 p

eo
pl

e,
 

Su
re

St
ar

t n
ut

rit
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
,  

Sm
ok

in
g 

C
es

sa
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
,  

H
ea

lth
y 

sc
ho

ol
s 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 –

 W
al

ki
ng

 
Bu

se
s 

an
d 

Br
ea

kf
as

t 

Im
pr

ov
e 

Ad
ul

t B
as

ic
 

sk
ills

,  
In

cr
ea

se
 P

eo
pl

e’
s 

in
co

m
es

, 
R

ai
se

 E
du

ca
tio

na
l 

at
ta

in
m

en
t i

n 
sc

ho
ol

s;
 

In
cr

ea
se

 n
um

be
r o

f 
pe

op
le

 e
nt

er
in

g 
hi

gh
er

 
an

d 
fu

rth
er

 e
du

ca
tio

n,
 

         

Av
er

ag
e 

in
co

m
e 

in
 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

ha
s 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
by

 1
4%

 
ov

er
 th

e 
pa

st
 2

 
ye

ar
s 

 Be
ac

on
 S

ta
tu

s 
fo

r 
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

Se
co

nd
ar

y 
ed

uc
at

io
n,

 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 G
C

SE
 

re
su

lts
 

 H
ea

lth
y 

he
lp

 
pr

oj
ec

t h
as

 
se

cu
re

d 
£2

5,
00

0 
+ 

in
 b

en
ef

its
 in

 fi
rs

t 
ye

ar
.  

Page 49



cl
ub

s,
  

 
 Th

e 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

a 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 
H

ea
lth

y 
Li

vi
ng

 e
ve

nt
s 

in
 th

e 
m

os
t d

ep
riv

ed
 

ar
ea

s 
of

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h;

 
 

  Su
re

St
ar

t 
nu

tri
tio

ni
st

 in
 p

os
t 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

a 
se

rie
s 

of
 e

ve
nt

s 
in

 th
e 

Su
re

St
ar

t 
ar

ea
s;

 
 Br

ea
kf

as
t c

lu
bs

 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ag
re

ed
 

fo
r t

w
o 

sc
ho

ol
s 

in
 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

on
e 

ha
s 

st
ar

te
d.

 
 W

al
ki

ng
 b

us
es

 a
re

 
se

t t
o 

st
ar

t t
o 

co
in

ci
de

 w
ith

 
W

al
ki

ng
 to

 S
ch

oo
l 

w
ee

k 
in

 O
ct

ob
er

 
20

03
. 

 

Page 50



Ed
uc

at
io

n,
 A

rt
s 

an
d 

Li
br

ar
ie

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

nn
ex

 3
  

 
A

re
a 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
LB

B
D

 W
rit

te
n 

Po
lic

y 
Si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 w
or

k 
un

de
rw

ay
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 o

f s
uc

ce
ss

 
Ev

id
en

ce
 o

f s
uc

ce
ss

 

Su
pp

or
tin

g 
fa

m
ilie

s,
 

m
ot

he
rs

 
an

d 
ch

ild
re

n  

To
 b

re
ak

 th
e 

in
te

rg
en

er
at

io
na

l 
cy

cl
e 

of
 p

oo
r 

le
ve

ls
 o

f l
ite

ra
cy

 
an

d 
le

ar
ni

ng
.  

Fa
m

ily
 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 
po

si
tio

n 
st

at
em

en
t a

nd
 

st
ra

te
gy

 

7 
or

 8
 y

ea
rs

 o
f d

ev
el

op
in

g 
Fa

m
ily

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 –

 
as

 a
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 b

et
w

ee
n 

C
om

m
un

ity
 In

sp
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

Ad
vi

so
ry

 S
er

vi
ce

, A
du

lt 
C

ol
le

ge
, L

ib
ra

rie
s 

an
d 

Sc
ho

ol
s.

 

• 
• 

R
ea

di
ng

 a
nd

 s
pe

llin
g 

sc
or

es
 o

f c
hi

ld
re

n 
on

 
th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
 

• 
• 

Q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

ns
 g

ai
ne

d 
by

 a
du

lts
.  

• 
• 

R
et

en
tio

n 
ra

te
s 

an
d 

pr
og

re
ss

io
n 

ro
ut

es
. 

• 
• 

C
ou

rs
es

 d
em

on
st

ra
bl

y 
in

di
ca

te
 

ch
ild

re
n 

m
ak

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 g
ai

ns
 in

 
re

ad
in

g 
an

d 
sp

el
lin

g.
 

• 
• 

Tr
ac

k 
re

co
rd

 fo
r q

ua
lif

ic
at

io
ns

 g
ai

ne
d 

by
 a

du
lts

.  
• 

• 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
by

 e
xt

er
na

l a
ge

nc
ie

s 
e.

g.
 

O
FS

TE
D

, B
as

ic
 S

ki
lls

 A
ge

nc
y.

 
 To

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
up

po
rt 

an
d 

ad
vi

ce
 fo

r 
pa

re
nt

s 
of

 y
ou

ng
 

de
af

 c
hi

ld
re

n 

  

To
 p

ro
vi

de
 e

ar
ly

 
in

te
rv

en
tio

n 

 Pa
re

nt
 L

ea
fle

t 
ou

tli
ni

ng
 a

im
s 

an
d 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 

 • 
Ea

rly
 Y

ea
rs

 F
am

ily
 c

en
tre

 
fo

r d
ea

f c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

fa
m

ilie
s 

se
t u

p 
as

 re
su

lt 
of

 
pa

re
nt

 
qu

es
tio

nn
ai

re
(te

m
po

ra
ry

 
pr

em
is

es
) 

• 
Se

ss
io

ns
 ru

nn
in

g 
2x

 
w

ee
kl

y 
• 

At
te

nd
an

ce
 b

y 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 fr
om

 H
ea

lth
 

(S
&L

T,
 a

ud
io

lo
gi

st
, 

au
di

ol
og

y 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

), 
So

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

• 
Ev

en
in

g 
tra

in
in

g 
se

ss
io

ns
 

se
t u

p 

 • 
At

te
nd

an
ce

 a
t s

es
si

on
s 

• 
Pr

og
re

ss
 in

 y
ou

ng
 

ch
ild

re
n’

s 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
sk

ills
 

 • 
Se

ss
io

ns
 w

el
l a

tte
nd

ed
 

• 
Vi

de
o 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f i

m
pr

ov
ed

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

sk
ills

 

 
To

 d
ev

el
op

 s
ig

ni
ng

 
sk

ills
 o

f p
ar

en
ts

 o
f 

yo
un

g 
de

af
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

(0
-6

yo
) 

 
• 

12
 m

on
th

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 

pa
re

nt
s’

 n
ee

ds
 (r

at
he

r t
ha

n 
St

ag
e1

 B
SL

) 
• 

Se
co

nd
 y

ea
r o

f c
ou

rs
e 

• 
W

ee
kl

y 
se

ss
io

ns
 ru

n 
by

 
de

af
-w

or
ke

r 

• 
C

on
fid

en
ce

 o
f p

ar
en

ts
 in

 
ab

ilit
y 

to
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
e 

w
ith

 d
ea

f p
eo

pl
e 

• 
At

te
nd

an
ce

 
• 

Fu
rth

er
 s

ig
ni

ng
 c

ou
rs

es
 

un
de

rta
ke

n 

• 
W

el
l-a

tte
nd

ed
 a

nd
 p

os
iti

ve
 in

fo
rm

al
 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 
• 

M
aj

or
ity

 o
f l

as
t y

ea
r’s

 p
ar

en
ts

 u
nd

er
ta

ki
ng

 
St

ag
e 

2 
BS

L 

Page 51



 
A

re
a 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
LB

B
D

 W
rit

te
n 

Po
lic

y 
Si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 w
or

k 
un

de
rw

ay
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 o

f s
uc

ce
ss

 
Ev

id
en

ce
 o

f s
uc

ce
ss

 

To
 e

na
bl

e 
pa

re
nt

s 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

ow
n 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
ne

tw
or

k 
To

 e
na

bl
e 

de
af

 
to

dd
le

rs
 to

 m
ee

t 
an

d 
pl

ay
 w

ith
 e

ac
h 

ot
he

r 

 
• 

W
ee

kl
y 

se
ss

io
ns

 h
el

d 
• 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
m

ix
 w

ith
 m

in
im

al
 

ad
ul

t i
nt

er
ve

nt
io

n 

• 
At

te
nd

an
ce

 N
et

w
or

k 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
be

gi
n 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 d
ea

f 
pe

op
le

 

• 
4-

5 
re

gu
la

r m
em

be
rs

 (t
ra

ns
po

rt 
an

 is
su

e)
 

• 
B&

D
 D

ea
f C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
So

ci
et

y 
se

t u
p 

by
 

pa
re

nt
s 

• 
Pa

re
nt

s 
sp

ok
e 

at
 n

at
io

na
l c

on
fe

re
nc

e 
• 

In
fo

rm
al

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 

Su
pp

or
tin

g 
fa

m
ilie

s,
 

m
ot

he
rs

 a
nd

 
ch

ild
re

n  

To
 p

ro
vi

de
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t f

or
 

pa
re

nt
s 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 
w

ith
 a

ut
is

m
 

 
• 

Pa
re

nt
 g

ro
up

 s
et

 u
p 

• 
LE

A 
tra

in
in

g 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 

pa
re

nt
s 

• 
Pa

re
nt

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
on

 
au

tis
m

 s
te

er
in

g 
gr

ou
p 

• 
At

te
nd

an
ce

 
• 

Fe
ed

ba
ck

 
• 

C
ou

rs
e 

at
te

nd
an

ce
 re

co
rd

 
• 

Ev
al

ua
tio

ns
 

 
To

 p
ro

vi
de

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 
fo

r p
ar

en
ts

 in
 

m
an

ag
in

g 
be

ha
vi

ou
r 

Fa
m

ily
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

St
ra

te
gy

 
C

ou
rs

e 
ru

n 
by

 A
du

lt 
C

ol
le

ge
 

• 
At

te
nd

an
ce

 a
nd

 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

• 
W

el
l a

tte
nd

ed
 

 
To

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

ph
ys

ic
al

 a
nd

 
ps

yc
ho

lo
gi

ca
l 

he
al

th
 n

ee
ds

 o
f 

lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r 

ch
ild

re
n.

 

LA
C

H
ES

 
(L

oo
ke

d 
Af

te
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
H

ea
lth

 
an

d 
Ed

uc
at

io
na

l 
Su

pp
or

t) 
te

am
 

br
ie

f  

• 
N

ur
se

 a
lre

ad
y 

ap
po

in
te

d 
to

 
th

e 
LA

C
H

ES
 te

am
. 

• 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
t t

ea
ch

er
 a

nd
 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l p

sy
ch

ol
og

is
t 

in
pu

t t
o 

th
e 

LA
C

H
ES

 te
am

 
to

 s
ta

rt 
th

is
 te

rm
 (A

ut
um

n 
20

03
). 

• 
St

ro
ng

er
 li

nk
s 

w
ith

 C
AM

H
S 

to
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d.

 
 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
nu

m
be

rs
 o

f m
ed

ic
al

 
ch

ec
ks

. 
%

 In
cr

ea
se

 in
 m

ed
ic

al
 c

he
ck

s.
 

 

Page 52



 
A

re
a 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
LB

B
D

 W
rit

te
n 

Po
lic

y 
Si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 w
or

k 
un

de
rw

ay
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 o

f s
uc

ce
ss

 
Ev

id
en

ce
 o

f s
uc

ce
ss

 

Su
pp

or
tin

g 
fa

m
ilie

s,
 

m
ot

he
rs

 a
nd

 
ch

ild
re

n  

To
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
w

or
k:

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
a)

 D
om

es
tic

 
Vi

ol
en

ce
 (D

V)
 

 

D
V 

St
ra

te
gy

 
 

Sc
ho

ol
s 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

e.
g.

 d
ra

m
a 

– 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

ra
is

in
g 

w
ith

 s
ta

ff 
an

d 
pu

pi
ls

 w
ith

in
 s

ch
oo

l. 
 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 D

V 
is

su
es

. 
 

Lo
ca

l m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 la
un

ch
 p

lu
s 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
se

ct
or

 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t. 
 

 
b)

 T
ee

na
ge

 
Pr

eg
na

nc
y 

 

Te
en

ag
e 

pr
eg

na
nc

y 
st

ra
te

gy
 

 

Jo
in

t H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

te
am

. 
 

• 
R

ed
uc

ed
 u

nd
er

-1
6s

 
co

nc
ep

tio
n 

ra
te

. 
• 

R
ed

uc
ed

 u
nd

er
-1

6s
 b

irt
h 

ra
te

. 
 

• 
R

ed
uc

ed
 u

nd
er

-1
6s

 b
irt

h 
ra

te
. 

• 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

of
 w

or
k 

in
 s

ch
oo

ls
 e

.g
. S

tra
ig

ht
 

Ta
lk

in
g 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 

 
c)

 S
up

po
rti

ng
 

Pa
re

nt
s 

an
d 

C
ar

er
s 

A 
nu

m
be

r o
f 

ap
pr

oa
ch

es
 

co
lla

te
d 

ac
ro

ss
 

Ba
rk

in
g 

& 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 

• 
Pa

re
nt

s 
in

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
w

or
ks

ho
ps

 
• 

Pa
re

nt
in

g 
w

or
ks

ho
ps

 
• 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f f

am
ily

 
th

er
ap

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

ith
in

 
D

EA
L/

Sc
ho

ol
s 

(s
ee

 a
ls

o 
Fa

m
ily

 L
ea

rn
in

g)
 

 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
pa

re
nt

al
 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t i

n 
te

rm
s 

of
 c

hi
ld

’s
 

ed
uc

at
io

n,
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

, 
be

ha
vi

ou
r, 

et
c.

 

• 
Su

cc
es

sf
ul

 s
em

in
ar

s 
fo

r P
ar

en
ts

 in
 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
• 

O
ve

rs
ub

sc
rib

ed
 p

ar
en

tin
g 

w
or

ks
ho

ps
 ru

n 
by

 
Ed

uc
at

io
na

l P
sy

ch
ol

og
y 

Se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

C
IA

S.
 

 

 
d)

 R
ai

si
ng

 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 

em
ot

io
na

l n
ee

ds
 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

1)
 P

ol
ic

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 E

ar
ly

 
In

te
rv

en
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

e 
“A

co
rn

s”
 

    

Ex
pa

ns
io

n 
(d

ou
bl

in
g)

 o
f s

up
po

rt 
of

fe
re

d 
to

 c
hi

ld
re

n,
 s

ta
ff,

 
pa

re
nt

s 
an

d 
ca

re
rs

 a
t A

co
rn

s.
 

      

• 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 s

ch
oo

l 
ex

cl
us

io
ns

 o
f c

hi
ld

re
n 

at
te

nd
in

g 
Ac

or
ns

. 
• 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

by
 s

ta
ff,

 p
ar

en
ts

 a
nd

 
ca

re
rs

 o
f e

m
ot

io
na

l n
ee

ds
 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n.

 
 

• 
H

ig
hl

y 
po

si
tiv

e 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 fr

om
 s

er
vi

ce
 u

se
rs

. 
• 

Su
pp

or
t o

f H
ea

dt
ea

ch
er

s 
fo

r e
xp

an
si

on
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e.
 

• 
In

cl
us

io
n 

of
 A

co
rn

s 
in

 a
 n

at
io

na
l p

ub
lic

at
io

n 
(D

fE
S/

D
oH

) 

 

Page 53



 
A

re
a 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
LB

B
D

 W
rit

te
n 

Po
lic

y 
Si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 w
or

k 
un

de
rw

ay
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 o

f s
uc

ce
ss

 
Ev

id
en

ce
 o

f s
uc

ce
ss

 

Su
pp

or
tin

g 
fa

m
ilie

s,
 

m
ot

he
rs

 a
nd

 
ch

ild
re

n  

 
 2)

 S
ch

oo
ls

 
C

ou
ns

el
lin

g 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Ag

re
em

en
ts

 
 3)

 M
en

to
r 

Sc
he

m
es

/P
ol

ic
i

es
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 
 

 Ex
pa

ns
io

n 
of

 S
ch

oo
ls

 
C

ou
ns

el
lin

g 
Se

rv
ic

e 
at

 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

le
ve

l. 
 Ex

pa
ns

io
n 

of
 m

en
to

rin
g 

sc
he

m
e 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
Vo

lu
nt

ee
r M

en
to

rs
 

an
d 

Yo
un

g 
C

ar
er

s 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

an
 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
of

 S
ch

oo
ls

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
M

en
to

r S
ch

em
e.

 
 

 In
cr

ea
se

d 
up

ta
ke

 o
f y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

 a
cc

es
si

ng
 s

ch
oo

ls
’ 

co
un

se
llin

g 
se

rv
ic

e.
 

 • 
In

cr
ea

se
 in

 n
um

be
r o

f 
pu

pi
ls

 b
ei

ng
 m

en
to

re
d.

 
• 

N
am

ed
 m

en
to

r f
or

 e
ve

ry
 

lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r c

hi
ld

 a
t 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
le

ve
l. 

• 
La

un
ch

 o
f V

ol
un

te
er

 
M

en
to

r S
ch

em
e 

(J
an

ua
ry

 
20

03
). 

• 
Se

t u
p 

po
st

 o
f L

ea
rn

in
g 

M
en

to
r f

or
 Y

ou
ng

 C
ar

er
s 

(A
ug

us
t 2

00
3)

 
 

• 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

of
 g

ro
up

s/
tra

in
in

g 
of

fe
re

d.
 

 • 
H

ig
hl

y 
po

si
tiv

e 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 fr

om
 s

er
vi

ce
 u

se
rs

 
an

d 
sc

ho
ol

s.
 

 • 
H

ig
hl

y 
po

si
tiv

e 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 fr

om
 s

er
vi

ce
 u

se
rs

 
an

d 
sc

ho
ol

s.
 

• 
N

at
io

na
l a

ck
no

w
le

dg
em

en
t o

f t
he

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

(D
fE

S 
R

ev
ie

w
). 

• 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 a
cc

re
di

te
d 

tra
in

in
g 

pr
ov

id
ed

 fo
r 

m
en

to
rs

. 

 
To

 in
cr

ea
se

 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 

is
su

es
 a

ro
un

d 
D

el
ib

er
at

e 
Se

lf 
H

ar
m

 (D
SH

) 

M
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 
st

ee
rin

g 
gr

ou
p 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 c

irc
ul

at
ed

 to
 

sc
ho

ol
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
bo

ut
 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 a

nd
 w

ha
t t

o 
do

. 
 

• 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
of

 
D

SH
. 

• 
Se

tti
ng

 u
p 

a 
re

se
ar

ch
 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ith
 C

AM
H

S.
 

 

• 
Pr

im
ar

y 
an

d 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
s 

ha
ve

 b
as

ic
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 
• 

N
at

io
na

l D
SH

 p
ro

je
ct

 to
 b

e 
in

iti
at

ed
. 

 

Page 54



 
A

re
a 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
LB

B
D

 W
rit

te
n 

Po
lic

y 
Si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 w
or

k 
un

de
rw

ay
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 o

f s
uc

ce
ss

 
Ev

id
en

ce
 o

f s
uc

ce
ss

 

Su
pp

or
tin

g 
fa

m
ilie

s,
 

m
ot

he
rs

 a
nd

 
ch

ild
re

n  

Be
ha

vi
ou

r 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
(B

IP
) 

– 
To

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
Be

ha
vi

ou
r 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
Su

pp
or

t 
Te

am
s 

in
 k

ey
 

sc
ho

ol
s 

as
 a

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 in
iti

at
iv

e.
 

D
et

ai
le

d 
w

rit
te

n 
Bi

d 
an

d 
St

ra
te

gy
. 

BI
P 

St
ee

rin
g 

G
ro

up
 

• 
Fo

ur
 b

as
es

 s
et

 u
p 

in
 fo

ur
 

ar
ea

s.
 

• 
Ad

di
tio

na
l s

ta
ff 

re
cr

ui
te

d/
w

or
ki

ng
 to

ge
th

er
: 

- T
ea

ch
er

s 
- M

en
to

rs
 

- V
ol

un
ta

ry
 A

ge
nc

y 
Be

fri
en

de
rs

 
- E

du
ca

tio
na

l P
sy

ch
ol

og
is

ts
 

- F
am

ily
 T

he
ra

pi
st

s 
- S

oc
ia

l W
or

ke
rs

 
- H

ea
lth

 S
ta

ff 
- A

tte
nd

an
ce

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 
-Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

lin
ks

 

• 
D

ire
ct

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 a
nd

 
fa

m
ilie

s.
 

• 
Sc

ho
ol

s 
ar

e 
se

ei
ng

 
im

pr
ov

ed
 m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 

re
sp

on
se

s 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t. 
• 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 a
tte

nd
an

ce
 in

 
ke

y 
sc

ho
ol

s.
 

• 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 in

pu
t t

o 
YO

T 
in

 
es

ta
bl

is
hi

ng
 a

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
. 

• 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 fo

cu
s 

on
 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l o

ut
co

m
es

 a
nd

 
ps

yc
ho

lo
gi

ca
l w

el
lb

ei
ng

 o
f 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

. 
• 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
up

po
rt 

fo
r 

pa
re

nt
s 

an
d 

ca
re

rs
 e

.g
. 

th
ro

ug
h 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
of

 fa
m

ily
 

th
er

ap
y.

 

 

En
ga

gi
ng

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 

an
d 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

To
 in

cr
ea

se
 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
an

d 
sk

ills
 in

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
 

 
• 

3 
st

af
f t

ra
in

ed
 a

s 
re

gi
on

al
 

tra
in

er
s 

• 
D

ay
, t

w
ilig

ht
 a

nd
 e

ve
ni

ng
 

co
ur

se
s 

ru
n 

fo
r a

ny
on

e 
w

ho
 li

ve
s 

or
 w

or
ks

 in
 

bo
ro

ug
h 

• 
C

ou
rs

e 
At

te
nd

an
ce

 a
nd

 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

• 
Ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

10
0 

tra
in

ed
 la

st
 a

ca
de

m
ic

 
ye

ar
 

• 
C

ou
rs

es
 a

tte
nd

ed
 b

y 
pa

re
nt

s,
 c

ar
er

s,
 s

ta
ff 

in
 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

an
d 

no
n-

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

se
tti

ng
s 

an
d 

st
af

f f
ro

m
 L

EA
, P

C
T 

an
d 

So
ci

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

 

Page 55



 
A

re
a 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
LB

B
D

 W
rit

te
n 

Po
lic

y 
Si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 w
or

k 
un

de
rw

ay
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 o

f s
uc

ce
ss

 
Ev

id
en

ce
 o

f s
uc

ce
ss

 

 To
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 
co

he
si

on
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 

ad
dr

es
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 
of

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 

sp
ee

ch
, l

an
gu

ag
e 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

ne
ed

s 

 
 R

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

es
 fr

om
 H

ea
lth

, 
So

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s,
 V

ol
un

ta
ry

 
gr

ou
ps

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
S&

L 
Ac

tio
n 

Pl
an

 
 J

oi
nt

 w
or

ki
ng

 a
nd

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 b
y 

PC
T 

Sp
ee

ch
 T

he
ra

pi
st

s 
an

d 
LE

A 
S&

L 
te

am
 

 

 • 
C

om
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

ad
dr

es
si

ng
 S

&L
  

• 
Jo

in
t t

ra
in

in
g 

pr
es

en
te

d 

 • 
IC

AN
 p

ilo
t t

ra
in

in
g 

pr
ov

id
ed

. 
• 

Jo
in

t t
ra

in
in

g 
pa

ck
ag

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

To
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 
co

he
si

on
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 

ad
dr

es
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 
of

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 

m
ed

ic
al

 n
ee

ds
 

 
0.

2 
Ad

vi
so

ry
 T

ea
ch

er
 ti

m
e 

fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 re
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 
M

ed
ic

al
 N

ee
ds

 in
 p

os
t 

Li
ai

so
n 

w
ith

 s
ch

oo
l n

ur
se

s 
re

 
H

ea
lth

 c
ar

e 
Pl

an
s 

• 
Pu

pi
ls

 a
cc

es
si

ng
 c

ur
ric

ul
um

 
• 

R
ev

ie
w

s 

 Pr
ev

en
tin

g 
illn

es
s 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

tre
at

m
en

t a
nd

 
ca

re
 

To
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 
co

he
si

on
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 

ad
dr

es
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 
of

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 

ph
ys

ic
al

 n
ee

ds
 

 
Li

ai
so

n 
w

ith
 o

cc
up

at
io

na
l 

th
er

ap
is

ts
 a

nd
 S

EN
 te

am
 a

nd
 

ad
vi

so
ry

 te
ac

he
rs

 

• 
In

cr
ea

se
 in

 c
ur

ric
ul

um
 

ac
ce

ss
 fo

r p
up

ils
 w

ith
 

ph
ys

ic
al

 a
nd

 m
ed

ic
al

 
ne

ed
s 

 
• 

H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e 

pl
an

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 

an
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
in

 m
ee

tin
g 

ne
ed

s 
of

 in
di

vi
du

al
 a

nd
 

su
pp

or
t s

ta
ff 

 

Ad
dr

es
si

ng
 

th
e 

un
de

rly
in

g 
de

te
rm

in
an

ts
 

of
 h

ea
lth

 

To
 p

ro
vi

de
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

su
pp

or
t a

t t
he

 
ea

rli
es

t t
im

e 

 
BE

ST
 a

nd
 A

re
a 

m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

an
d 

m
ee

tin
gs

 
Li

ai
so

n 
w

ith
 c

o-
or

di
na

to
r f

or
 

Lo
ok

ed
 A

fte
r C

hi
ld

re
n 

In
te

rv
en

tio
ns

/s
up

po
rt 

pl
an

ne
d 

an
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
C

om
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 w
or

ki
ng

 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
s 

 

Page 56



Th
e 

Ea
rly

 Y
ea

rs
 S

er
vi

ce
/S

ur
e 

St
ar

t i
s 

co
nt

rib
ut

in
g 

to
 H

ea
lth

 in
eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

as
 fo

llo
w

s:
 

 Su
pp

or
tin

g 
fa

m
ili

es
, m

ot
he

rs
 a

nd
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

 Th
e 

cr
ea

tio
n 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
ce

nt
re

s 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

w
ill:

 
 - h

el
p 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

cu
s 

on
 p

re
ve

nt
at

iv
e,

 c
hi

ld
 fo

cu
se

d 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 a
n 

em
ph

as
is

 o
n 

ou
tre

ac
h 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ea
lth

 m
od

el
s 

of
 

de
liv

er
y;

  
* h

el
p 

to
 re

-s
ha

pe
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

co
-lo

ca
tio

n;
 

-im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 lo
ca

l s
er

vi
ce

s;
 

-e
ns

ur
e 

ea
rly

 id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
ea

rly
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
. 

 Th
e 

ch
ild

re
n'

s 
ce

nt
re

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e:

 
 -a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
(in

 te
rm

s 
of

 lo
ca

tio
n,

 o
pe

ni
ng

 ti
m

es
, c

ul
tu

ra
l s

en
si

tiv
ity

); 
-o

ut
co

m
e 

fo
cu

se
d;

 
-p

re
ve

nt
io

n 
or

ie
nt

at
ed

; 
-a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 a

ll 
bu

t n
ot

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
fo

r e
ve

ry
on

e;
 

-c
om

m
un

ity
 d

riv
en

; 
  En

ga
gi

ng
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
 Lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e 
ar

e 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

ab
ou

t s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y 
in

 th
e 

Su
re

 S
ta

rt 
Lo

ca
l p

ro
gr

am
m

es
.  

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

ab
ou

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

ill 
al

so
 b

e 
an

 
im

po
rta

nt
 a

sp
ec

t o
f t

he
 c

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
ce

nt
re

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 
 Jo

in
tly

 fu
nd

ed
 te

am
s 

w
ill 

w
or

k 
ou

t o
f c

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
ce

nt
re

s 
an

d 
SS

LP
s 

 C
om

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 s
ec

to
r p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

w
ill 

be
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ch
ild

re
n'

s 
ce

nt
re

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

an
d 

ar
e 

al
re

ad
y 

ac
tiv

e 
in

 S
SL

Ps
 

 Pr
ev

en
tin

g 
ill

ne
ss

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

tr
ea

tm
en

t a
nd

 c
ar

e 
 

Page 57



C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

ce
nt

re
s 

an
d 

SS
LP

s 
w

ill 
of

fe
r p

re
ve

nt
at

iv
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
ro

un
d 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t P

SA
s 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 d

ie
t, 

ac
ci

de
nt

 a
vo

id
an

ce
, s

m
ok

in
g 

ce
ss

at
io

n,
 p

re
ve

nt
in

g 
re

sp
ira

to
ry

 il
ln

es
s 

et
c.

 
 A

dd
re

ss
in

g 
th

e 
un

de
rly

in
g 

de
te

rm
in

an
ts

 o
f h

ea
lth

 
 C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
ce

nt
re

s 
an

d 
SS

LP
s 

w
ill 

im
pr

ov
e 

em
pl

oy
ab

ilit
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

tra
in

in
g 

an
d 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 c
hi

ld
ca

re
.  

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t w

ill 
al

so
 b

e 
fa

ci
lit

at
ed

 
th

ro
ug

h 
lin

ks
 to

 J
ob

ce
nt

re
 P

lu
s.

 
Jo

bc
en

tre
 P

lu
s 

ad
vi

so
rs

 w
ill 

he
lp

 lo
ca

l p
ar

en
ts

 to
 a

cc
es

s 
be

ne
fit

s.
 

 Ed
uc

at
io

na
l i

ne
qu

al
iti

es
 w

ill 
al

so
 b

e 
ta

ck
le

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

qu
al

ity
, a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 c
hi

ld
ca

re
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 w
ith

 e
ar

ly
 e

du
ca

tio
n.

  A
cc

es
s 

to
 

th
es

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 p

ar
tiv

ul
ar

ly
 b

en
ef

its
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

fro
m

 d
is

ad
va

nt
ag

ed
 b

ac
kg

ro
un

ds
 a

nd
 is

 th
er

ef
or

e 
an

 im
po

rta
nt

 a
sp

ec
t o

f t
ac

kl
in

g 
in

eq
ua

lit
y.

 
 As

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
be

 lo
ca

lly
 h

op
ef

ul
ly

 th
os

e 
w

ho
 d

o 
no

t n
or

m
al

ly
 ta

ke
 u

p 
ce

nt
ra

lis
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

ill 
be

ne
fit

. 
  H

ea
lth

 T
ac

kl
in

g 
In

eq
ua

lit
ie

s 

Page 58



Annex 4 

Leisure and Environmental Services 
 
 
 
 

Assessment of work in relation to Tackling Health Inequalities 
 
 
The Leisure and Environmental Services has a variety of roles providing a 
number of services from, Street Cleansing, Leisure facilities, Civil engineering, 
Fleet and Waste Management and Regeneration  
 
Some of the departments key objectives impact on the health of the 
community- notably,  
 
• Access to  a range of sports and leisure facilities within the Borough with 

an overall aim of improving the health and welfare of the Community  
• Regeneration strategy focuses on what needs to be done to improve the 

borough especially in terms of continuing to improve education  
employment , housing , transport  and building better partnerships which in 
turn will mean healthier happier residents  

• Providing an integrated approach to the street environment to meet the 
Council objectives for a cleaner greener and safer Borough. 

 
With the introduction of the Local Public service Agreement, Leisure and 
Environmental Services have one national PSA  
• Reducing deaths and serious injuries on the roads in Barking and 

Dagenham  
And three local PSA targets  
• Improving the overall cleanliness of the street  within the Borough  
• Reducing the number of abandoned vehicles on the streets of Barking and 

Dagenham 
• Making Barking and Dagenham greener by improving the natural 

environment and increasing awareness and use of the natural 
environment 

Meeting the targets within these PSA’s will result in an enhancement of 
performance which will have an impact on delivering change in terms of 
health inequalities and quality of life  
 
For the purpose of this report information regarding Regeneration will be 
provided by Corporate strategy 
This quick assessment of the work that is being carried out revealed that 
managers who were interviewed, were very much aware of the potential 
impact that the work of their groups could have on improving the health of the 
community. There is evidence of the teams working in partnership to develop 
initiatives, are committed to making the links and working with others to 
deliver improved services.  Some good example of this are 

• Road safety work carried out with Schools  

Page 59



Annex 4 

• Fit for life – G.P. referral scheme which has exceeded targets for 
referrals 

• Recent launch of self walk pack maintaining the Just walk 
programme including the inaugural East London festival, funding for 
a part time Healthy Walking co-ordinator.  

• Provision of CCTV allowing work with Police and other agency to 
reduce street crime 

 
It is also worth noting that often some of the initiatives that are being carried 
out ‘on the ground’ impacts on a number of the key areas within the positive 
action framework    
 
There are a number of mechanisms by which this work can be measured and 
provide evidence. This can be seen in the BVPI, LPI’s and the LPSA and in 
addition qualitative information can be found in relation to satisfaction levels  
 
Appendix 1: Table reveals the work that is currently underway within the 
department  
 
 
Teresa Evans  
23/9/03 
  
  
 
 
 
 
  

Page 60



 
1

Ar
ea

 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

LB
BD

 
W

rit
te

n 
po

lic
y 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 w

or
k 

un
de

rw
ay

 
In

di
ca

to
rs

 o
f s

uc
ce

ss
Ev

id
en

ce
 o

f s
uc

ce
ss

 

D
ev

el
op

 s
po

rts
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ne

w
 

O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
Fu

nd
 

 

Fo
rm

ed
 p

ar
t o

f 
th

e 
le

is
ur

e 
ac

tiv
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 w
ill 

si
t w

ith
in

 c
ul

tu
ra

l 
st

ra
te

gy
 

  

O
ne

 s
ch

em
e 

w
as

 ru
n 

re
 J

un
io

r s
po

rts
 

le
ad

er
s 

C
oa

ch
in

g 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 s
ch

em
e 

to
 

en
ga

ge
 w

ith
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

ou
ts

id
e 

th
e 

cl
as

sr
oo

m
 (G

as
co

ig
ne

 E
st

at
e)

. 
     

Sc
he

m
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 

%
 o

f t
ho

se
 a

tte
nd

in
g 

w
ho

 g
ai

ne
d 

C
oa

ch
in

g 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

. 
  

1.
 S

up
po

rti
ng

 
Fa

m
ilie

s 
, 

M
ot

he
rs

 a
nd

 
ch

ild
re

n 
(im

pr
ov

in
g 

lif
e 

ch
an

ce
s 

fo
r 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

)  

Ac
t l

oc
al

ly
 to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
ba

si
c 

sk
ills

  

R
oa

d 
 s

af
et

y 
pl

an
 

W
e 

Pr
om

ot
e 

an
d 

fu
nd

 p
ed

es
tri

an
 

sa
fe

ty
 v

ia
 ta

lk
s 

to
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 
ro

ad
 s

af
et

y 
 a

nd
 c

yc
le

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 k
no

w
n 

as
 ‘B

ik
es

ty
le

’  
w

hi
ch

 is
 o

ffe
re

d 
to

 
sc

ho
ol

s 

N
um

be
r o

f s
ch

oo
l 

ta
ki

ng
 p

ar
t  

N
um

be
r o

f c
hi

ld
re

n 
ta

ki
ng

 p
ar

t i
n 

th
e 

tra
in

in
g 

(s
o 

fa
r t

hi
s 

ye
ar

 4
10

0 
ch

ild
re

n 
ha

ve
 re

ce
iv

ed
 ta

lk
s)

 
Ye

ar
ly

 ta
ke

 u
p 

of
 

Bi
ke

st
yl

e 
-1

0 
–1

1 
sc

ho
ol

s.
 

Th
is

 fi
na

nc
ia

l y
ea

r 
20

6 
ch

ild
re

n 
tra

in
ed

 
so

 fa
r. 

Fe
ed

ba
ck

 fr
om

 
sc

ho
ol

s 
su

pp
or

te
d 

th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 
th

e 
R

oa
d 

sa
fe

ty
 

te
am

. 

Page 61



 
2

Ar
ea

 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

LB
BD

 
W

rit
te

n 
po

lic
y 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 w

or
k 

un
de

rw
ay

 
In

di
ca

to
rs

 o
f s

uc
ce

ss
Ev

id
en

ce
 o

f s
uc

ce
ss

 

2.
 E

ng
ag

in
g 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 
an

d 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
 

                          

D
ev

el
op

  w
ay

s 
of

 e
ng

ag
in

g 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 

an
d 

st
im

ul
at

e 
gr

ea
te

r 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
                      

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
–

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 

R
en

ew
al

  
                          

W
al

ki
ng

 b
us

es
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

of
fic

er
 p

os
t f

un
de

d 
by

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 

re
ne

w
al

 fu
nd

 
R

ec
en

tly
 la

un
ch

ed
 w

ith
 p

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

to
 

th
e 

sc
ho

ol
 s

en
t  

 
C

ar
 fr

ee
 d

ay
 o

rg
an

is
ed

 
    Sa

fe
r r

ou
te

s 
to

 s
ch

oo
l f

un
de

d 
by

 T
FL

 
                  

U
pt

ak
e 

of
 s

ch
em

e 
   

   
   

   
   

 
        C

on
tin

ua
nc

es
 o

f 
sc

he
m

e 
 

                  

N
um

be
r o

f w
al

ki
ng

 
bu

s 
sc

he
m

es
 th

at
 

ar
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
 

(4
 s

ch
oo

l c
ur

re
nt

ly
  

ta
ki

ng
 p

ar
t )

 
    W

or
ke

d 
w

ith
 3

 
sc

ho
ol

s 
in

 2
00

1/
2 

an
d 

4 
m

or
e 

in
20

02
/3

  
W

or
ki

ng
 in

 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 3
 

sc
ho

ol
 th

is
 y

ea
r 

             

Page 62



 
3

Ar
ea

 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

LB
BD

 
W

rit
te

n 
po

lic
y 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 w

or
k 

un
de

rw
ay

 
In

di
ca

to
rs

 o
f s

uc
ce

ss
Ev

id
en

ce
 o

f s
uc

ce
ss

 

2.
 

                  2.
 

         

 As
 a

bo
ve

 
                           

Le
is

ur
e 

Ac
tiv

e 
 

re
pl

ac
ed

 b
y 

C
ul

tu
ra

l s
tra

te
gy

 
                As

 a
bo

ve
  

   
   

   
   

   
  

        

A 
N

um
be

r o
f o

ut
re

ac
h 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t b

y 
Sp

or
ts

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t t
ea

m
 to

 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

pa
rti

ci
pa

tio
n 

by
 m

em
be

r o
f 

ta
ke

 p
ar

t i
n 

ph
ys

ic
al

 a
ct

iv
ity

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 
Pa

rk
si

de
 s

tro
ke

 c
lu

b-
 D

is
ab

le
d 

ar
ch

er
y 

C
lu

b 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 W
om

en
 fr

om
 B

M
E 

gr
ou

ps
 

50
+ 

sw
im

m
in

g 
se

ss
io

ns
 

 tr
ai

ne
d 

vo
lu

nt
ee

rs
 fr

om
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 to
 h

el
p 

co
nt

in
ue

  t
he

 w
or

k 
          R

ec
en

t l
au

nc
h 

of
 h

ea
lth

y 
w

al
ks

 p
ac

k 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
.  

Fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r P

/T
 w

al
k 

co
or

di
na

to
r 

th
ro

ug
h 

TH
ER

AP
Y 

Pr
oj

ec
t s

po
rts

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 p
ar

k 
ra

ng
er

s/
Th

am
es

 c
ha

se
 a

nd
 P

C
T 

 
Ju

st
 w

al
k 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 
Ea

st
 L

on
do

n 
W

al
k 

fe
st

iv
al

 to
ok

 p
la

ce
 

in
 B

or
ou

gh
  

 

N
um

be
r o

f o
ut

re
ac

h 
pr

oj
ec

ts
   

   
 

           
 

                 
   

   
   

Le
ve

l o
f p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

pl
us

 q
ua

lit
at

iv
e 

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fro

m
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

su
rv

ey
s 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

in
 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 S

po
rts

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t s
ho

w
 

in
 2

00
2/

3 
th

at
 

ta
rg

et
s 

se
t i

n 
4 

ar
ea

 
of

 w
or

k 
w

er
e 

m
et

 o
r 

pa
rti

al
ly

 m
et

. 
G

en
er

ic
 =

93
%

 
In

cl
us

io
n=

 9
5%

 
Yo

ut
h 

=6
1%

 
Ev

en
ts

 8
8%

 
   Es

ta
bl

is
hi

ng
 

ba
se

lin
e 

da
ta

 
        

Page 63



 
4

Ar
ea

 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

LB
BD

 
W

rit
te

n 
po

lic
y 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 w

or
k 

un
de

rw
ay

 
In

di
ca

to
rs

 o
f s

uc
ce

ss
Ev

id
en

ce
 o

f s
uc

ce
ss

 

2.
 

 
As

 A
bo

ve
 

 
As

 A
bo

ve
 

W
or

k 
w

ith
in

 L
ei

su
re

 a
nd

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 h
as

 c
om

m
en

ce
s 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
ba

rri
er

s 
to

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n.
 

 Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 re

se
ar

ch
 a

gr
ee

d 
an

d 
w

he
re

 b
ar

rie
rs

 h
av

e 
al

re
ad

y 
be

en
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
 a

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 o
f s

es
si

on
s 

in
 th

e 
le

is
ur

e 
ce

nt
re

s 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

 
(th

ro
ug

h 
de

liv
er

y 
pl

an
 w

ill 
ai

m
 to

 
in

cr
ea

se
 u

se
r f

ig
ur

es
)  

  

Su
rv

ey
s 

ca
rri

ed
 o

ut
   

  D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f 

se
ss

io
n 

as
 a

 re
su

lts
 

of
 th

e 
re

se
ar

ch
 to

 
in

cr
ea

se
 

pa
rti

ci
pa

tio
n 

 

Page 64



 
5

Ar
ea

 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

LB
BD

 
W

rit
te

n 
po

lic
y 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 w

or
k 

un
de

rw
ay

 
In

di
ca

to
rs

 o
f s

uc
ce

ss
Ev

id
en

ce
 o

f s
uc

ce
ss

 

3.
 P

re
ve

nt
in

g 
Ill

ne
ss

 a
nd

 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
tre

at
m

en
t a

nd
 

ca
re

 ( 
re

du
ci

ng
 

ris
k 

th
ro

ug
h 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
pr

ev
en

tio
n)

 
                    

R
ai

se
 le

ve
ls

 o
f 

Ph
ys

ic
al

 a
ct

iv
ity

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

w
al

ki
ng

 a
nd

 
cy

cl
in

g 
 

As
 a

bo
ve

 
Le

is
ur

e 
ac

tiv
e/

C
ul

tu
ra

l 
st

ra
te

gy
 

Al
l o

f t
he

 w
or

k 
m

en
tio

ne
d 

ab
ov

e 
is

 a
 

de
liv

er
y 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 fo

r t
hi

s 
ob

je
ct

iv
e.

 
Id

en
tif

yi
ng

 b
ar

rie
rs

 to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

w
ill 

as
si

st
 in

 fu
tu

re
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f t
he

 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

ith
in

 L
ei

su
re

 a
nd

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
 Fi

t f
or

 li
fe

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 G
P 

re
fe

rra
l 

sc
he

m
e 

 
           Bo

dy
 M

ot
’s

 ( 
C

ou
nc

il 
em

pl
oy

ee
s)

 
he

al
th

 c
he

ck
s 

 
    Ph

as
e 

4 
C

ar
di

ac
 R

ec
ov

er
y 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

 
  

       Ta
rg

et
 s

et
 in

 te
rm

s 
of

 re
fe

rra
ls

 
/c

om
pl

et
ed

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 a

nd
 

le
ve

l o
f p

ar
tic

ip
an

t 
dr

op
 o

ut
  

       N
um

be
r o

f s
ta

ff 
us

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

+ 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

of
 th

e 
pa

ra
m

et
er

s 
to

 
in

cl
ud

e 
G

lu
co

se
 

te
st

in
g 

 
St

ea
dy

 fl
ow

 o
f 

pa
tie

nt
s 

 
 

       R
ep

or
t f

or
 9

th
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

2-
 8

th
 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 s
ho

w
s 

th
at

 
th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
ha

s 
ex

ce
ed

ed
 it

s 
ta

rg
et

s 
e.

g.
 re

fe
rra

l w
as

 s
et

 
as

 7
0 

re
fe

rra
l w

er
e 

77
 (1

10
%

) 
Su

rv
ey

s 
w

ith
 

pa
rti

ci
pa

nt
s 

sh
ow

 
76

%
 s

til
l a

ct
iv

e 
or

 
ar

e 
no

w
 m

or
e 

ac
tiv

e 
 

 St
af

f a
tte

nd
in

g 
Ju

n 
02

-F
eb

03
 -4

26
 

    C
on

tin
ua

nc
e 

of
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

Page 65



 
6

Ar
ea

 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

LB
BD

 
W

rit
te

n 
po

lic
y 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 w

or
k 

un
de

rw
ay

 
In

di
ca

to
rs

 o
f s

uc
ce

ss
Ev

id
en

ce
 o

f s
uc

ce
ss

 

R
ed

uc
in

g 
illn

es
s 

an
d 

de
at

h 
ca

us
ed

 
by

 a
cc

id
en

ta
l 

in
ju

ry
  

H
as

 b
ee

n 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 a
 B

V 
re

vi
ew

 
(S

tre
et

 s
ce

ne
 ) 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

pl
an

 in
 p

la
ce

  
                              

O
ng

oi
ng

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
 

pl
us

 p
ub

lic
ity

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
ro

ad
 s

af
et

y 
w

ith
 s

ch
oo

ls
 a

nd
 N

ur
se

rie
s 

 
Ta

lk
s 

to
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
    Im

pr
ov

em
en

t t
o 

th
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

s 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 fo

r v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
-

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

fo
r p

ro
vi

di
ng

 d
ro

pp
ed

 
ke

rb
s/

pr
am

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 ta

ct
ile

 p
av

in
g 

w
hi

ch
 

w
ill 

re
du

ce
 a

cc
id

en
ts

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
e 

w
al

ki
ng

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t f

un
de

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
ex

te
rn

al
 fu

nd
in

g 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

ts
 a

ga
in

st
 

fo
ot

w
ay

 P
ar

ki
ng

 
‘S

ho
w

 y
ou

 c
ar

e 
– 

Pa
rk

 E
ls

ew
he

re
’ w

ith
 

ex
tra

 g
ua

rd
 ra

ils
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d.
 

 3
 m

ob
ile

 s
pe

ed
 d

is
pl

ay
 u

ni
ts

 
Pl

an
ne

d 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 C

yc
le

 
ro

ut
es

 
Tr

af
fic

 c
al

m
in

g 
m

ea
su

re
s 

 
W

or
ki

ng
 to

w
ar

ds
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 p

ub
lic

 tr
an

sp
or

t 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

N
at

io
na

l P
SA

 ta
rg

et
  

to
 re

du
ce

 c
as

ua
lti

es
 

 BV
PI

99
(p

er
fo

rm
an

c
e 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 te

n 
ca

te
go

rie
s)

  
   BV

PI
 1

78
 

                

C
as

ua
lti

es
 n

um
be

rs
 

ov
er

 th
e 

la
st

 fi
ve

 
ye

ar
 in

di
ca

te
 a

 
do

w
nw

ar
d 

tre
nd

  
     At

ta
in

m
en

t o
f 

10
0%

ta
rg

et
  

       Bo
th

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
in

te
re

st
 

fro
m

 o
th

er
 L

A’
s 

ke
en

 
to

 a
do

pt
 E

du
ca

tiv
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
 

  O
ne

 s
uc

ce
ss

- 
ch

an
ge

 b
us

 ro
ut

e 
to

 
en

ab
le

 re
si

de
nt

 to
 

ge
t t

o 
O

ld
ch

ur
ch

 

Page 66



 
7

Ar
ea

 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

LB
BD

 
W

rit
te

n 
po

lic
y 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 w

or
k 

un
de

rw
ay

 
In

di
ca

to
rs

 o
f s

uc
ce

ss
Ev

id
en

ce
 o

f s
uc

ce
ss

 

4.
 A

dd
re

ss
in

g 
th

e 
un

de
rly

in
g 

de
te

rm
in

an
ts

 o
f 

he
al

th
 

C
re

at
e 

a 
be

tte
r 

an
d 

sa
fe

r 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t  

Pa
rk

s 
an

d 
O

pe
n 

sp
ac

es
 s

tra
te

gy
 

                  C
om

m
un

ity
 

sa
fe

ty
 

  En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
Po

lic
y 

    

BV
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f P
ar

ks
 a

nd
 G

ro
un

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
  

 Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 w
ay

s 
in

 w
hi

ch
 B

&D
 

ca
n 

be
co

m
e 

gr
ee

ne
r b

y 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

na
tu

ra
l e

nv
iro

nm
en

t a
nd

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
an

d 
us

e 
of

 th
e 

na
tu

ra
l 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

 H
ea

lth
y 

lif
es

ty
le

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

in
 

co
nj

un
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

PC
T 

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f B

ar
ki

ng
 P

ar
k 

 M
an

ag
em

en
t o

f m
aj

or
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

e.
g.

 
Be

am
 V

al
le

y 
C

ou
nt

y 
Pa

rk
  

 M
an

ag
em

en
t o

f a
llo

tm
en

ts
 p

ro
m

ot
in

g 
he

al
th

y 
ea

tin
g 

an
d 

he
al

th
y 

ex
er

ci
se

 
 Pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 C

C
TV

 v
ia

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 C
en

tre
 

 LP
SA

 T
ar

ge
t 8

  i
m

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l 
cl

ea
nl

in
es

s 
 o

f t
he

 s
tre

et
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

 
 LP

SA
  9

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f 

ab
an

do
ne

d 
ve

hi
cl

e 
 in

 B
&D

 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t p

la
n 

 
  Pr

og
re

ss
 a

ga
in

st
  

Ta
rg

et
 1

2 
of

 L
PS

A 
 

 +C
S8

 
                BV

PI
 1

99
(n

ew
) 

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
ag

ai
ns

t 
th

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
pl

an
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
  Sm

al
l i

nc
re

as
e 

fro
m

 

45
%

 to
 4

6%
 

     Fo
rm

er
ly

 n
eg

le
ct

ed
 

ar
ea

 o
f l

an
d 

at
 

Bo
ye

rs
 W

oo
d 

w
as

 
op

en
ed

 in
 O

ct
ob

er
 

20
02

  
    Ev

id
en

ce
 o

f t
he

 
su

cc
es

s 
w

ill 
be

 
m

ee
tin

g 
ta

rg
et

s 
se

t 
in

 L
PS

A 

Page 67



 
8

 

Page 68



Annex 5 

 1

How is Barking & Dagenham linking Health, particularly Tackling Health 
Inequalities into the mainstream? 

 
We started this in 1995 with the launch of a joint Health Strategy agreed 
between the forerunners to the current PCT and the 2 boroughs of Havering 
and Barking & Dagenham. One of the main things this did was look at the 
wider implications of health, and included targets around education, 
regeneration and improving housing standards. Barking & Dagenham is now 
one of the fastest improving education authorities (from being one of the 
lowest achieving), and is just completing a 5 year improvement programme 
known as Shape Up. This work put central heating into all council owned low 
rise flats and housing, together with double glazing, new secure front doors 
and the repair/renewal of roofs. This covered around 21000 properties. The 
remaining stock, of 3000 high rise dwellings, already had landlord controlled 
heating. This had been introduced to combat condensation and fuel poverty. 
The heating is controlled by the landlord and the tenant pays weekly for the 
fuel in their rent, thus preventing heat robbing. The Shape Up scheme also 
included targets for employing local people (and “local” included neighbouring 
boroughs) through the contracts, as did our repairs DLO, which has recently 
been outsourced in a partnership arrangement.   
 
Currently the Chief Executive of the PCT is also the Director of Social 
Services, and her management team is an amalgamation of both 
organisations. In addition the Director of Public Health is a joint appointment 
between the PCT and the Council and has a dual reporting line to the PCT 
and the Director of Housing & Health. He also sits on the Chief Officers 
Management team. (TMT) 
 
Barking & Dagenham have 7 Community Priorities agreed with the local 
community, including the police and health organisations, via consultation 
arranged through our Citizens’ Panel. These are: 
 

• Promoting Equal Opportunities and Celebrating Diversity 
• Better Education & Learning for All 
• Developing Rights & Responsibilities with the Local Community 
• Improving Health, Housing & Social Care 
• Making Barking & Dagenham Cleaner, Greener, Safer 
• Raising General Pride in the Borough 
• Regenerating the Local Economy. 

 
All of these impact in some way on health, but the lead through the Local 
Strategic Partnership (LSP), the Community Plan and the Council Executive is 
Improving Health, Housing & Social Care.  
 
The LSP has various sub groups reporting to it, and one is Health. This is 
chaired by the Director of Public Health, and includes representatives from the 
local authority, and is widening membership  to include voluntary 
organisations. 
 

Page 69



Annex 5 

 2

Supporting the Community Priorities are Service & Financial plans. Barking & 
Dagenham has developed the Balanced scorecard, an idea adopted from the 
private sector as its business planning framework, and as its name implies it 
“balances” the various priorities – customers, finance, performance and staff. 
Each Head of Service prepares a balanced scorecard for their service area, 
and to ensure that crosscutting issues are addressed, they are included as a 
checklist in the toolkit supporting the scorecard. Those crosscutting issues are 
regeneration, customer care, equalities & diversity, sustainability and health. 
 
The Health Checklist is based on the questions in the Acheson inquiry –“Our 
Healthier Nation.” (copy attached). We also completed a trawl of council 
policies, using the Acheson questions, a couple of years ago. This showed 
considerable work already being undertaken, although people may not have 
originally identified themselves as working on health matters. 
 
We have started work with our PCT and the north east London sector on 
collecting PIs from the health and local authority sectors. We have identified a 
joint list which also fits with the 10 Performance Indicators (PIs) highlighted in 
“Health in London” led by the Greater London Authority and the London 
Health Commission. There is also useful work undertaken but the London 
Health Observatory on “Mapping Health Inequalities” (2001). 
 
The Tackling Health Inequalities report mentions environmental 
improvements, tackling cold damp properties and safety, especially smoke 
alarms and hand rails. The council has devolved budgets for local 
environmental improvements to Community Housing Partnerships for council 
properties and to Community Forums for other residents, and significant sums 
have been spent on security measures, including CCTV and concierge 
schemes. 
 
There are a number of PIS which are also useful in identifying work against 
these targets, most notably: 
 
BV184 – this is in 2 parts, one which measures the number of homes which 
are non decent (higher standard than public health definition of “fit” as it 
covers security), and one which covers numbers made decent. This has been 
collected since 2002/3 by all local authorities. 
 
BV63 – SAP ratings which measures energy efficiency in homes 
 
BV62 – proportion of unfit private sector dwellings made fit or demolished as a 
direct result of action by the local authority. On this one our Private Sector 
team are working closely with colleagues in the PCT on progressing the 
Private Sector Housing Strategy, as historically these are often the properties 
in the most deprived areas and a higher proportion of the BME and elderly 
population. 
 
The Fire Brigade also have a PI around increasing the number of smoke 
alarms. In order to know their base data they approached the local authority 
for assistance and we included a specific question on the use of smoke 

Page 70



Annex 5 

 3

alarms this year in the 3 yearly tenant’s survey (STATUS) which all local 
authorities have to complete. This can then be analysed by gender, age, 
income, ethnicity and special needs. All new housing has to have smoke 
alarms connected to the mains supply. 
 
Barking & Dagenham is part of the East Thames Gateway a massive area for 
regeneration including new housing, and the government has recently 
announced substantial funding for the Thames Gateway area including sums 
for regeneration of Barking Town centre, part of the most deprived area of the 
borough. The brief issued by the Thames Gateway London Partnership to the 
LSE has been sent to the NELSHA, and the B&D PCT is represented on the 
working group, which represents the 7 north east London boroughs in the 
Strategic Health Authority, together with 3 south east London boroughs and 
the City of London. 
 
Finally new housing developments for the elderly and people with special 
needs is concentrating on provision of suitably designed accommodation 
which allows the resident to stay put and the increasing levels of care brought 
to them. In Barking & Dagenham this housing has been provided using Local 
Authority Social Housing Grant (LASHG) to finance Registered Social 
Landlords. This grant has now come to an end, and as debt free authority this 
had enabled the authority to fund hundreds of homes at no direct cost to the 
council. 
 
 
 
Lesley Millis 
Housing & Heath Barking & Dagenham 
13th August 2003 

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



The EXECUTIVE 
 

28 OCTOBER 2003 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF HOUSING AND HEALTH 
AND THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

 
IMPLEMENTING ELECTRIONIC GOVERNMENT 
STATEMENT (IEG3) 
 

FOR DECISION 

This report outlines the Council’s strategy for electronic government and progress towards 
meeting the national target for electronic government 
 
Summary 
 
A new draft national strategy for electronic government (e-government) was published in 
2002. The Government has once again asked for information on progress towards meeting 
all the detailed targets set out in the strategy. The Office of the Deputy Prime Minister 
(ODPM) requires this information in a set format. The draft implementation e-government 
statement (IEG3) set out in the Appendix provides information required by ODPM. If this 
statement is accepted it could trigger a government grant in the region of £200,000. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Members are asked to agree the implementing e-government statement (IEG 3) attached 
as an Appendix to be submitted to the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister by the deadline 
date of the 10th November 2003.  
 
Reason 
 
To advise the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister of progress in meeting the national target 
and to secure the grant in the region of £200,000. 
 
Contact: 
Ruth Du-Lieu 
 
 
 
Paul Offen 

 
Project Manager 
Customer First 
 
 
Head of IS&T 

Tel: 020 8227 5152 
Fax: 020 8227 5705 
Minicom: 020 8227 5755 
E-mail: ruth.dulieu@lbbd.gov.uk 
 
Tel: 020 8227 2015 
Fax: 020 8227 2060 
Minicom: 020 8227 2413 
E-mail: paul.offen@lbbd.gov.uk  
 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1 Electronic government (e-government) is about making everything that can be done 

on paper available electronically. It is part of the Government’s vision for public 
services in the future in which public services are joined up in ways that make 
sense to the customer and accessible at times and places most convenient to the 
customer. Customers will have more choice over the way in which they contact and 

AGENDA ITEM 8

Page 73



receive public services. This is a major drive to improve the quality of services. E-
government can help improve services by setting up systems which: 

 
• Ensure enquiries are answered quickly and that they are not passed from one 

person to another 
• Mean they do not have to repeat the same information to several different 

people 
• Ensure their enquiry is resolved quickly without the need to chase progress or 

demand further action 
• Ensure they receive services in a way and at a time that is convenient to them 

rather than the organisation 
• Help Members track enquiries from constituents 
 
Electronic government is not primarily about technology. Effective use of technology 
is important, but implementing e-government is actually more concerned with 
managing public expectations, changing organisational culture and re-designing 
business processes. 
 
The national e-government performance target for all local authorities is that all 
services, which can be delivered electronically, should be available electronically by 
2005. We met the interim target of 50% last year and are on target to meet the 2003 
interim target of 75% by next March. 
 
Our success in meeting the interim targets is mainly attributable to a well developed 
web site, adequate funding for e-government projects and effective project 
planning. 
 
In order to further develop e-government over the coming year we need to define 
the link between Customer First and the e-government agenda and ensure we 
manage this effectively. An example of this is the need for us to instigate a process 
for updating web content so that staff delivering front line services gives current and 
accurate information to customers. 

 
1.2.  E-government is also about citizens being able to directly access information and 

enact service transactions themselves. The vision here is to provide new channels 
of service – one that is more controlled by the user than the Council and is 
accessible through the public Internet whenever it is needed.  

 
1.3.  Customer First, the customer services initiative aimed at modernising the delivery of 

front line services is very closely linked to e-government. A business case is 
currently being drafted to outline plans for a corporate contact centre and a number 
of one-stop shops.  New technology combined with the re-designing of business 
processes will allow us work more efficiently and in a way that benefits citizens and 
Members alike 

 
1.4.  E-government also covers areas such as procurement, knowledge management 

through, for example, the intranet and flexible working. 
 
1.5. Elsewhere on the agenda there is a report dealing with the IS & T function that will 

facilitate the Council’s e-government requirement. 
 

Page 74



2. The Implementing E-government Statement 
 
2.1.  The Implementing Electronic Government statement (IEG3) documents the 

Council’s achievements thus far and the plans for the forthcoming year in respect of 
‘electronic government’. Whilst the Council is an active member of many 
partnerships, some of which are mentioned in the document, this IEG 3 statement is 
an individual statement by the Council. As such the scope of the document 
describes the activities undertaken or planned, which are controlled directly by the 
Council. 

 
2.2.  The draft statement has been widely circulated for consultation throughout the 

authority. Due to the tight timetable public and community consultation has been 
more limited than otherwise intended. The statement is however available on the 
Councils website. 

 
3. The format of the statement 
 
3.1.  The format and purpose for IEG3 statement is set out by the Office of the Deputy 

Prime Minister (ODPM). IEG3 statements should summarise the progress the 
authority had made over the last twelve months in implementing e-government. The 
statement also describes the Council’s rationale for the role we expect e-
government to plan in the wider drive to transform local authority organisation and 
service delivery for the benefit of all citizens and customers. 

 
4. Key Points in the statement 
 

• Electronic government should be developed in ways which make it easier for the 
public to access all public services at times and places which are convenient to 
them 

• There are a number of projects underway throughout the Council which will help 
meet the e-government target 

• The Customer First business case will outline major customer service projects 
which will be based on e-government initiatives 

• There are additional revenue spends across the service departments that are 
not directly charged to the e-government code. These costs are currently being 
reviewed and will be incorporated into the final IEG3 statement (section 6) prior 
to the submission to the ODPM on the 10th November 2003. 

 
 
 
 
Background papers 
Implementing IEG 3 guidance note 
National E-government Strategy 
 
 
 
Appendix 
LBBD IEG3 Statement 

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



 

IEG3 Final Guidance   1 

 
 
 
 
 

IMPLEMENTING ELECTRONIC 
GOVERNMENT RETURN 2003 

(IEG3) 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

IMPLEMENTING ELECTRONIC GOVERNMENT RETURNS 2003 (IEG3) 
 

Page 77



 

IEG3 Final Guidance 2

Introduction 
This IEG3 return is an essential part of the national monitoring process for assessing electronic local service 
delivery capability against the 2005 target and supports the aims of the National Strategy for local e-
government (www.localegov.gov.uk).  It is also an important feedback mechanism for assessing progress and 
the use of IEG funding in individual local authorities. 

A key objective of the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister’s (ODPM) SR2002 Public Service Agreement 
involves improving delivery and value for money of local services within a framework of national targets and 
policies. This includes: 

• introducing comprehensive performance assessments and action plans, and 
securing a progressive improvement in authorities' scores; 

• overall annual improvements in cost effectiveness of 2% or more; and  

• assisting local government to achieve 100% capability in electronic delivery of 
priority services by 2005, in ways that customers will use. 

 
The above performance targets also form part of the Public Service Agreement for Local Government and the 
ODPM is working in partnership with local authorities and their representative national organisations to help 
achieve the specified objectives. 

The format of the IEG return is subject to extensive consultation.  Last year, this helped to achieve a 100% 
return rate of IEG2 submissions from local authorities.  This year, the format of the IEG3 return is intended to 
simplify the process further for local authorities and move towards a self-assessment approach.  In order to 
maintain consistency with the statistical elements of IEG2, tables on BVPI 157 and resources remain 
unchanged from last year.  Successful completion of the IEG3 return also demands awareness of the ODPM’s 
National Strategy for Local e-Government published in November 2002 
(www.localegov.gov.uk/nationalstrategy). 

E-Government is a key tool in delivering local services.  Within the CPA process, those councils that have not 
done well in achievement, investment, capacity or performance management may particularly need to 
consider the role that e-government can play in delivering improvements as part of a wider strategy for 
improvement planning. 

The new proforma format for IEG3 returns complies with Government commitments to reduce service plan 
requirements for local authorities, whilst balancing the need for authorities to supply statistical information for 
the purpose of monitoring national progress on the implementation of local e-government.  “Excellent” CPA 
authorities are requested to complete this plan in order to assist in benchmarking national progress and to 
demonstrate their commitment to e-government.  In particular, the third year of IEGs represents an opportunity 
for self-assessment, benchmarking and measuring progress on key factors.  The use of the IEG process to 
gather data on key areas was successfully pioneered in IEG2. 

This proforma is intended to standardise Implementing Electronic Government (IEG) returns for 2003.  It has 
been prepared for English County, District, Unitary Councils, London Boroughs, National Park Authorities, the 
Corporation of London, the Greater London Authority, London Development Agency, Transport for London 
who are subject to the Best Value Performance Indicator 157 and have been requested to prepare these 
statements.  

[Separate guidance is being prepared for Single Purpose Fire Authorities in England on the preparation of 
IEG Statements for 2003.] 

Funding 

A formal announcement regarding IEG funding for 2004/5 and 2005/6 will be made later this year.  You 
should complete this return on the basis that it will inform the distribution of £175 million of available capital 
funding from the ODPM for local e-government in 2004/5 and £96.5million in 2005/6. 

Completeness 

Page 78



 

IEG3 Final Guidance 3

Failure to complete any elements of this proforma may result in the withholding of IEG3 funding for 2004/5.  
You should consult with relevant members of the ODPM’s local e-government team for clarification of what 
is required. 

Approval 

It is important that the information contained in your completed IEG3 proforma is approved by the Council 
before submission and that adequate time for this is built into the timetable. 

Submission 

The deadline for the submission of IEG3 statements is Monday 10 November 2003.  

Please submit them by e-mail to localegov@odpm.gsi.gov.uk.  Copies of this IEG3 proforma can be found 
at www.localegov.gov.uk.  An online version of this form can be accessed at the Improvement & 
Development Agency’s (I&DeA) Electronic Service Delivery (ESD) toolkit (www.esd-toolkit.org). 

Please do not hesitate to contact relevant members of the ODPM local e-government team should you 
require further information or clarification. Contact details can be found on the last page of this guidance. 

Page 79



 

IEG3 Final Guidance 4

PROFORMA CONTENT 

1. Priority Services 
 
In no more than 1,000 words, please give a summary of how e-government will improve services 
and outcomes for citizens in your authority in terms of the seven shared priorities for local 
government1 and any additional local priorities. 

Raising standards across our schools 
A new management information system is being introduced into schools. This includes an e-portal 
to allow parents and teachers to access pupil data over the internet. This will: 

• make judgements about pupil performance  

• Facilitate proactive measures to ensure that pupils make progress towards the 
performance targets set each year.  

Further development is planned of online services making it easier for teachers and schools to 
search for and book continuing professional development courses, and the compilation and 
analysis of attendance data at school and teacher level. This will enable schools to more 
accurately target professional development where it is most needed, with a resulting impact on 
standards over time. 

One important benefit of the new management information system is in the reduction of teacher 
workload and the restoration of elements of work-life balance for the Borough’s teachers.  

Improving the quality of life of children, young people, families at risk and older people 
A project is underway to develop the new Information, Referral and Tracking System which will be 
used to track vulnerable and challenging young people through the education, health and social 
services databases. This will complement the existing database system which is used to monitor 
exclusion rates and school placements. 

The Early Years Development and Childcare Partnership are planning to develop their section of 
the Council’s website. This will supply online details of available childcare settings, give 
information on how to pay for childcare, and provide online toolkits for childcare settings designed 
to improve the quality of care. 

Other initiatives we are taking part in include: 

• ‘Notify’ a project to track the movement of homeless families  
• Plans to look at Child Protection On Line which aims to facilitate the sharing of information 

regarding Children on our Child Protection Register as highlighted by the Laming Report  
 
We have recently implemented a new Social Care system. This will form the basis of our 
Electronic Social Care Record (ESCR). In the next 18 months – 2 years we will be implementing 
other systems  to develop this further: 
  

• An electronic tool to record the Single Assessment Process for older people will be in 
place by April 2004. Care Managers will work on tablet PC’s to capture   information and 
using mobile technology download the SAP tool into the back end database. The next step 
in this project would be to share this information with other health/social care professionals 
probably with some web based system.  Once this system is up and running, we expect to 
develop it across other areas. 

• To develop the ESCR further, we will be implementing a Document Imaging System that 
attaches hard copy information, emails, recorded images, etc to client’s electronic files. 

                                                      
1 See www.odpm.gov.uk/news/0207/0033.htm  

Page 80



 

IEG3 Final Guidance 5

 
A system has been piloted in our Home Support department which addresses lone working and 
electronic time sheets around delivery of domiciliary services to our residents, it is expected to 
role this out across the whole service in 2004.  
 
Promoting healthier communities by targeting key local services, such as health and 
housing 
We are creating an assets database for all schools so that repairs and other building related 
issues can be logged, interrogated and used for the compilation of reports. A project is in hand to 
make this available over the wide area network so that schools themselves have access to the 
data. All repairs related to school buildings have a direct impact on the health of the community 

We are developing an E-leisure centres project, e.g. online booking of facilities etc. This will make 
it easier to access sports facilities available across the borough and so will assist in improving the 
fitness of residents, reduce mortality and morbidity ratios and reduce the death rates from heart 
disease.  

 
Creating safer and stronger communities 

Electronic registration systems are being introduced to reduce truancy rates and bring about a 
corresponding reduction in antisocial behaviour and associated crime: 

• Parents and access/attendance officers can check  individual pupil attendance via the 
Internet 

• immediate action can be taken when pupils are identified as truanting 

We are developing an e-licensing project.  By using the internet to publish applications for 
licences such as sex shops, night clubs and pubs that wish to stay open into the night we will 
empower the public to take a greater part in the council’s decision making processes.    
  
We are also developing electronic ways to combat drug abuse: 

• Internet based data collection for substance misuse  

• Electronic point of referral for drug treatment agencies, enable instant access to a range of 
info such as numbers of people being treated, types of treatment etc.  

• Improved performance monitoring and management across all agencies 

•  Electronic submission of statistics to central government   

We intend to build on and develop the work already undertaken to work in partnership with the 
Police to collate and record (via GIS) crime data throughout the borough. 

 
Transforming our local environment 

 
Over the coming months we have plans to roll out a number of groundbreaking e-government 
initiatives to improve the local environment: 

• GIS will be used to enhance the reporting rectifications of environmental problems e.g. fly 
tipping etc. 

• E-cemeteries project – on line booking of funeral directors etc. and the development of 
local history searches 

• E-grounds maintenance web access project   
• Use of handhelds in estate offices 
• E-complaints system to deal with housing & health complaints 

Page 81



 

IEG3 Final Guidance 6

• Better management info via data warehousing for Housing 
• Use of handheld computers in planned maintenance 
• New voids system - will result in better management of voids process and reduced turn 

around time 
• Planned maintenance system to replace access database. – System will be more secure, 

better data consistency, less work inputting and better control of planned maintenance 
process 

• Electronic storage of house files 
• Electronic access to planning including viewing and consultation of the UDP. 
• Electronic management of the Neighbourhood Caretaking Service, e.g. 24 hour e-

reporting system for graffiti etc., electronic workflow etc. 
  

Meeting transport needs more effectively 
A database system is being established to help plan and manage the efficient and effective 
transportation of pupils with special educational needs to and from school. A similar database 
system is being used to plan and manage post-16 pupil transportation within the North East Sixth 
Form Consortium. 

This will make the service more efficient, with less waste, and provide a better service to the 
parents and pupils concerned.  

Promoting the economic vitality of localities 
We will be developing the Council’s web site to enhance information relating to The Early Years 
Development and Childcare Partnership:  

• This will highlight the business support childcare providers can get  

• give information on work life balance 

• detail training available for childcare workers  

• and promote schemes (e.g. tax credits) aimed at getting parents either back to work or into 
training. 

We are promoting the use of the internet & the development of basic skills by: 

• development of a network of community based learning centres and Peoples Network 
systems in all libraries 

• IT systems are being used to diagnose learning needs, to support learning and record 
progress 

• an ESOL programme has been designed to help residents without English as their first 
language into employment. 

The Home Community Links strand of the ICT Test Bed Project involves the nine project schools 
investing in ways of encouraging the school community of parents, grandparents and others to 
access school resources. This will involve 

• a range of strategies including laptops for children to take home 

• the provision of PCs to keep in the home,  

• Extending the opening hours of schools with the development of family learning and 
internet access centres.  

 We intend to implement Choice Based Lettings via the internet. As well as empowering 
applicants and making the process more open, applicants will be able to access electronically a 

Page 82



 

IEG3 Final Guidance 7

wider range of properties.  

Local Priorities 
We have seven Community Priorities which reflect the shared priorities for local government. The 
exception to this is ‘Promoting equal opportunities and celebrating diversity’. The principals of this 
priority are reflected throughout our e-government programme with the key aim of improving 
access to all Council services for all customers 
We are about to embark on a program of work to modernise front line service delivery throughout 
the Council. This is likely to include the instigation of a Customer Contact Centre, One Stop 
Shops and the adoption of ‘Customer First’ policies. 

 
  

Page 83



 

IEG3 Final Guidance 8

 
2. Self-Assessment of Local e-Organisation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The National Strategy – Model of the local e-organisation  

You are asked to summarise the plans and progress of your local authority according to the six parts of 
model of the local e-organisation, as presented in the ODPM’s National Strategy for Local e-Government 
published in November 2002 (see www.localegov.gov.uk/nationalstrategy).  The model provides a checklist 
of work areas against the e-organisation themes, or building blocks of local e-government - interactions, 
access channels, trust & connections, enablers, e-business and organisational development.  Please refer 
to www.localegov.gov.uk for further description of the elements of this model, together with associated 
National Projects.  Further information about these building blocks is also available from the I&DeA’s 
Knowledge website at www.idea.gov.uk/knowledge.  Do not amend this form or append any items to it 
and please restrict all explanatory notes to the comment column. 

Not all the elements in the proforma checklist below will necessarily be a part of your local e-government 
strategy, but you are expected to be aware of all of these elements and have taken a corporate position in 
relation to them.  It is recognised that your IEG strategy will reflect local priorities and customer preferences, 
but you are asked specifically to provide accompanying commentary on any areas of the proforma checklist 
that remain “black” in 2005/6. 

Page 84



 

IE
G

3 
Fi

na
l G

ui
da

nc
e 

 
 

9 

Tr
af

fic
 L

ig
ht

 S
ta

tu
s:

 a
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

ag
ai

ns
t 3

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
5 

ta
rg

et
 d

at
e 

fo
r l

oc
al

 e
-

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

St
at

us
 a

t 
31

/0
3/

02
 

St
at

us
 a

t 
31

/0
3/

03
 

An
tic

ip
at

ed
 

St
at

us
 a

t 
31

/0
3/

04
 

An
tic

ip
at

ed
 

St
at

us
 a

t 
31

/0
3/

05
 

An
tic

ip
at

ed
 

St
at

us
 a

t 
31

/0
3/

06
 

 

Lo
ca

l e
-o

rg
an

is
at

io
n:

 
B

la
ck

 =
 N

ot
 p

ar
t o

f c
ur

re
nt

 lo
ca

l e
-

go
ve

rn
m

en
t s

tr
at

eg
y 

or
 n

ot
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 
    R

ed
 =

 P
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

&
 p

la
nn

in
g 

– 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 th
at

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 p

la
nn

ed
 o

r b
ei

ng
 

pi
lo

te
d 

  A
m

be
r =

 Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
st

ag
e 

– 
ro

ll 
ou

t 
of

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

   G
re

en
 =

 F
ul

ly
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
– 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 &
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
  e.

g.
 fo

r p
ro

gr
es

s 
ag

ai
ns

t a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 
el

em
en

t y
ou

 m
ig

ht
 e

nt
er

: 

20
01

/0
2 

                   R
ed

 

20
02

/0
3 

                   R
ed

 

20
03

/0
4 

                   A
m

be
r 

20
04

/0
5 

                   A
m

be
r 

20
05

/0
6 

                   G
re

en
 

C
om

m
en

t 
e.

g.
 “

bl
ac

k”
 s

ta
tu

s 
m

ay
 in

cl
ud

e 
el

em
en

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

of
or

m
a 

th
at

 a
re

 n
ot

 p
la

nn
ed

, o
r a

w
ai

tin
g 

th
e 

ou
tc

om
e 

of
 O

D
PM

 N
at

io
na

l P
ro

je
ct

 w
or

k 
or

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 a
ct

iv
ity

, o
r 

ar
ea

s 
on

 th
e 

pr
of

or
m

a 
th

at
 a

re
 n

ot
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 to
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 ty

pe
s 

of
 a

ut
ho

rit
y.

  L
im

ite
d 

ar
ea

s 
of

 “
bl

ac
k”

 
ar

e 
pe

rf
ec

tly
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
on

 th
is

 p
ro

fo
rm

a 
as

 a
 re

fle
ct

io
n 

of
 lo

ca
l c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s 

an
d 

pr
io

rit
is

at
io

n 
of

 e
-

go
ve

rn
m

en
t w

or
k 

an
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t. 

 e.
g.

 “
re

d”
 s

ta
tu

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 a

ll 
el

em
en

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

of
or

m
a 

w
he

re
 w

or
k 

is
 a

t t
he

 re
se

ar
ch

 s
ta

ge
, b

ei
ng

 
pi

lo
te

d 
be

fo
re

 w
id

er
 ro

llo
ut

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

/p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

, o
r p

la
nn

ed
 b

ut
 n

ot
 y

et
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

fo
r f

un
di

ng
. 

 e.
g.

 “
am

be
r”

 s
ta

tu
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d 
to

 a
ll 

el
em

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

pr
of

or
m

a 
w

he
re

 w
or

k 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

fo
r f

un
di

ng
 

an
d 

is
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

be
in

g 
im

pl
em

en
te

d.
 

 e.
g.

 “
gr

ee
n”

 s
ta

tu
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d 
to

 a
ll 

el
em

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

pr
of

or
m

a 
w

he
re

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ac
tio

ne
d 

an
d 

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
or

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
w

ith
 p

la
ns

 
fo

r e
xt

en
de

d 
ro

llo
ut

 o
n 

an
 e

nt
er

pr
is

e-
w

id
e 

ba
si

s,
 i.

e.
 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
au

th
or

ity
/p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
. 

In
te

ra
ct

io
ns

 
N

ot
e:

 T
he

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
r 

(B
VP

I) 
15

7 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

 m
ea

su
re

 o
f t

he
 

nu
m

be
r o

f t
yp

es
 o

f i
nt

er
ac

tio
ns

 (o
r c

on
ta

ct
) 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

ci
tiz

en
 a

nd
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l t
ha

t a
re

 
en

ab
le

d 
fo

r e
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

de
liv

er
y 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f t

ho
se

 th
at

 a
re

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
 

 

      

      

      

      

      

 

Page 85



 

IE
G

3 
Fi

na
l G

ui
da

nc
e 

10

• 
Pr

og
re

ss
 to

w
ar

ds
 2

00
5 

ta
rg

et
 fo

r t
he

 
10

0%
 e

-e
na

bl
em

en
t o

f l
oc

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

 
R

ed
 

A
m

be
r 

A
m

be
r 

A
m

be
r 

G
re

en
 

A
cc

es
s 

C
ha

nn
el

s 
 N

ot
e:

 A
cc

es
s 

ch
an

ne
ls

 a
re

 th
e 

va
rio

us
 

ro
ut

es
 th

ro
ug

h 
w

hi
ch

 p
eo

pl
e 

m
ig

ht
 c

on
ta

ct
, 

or
 b

e 
co

nt
ac

te
d 

by
, l

oc
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 to

 
un

de
rta

ke
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

ca
lly

 e
na

bl
ed

 in
te

ra
ct

io
ns

. 
 • 

Pu
bl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

st
ra

te
gy

 fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f a
cc

es
s 

ch
an

ne
ls

 
 • 

Lo
ca

l s
er

vi
ce

 w
eb

si
te

s 
(ta

ilo
re

d 
to

 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t o
f t

ra
ns

ac
tio

na
l s

ta
tu

s2  fo
r 

co
rp

or
at

e 
“.g

ov
.u

k”
 w

eb
si

te
) 

• 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
t p

or
ta

ls
 fo

r l
oc

al
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
 tw

o-
tie

r a
re

as
  

• 
C

on
ta

ct
 c

en
tre

s 
(e

-e
na

bl
ed

 &
 d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 a

t l
ea

st
 8

0%
 o

f i
nc

om
in

g 
te

le
ph

on
e 

ca
lls

 to
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y)

 

• 
Es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f f
ul

ly
 e

-e
na

bl
ed

 o
ne

 
st

op
 s

ho
ps

 fo
r f

ac
e-

to
-fa

ce
 c

us
to

m
er

 
co

nt
ac

t 

• 
U

se
 o

f m
ob

ile
 te

ch
no

lo
gy

 fo
r h

om
e 

vi
si

ts
 

/ s
up

po
rte

d 
ac

ce
ss

 s
er

vi
ce

s 

 • 
Es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f I
nt

er
ac

tiv
e 

D
ig

ita
l T

V 
se

rv
ic

e 

• 
E-

de
m

oc
ra

cy
 –

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
in

 th
e 

el
ec

to
ra

l m
od

er
ni

sa
tio

n 
pi

lo
ts

 fo
r 

el
ec

tro
ni

c 
vo

tin
g 

or
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
co

un
tin

g 

• 
E-

m
ai

l &
 In

te
rn

et
 a

cc
es

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 fo

r a
ll 

M
em

be
rs

 

       B
la

ck
 

  R
ed

 
   N

/A
 

  B
la

ck
 

  B
la

ck
 

   A
m

be
r 

   B
la

ck
 

 B
la

ck
 

   A
m

be
r 

 

       B
la

ck
 

  A
m

be
r 

   N
/A

 
  R

ed
 

  R
ed

 
   A

m
be

r 
   B

la
ck

 
 B

la
ck

 
   G

re
en

 
 

       G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
 

   N
/A

 
  A

m
be

r 
  A

m
be

r 
   A

m
be

r 
   B

la
ck

 
 B

la
ck

 
   G

re
en

 
 

       G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
 

   N
/A

  
  A

m
be

r 
  A

m
be

r 
   A

m
be

r 
   B

la
ck

 
 B

la
ck

 
   G

re
en

 
 

       G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
 

   N
/A

 
  G

re
en

 
  G

re
en

 
   G

re
en

 
   B

la
ck

 
 B

la
ck

 
   G

re
en

 
 

       D
ev

el
op

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t p

ro
je

ct
.  

To
 b

e 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

3 
 A 

nu
m

be
r o

f t
ra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 a
re

 a
lre

ad
y 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
on

lin
e.

 A
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

is
 in

 p
la

ce
 to

 b
rin

g 
fu

rth
er

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 o
nt

o 
th

e 
si

te
 

 Ba
rk

in
g 

& 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 is
 n

ot
 a

 tw
o-

tie
r a

ut
ho

rit
y 

  C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t B

us
in

es
s 

ca
se

 in
 p

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
  C

us
to

m
er

 F
irs

t B
us

in
es

s 
ca

se
 in

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

    So
m

e 
ar

ea
s 

pi
lo

tin
g 

us
e 

of
 m

ob
ile

 te
ch

no
lo

gy
 e

.g
. h

om
ec

ar
e.

  
   A 

Pu
bl

ic
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
ha

s 
sh

ow
n 

no
 s

up
po

rt 
fo

r D
ig

ita
l T

V 
 Aw

ai
tin

g 
ou

tc
om

e 
of

 P
at

hf
in

de
rs

 
   Al

l m
em

be
rs

 c
an

 b
e 

co
nt

ac
te

d 
by

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 u

si
ng

 e
-m

ai
l. 

M
em

be
rs

 h
av

e 
in

te
rn

et
 a

cc
es

s 
fro

m
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
C

ha
m

be
r 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2  w
w

w
.s

oc
itm

.g
ov

.u
k,

 a
s 

de
fin

ed
 in

 S
O

C
IT

M
 (2

00
3)

 B
et

te
r C

on
ne

ct
ed

 2
00

3:
 a

 s
na

ps
ho

t o
f a

ll 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

w
eb

si
te

s,
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

N
or

th
am

pt
on

, p
23

. 

Page 86



 

IE
G

3 
Fi

na
l G

ui
da

nc
e 

11

 • 
En

ga
ge

m
en

t w
ith

 in
te

rm
ed

ia
rie

s 
re

 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 e
-g

ov
er

nm
en

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
(e

.g
. 

C
iti

ze
ns

 A
dv

ic
e 

Bu
re

au
x)

 

 

 A
m

be
r 

  

 A
m

be
r 

 A
m

be
r 

 A
m

be
r 

 G
re

en
 

 

 Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 e

ng
ag

ed
 in

 a
 n

um
be

r o
f p

ro
je

ct
s 

w
ith

 
in

te
rm

ed
ia

rie
s:

 
• 

Pr
ov

id
in

g 
IT

 s
up

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
Th

am
es

 G
at

ew
ay

 
• 

H
os

tin
g 

th
e 

w
eb

si
te

 o
f t

he
 L

oc
al

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 
• 

Su
re

st
ar

t 
• 

Th
e 

N
ot

ify
 P

ro
je

ct
 is

 u
nd

er
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

• 
C

ho
ic

e 
Ba

se
d 

Le
tti

ng
s 

is
 u

nd
er

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
 Tr

us
t &

 c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

 
N

ot
e:

 F
or

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 s

ec
to

r t
o 

sh
ar

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ea

si
ly

 a
nd

 s
ec

ur
el

y,
 it

 is
 e

ss
en

tia
l 

to
 o

pe
ra

te
 w

ith
in

 a
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

of
 te

ch
ni

ca
l 

an
d 

le
gi

sl
at

iv
e 

st
an

da
rd

s.
  

 • 
U

se
 o

f G
ov

er
nm

en
t G

at
ew

ay
 (e

.g
. f

or
 

se
cu

re
 a

ut
he

nt
ic

at
ed

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

) (
se

e 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.g

ov
ta

lk
.g

ov
.u

k/
ga

te
w

ay
_p

ar
tn

er
lin

k)
  

• 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
In

te
ro

pe
ra

bi
lit

y 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

(e
-G

IF
), 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t M
et

ad
at

a 
St

an
da

rd
 (e

-G
M

S)
 (s

ee
 

w
w

w
.e

gi
fc

om
pl

ia
nc

e.
or

g 
& 

w
w

w
.g

ov
ta

lk
.g

ov
.u

k )
 

 • 
Ad

op
tio

n 
of

  G
ui

de
lin

es
 fo

r U
K 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t W

eb
si

te
s 

(s
ee

 w
w

w
.e

-
en

vo
y.

go
v.

uk
/o

ee
/o

ee
.n

sf
/s

ec
tio

ns
/w

eb
g

ui
de

lin
es

-h
an

db
oo

k-
to

p/
$f

ile
/h

an
db

oo
ki

nd
ex

.h
tm

) 

• 
C

on
fo

rm
an

ce
 w

ith
 le

ve
l A

A 
of

 W
3C

 W
eb

 
Ac

ce
ss

ib
ilit

y 
In

iti
at

iv
e 

(W
AI

) s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

on
 w

eb
si

te
 a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

(s
ee

 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.w

3.
or

g/
W

AI
) 

 • 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 F

re
ed

om
 o

f I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
Ac

t 2
00

0,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
sp

on
di

ng
 to

 
re

qu
es

ts
 fo

r i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
fro

m
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
w

ith
in

 a
 re

as
on

ab
le

 ti
m

e 
pe

rio
d 

(s
ee

 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.lc

d.
go

v.
uk

/fo
i/f

oi
dp

un
it.

ht
m

 &
 

ht
t

//
k/

d

         B
la

ck
 

    B
la

ck
 

      A
m

be
r 

    A
m

be
r 

    B
la

ck
 

    

         B
la

ck
 

    R
ed

 
      A

m
be

r 
    A

m
be

r 
    B

la
ck

 
    

         B
la

ck
 

    A
m

be
r 

      G
re

en
 

    G
re

en
 

    R
ed

 
    

         B
la

ck
 

    A
m

be
r 

      G
re

en
 

    G
re

en
 

    A
m

be
r 

    

         B
la

ck
 

    G
re

en
 

      G
re

en
 

    G
re

en
 

    G
re

en
 

    

         Aw
ai

tin
g 

ou
tc

om
e 

of
 N

at
io

na
l P

ro
je

ct
s 

 
    • 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

in
 a

ll 
te

nd
er

s 
• 

XM
L 

us
ed

 a
s 

tra
ns

po
rt 

m
ed

iu
m

 
• 

M
et

ad
at

a 
pi

lo
t f

or
 s

ch
oo

ls
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 in
 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
   W

ill 
be

 fu
lly

 a
do

pt
ed

 b
y 

en
d 

of
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
    W

ill 
be

 fu
lly

 a
do

pt
ed

 b
y 

en
d 

of
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
    Th

is
 w

ill 
be

 a
 c

or
po

ra
te

 p
ol

ic
y 

de
ci

si
on

 w
ith

 in
pu

t f
ro

m
 

C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t 

   

Page 87



 

IE
G

3 
Fi

na
l G

ui
da

nc
e 

12

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.p
ro

.g
ov

.u
k/

re
co

rd
sm

an
ag

em
en

t/a
cc

es
s/

de
fa

ul
t.h

tm
) 

 • 
Es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f c
or

po
ra

te
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ol

ic
y 

(e
.g

. c
ov

er
in

g 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
se

ts
, 

ev
id

en
ce

 fo
r a

cc
ou

nt
ab

ilit
y,

 s
ec

ur
ity

, 
as

su
ra

nc
e,

 d
is

as
te

r &
 c

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
pl

an
ni

ng
) 

• 
Es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f P
ub

lic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Tr
us

t 
C

ha
rte

r r
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 p

er
so

na
l 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

co
lle

ct
ed

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 im

pr
ov

ed
 

se
rv

ic
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 d

at
a 

sh
ar

in
g 

pr
ot

oc
ol

 
fra

m
ew

or
k 

(s
ee

 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.lc

d.
go

v.
uk

/c
on

su
lt/

da
ta

sh
ar

in
g/

da
ta

sh
ar

e.
ht

m
 &

 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.g

ov
ta

lk
.g

ov
.u

k/
do

cu
m

en
ts

/e
T

ru
st

gu
id

eg
ov

ta
lk

.rt
f) 

 • 
Es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
fo

r t
he

 
jo

in
t (

ag
gr

eg
at

ed
) p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t o

f 
br

oa
db

an
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 

• 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 B

S 
77

99
 o

n 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
se

cu
rit

y 
m

an
ag

em
en

t  

 

   B
la

ck
 

      B
la

ck
 

         A
m

be
r 

  B
la

ck
 

   R
ed

 
      B

la
ck

 
         G

re
en

  
  B

la
ck

 
  

   A
m

be
r 

      B
la

ck
 

         G
re

en
  

  B
la

ck
 

   A
m

be
r 

      R
ed

 
         G

re
en

  
  A

m
be

r 

   G
re

en
 

      R
ed

 
         G

re
en

  
  G

re
en

 

   In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t p

ol
ic

ie
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 in
 s

om
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ar
ea

s.
  C

us
to

m
er

 F
irs

t  
w

ill 
pl

ay
 a

 p
ar

t i
n 

im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

co
rp

or
at

e 
po

lic
y 

 
    Aw

ai
tin

g 
O

ut
co

m
e 

of
 L

or
d 

C
ha

nc
el

lo
r’s

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

         Pa
rti

ci
pa

nt
 in

 L
on

do
n 

G
rid

 fo
r L

ea
rn

in
g 

  Se
cu

rit
y 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 in
 p

la
ce

, b
ut

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
no

t y
et

 c
om

pl
ia

nt
 –

 T
hi

s 
w

ill 
be

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 o

nc
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

En
ab

le
rs

 
N

ot
e:

 E
na

bl
er

s 
re

fe
rs

 to
 th

e 
co

m
pu

te
r 

sy
st

em
s,

 o
r ‘

m
id

dl
e-

w
ar

e’
, u

se
d 

to
 s

up
po

rt 
ac

ce
ss

 c
ha

nn
el

 p
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
e 

lin
k 

to
 

co
re

 b
us

in
es

s 
an

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

s.
  Y

ou
 

sh
ou

ld
 o

nl
y 

“g
re

en
” t

ra
ffi

c 
lig

ht
 th

e 
ite

m
s 

be
lo

w
 w

he
re

 e
nt

er
pr

is
e-

w
id

e 
sy

st
em

s 
or

 
po

lic
ie

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

 
 • 

U
se

 o
f s

m
ar

t c
ar

ds
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t &

 d
el

iv
er

y 

• 
C

or
po

ra
te

 u
se

 o
f C

us
to

m
er

 R
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
M

an
ag

em
en

t (
C

R
M

) s
of

tw
ar

e 

• 
C

or
po

ra
te

 u
se

 o
f G

eo
gr

ap
hi

c 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Sy

st
em

s 
(G

IS
) (

e.
g.

 fo
r m

ap
-b

as
ed

 d
at

a 
t

ti
)

          B
la

ck
 

 B
la

ck
 

  R
ed

 
 

          B
la

ck
 

 B
la

ck
 

  A
m

be
r 

 

          R
ed

 
 R

ed
 

  A
m

be
r 

 

          A
m

be
r 

 A
m

be
r 

  G
re

en
 

 

          G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
 

 

          In
 u

se
 in

 L
ei

su
re

 c
en

tre
s 

w
ill 

co
ns

ul
t c

us
to

m
er

s 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ou
tc

om
es

 o
f n

at
io

na
l p

ro
je

ct
. 

C
or

po
ra

te
 p

ol
ic

y 
to

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 C

us
to

m
er

 F
irs

t b
us

in
es

s 
ca

se
 

 An
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 n
um

be
r o

f m
ap

 la
ye

rs
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
on

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 In
tra

ne
t 

Page 88



 

IE
G

3 
Fi

na
l G

ui
da

nc
e 

13

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n)

 

• 
C

or
po

ra
te

 IC
T 

su
pp

or
t a

nd
 d

oc
um

en
te

d 
po

lic
y 

fo
r h

om
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 (t
el

ew
or

ki
ng

) b
y 

st
af

f 

• 
U

se
 o

f t
el

em
et

ric
 s

ys
te

m
s 

fo
r r

em
ot

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

& 
si

gn
al

lin
g,

 e
.g

. h
el

pi
ng

 
ol

de
r p

eo
pl

e 
re

m
ai

n 
in

 th
ei

r h
om

es
 

   • 
Es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f c
or

po
ra

te
 In

tra
ne

t  

• 
C

or
po

ra
te

 u
se

 o
f D

oc
um

en
t I

m
ag

e 
Pr

oc
es

si
ng

 &
 W

or
kf

lo
w

 s
ys

te
m

s 

• 
Ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 K
no

w
le

dg
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

(K
M

) s
ys

te
m

s 
& 

te
ch

ni
qu

es
 fo

r s
er

vi
ce

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 

• 
Es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f c
or

po
ra

te
 p

ol
ic

y 
on

 
el

ec
tro

ni
c 

re
co

rd
s 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

  A
m

be
r 

  B
la

ck
 

        G
re

en
 

 A
m

be
r 

  B
la

ck
 

   B
la

ck
 

  A
m

be
r 

  B
la

ck
 

        G
re

en
 

 A
m

be
r 

  B
la

ck
 

   B
la

ck
 

 

  A
m

be
r 

  R
ed

 
        G

re
en

 
 A

m
be

r 
  R

ed
 

   R
ed

 
  

  A
m

be
r 

  A
m

be
r 

        G
re

en
 

 A
m

be
r 

  R
ed

 
   A

m
be

r 

  G
re

en
 

  A
m

be
r 

        G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

  A
m

be
r 

   G
re

en
 

  IC
T 

in
 p

la
ce

, P
ol

ic
y 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
fo

r c
er

ta
in

 g
ro

up
s 

of
 s

ta
ff 

su
ch

 
as

 th
os

e 
w

ith
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

un
de

r 6
. 

 Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

do
es

 n
ot

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 m

ak
e 

us
e 

of
 te

le
m

et
ry

 b
ut

 is
 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 H
an

ov
er

 H
ou

si
ng

 to
 b

ui
ld

 o
n 

an
 o

ld
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
ca

re
 s

ite
 a

 n
ew

 H
ou

si
ng

 w
ith

 E
xt

ra
 C

ar
e 

ho
m

es
 (f

or
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 d

em
en

tia
). 

 T
he

se
 w

ill 
be

 c
ab

le
d 

an
d 

a 
te

le
m

at
ic

 s
ys

te
m

 
w

ill 
be

 in
st

al
le

d.
 If

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l, 

te
le

m
at

ic
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t w
ill 

be
 

in
tro

du
ce

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
Ai

ds
 a

nd
 A

da
pt

at
io

ns
 re

gi
m

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 a

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f i

nd
iv

id
ua

l n
ee

d 
(e

g.
 o

pe
n 

fro
nt

 d
oo

r 
se

ns
or

s)
 

 In
 p

la
ce

 s
in

ce
 2

00
1 

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l u
se

 o
f D

IP
 is

 w
el

l e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

bu
t c

or
po

ra
te

 
po

lic
y 

is
 s

til
l b

ei
ng

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 
 Th

is
 w

ill 
be

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 

C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t i

ni
tia

tiv
e 

  St
af

f r
es

po
ns

ib
ilit

ie
s 

ar
e 

cu
rre

nt
ly

 b
ei

ng
 a

llo
ca

te
d.

  T
he

 p
ol

ic
y 

w
ill 

be
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 o
nc

e 
st

af
f a

re
 in

 p
la

ce
 

C
or

e 
Sy

st
em

s 
N

ot
e:

 S
uc

ce
ss

fu
l e

-g
ov

er
nm

en
t c

om
es

 fr
om

 
in

te
gr

at
in

g 
co

rp
or

at
e 

of
fic

e 
su

pp
or

t a
nd

 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

w
ith

 e
-e

na
bl

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

  C
or

e 
sy

st
em

s 
re

fe
r t

o 
th

e 
co

re
 b

us
in

es
s 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
of

 th
e 

e-
en

ab
le

d 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n.
  

 • 
U

se
 o

f s
ys

te
m

s 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

e-
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 

      

        A
m

be
r 

         

        A
m

be
r 

         

        A
m

be
r 

         

        A
m

be
r 

         

        G
re

en
 

         

        • 
E-

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t b

y 
st

af
f f

ro
m

 c
en

tra
l s

to
re

s 
w

el
l 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

• 
O

ra
cl

e 
sy

st
em

 in
 p

la
ce

 
• 

St
ra

te
gy

 in
 p

la
ce

 
• 

E-
Pr

oc
ur

em
en

t O
ffi

ce
r i

n 
pl

ac
e 

• 
BV

 re
vi

ew
 o

f e
-p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t i

n 
pr

og
re

ss
 

• 
In

vo
lv

em
en

t o
f e

xt
er

na
l s

up
pl

ie
rs

 in
 d

is
cu

ss
io

n 
• 

E-
te

nd
er

in
g 

pl
an

ne
d 

  

Page 89



 

IE
G

3 
Fi

na
l G

ui
da

nc
e 

14

• 
U

pg
ra

de
 o

f f
in

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

e-
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 

• 
U

pg
ra

de
 o

f o
ffi

ce
 s

ys
te

m
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt 
e-

go
ve

rn
m

en
t, 

e.
g.

 w
eb

-e
na

bl
in

g 
le

ga
cy

 
sy

st
em

s 

• 
U

pg
ra

de
 o

f H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 &
 p

ay
ro

ll 
sy

st
em

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

e-
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 

 • 
U

pg
ra

de
 o

f a
ss

et
 m

an
ag

em
en

t s
ys

te
m

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

e-
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 

• 
Li

nk
 to

 N
at

io
na

l L
an

d 
& 

Pr
op

er
ty

 
G

az
et

te
er

 (N
LP

G
) 

(h
ttp

://
w

w
w

.n
lp

g.
or

g.
uk

) 
 • 

Au
to

m
at

ed
 in

te
rfa

ce
 w

ith
 N

at
io

na
l L

an
d 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
e 

(N
LI

S)
 h

ub
 

(h
ttp

://
w

w
w

.n
lis

.o
rg

.u
k)

 
 • 

U
pg

ra
de

 o
f i

nc
om

e 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

sy
st

em
s 

to
 

su
pp

or
t e

-g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

R
ed

 
  A

m
be

r 
   B

la
ck

 
   B

la
ck

 
  R

ed
 

   A
m

be
r 

  G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

  A
m

be
r 

   B
la

ck
 

   B
la

ck
 

  G
re

en
 

   A
m

be
r 

  G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

  A
m

be
r 

   R
ed

 
   R

ed
 

  G
re

en
 

   A
m

be
r 

  G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

  A
m

be
r 

   A
m

be
r 

   A
m

be
r 

  G
re

en
 

   G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
 

G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
 

   G
re

en
 

   G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
 

   G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ys

te
m

s 
ar

e 
fu

lly
 w

eb
-e

na
bl

ed
 

  A 
nu

m
be

r o
f L

eg
ac

y 
sy

st
em

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

w
eb

-e
na

bl
ed

 a
nd

 a
n 

on
go

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

is
 in

 p
la

ce
 

  O
ra

cl
e 

sy
st

em
s 

ar
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 s
el

f-s
er

vi
ci

ng
 is

 b
ei

ng
 

pi
lo

te
d 

  A 
ne

w
 A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t s

ys
te

m
 is

 b
ei

ng
 in

st
al

le
d 

an
d 

po
pu

la
te

d 
w

hi
ch

 is
 fu

lly
 e

-G
IF

 c
om

pl
ia

nt
 

 LL
PG

 in
 B

S7
66

6 
fo

rm
at

 li
nk

ed
 to

 N
LP

G
 

   Le
ve

l 3
 li

nk
ag

e 
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ne

xt
 fi

na
nc

ia
l  

  Al
l f

in
an

ci
al

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 c
an

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 o

nl
in

e 

Pe
op

le
 

N
ot

e:
 T

hi
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
e-

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

m
od

el
 

re
fe

rs
 to

 th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
an

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ra

ct
ic

es
 o

f t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

th
at

 a
re

 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 h
el

p 
de

liv
er

 th
e 

pe
op

le
 c

ha
ng

es
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
fo

r e
-g

ov
er

nm
en

t. 
 • 

C
irc

ul
at

io
n 

of
 N

at
io

na
l S

tra
te

gy
 

ch
ec

kl
is

t t
o 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

an
d 

al
l 

C
ou

nc
illo

rs
 (s

ee
 

w
w

w
.lo

ca
le

go
v.

go
v.

uk
/n

at
io

na
ls

tra
te

gy
)  

 

• 
Es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f f
or

m
al

ly
 c

on
st

itu
te

d 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

ki
ng

 to
 h

el
p 

de
liv

er
 e

-
go

ve
rn

m
en

t: 

- 
Lo

ca
l S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 (L

SP
) 

- 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 o
th

er
 lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
iti

es
 

 

        B
la

ck
 

       G
re

en
  

 B
la

ck
 

  

        B
la

ck
 

       G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

  

        G
re

en
 

       G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

  

        G
re

en
 

       G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

  

        G
re

en
 

       G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

  

        N
at

io
na

l S
tra

te
gy

 c
he

ck
lis

t n
ow

 c
irc

ul
at

ed
 

       LS
P 

si
nc

e 
Ap

ril
 2

00
1 

 A 
N

E 
Lo

nd
on

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

, c
om

pr
is

in
g 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
hs

 o
f 

Ba
rk

in
g 

& 
D

ag
en

ha
m

, H
ac

kn
ey

, H
av

er
in

g,
 N

ew
ha

m
, 

R
ed

br
id

ge
, T

ow
er

 H
am

le
ts

 a
nd

 W
al

th
am

 F
or

es
t, 

w
as

 fo
rm

ed
 

t
d

li
LG

O
L

f
d

d
j

t
i

D

Page 90



 

IE
G

3 
Fi

na
l G

ui
da

nc
e 

15

               
- 

Pu
bl

ic
 P

riv
at

e 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 (P
PP

) 

• 
In

co
rp

or
at

io
n 

of
 e

-g
ov

er
nm

en
t i

nt
o 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tra
te

gy
 

• 
Ap

po
in

tm
en

t o
f m

em
be

r &
 o

ffi
ce

r e
-

ch
am

pi
on

s 

• 
Ap

po
in

tm
en

t o
f o

ffi
ce

r(s
) t

o 
le

ad
 o

n 
co

rp
or

at
e 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 o

f i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
as

se
ts

 a
nd

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

(e
.g

. 
Fr

ee
do

m
 o

f I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
Ac

t) 
 • 

D
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n/
ag

re
em

en
t o

f c
or

po
ra

te
 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t s

tra
te

gy
 fo

r r
ol

l-o
ut

 o
f 

lo
ca

l e
-g

ov
er

nm
en

t, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
gu

la
r 

re
vi

ew
 o

f r
is

k 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 

• 
U

se
 o

f c
us

to
m

er
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n/
re

se
ar

ch
 to

 
in

fo
rm

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f c

or
po

ra
te

 e
-

go
ve

rn
m

en
t s

tra
te

gy
  

• 
Es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f p
ol

ic
y 

fo
r a

dd
re

ss
in

g 
so

ci
al

 in
cl

us
io

n 
w

ith
in

 c
or

po
ra

te
 e

-
go

ve
rn

m
en

t s
tra

te
gy

 

 • 
Es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f i
nt

er
na

l t
ar

ge
ts

 &
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
fo

r e
-s

er
vi

ce
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g:
 

- 
C

us
to

m
er

 ta
ke

 u
p 

               A
m

be
r 

 B
la

ck
 

 G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
 

    R
ed

 
   G

re
en

 
   A

m
be

r 
       B

la
ck

 

               A
m

be
r 

 B
la

ck
 

 G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
 

    R
ed

 
   G

re
en

 
   G

re
en

 
       B

la
ck

 

               A
m

be
r 

 A
m

be
r 

 G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
 

    R
ed

 
   G

re
en

 
   G

re
en

 
       A

m
be

r 

               A
m

be
r 

 G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
 

    A
m

be
r 

   G
re

en
 

   G
re

en
 

       A
m

be
r 

               A
m

be
r 

 G
re

en
 

 G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
 

    G
re

en
 

   G
re

en
 

   G
re

en
 

       A
m

be
r 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 L

G
O

L 
fu

nd
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
co

ve
rin

g 
e-

D
em

oc
ra

cy
, e

-
Pr

oc
ur

em
en

t a
nd

 w
eb

 a
nd

 k
io

sk
 b

as
ed

 s
oc

ia
l h

ou
si

ng
 

le
tti

ng
s.

  
Th

es
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 a
re

 p
ro

ce
ed

in
g 

ve
ry

 w
el

l, 
bu

t w
e 

be
lie

ve
 th

e 
tru

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l o

f o
ur

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 is
 th

ro
ug

h 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 

co
lla

bo
ra

tio
n 

on
 is

su
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 w
or

k-
st

at
io

n 
an

d 
fle

xi
bl

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 te

ch
no

lo
gi

es
, S

m
ar

t C
ar

ds
, s

ha
re

d 
di

sa
st

er
 

re
co

ve
ry

, s
ha

re
d 

m
ob

ile
 te

le
ph

on
y 

se
rv

ic
es

, s
ha

re
d 

In
te

rn
et

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n,

 c
om

m
on

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 a

nd
 jo

in
t 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t. 

 
H

ea
ds

 o
f e

-G
ov

er
nm

en
t a

nd
 IC

T 
in

 th
e 

re
gi

on
 h

av
e 

fo
rm

ed
 

an
 in

fo
rm

al
 "L

un
ch

 C
lu

b"
 to

 a
ct

 a
s 

a 
fo

ru
m

 fo
r d

is
cu

ss
io

n 
an

d 
in

iti
at

io
n 

of
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 in
 N

E 
Lo

nd
on

 a
nd

 h
av

e 
in

iti
at

ed
 a

 
nu

m
be

r o
f r

el
ev

an
t w

or
k 

st
re

am
s.

  
 In

ve
st

ig
at

in
g 

th
e 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

of
 P

PP
’s

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 th

e 
C

us
to

m
er

 F
irs

t i
ni

tia
tiv

e 
 Fo

rm
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
cu

rre
nt

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tra
te

gy
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

rio
rit

y 
‘R

ig
ht

s 
& 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ilit

ie
s’

.  
In

 p
la

ce
 s

in
ce

 2
00

1 
  In

 p
la

ce
 s

in
ce

 2
00

1 
   W

e 
w

ill 
be

 m
an

ag
in

g 
ris

k 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
ric

e 
2 

m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

. T
hi

s 
w

ill 
be

 re
vi

ew
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
or

po
ra

te
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

 
 

• 
M

O
R

I P
ol

l t
o 

su
pp

or
t B

V 
R

ev
ie

w
 –

 2
00

1 
• 

M
O

R
I P

ol
l t

o 
su

pp
or

t C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t a

nd
 A

cc
es

s 
C

ha
nn

el
 re

vi
ew

  –
 2

00
3 

 • 
Po

lic
y 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 u
nd

er
w

ay
 

• 
G

as
co

ig
ne

 E
st

at
e 

W
ire

d 
U

p 
C

om
m

un
ity

 (c
f I

EG
2)

 
• 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 V
illa

ge
s 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 

• 
Fu

rth
er

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 in

 C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t b

us
in

es
s 

ca
se

 
   Pl

an
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 C

us
to

m
er

 F
irs

t b
us

in
es

s 
ca

se
 

Th
is

 w
ill 

be
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
C

us
to

m
er

 F
irs

t i
ni

tia
tiv

e 

Page 91



 

IE
G

3 
Fi

na
l G

ui
da

nc
e 

16

- 
C

us
to

m
er

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 

- 
Va

lu
e 

fo
r m

on
ey

 / 
co

st
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

 • 
U

se
 o

f p
ro

je
ct

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

m
et

ho
do

lo
gi

es
 (e

.g
. P

R
IN

C
E2

) 

• 
Es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f e
-s

ki
lls

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
fo

r s
ta

ff 
(e

.g
. E

ur
op

ea
n 

C
om

pu
te

r D
riv

in
g 

Li
ce

nc
e)

 

  • 
U

se
 o

f n
et

w
or

ke
d 

te
ch

no
lo

gi
es

 to
 

su
pp

or
t e

-le
ar

ni
ng

 

B
la

ck
 

 B
la

ck
 

  B
la

ck
 

  A
m

be
r 

     R
ed

 
 

B
la

ck
 

 B
la

ck
 

  A
m

be
r 

  A
m

be
r 

     A
m

be
r 

  

A
m

be
r 

 A
m

be
r 

  A
m

be
r 

  A
m

be
r 

     A
m

be
r 

 

A
m

be
r 

 A
m

be
r 

  A
m

be
r 

  G
re

en
 

     G
re

en
 

  

A
m

be
r 

 A
m

be
r 

  G
re

en
 

  G
re

en
 

     G
re

en
 

 

Th
is

 w
ill 

be
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
C

us
to

m
er

 F
irs

t i
ni

tia
tiv

e 
 Th

is
 w

ill 
be

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t i

ni
tia

tiv
e 

  U
nd

er
 tr

ia
l i

n 
so

m
e 

ar
ea

s 
of

 IT
 

  Im
pl

em
en

te
d 

fo
r 

• 
So

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
• 

Li
br

ar
ie

s 
• 

M
em

be
rs

 
• 

Sc
ho

ol
 s

ta
ff 

 U
se

d 
fo

r: 
• 

O
ffi

ce
 X

P 
• 

EC
D

L 
• 

M
an

ag
em

en
t P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
 

Page 92



 

IE
G

3 
Fi

na
l G

ui
da

nc
e 

17

 

3.
 

B
VP

I 1
57

 
C

ou
nc

ils
 a

re
 a

sk
ed

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ta

bl
e 

us
in

g 
th

e 
de

fin
iti

on
 o

f B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
r (

BV
PI

) 1
57

 fo
r E

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
Se

rv
ic

e 
D

el
iv

er
y 

(C
or

po
ra

te
). 

 Y
ou

 
ar

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

to
 v

al
id

at
e 

yo
ur

 lo
ca

l l
is

t o
f i

nt
er

ac
tio

ns
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
lis

t o
f p

ro
ce

ss
 a

re
a 

in
te

ra
ct

io
ns

 fo
r a

ll 
cu

st
om

er
 fa

ci
ng

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 c

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 th

e 
I&

D
eA

’s
 E

SD
 to

ol
ki

t (
w

w
w

.e
sd

-to
ol

ki
t.o

rg
). 

 
 

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Fo

re
ca

st
 

B
VP

I 1
57

 In
te

ra
ct

io
n 

Ty
pe

 
20

01
/2

 
20

02
/3

 
20

03
/4

 
20

04
/5

 
20

05
/6

 
Pr

ov
id

in
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n:

 
• 

To
ta

l t
yp

es
 o

f i
nt

er
ac

tio
n 

e-
en

ab
le

d 
• 

%
 e

-e
na

bl
ed

 

 
30

6 
73

.5
6 

32
5

78
.1

3
40

2
96

.6
3

 
41

6
10

0  

   

C
ol

le
ct

in
g 

re
ve

nu
e:

 
• 

to
ta

l t
yp

es
 o

f i
nt

er
ac

tio
n 

e-
en

ab
le

d 
• 

%
 e

-e
na

bl
ed

 

 
40

 
39

.6
0 

40
39

.6
0

52
51

.4
9

10
1

10
0

   

Pr
ov

id
in

g 
be

ne
fit

s 
&

 g
ra

nt
s:

 
• 

to
ta

l t
yp

es
 o

f i
nt

er
ac

tio
n 

e-
en

ab
le

d 
• 

%
 e

-e
na

bl
ed

 

 4 
44

.4
4 

4
44

.4
4

4
44

.4
4

9
10

0

   

C
on

su
lta

tio
n:

 
• 

to
ta

l t
yp

es
 o

f i
nt

er
ac

tio
n 

e-
en

ab
le

d 
• 

%
 e

-e
na

bl
ed

 

 
38

 
10

.9
2 

42
12

.0
7

33
0

94
.8

3
34

8
10

0

   

R
eg

ul
at

io
n 

(s
uc

h 
as

 is
su

in
g 

lic
en

ce
s)

: 
• 

to
ta

l t
yp

es
 o

f i
nt

er
ac

tio
n 

e-
en

ab
le

d 
• 

%
 e

-e
na

bl
ed

 

 2 25
 

3
37

.5
0

4 50
8

10
0

   

Ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r s

er
vi

ce
s:

 
• 

to
ta

l t
yp

es
 o

f i
nt

er
ac

tio
n 

e-
en

ab
le

d 
• 

%
 e

-e
na

bl
ed

 

 
88

 
40

 
13

0
59

.9
9

16
6

75
.4

5
22

0
10

0

   

B
oo

ki
ng

 v
en

ue
s,

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
&

 c
ou

rs
es

: 
• 

to
ta

l t
yp

es
 o

f i
nt

er
ac

tio
n 

e-
en

ab
le

d 
• 

%
 e

-e
na

bl
ed

 

 
20

 
41

.6
7 

23
47

.9
2

37
77

.0
8

48 10
0

   

Pa
yi

ng
 fo

r g
oo

ds
 &

 s
er

vi
ce

s:
 

• 
to

ta
l t

yp
es

 o
f i

nt
er

ac
tio

n 
e-

en
ab

le
d 

• 
%

 e
-e

na
bl

ed
 

 3 
5.

77
 

3
5.

77
3

5.
77

52 10
0

   

Pr
ov

id
in

g 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 c

om
m

un
ity

, p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l o
r b

us
in

es
s 

ne
tw

or
ks

: 
• 

to
ta

l t
yp

es
 o

f i
nt

er
ac

tio
n 

e-
en

ab
le

d 
• 

%
 e

-e
na

bl
ed

 

 
57

 
50

.8
9 

62
55

.3
6

74
66

.0
7

11
2

10
0

   

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t: 

• 
to

ta
l t

yp
es

 o
f i

nt
er

ac
tio

n 
e-

en
ab

le
d 

• 
%

 e
-e

na
bl

ed
 

 1 
1.

06
 

1
1.

06
1

1.
06

94 10
0

 

• 
TO

TA
L:

TY
PE

S 
O

F 
IN

TE
R

AC
TI

O
N

 E
-E

N
AB

LE
D

 
• 

%
 E

-E
N

AB
LE

D
 

55
9 

39
.7

0 
63

3
44

.9
6

10
73

76
.2

1
14

08 10
0

   

 

Page 93



 

IE
G

3 
Fi

na
l G

ui
da

nc
e 

18

It 
is

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 th
at

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

w
ill 

ba
se

 th
ei

r a
nn

ua
l B

VP
I 1

57
 a

ct
ua

ls
/e

st
im

at
es

 o
n 

th
e 

po
si

tio
n 

at
 th

e 
31

st
 M

ar
ch

 in
 e

ac
h 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r, 
w

ith
 th

e 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

of
 2

00
5/

6 
w

he
n 

th
e 

po
si

tio
n 

at
 1

st
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

00
6 

is
 re

qu
ire

d.
 

Page 94



 

IE
G

3 
Fi

na
l G

ui
da

nc
e 

19

 4.
 

A
cc

es
s 

C
ha

nn
el

 T
ak

e-
U

p 
 

In
 o

rd
er

 to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 p

ub
lic

 ta
ke

-u
p 

of
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

e-
ac

ce
ss

 c
ha

nn
el

s 
th

at
 y

ou
 a

re
 in

ve
st

in
g 

in
 u

p 
to

 2
00

5/
6,

 y
ou

 a
re

 a
sk

ed
 to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
 d

et
ai

lin
g 

ac
tu

al
 

an
d 

fo
re

ca
st

 fi
gu

re
s 

fo
r n

um
be

rs
 o

f e
-e

na
bl

ed
 p

ay
m

en
t t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
, p

lu
s 

st
re

et
 li

gh
t f

ai
lu

re
 re

po
rts

 / 
ab

an
do

ne
d 

ve
hi

cl
es

.  
(C

ou
nt

y 
co

un
ci

ls
 a

nd
 a

ll-
pu

rp
os

e 
au

th
or

iti
es

 
sh

ou
ld

 c
om

pl
et

e 
fig

ur
es

 fo
r s

tre
et

 li
gh

t f
ai

lu
re

 re
po

rts
, w

hi
ls

t d
is

tri
ct

 c
ou

nc
ils

 s
ho

ul
d 

co
m

pl
et

e 
fig

ur
es

 fo
r a

ba
nd

on
ed

 v
eh

ic
le

 re
po

rts
). 

 It
 is

 im
po

rta
nt

 th
at

 e
-a

cc
es

s 
ch

an
ne

l i
nv

es
tm

en
t a

nd
 ro

llo
ut

 a
ls

o 
fa

ci
lit

at
es

 a
cc

om
pa

ny
in

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t c
ap

ab
ilit

y 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 m
on

ito
r a

nd
 c

ol
le

ct
 s

uc
h 

st
at

is
tic

s.
 

 
 

A
ct

ua
l (

‘0
00

s)
 

Fo
re

ca
st

 (‘
00

0s
) 

C
om

m
en

t 
E-

en
ab

le
m

en
t &

 M
ai

n 
E-

A
cc

es
s 

C
ha

nn
el

 T
ak

e-
U

p 
01

/2
 

02
/3

 
03

/4
 

04
/5

 
05

/6
 

 
Lo

ca
l S

er
vi

ce
 W

eb
si

te
s 

• 
Pa

ge
 im

pr
es

si
on

s 
(a

nn
ua

l) 
• 

U
ni

qu
e 

us
er

s,
 i.

e.
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

vi
si

tin
g 

w
eb

si
te

 (a
nn

ua
l) 

• 
N

um
be

r o
f e

-e
na

bl
ed

 p
ay

m
en

t t
ra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
vi

a 
w

eb
si

te
 

• 
N

um
be

r o
f s

tre
et

 li
gh

t f
ai

lu
re

 re
po

rts
 (c

ou
nt

y)
 / 

 • 
ab

an
do

ne
d 

ve
hi

cl
e 

re
po

rts
 (d

is
tri

ct
) a

cc
ep

te
d 

vi
a 

w
eb

si
te

 
 

90
0 5 0

n/
a

35
53 20

0
2.

2
n/

a

 
58

62
 

29
2 

7.
3 

0.
05

 

70
34 35

0
11

.0 0.
1

84
41 42

0
16

.5 0.
2

   Se
rv

ic
e 

w
en

t l
iv

e 
M

ay
 2

00
2 

Ve
ry

 fe
w

 fa
ul

t r
ep

or
ts

 c
om

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
w

eb
si

te
 

N
o 

st
at

is
tic

s 
ar

e 
ke

pt
 a

s 
ve

ry
 fe

w
 fa

ul
t r

ep
or

ts
 

co
m

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
w

eb
si

te
 

Te
le

ph
on

e 
(i.

e.
 te

le
ph

on
e 

in
te

ra
ct

io
ns

 w
he

re
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 c

an
 a

cc
es

s 
el

ec
tro

ni
c 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d/

or
 u

pd
at

e 
re

co
rd

s 
on

-li
ne

 th
er

e 
an

d 
th

en
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 in
te

ra
ct

io
ns

 in
 c

on
ta

ct
 

ce
nt

re
s)

: 
• 

N
um

be
r o

f e
-e

na
bl

ed
 p

ay
m

en
t t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

by
 te

le
ph

on
e 

• 
N

um
be

r o
f s

tre
et

 li
gh

t f
ai

lu
re

 re
po

rts
 (c

ou
nt

y)
 / 

 • 
ab

an
do

ne
d 

ve
hi

cl
e 

re
po

rts
 (d

is
tri

ct
) a

cc
ep

te
d 

vi
a 

te
le

ph
on

e 
 

14
.9 n/
a

26
.5 n/
a

   
32

.2
 1 

38
.8 .9

47
.1 .8
5

   Au
to

m
at

ic
 te

le
ph

on
e 

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 o

nl
y 

N
o 

ac
tu

al
 d

at
a 

av
ai

la
bl

e,
 o

n 
an

 a
ve

ra
ge

 d
ay

 
B&

D
 re

ce
iv

e 
ab

ou
t 1

0 
te

le
ph

on
e 

en
qu

iri
es

 
N

o 
st

at
is

tic
s 

ar
e 

ke
pt

 
Fa

ce
 T

o 
Fa

ce
 

(i.
e.

 fr
on

t-l
in

e 
op

er
at

io
ns

 w
he

re
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 c

an
 a

cc
es

s 
el

ec
tro

ni
c 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d/

or
 

up
da

te
 re

co
rd

s 
on

-li
ne

 th
er

e 
an

d 
th

en
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 in
te

ra
ct

io
ns

 a
t r

ec
ep

tio
n 

de
sk

s,
 

O
ne

 S
to

p 
Sh

op
s 

& 
ho

m
e 

vi
si

ts
): 

• 
N

um
be

r o
f e

-e
na

bl
ed

 p
ay

m
en

t t
ra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
vi

a 
pe

rs
on

al
 c

on
ta

ct
 

 • 
N

um
be

r o
f s

tre
et

 li
gh

t f
ai

lu
re

 re
po

rts
 (c

ou
nt

y)
 / 

 
 • 

ab
an

do
ne

d 
ve

hi
cl

e 
re

po
rts

 (d
is

tri
ct

) a
cc

ep
te

d 
vi

a 
pe

rs
on

al
 c

on
ta

ct
 

 

0

n/
a

2

n/
a

   
7.

1  
.0

12
 

10
.7

.0
12

16
.0

.0
12

   In
tra

ne
t t

el
ep

ho
ne

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 s

ys
te

m
 li

ve
 

Ju
ne

 2
00

2 
N

o 
st

at
is

tic
s 

ar
e 

ke
pt

 –
 a

bo
ut

 1
 p

er
so

na
l 

vi
si

t/m
on

th
 

N
o 

st
at

is
tic

s 
ar

e 
ke

pt
 

O
th

er
 E

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
M

ed
ia

 
(e

.g
. B

AC
S,

 te
xt

 m
es

sa
gi

ng
): 

• 
N

um
be

r o
f e

-e
na

bl
ed

 p
ay

m
en

t t
ra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
vi

a 
BA

C
S 

or
 o

th
er

 
el

ec
tro

ni
c 

fo
rm

 
  • 

N
um

be
r o

f s
tre

et
 li

gh
t f

ai
lu

re
 re

po
rts

 (c
ou

nt
y)

 / 
 • 

ab
an

do
ne

d 
ve

hi
cl

e 
re

po
rts

 (d
is

tri
ct

) a
cc

ep
te

d 
vi

a 
ot

he
r e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
m

ed
ia

 
 

34
.5 1.
1

15
3.

4
n/

a

36
.1 1.
1

15
4.

8
n/

a

  
37

.4
 

1.
2 

17
0.

5 
n/

a 

38
.8 1.
2

17
5.

0
n/

a

40
.2 1.
2

18
0.

0
n/

a

  R
en

t 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 R

at
es

 
C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
N

o 
ot

he
r e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
m

ea
ns

 o
f r

ep
or

tin
g 

st
re

et
 

lig
ht

 fa
ilu

re
s 

O
r a

ba
nd

on
ed

 v
eh

ic
le

s 

Page 95



 

IE
G

3 
Fi

na
l G

ui
da

nc
e 

20

N
on

 E
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

(e
.g

. c
as

h 
of

fic
e,

 p
os

t) 
• 

N
um

be
r o

f p
ay

m
en

ts
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

by
 c

he
qu

e 
or

 o
th

er
 n

on
-e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
fo

rm
 

• 
N

um
be

r o
f s

tre
et

 li
gh

t f
ai

lu
re

 re
po

rts
 (c

ou
nt

y)
 / 

 • 
ab

an
do

ne
d 

ve
hi

cl
e 

re
po

rts
 (d

is
tri

ct
) a

cc
ep

te
d 

vi
a 

no
n-

el
ec

tro
ni

c 
fo

rm
 

 

32
3.

0
n/

a
30

8.
1

n/
a

  
29

5.
7 

.0
4 

28
3.

9
.0

4
27

2.
5

.0
4

  N
o 

da
ta

 a
va

ila
bl

e,
 3

 o
r 4

 le
tte

rs
 

re
ce

iv
ed

/m
on

th
 

N
o 

da
ta

 a
va

ila
bl

e 

 
5.

 
D

el
iv

er
y 

of
 K

ey
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
B

lo
ck

s 
&

 P
rio

rit
y 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
 C

ou
nc

ils
 a

re
 a

sk
ed

 to
 in

di
ca

te
 h

ow
 k

ey
 te

ch
ni

ca
l b

ui
ld

in
g 

bl
oc

ks
 a

nd
 p

rio
rit

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 to

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
an

d 
m

an
ag

ed
 b

y 
in

di
ca

tin
g 

th
e 

re
la

tiv
e 

us
ef

ul
ne

ss
 o

f o
ut

pu
ts

 
fro

m
 O

D
PM

 P
at

hf
in

de
r P

ro
je

ct
s,

 N
at

io
na

l P
ro

je
ct

s 
an

d/
or

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 o
th

er
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
an

d/
or

 u
se

 o
f o

th
er

 m
ea

ns
.  

A 
sl

id
in

g 
sc

al
e 

fro
m

 1
-5

 (i
.e

. f
ro

m
 

1=
no

t u
se

fu
l, 

to
 5

=e
ss

en
tia

l) 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

us
ed

.  
M

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t P
at

hf
in

de
r w

or
k 

an
d 

N
at

io
na

l P
ro

je
ct

s 
ca

n 
be

 fo
un

d 
at

 w
w

w
.lo

ca
le

go
v.

go
v.

uk
. 

 N
at

io
na

l P
ro

je
ct

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

Bl
oc

ks
 &

 P
rio

rit
y 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ar
ea

s 
U

se
 o

f 
ou

tp
ut

s 
fro

m
 

O
D

PM
 

Pa
th

fin
de

r 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
(p

le
as

e 
sc

or
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

1-
5)

 

U
se

 o
f 

ou
tp

ut
s 

fro
m

 
O

D
PM

 
N

at
io

na
l 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

(p
le

as
e 

sc
or

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
1-

5)
 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 
ot

he
r l

oc
al

 
au

th
or

iti
es

 
(p

le
as

e 
sc

or
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

1-
5)

 

O
th

er
 M

ea
ns

 
(p

le
as

e 
sc

or
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

1-
5)

 

C
om

m
en

t (
pl

ea
se

 c
om

m
en

t b
rie

fly
 o

n 
yo

ur
 p

la
ns

 fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 e

ac
h 

na
m

ed
 te

ch
ni

ca
l b

ui
ld

in
g 

bl
oc

k 
or

 p
rio

rit
y 

se
rv

ic
e 

ar
ea

) 

W
eb

si
te

s 
4 

4 
3 

5 
AP

LA
W

S;
 L

AW
S;

 L
on

do
n 

C
on

ne
ct

s;
 W

3C
/G

ov
ta

lk
 

G
ui

de
lin

es
 a

ll 
be

in
g 

us
ed

 to
 in

fo
rm

 W
eb

si
te

 d
es

ig
n 

Sm
ar

t c
ar

ds
 

3 
4 

5 
2 

W
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

sm
ar

t c
ar

d 
in

iti
at

iv
e 

w
ith

 N
ew

ha
m

, G
re

en
w

ic
h 

an
d 

Tr
an

sp
or

t f
or

 L
on

do
n.

  
In

te
ra

ct
iv

e 
D

ig
ita

l T
V 

0 
0 

0 
0 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

ha
s 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

d 
th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
pu

bl
ic

 in
te

re
st

 
in

 in
te

ra
ct

iv
e 

di
gi

ta
l t

el
ev

is
io

n 
as

 a
 c

ha
nn

el
 fo

r s
er

vi
ce

 
de

liv
er

y 
in

 B
ar

ki
ng

 &
 D

ag
en

ha
m

. T
hi

s 
de

ci
si

on
 w

ill 
be

 
re

vi
ew

ed
 to

 ta
ke

 a
cc

ou
nt

 o
f c

ha
ng

es
 in

 te
ch

no
lo

gy
 / 

cu
st

om
er

 v
ie

w
s.

 
M

ob
ile

 T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

(i.
e.

 fo
r h

om
e/

si
te

 
vi

si
ts

) 
 

3 
 

 
M

ob
ile

 T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

is
 a

lre
ad

y 
in

 u
se

 in
 s

om
e 

ar
ea

s 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

Te
le

m
et

ry
 (i

.e
. r

em
ot

e,
 re

al
 ti

m
e 

& 
si

gn
al

lin
g)

 
 

3 
 

4 
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
do

es
 n

ot
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 m
ak

e 
us

e 
of

 te
le

m
et

ry
 b

ut
 

is
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 H

an
ov

er
 H

ou
si

ng
 to

 b
ui

ld
 o

n 
an

 o
ld

 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l c
ar

e 
si

te
 a

 n
ew

 H
ou

si
ng

 w
ith

 E
xt

ra
 C

ar
e 

ho
m

es
 (f

or
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 d

em
en

tia
). 

 T
he

se
 w

ill 
be

 c
ab

le
d 

an
d 

a 
te

le
m

at
ic

 s
ys

te
m

 w
ill 

be
 in

st
al

le
d.

 If
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l, 
te

le
m

at
ic

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t w

ill 
be

 in
tro

du
ce

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
Ai

ds
 

an
d 

Ad
ap

ta
tio

ns
 re

gi
m

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 a

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f 

in
di

vi
du

al
 n

ee
d 

(e
g.

 o
pe

n 
fro

nt
 d

oo
r s

en
so

rs
) 

C
us

to
m

er
 R

el
at

io
ns

hi
p 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

(C
R

M
) 

4 
4 

0 
4 

Th
e 

C
or

po
ra

te
 u

se
 o

f C
R

M
 is

 to
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 C
us

to
m

er
 

Fi
rs

t b
us

in
es

s 
ca

se
.  

 
Kn

ow
le

dg
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

4 
4 

0 
4 

Th
e 

C
or

po
ra

te
 u

se
 o

f K
no

w
le

dg
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t i

s 
to

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 C

us
to

m
er

 F
irs

t b
us

in
es

s 
ca

se
.  

W
or

kf
lo

w
 

4 
4 

0 
4 

In
te

gr
al

 p
ar

t o
f c

us
to

m
er

 fi
rs

t i
ni

tia
tiv

e 
ro

ll 
ou

t o
f 

Page 96



 

IE
G

3 
Fi

na
l G

ui
da

nc
e 

21

su
pp

or
tin

g 
sy

st
em

s 
or

 in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
e-

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t 

3 
3 

0 
3 

E-
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t b
y 

st
af

f f
ro

m
 c

en
tra

l s
to

re
s 

is
 w

el
l 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d.

 A
 fu

ll 
tim

e 
e-

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t O

ffi
ce

r i
s 

em
pl

oy
ed

 
w

ho
 is

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r t

he
 e

-p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t s
tra

te
gy

 to
 

ex
te

nd
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 e
-p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t. 

Th
e 

of
fic

er
 is

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
th

e 
N

at
io

na
l P

ro
je

ct
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

Sc
ho

ol
s 

ad
m

is
si

on
s 

 
4 

5 
4 

Ba
rk

in
g 

& 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 is
 a

 p
ar

tn
er

 in
 th

e 
Pa

n 
Lo

nd
on

 
C

oo
rd

in
at

ed
 A

dm
is

si
on

 S
ys

te
m

 &
 w

ith
 A

re
ta

 is
 le

ad
in

g 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t t

o 
de

ve
lo

p 
an

 e
-G

IF
 c

om
pl

ia
nt

 in
te

rfa
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
Pa

n 
Lo

nd
on

 re
gi

st
er

 &
 lo

ca
l a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

sy
st

em
s 

us
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 s

ys
te

m
s 

Lo
ca

l P
la

nn
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

2 
5 

2 
2 

Ba
rk

in
g 

an
d 

D
ag

en
ha

m
 is

 e
ng

ag
in

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 

Po
rta

l 
El

ec
tro

ni
c 

ex
ch

an
ge

 o
f p

ro
pe

rty
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
ith

 V
al

ua
tio

n 
O

ffi
ce

 A
ge

nc
y 

(V
O

A)
 fo

r C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

& 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 R

at
es

 

 
3 

0 
5 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

a 
m

od
er

n 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 R

at
es

 s
ys

te
m

 a
nd

 is
 

cu
rre

nt
ly

 te
nd

er
in

g 
fo

r a
 re

pl
ac

em
en

t C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

sy
st

em
.  

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 e

xp
ec

tin
g 

its
 s

up
pl

ie
rs

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
lin

ks
 w

he
n 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

O
ffi

ce
. 

W
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 b
us

in
es

s 
 

4 
4 

4 
Ba

rk
in

g 
an

d 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 is
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f 
Lo

nd
on

 w
id

e 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 S

up
po

rt 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 s

uc
h 

as
 th

e 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 In

no
va

tio
n 

C
en

tre
, B

us
in

es
s 

Li
nk

 a
nd

 th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 o

f E
as

t L
on

do
n’

s 
Kn

ow
le

dg
e 

D
oc

k 
C

rim
e 

re
du

ct
io

n 
/ y

ou
th

 o
ffe

nd
in

g 
 

4 
4 

4 
C

rim
e 

re
du

ct
io

n 
is

 a
 k

ey
 c

om
po

ne
nt

 o
f B

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 

D
ag

en
ha

m
’s

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 w
hi

ch
 

co
m

pr
is

es
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
y,

 P
ol

ic
e,

 N
at

io
na

l H
ea

lth
 

Se
rv

ic
e,

 L
on

do
n 

Pr
ob

at
io

n 
Ar

ea
 a

nd
 m

or
e 

re
ce

nt
ly

 th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 F

ire
 B

rig
ad

e 
C

la
im

in
g 

be
ne

fit
s 

 
3 

3 
3 

C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t i

ni
tia

tiv
e 

w
ill 

ta
ke

 a
cc

ou
nt

 o
f t

he
 n

at
io

na
l 

pr
oj

ec
t &

 in
co

rp
or

at
e 

ke
y 

ou
tc

om
es

 o
f t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f 
th

e 
in

iti
at

iv
e.

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 te
nd

er
in

g 
fo

r a
 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t b

en
ef

its
 s

ys
te

m
 a

nd
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

e 
th

at
 th

is
 w

ill 
pr

ov
id

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

fo
r r

em
ot

e 
of

fic
es

 a
nd

 lo
ca

tio
n 

w
or

ki
ng

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 d
oc

um
en

t m
an

ag
em

en
t s

ys
te

m
s.

 T
he

 
pr

op
os

al
s 

al
so

 in
cl

ud
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r o
n-

lin
e 

fo
rm

 fi
llin

g,
 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
qu

es
ts

, t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 a

nd
 v

al
id

at
io

n 
of

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
& 

ex
te

ns
iv

e 
us

e 
of

 p
al

m
 to

ps
 a

t c
us

to
m

er
’s

 
lo

ca
tio

ns
. 

Lo
ca

l e
-G

ov
er

nm
en

t S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 &

 
Ac

cr
ed

ita
tio

n 
3 

4 
4 

2 
Ba

rk
in

g 
an

d 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 is
 fu

lly
 c

om
m

itt
ed

 to
 th

e 
e-

G
IF

 
an

d 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
th

e 
N

E 
Lo

nd
on

 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 a
nd

 a
w

ai
ts

 w
ith

 in
te

re
st

 o
ut

pu
ts

 fr
om

  
Fi

re
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

 
n/

a 
n/

a 
n/

a 
 

Tr
ad

in
g 

st
an

da
rd

s 
 

 
 

 
Tr

ad
in

g 
St

an
da

rd
s 

ar
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
on

 th
e 

w
eb

si
te

. F
ur

th
er

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 w

ill 
aw

ai
t t

he
 o

ut
co

m
e 

of
 th

e 
na

tio
na

l 
pr

oj
ec

t i
n 

Ju
ne

 2
00

4 
M

ul
ti 

Ag
en

cy
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Sh

ar
in

g 
 

4 
4 

4 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sh

ar
in

g 
pr

ot
oc

ol
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

w
ith

 

Page 97



 

IE
G

3 
Fi

na
l G

ui
da

nc
e 

22

pa
rtn

er
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

th
e 

PC
T 

an
d 

th
e 

po
lic

e,
 b

ut
 a

t p
re

se
nt

 
th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

co
rp

or
at

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r t

hi
s 

ar
ea

.  
Th

is
 is

 n
ow

 b
ei

ng
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 
e-

D
em

oc
ra

cy
 

 
3 

5 
3 

Ba
rk

in
g 

& 
D

ag
en

ha
m

’s
 s

ol
ut

io
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
do

pt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

N
E 

Lo
nd

on
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
 

Page 98



 

IE
G

3 
Fi

na
l G

ui
da

nc
e 

23

 6.
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

C
ou

nc
ils

 a
re

 a
sk

ed
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 s

um
m

ar
y 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
 a

nd
 fo

re
ca

st
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 o

n 
im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
el

ec
tro

ni
c 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t u

p 
to

 2
00

5/
6.

 T
hi

s 
sh

ou
ld

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

st
an

da
rd

 
el

em
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

 a
nd

 b
rie

f c
om

m
en

ta
ry

 o
n 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 IE

G
 m

on
ey

.  
(P

le
as

e 
no

te
 th

at
 im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
e-

go
ve

rn
m

en
t e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 re

fe
rs

 to
 in

ve
st

m
en

t d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 e
-

en
ab

le
 lo

ca
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

to
 tr

an
sf

or
m

 th
ei

r a
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y,
 q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
co

st
-e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
20

05
 ta

rg
et

.  
C

yc
lic

al
 s

pe
nd

 re
la

te
d 

to
 th

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 
ex

is
tin

g 
IC

T 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
): 

 
 

A
ct

ua
l (

£‘
00

0s
) 

Fo
re

ca
st

 (£
’0

00
s)

 
C

om
m

en
t 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

01
/2

 
02

/3
 

03
/4

 
04

/5
 

05
/6

 
 

 • 
£2

00
,0

00
 IE

G
 m

on
ey

 in
 2

00
2/

3 
an

d 
20

03
/4

 

 
  20

0 

  20
0 

  20
0 

 
 

 • 
fin

an
ci

al
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 fr

om
 E

U
 fu

nd
in

g 
 

 
 

 
 

 

• 
fin

an
ci

al
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 fr

om
 o

th
er

 s
ou

rc
es

 o
f G

ov
er

nm
en

t f
un

di
ng

, 
su

ch
 a

s 
th

e 
In

ve
st

 to
 S

av
e 

Bu
dg

et
 (I

SB
) 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 • 
fin

an
ci

al
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
fro

m
 p

ub
lic

-p
riv

at
e 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
s 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 • 
fin

an
ci

al
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
to

 o
r f

ro
m

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 o

ng
oi

ng
 p

ro
je

ct
 w

or
k 

us
in

g 
O

D
PM

 L
oc

al
 e

-G
ov

er
nm

en
t P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
an

d 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 o
r a

ge
nc

ie
s 

th
at

 h
av

e 
an

 
el

em
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
 e

-e
na

bl
in

g 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 • 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

be
in

g 
ap

pl
ie

d 
fro

m
 in

te
rn

al
 re

ve
nu

e 
an

d 
ca

pi
ta

l b
ud

ge
ts

 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
e-

en
ab

le
m

en
t 

 

 
24

5 
4,

40
0 

1’
80

0 
1,

00
0 

 

• 
ot

he
r r

es
ou

rc
es

 (e
.g

. t
ra

in
in

g)
 (p

le
as

e 
sp

ec
ify

) 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
Su

b 
to

ta
l  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 • 
le

ss
 c

ur
re

nt
 a

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 s
av

in
gs

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
fro

m
 e

-g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

 
 

 
 

 
C

us
to

m
er

 F
irs

t B
us

in
es

s 
C

as
e 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
sa

vi
ng

s 
 

TO
TA

L  

 
44

5 
4,

60
0 

2,
00

0 
1,

00
0 

� 
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l r
ev

en
ue

 
sp

en
ds

 a
cr

os
s t

he
 se

rv
ic

e 
de

pa
rtm

en
ts

 th
at

 a
re

 n
ot

 d
ire

ct
ly

 
ch

ar
ge

d 
to

 th
e 

e-
go

ve
rn

m
en

t c
od

e.
 

Th
es

e 
co

st
s a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 b
ei

ng
 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 
in

to
 th

e 
fin

al
 IE

G
3 

st
at

em
en

t(s
ec

tio
n 

Page 99



 

IE
G

3 
Fi

na
l G

ui
da

nc
e 

24

6)
 p

rio
r t

o 
th

e 
su

bm
is

si
on

 to
 th

e 
O

D
PM

 o
n 

th
e 

10
th

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

3.
 

 
 

Page 100



 

IEG3 Final Guidance   17 

SUBMISSION 
Please make sure that your IEG3 return reaches us by midnight on Monday 10 November 2003.   

We would prefer to receive responses by email at: localegov@odpm.gsi.gov.uk.  You may also use the 
online form facilities at the I&DeA’s ESD Toolkit - www.esd-toolkit.org. 

General enquiries regarding the submission of IEG3 returns should be addressed to:  
 
Angela Isichei 
Local e-Government Team 
Office of the Deputy Prime Minister 
Zone 3/G5 
Bressenden Place 
London SW1E 5DU 

Tel: 020 7944 4258 
Fax: 020 7944 3799 

FURTHER INFORMATION 
Details of the National Strategy for local e-government can be found at www.localegov.gov.uk 

Details of national infrastructure projects can be found at www.e-envoy.gov.uk & www.idea.gov.uk/lgih  

 
Your regional IEG3 contacts at the ODPM are: 
Yorkshire & Humberside – Anne Wood – anne1.wood@odpm.gsi.gov.uk 

East – Julian Bowrey – julian.bowrey@odpm.gsi.gov.uk  

East Midlands – Caroline Stanger – caroline.stanger@odpm.gsi.gov.uk  

South West, Fire Authorities – Peter Blair – peter.blair@odpm.gsi.gov.uk 

London, South East, North East, National Parks - Janice Morphet – janice.morphet@odpm.gsi.gov.uk 

North West, West Midlands - Chris Haynes – chris.haynes@odpm.gsi.gov.uk 

 

PUBLICATION OF IEG STATEMENTS 
The ODPM may wish to publish information in connection with IEG3 proformas in due course or deposit 
them in its own library or that of the Houses of Parliament.  Information may also be published as part of a 
national database to allow other local authorities to use IEG3 data for benchmarking purposes.  Should you 
wish any element of your proforma to be treated in confidence please clearly indicate this in your response. 
Nevertheless, all responses will be included in statistical summaries.  

Page 101



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

28 OCTOBER 2003 
 

JOINT REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE STRATEGY  
AND THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

 
LOCAL AUTHORITY BUSINESS GROWTH INCENTIVES 
 

FOR DECISION 

This report is presented to the Executive as it has potentially positive financial 
implications for the Council. 
 
Summary 
 
The government is consulting on a new scheme to create greater incentives for local 
authorities to promote economic development in their areas, by allowing local authorities 
to directly retain a proportion of business rate revenues.  Revenues from the scheme will 
not be ring fenced and local authorities will be free to spend them on local priorities as 
they choose.  The scheme will take effect from 1 April 2005, but local authorities are 
invited to take part in an administrative “dry run” in 2004.  This report considers the 
potential benefits to Barking and Dagenham and recommends a response.  The 
government’s deadline for the consultation is 31 October 2003. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is asked to: 
 

1. Welcome the scheme and agree the report as the basis for our response, whilst 
promoting Barking and Dagenham’s more radical alternative; 

 
2. Volunteer to take part in the administrative “dry run”; and 

 
3. Consider at the proper time, as part of the budget setting process and in relation to 

other priorities, allocating a part of any new funds gained under the scheme to 
support more economic development work by the Council. 

 
Reasons 
 
The scheme has the potential for significant financial gain to the Council. 
 
Contact Officers:  
Jeremy Grint 
Alan Evens 
Tony Freeman 

 
Head of Regeneration 
NNDR Service Manager 
Regeneration Finance 

 
Tel: 020 8227 2443 
Tel: 020 8227 2573 
Tel: 020 8227 2855 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1 Current arrangements for local government financing do not fully recognise or 

reward the contribution that local authorities make to economic growth.  Since 1990 
business rate revenues have been paid into a central pool and then redistributed to 
local authorities on a per capita basis.  This means that local authorities do not get 

AGENDA ITEM 9

Page 103



a direct local benefit, despite bearing the costs of collection and many of the costs 
of economic development.  There is no direct financial incentive for them to do more 
to encourage economic growth in their areas.  It also creates a sense of grievance 
among local businesses, which see no direct connection between rates collected 
and spending in the area. 

 
1.2 HM Treasury (HMT) and the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister (ODPM) have 

therefore developed a scheme to create stronger incentives for local authorities to 
work with businesses and other partners to encourage growth in their areas.  The 
scheme will allow local authorities to individually retain some of the business rate 
revenues that come from growing the business rate tax base at a local level.   

 
1.3 No business will pay more non-domestic rates through the scheme.  Revenues from 

the scheme will not be ring fenced and local authorities will be free to spend them 
on local priorities as they choose.  The government has also said that there will be 
no reduction in spending totals set in the 2002 Spending Review as a result of the 
scheme.  We should ask them to extend this commitment to the 2004 Spending 
Review.   

 
1.4 A joint report from HMT and ODPM, Local Authority Business Growth Incentives – 

A Consultation Paper, sets out the scheme in detail and asks for views on a number 
of operational issues.  These include the options for setting a baseline from which 
growth is measured, the level above which a local authority will retain revenues (the 
“floor”) and the proportion of revenues that the local authority will retain above the 
“floor”.  The government has also asked local authorities to volunteer to take part in 
an administrative “dry run”.  The deadline for the consultation is 31 October 2003. 

 
2. Barking and Dagenham’s alternative 
 
2.1 We should welcome the principles behind the scheme, the opportunity to benefit 

from an additional funding stream and the government’s commitment not to ring-
fence additional revenues.  However, the government’s proposals have serious 
flaws.  They are bureaucratic and may prove difficult to administer.  They allow local 
authorities to retain only a part of additional business rate revenues.  Most 
importantly, they would not create a predictable funding flow and this could in 
practice limit the purposes to which any additional funds could be put.  

 
2.2 Barking and Dagenham collaborated with London First to develop a more radical 

proposal in January 2003, which we believe would be more successful in meeting 
the government’s objectives than their current proposals.  Our Local Tax 
Reinvestment Programme is based on successful experience in the USA.  It 
proposes a pilot project in Barking and Dagenham to allow the Council to keep all 
additional business rate revenues above a baseline which would remain constant 
from year to year.  The money accrued would be used to fund future infrastructure 
improvements by allowing private investors to borrow against it.  Our scheme would 
release larger amounts of capital and would create a much more predictable 
funding flow.  In welcoming the government’s current proposals, we should also use 
this opportunity to try to revitalise government interest in our pilot project.  

 

Page 104



3. The impact of the government’s proposals on Barking and Dagenham 
 
3.1 The borough economy has suffered some decline in the period since 1995, with a 

particularly marked loss of jobs at the turn of the century caused by Ford’s decision 
to end manufacturing at its Dagenham plant.  The long-term decline in national and 
London manufacturing is predicted to continue and the borough will not be immune 
from this trend. 

 
3.2 However, the unfolding of the government’s Sustainable Communities agenda and 

the regeneration of Thames Gateway will reverse this trend.  The development of 
Dagenham Dock as a Sustainable Industrial Park for environmental industries and 
“green” technologies is already far advanced.  It will make the borough into the 
premier location for environmental businesses and tap into a huge market that will 
continue to grow rapidly in response to national and EU legislation.  The 
redevelopment of Barking Town Centre will create opportunities for business growth 
in leisure, retail and business services.  The borough’s draft Economic 
Development Strategy, which is also on the agenda for this meeting of the 
Executive, sets out a framework for action to make the most of these opportunities.   

 
3.3 The government’s scheme therefore affords the opportunity to benefit from the 

expected economic development in Barking and Dagenham and to use resulting 
revenues to address some of the borough’s social needs.  We expect the business 
rate tax base to rise quickly from a relatively low level, both because of an increase 
in the number of businesses and from growth in the underlying rental value of 
business properties.  It is difficult to predict how much rates revenue may be 
retained locally at this stage as the Government has proposed several different 
calculation methods.  However under all proposed methods the maximum amount 
retained by Barking and Dagenham would be £2 million in any one year.   

 
3.4 It is important to recognise that the proposed scheme does not offer any 

guarantees.  If an authority fails to meet the minimum growth levels set by the 
Government, it will not receive any additional funding.  Additional funding is based 
on the previous year’s performance and the following year’s baseline will reflect the 
growth already achieved.  This means that under the current proposals there would 
be no guaranteed income flow from the scheme and that significant financial 
benefits can only be expected from growth that exceeds the targets set by 
Government.  For example, the Council could make the maximum £2 million from 
the scheme in one year, nothing the year after and then a small amount in the third.  
The opportunity provided by the scheme to retain revenue locally should therefore 
be welcomed, but treated with caution. 

 
4. The government’s consultation  
 
4.1 The key technical issue for the scheme is the baseline.  This determines the trend 

growth relative to which individual local authority floors are set.  The government 
proposes to use the period from 1995 to 2003 as the trend growth rate.  It then asks 
local authorities to choose between five different ways of grouping local authorities 
for determining the baseline, two of which the government has identified as 
preferred options at this stage of the consultation.  The total rateable value of the 
borough has not shown any consistent trend over the period since 1995 and it is 
therefore recommended that a baseline calculated on the past performance of the 

Page 105



borough would be more beneficial to the Council than baselines calculated on either 
regional or national trends. 

 
4.2 The government has also asked local authorities to choose between two options for 

determining the level above which a local authority will retain revenues (the “floor”) 
and the proportion of revenues that the local authority will retain above the “floor” 
(the “scaling”).  Officers are carrying out further research to identify which options 
would be most favourable to the Council, so that the Council can respond to this 
question.  

 
4.3 The government has proposed using Formula Spending Shares (FSS) to determine 

a cut off point for revenues received from the scheme (the “ceiling”).  This would not 
provide a good measure, since Formula Spending Shares are subject to year-on-
year functional changes as grants move in and out of FSS and duties change 
between public sector bodies.  In addition, a full review of FSS is planned for 
2006/07, which would be the second year of the business growth incentive scheme.  
For these reasons and because Barking and Dagenham expects to see significant 
economic growth over the next few years, we should reject this in favour of keeping 
all additional revenues above the baseline.  We can justify our position on the 
grounds that economic growth will itself place a further burden on Council resources 
(roads, rubbish collection etc) and the Council should therefore be entitled to retain 
the full amount to revenue to meet the additional demand on services, as well as to 
benefit local people. 

 
4.4 Local authorities are also asked to indicate how revenues should be divided 

between tiers of local government – in our case between the borough and the GLA.  
Whilst recognising the contribution of the GLA and London Development Agency to 
the development of the wider Thames Gateway, our view is strongly that we should 
seek to retain as big a proportion of the revenue as possible.  The Council’s local 
knowledge and closeness to the community mean that it is better placed to make an 
optimal allocation of the additional revenues to community priorities.     

 
5. Administrative “dry run” and financial impact 
 
5.1 The growth incentive scheme will require some changes to local authorities’ existing 

administrative arrangements.  It will also require local authorities to supply some 
information to central government so that it can monitor the additional revenue 
retained.  The government intends to test these new arrangements throughout 2004 
and has asked local authorities to volunteer to take part in the administrative “dry 
run”.   

 
5.2 Taking part would make some extra demands on the Council’s administrative 

resources.  It is not yet clear what level of additional resource would be required to 
support the pilot.  The Council should lobby for financial assistance from the 
government if new systems necessitated significant, additional revenue or capital 
expenditure - for example if we had to commission new or amended IT systems, or 
recruit and train new staff.  If it became clear in such a case that the government 
would not provide financial assistance and the likely costs of participation were 
considered to be excessive, we should reconsider our involvement in the scheme.   

 

Page 106



5.3 Nevertheless, taking part in the “dry run” will raise the profile of the borough, give 
the Council a direct voice in designing a system most suitable to Barking and 
Dagenham, and help the Council prepare for the introduction of the scheme proper.  
We therefore recommend that the Council offer to take part in the “dry run”, but 
makes the financial caveats set out above, clear in its response. 

 
6. Using part of the revenue to fund economic development work 
 
6.1 The scheme allows the Council to spend any additional resources received on local 

priorities as it chooses.  Without pre-empting the budget setting process, we would 
suggest that the Executive considers at the proper time allocating a proportion of 
any additional revenue to fund extra work by the Council to promote economic 
development and that we note this point in our response to the consultation.  This 
would help create a virtuous circle within the borough, in which economic 
development would continue to create additional resources to meet social needs.  
Noting this intention in our response to the government would indicate our 
commitment to the new scheme’s overarching objective of promoting greater local 
authority involvement in economic development. 

 
6.2 Whatever the purposes to which the Council allocates any additional funding 

received under this scheme, it should be noted that such funding would effectively 
be retrospective, since the growth achieved in a financial year would not be known 
until after the end of the year.  This effectively means that the funds would not be 
immediately available, nor could any commitment be made with those funds that 
anticipated a sustainable revenue stream. 

 
6.3 It is also likely to limit the incentive for local authorities to do more to promote 

economic development - the Government’s explicit purpose in designing the 
scheme.  Should the Council increase spending on regeneration to encourage 
economic growth it will be spending additional funds with no guarantee of any 
return.  This arrangement will naturally favour those authorities with the resources 
available for up front funding to promote economic development.  We will note 
these points in our response to the government. 

 
7. Consultation 
 
7.1 The report was developed by officers from Regeneration, Regeneration Finance 

and Revenue Services. 
 
 
 
 
Background papers 
 
The government’s consultation paper, Local Authority Business Growth Incentives is 
available from the website of the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister, www.odpm.gov.uk 
 

Page 107



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 
Draft response to HMT/ODPM 
 
Mr Tim Fairclough 
Office of the Deputy Prime Minister 
Eland House, 5/H2 
Bressenden Place 
London SW1E 5DU 
 
 
 
Summary 
 
Barking and Dagenham Council welcomes the principles behind the government’s 
proposals for Local Authority Business Growth Incentives and the government’s 
consultation on its implementation.  We would like to volunteer to take part in next year’s 
administrative “dry run” for the new arrangements, although we have some concerns about 
the additional resources this might require.  We would also like to propose a pilot Local 
Tax Reinvestment scheme, developed by Barking and Dagenham with London First, as a 
possible way forward to meet the government’s objectives. 
 
Background 
 
Barking and Dagenham Council is already playing a leading role in the economic 
development of our borough.  We have begun implementation of an ambitious programme 
to make Barking the town centre of choice for the new communities of London Riverside 
and create opportunities for growth in leisure, retail and business services.  We are driving 
forward the redevelopment of Dagenham Dock as London’s premier location for 
environmental businesses.  The transformation of the Thames Gateway and the 
Sustainable Communities Plan, with their major housing and infrastructure projects, will 
create further opportunities for growth in the borough.    
 
Economic development is critical to our vision of a prosperous borough, whose people are 
educated and trained to compete for a diversity of skilled and fulfilling jobs.  Barking and 
Dagenham has already achieved much towards this aim: we are the fastest improving 
education authority in the country, with Beacon Status for transforming secondary 
education.  But we still have unacceptably high levels of social exclusion to tackle, with 
nearly one in three of our residents suffering low literacy and numeracy and the lowest 
median wage in London.  The decline of manufacturing in recent years has made it even 
more critical to diversify our local economy into the sectors that will drive future growth. 
 
We have recently agreed with our partners an Economic Development Strategy to promote 
economic growth and tackle social needs.  We will consider using part of any additional 
revenues from the business growth incentives scheme to fund its implementation.  This 
would create a virtuous circle within the borough, in which vigorous business growth 
continues to create resources that can be used to meet the needs of the borough. 
 
Response to the principles of the scheme 
 
Q1.  Do you agree with the principles of the scheme? 

Page 109



 
The Council welcomes the government’s intention to create stronger incentives for local 
authorities to promote economic development and the opportunity provided by the new 
scheme to benefit from an additional funding stream.  We strongly endorse the 
government’s commitment not to ring-fence revenues from the scheme and to give local 
authorities discretion over their use.  We also note the government’s commitment that no 
reduction in spending totals set in the 2002 Spending Review will be made as a result of 
this scheme.  We urge that the government extend this commitment to the 2004 Spending 
Review.   
 
We also suggest that the government gives further consideration to the following issues, 
with a view to strengthening the incentive provided by the scheme.  Current proposals are 
complex and may prove difficult to administer.  They allow local authorities to retain only a 
part of additional business rate revenues.  Most importantly, because the baseline will be 
re-set from year to year, current proposals would not create a predictable funding flow and 
this could in practice limit the purposes to which any additional funds could be put.  
 
In considering these points, we would like to bring to the government’s attention a pilot 
proposal developed by Barking and Dagenham and London First in January 2003.  We 
believe that this could provide a way forward to meet the government’s objectives.  Our 
proposal for a pilot Local Tax Reinvestment Programme in Barking and Dagenham is 
based on successful experience in the USA.  It would allow the Council to keep all 
additional business rate revenues above a baseline which would remain constant from 
year to year.  The money accrued would be used to fund future infrastructure 
improvements by allowing private investors to borrow against it.  Our scheme would 
release larger amounts of resources and would create a more predictable funding flow.  A 
copy of the proposal is enclosed with this letter.  We would welcome the opportunity to 
discuss our thinking with the government.  
 
Response to technical issues 
 
Q2.  Do you agree with using an eight year period for setting the trend? 
 
Yes. 
 
Q3.  Are there models for setting the baseline that need to be considered? Q4.  Which of 
the baseline models is your preferred option and why? 
 
We believe that a baseline calculated on the past performance of the borough would be 
more appropriate and better reflect specific local conditions than baselines calculated on 
either regional or national trends. 
 
Q5.  Which of the two preferred options for floors and scaling factors provides the best 
balance between financial support and financial incentives? 
 
[Note: this answer will be drafted at a later stage, as officers are carrying out further 
research to identify which options would be most favourable to the Council.]   
 
Q6.  Do you agree with using formula spending shares as the measure for determining 
ceilings? 

Page 110



 
We do not believe that Formula Spending Shares would be a good measure for 
determining ceilings.  FSS is subject to year-on-year functional changes as grants move 
into and out of FSS and duties change between public sector bodies.  In addition, a full 
review of FSS is scheduled for 2006/07, which would be the second year of the new 
scheme.   
 
In any case, we would question the need for a ceiling.  We propose instead that local 
authorities keep all additional revenues above the baseline in order to maximise the 
incentive for local authorities to promote economic development in their areas.  Economic 
growth will itself place a further burden on Council resources (developing infrastructure, 
providing additional cleaning services etc) and the Council should therefore retain the full 
amount of revenue to meet the additional demand on services, as well as to benefit local 
people. 
 
Q7.  How do you think that the benefits should be shared between different tiers of local 
government? 
 
The bulk of the additional revenues produced by the scheme in London should be retained 
at borough level, as London boroughs are most responsive and best equipped to meet the 
needs of their communities. 
 
Q8.  Would you like to volunteer to be part of the administrative dry run? 
 
Yes.  We welcome the opportunity to help design a practical and effective system and to 
prepare for the scheme’s full implementation in 2005.   
 
However, we strongly urge the government to keep changes to local authorities’ existing 
administrative arrangements to a minimum.  We will of course endeavour to meet the 
additional administrative costs from within the Council’s existing budget.  However, we 
would have to ask for financial support from the government, or to reconsider our 
participation, should the “dry run” result in significant revenue or capital expenditure above 
present levels.   
 
Other issues 
 
Our understanding of the current proposals is that an authority will not retain any revenue 
if they fail to meet the minimum growth levels set by the Government and that any 
additional revenue is effectively retained for only one year, since the following years 
baseline will reflect the growth already achieved.  As a result there can be no guaranteed 
income flow: for example, the Council could make the maximum £2 million from the 
scheme in one year, nothing the year after and then a small amount in the third.  This 
could in practice limit the purposes for which Councils could use additional revenue 
derived from the scheme.   
 
In addition, the revenue retained would effectively be retrospective, since the growth 
achieved in a financial year would not be known until after the end of the year.  Should 
Councils increase spending on regeneration to encourage economic growth they will be 
spending additional funds with no guarantee of any return.  This arrangement will naturally 
favour those authorities with the resources available for up front funding to promote 

Page 111



economic development and weakens the incentive for authorities not in that position.  You 
may wish to address these points in your further development of the scheme.   
 
I hope that our comments are helpful and look forward to hearing your response. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
Signatures of the Directors of Corporate Strategy and Finance 

Page 112



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

21 OCTOBER 2003 
 

JOINT REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE STRATEGY AND 
THE DIRECTOR OF LEISURE AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 

 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
 

FOR DECISION 

This report is presented to the Executive as it sets out a comprehensive strategy for the 
Council’s economic development work over the next 3 years. 
 
Summary 
 
Economic development is vital to the realisation of the 2020 Vision for the borough.  The 
Best Value Review of Barking and Dagenham’s Regeneration Strategy identified at an 
early stage the need for an Economic Development Strategy (EDS) for the Council to 
seize the opportunity created by the redevelopment of the Thames Gateway to diversify 
and renew the Borough economy.  An EDS will help focus and prioritise the Council’s 
activities, provide the framework for project development and resource allocation, and 
strengthen partnerships in this area of our work.  
 
The draft strategy has been developed across the Council and in consultation with key 
external partners.  It examines trends in the London, Thames Gateway and Borough 
economies and identifies modernisation of the manufacturing sector, diversification of 
the economy, skills development and growth in construction as the keys to sustainable 
growth in Barking and Dagenham.  It then identifies the strategic roles that the Council 
will need to play to achieve these objectives.  Once approved the strategy will be worked 
up into an Action Plan with key external partners and will provide the basis for the 
Council’s economic development work in the short and medium term. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is asked to endorse the strategy as the basis for the Council’s economic 
development work over the next 3 years. 
 
Reasons 
 
To assist the Council in achieving its Community Priority Regenerating the Local 
Economy.  
 
Contact Officer:  
Jeremy Grint 
 

 
Head of Regeneration 
Implementation 

 
Tel:0208 227 2443 
Fax: 0208 227 2035 
E-mail: Jeremy.grint@lbbd.gov.uk
 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1 The need for an Economic Development Strategy (EDS) was identified at an early 

stage of the Best Value Review of the Regeneration Strategy.  Best practice from 
Beacon Councils indicates that an EDS provides focus and clarity to a Council’s 

AGENDA ITEM 10

Page 113



economic development work, establishes a solid basis for partnerships and enables 
Councils to allocate resources more effectively against priorities. 

 
1.2 The draft EDS has been developed across the Council, with input from service 

departments and key external partners.  The strategy will be implemented through a 
detailed Action Plan which we will also develop in collaboration with partners.  The 
Council has recently decided to subscribe to the Local Futures Group’s State of the 
Nation research service, which will provide economic and social data at Borough 
and Ward level.  This information will be invaluable in developing targeted actions to 
achieve the objectives of the EDS, through the Action Plan.  

 
1.3 The first section of the EDS sets strategic objectives for Barking and Dagenham’s 

economic development in the context of long-term trends in London’s economy and 
the policy objectives of the government and the Mayor of London.  The second 
examines Barking and Dagenham’s prospects for economic growth in the service 
sectors identified by the London Development Agency as crucial to long-term 
growth in the London economy.  The third section identifies the role that the Council 
should seek to play in promoting economic development in Barking and Dagenham. 

 
2. Issues for consideration by the Executive 
 
2.1 The Executive is asked to agree the EDS as the basis for the Council’s work with 

partners to develop the Borough’s economy over the next three years.  In making its 
decision, the Executive is asked to give particular consideration to the following 
strategic issues: 

 
• The role that manufacturing should play within a more diverse Borough 

economy (paragraphs 5 and 6 of this report); 
 
• The need for the Council to maximise its impact by focusing on the most urgent 

priorities, particularly given its limited resources and the presence of other major 
players in the Thames Gateway region (paragraphs 8, 9 and 12);  

 
• The risk that economic growth may exacerbate social exclusion for some 

communities and groups within the borough (paragraph 10)   
 
3. Diversifying the Borough’s economy  
 
3.1 Manufacturing has been in long-term decline both nationally and in London for thirty 

years.  Most analysts predict that this trend will continue, as low-value 
manufacturing continues to be relocated out of the UK to countries with lower labour 
costs.  In line with the Government’s manufacturing strategy however, the EDS 
concludes that there is a long-term future for a smaller, high-technology 
manufacturing sector in the Borough, given the right policy interventions.  

 
• A significant number of jobs in the Borough are provided by the kind of 

manufacturing enterprises that are predicted to continue to decline.  We should 
seek to manage the decline of these industries, whilst at the same time taking 
action to support the transition to higher-technology manufacturing.   

 
• The development of Dagenham Dock as a Sustainable Industrial Park (SIP) 

around an Environmental Technology Resource Centre will attract higher-value 

Page 114



manufacturing to the borough.  In the long term Dagenham Dock has the 
potential to make Barking and Dagenham the preferred home for London’s 
green industries, tapping into a market that is already large and will continue to 
grow in response to environmental legislation.  The Council should continue to 
give the Dagenham Dock project priority. 

 
• The Borough also contains examples of high-value, design-led manufacturing.  

We can build on these and on the development of the Centre for Engineering 
and Manufacturing Excellence (CEME) to encourage further modernisation of 
the sector.  However, the challenge of building a viable modern manufacturing 
base outside the environmental sector should not be underestimated. 

 
3.2 The overriding aim of the EDS is to build a more diverse Borough economy, within 

which a modern manufacturing sector will be only one source of fulfilling 
employment.  Barking and Dagenham currently has a low proportion of businesses 
in many of those service sectors identified by the London Development Agency as 
the drivers of future growth.  The Council’s plans to develop Barking as the town 
centre of choice for the new communities of London Riverside will create significant 
opportunities for growth in retail, leisure and business services.  We already have 
projects underway to develop viable cultural and creative industries around the town 
centre development. 

 
3.3 The Borough is also well placed to benefit from the growth in construction that the 

regeneration of Thames Gateway will bring.  Construction jobs are often thought of 
as low-wage, low-skilled and short-term.  However, the size of the Thames 
Gateway programme over the next 10-15 years creates a clear opportunity to 
secure longer term benefits for the Borough economy and to secure better paid jobs 
in skilled occupations within construction and associated industries.   

 
4. Partnerships for implementation 
 
4.1 Achieving the objectives of the EDS will demand coordinated action across the 

Council, stronger partnerships with both the private sector and other public sector 
bodies, and greater prioritisation of Council activities.  The reorganisation of 
regeneration functions agreed by the Executive on 16 September has increased our 
capacity for economic development activity.  We intend to establish a new cross-
cutting group to bring together relevant officers in the implementation of the 
Strategy. 

 
4.2 The Council’s available resources for economic development are relatively small in 

comparison with some of the sub-regional and regional organisations involved in 
the Thames Gateway.  Many of the aims of the EDS can only be realised in 
partnership with these organisations and, in some cases, our role will be limited to 
supporting and influencing their activities.  The EDS itself has been discussed with 
our key partners and we intend to involve them fully in the development of an Action 
Plan to implement it.  A more efficient division of labour with our partners should 
enable the Council to concentrate on those activities where it can have the most 
impact.  We will take a fresh look at our participation in regional groupings, cutting 
back our involvement where key interests are not at stake. 

 

Page 115



5. The Council’s strategic role in economic development 
 
5.1 There is a risk that the huge investment that will go into areas south of the A13 and 

into Barking will polarise the Borough between new and existing communities.  
Taking action to mitigate this risk is a major strategic responsibility for the Council, 
since other sub-regional organisations and business support agencies are unlikely 
to focus on it.  The EDS identifies a number of actions to ensure that hard-to-reach 
groups do not miss out on the benefits of economic growth.  Further work will follow 
to ensure that economic regeneration aims are consistent with our Community 
Strategy (now being revised) and with our Neighbourhood Renewal activities.   

 
5.2 The third section of the EDS considers the roles that the Council should play in 

promoting economic development in the Borough.  These are:   
 

• To promote the Borough’s interests with key regional and national partners, 
leveraging government and European funding and promoting the borough as a 
location for inward investment 

 
• To build the enabling environment for economic growth, by lobbying and 

preparing for key transport improvements, promoting the use of Information and 
Communication Technologies, improving industrial estates as locations for 
business and tackling crime against businesses; 

 
• To involve the local business community and Chamber of Commerce more 

effectively in the Council’s policy making through a range of techniques, including 
a new Business Forum; 

 
• To provide direct support to business growth, by offering an integrated referral 

service to businesses and ensuring they get the support services they need, 
using the planning system to ensure the availability of land and working with 
developers to ensure that the right kind of premises are available in the Borough; 

 
• To ensure that hard-to-reach groups do not miss out on the benefits of economic 

growth, by establishing social enterprises, encouraging an intermediate labour 
market to help the long-term unemployed back into work, targeting black and 
minority ethnic businesses for support and continuing to help young 
entrepreneurs; 

 
• To continue action to improve residents’ skills and qualifications to help them into 

work, building links between businesses and schools to support careers, setting 
up a Barking Lifelong Learning Centre and building on the success of Excellence 
in Industry by introducing a similar scheme for Excellence in Health and Care.  
These actions are intended to complement those contained in the Workforce 
Development Strategy agreed by the Executive on 23rd September; 

 
• To exploit the Council’s power as a major purchaser of services worth millions of 

pounds each year, taking action consistent with Best Value legislation to develop 
supply chains in the Borough and ensure training benefits to local people.  The 
Executive requested further detailed reports on the role that the Council can play 
as a major employer, purchaser of services and planning authority when 
agreeing the Workforce Development Strategy. 

 

Page 116



5.3 The above actions are intended to form a renewable framework for the Council’s 
economic development strategy over the lifetime of the major Thames Gateway 
projects and to set out a comprehensive programme of action for the Council to 
pursue.  Clearly, these activities cannot all be delivered simultaneously and phasing 
will be an important issue to consider in the development of the Action Plan.  As 
part of the Regeneration Best Value Review we are considering with our partners 
where the Council should concentrate its energies in the short term.  We believe 
that the following actions are the most urgent, short-term priorities within the 
Strategy’s programme of action:  

 
• Protection of employment sites through the planning system; 
 
• More work with developers to ensure a supply of modern premises for the kind 

of new businesses that we wish to attract into the Borough; 
 
• Improving the appearance of the Borough where this is needed to attract new 

investment, particularly the transport “gateways” into the Borough and some of 
our older industrial estates;  

 
• More radical action to solve the problems caused by “bad neighbour” industries. 
 
• Active investigation of the scope for allocating start-up grants from internal or 

external sources. 
 
6. Financial implications  
 
6.1 Implementation of the strategy will be funded within the Council’s existing 

resources.  This will require a careful phasing of activities over the three-year period 
of the Strategy and a more proactive approach to external funding opportunities.  
The reorganisation of regeneration activities, agreed by the Executive on 16 
September, created a new post to lead on EU funding bids in particular.  

 
6.2 The Executive has also been asked to consider at this meeting a joint report from 

the Directors of Finance and Corporate Strategy on the government’s new scheme 
to allow local authorities direct retention of a proportion of their business rates from 
2005.  The separate report recommends that the Executive considers at the 
appropriate time and as part of the budget making process, using part of any new 
funding received under the new scheme to support further economic development 
and business support work.  This would help create a virtuous circle in which further 
growth produced greater revenues to address social need in the borough. 

 
7. Consultation 
 
7.1 The report and strategy was developed with input from the Council’s service 

departments and from external partners.  A list of organisations and individuals 
consulted is set out in Annex A. 

 
Background papers 
A list of publications consulted is attached at Annex B.  The Minutes of the Executive for 
16 September (Restructuring of Regeneration and 23 September (Workforce 
Development) are also relevant.  

Page 117



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex A: consultation 
 
Internal 
 
Circulation         Comments 
 
All Directors          yes 
Nick Kingham  Regeneration Best Value Review 
Stefanie Goldsmith  Corporate Procurement    yes 
Sally Penessa  Community Strategy    yes 
Ndunge Kivuitu  Equalities and Diversity    yes 
Bill Coomber   Equalities and Diversity    yes 
Ken Jones   Head Housing Strategy    yes 
Lazell Alan   Community Lifelong Learning   yes 
Balcombe Michelle  Head Work Related Learning   yes 
Vallis Clive   Business Liaison Officer    yes 
Monk John   General Manager Commercial Inspection yes 
Davis Julie   Project Manager  

Barking Town Centre 
Munnelly Kevin Project Manager, Dagenham Dock  

and South Dagenham    yes 
Regan Terry   Workforce Development    yes 
Glenday Gordon  Head Strategic Planning     
Baker Joe   Local Agenda 21     yes 
Elsom Jeff   Community Safety Partnership   yes 
Davies Martin  Project Manager, Housing Strategy  yes 
Wright Peter   Interim Head Planning   
Tuddenham Robin  Interim Head Policy and Performance 
Bufton Jane   Head Corporate Communications   yes 
Ralph Cook   Manager Barking Town Centre 
Tony Freeman  Head Regeneration Finance   yes 
Martin Brady   Project Manager Barking Reach   yes 
Chris Sale   Senior Information Officer    yes 
 
External  
 
Circulation         Comments 
 
London Development Agency       yes 
Barking and Dagenham Chamber of Commerce 
Business Link         yes 
Gateway to London         yes 
Made in London 
University of East London        yes 
Gateway to Industry 
London Riverside         yes 
Manufacturing Advisory Service       yes 
London East Learning and Skills Council 

Page 119



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex B: publications consulted 
 
• Ancer Spa, London Riverside Business Survey, March 2002. 
• LBBD, Barking and Dagenham: An Urban Renaissance in East London, 2001. 
• LBBD, Workforce Development Strategy, 2003. 
• Benefits For Business, Production Industries Development Framework, April 2003. 
• DTZ Pieda Consulting, Fostering Business Growth, Beacon Council Research, Round 3 

Theme Report for DTLR. 
• Heart of Thames Gateway, An Urban Strategy for London Riverside, July 2002. 
• HMT and ODPM, Local Authority Business Growth Incentives, Consultation Paper, July 

2003. 
• HMT and ODPM, Productivity in the UK 4 – The Local Dimension, 2003. 
• HMT and the Small Business Service, Enterprise Britain: A Modern Approach to 

Meeting the Enterprise Challenge, November 2002. 
• Learning and Skills Council, LSC Workforce Development Strategy to 2005, 2002. 
• London Development Agency, Economic Development Strategy, 2001 
• LDA, Mayor of London, Transport for London, Spreading Success: How London is 

Changing, January 2003 
• London Skills Forecasting Unit, The Competitiveness and Skills of the London 

Economy: Employers’ Survey 2000, February 2002. 
• Mayor of London, The Draft London Plan - Draft Spatial Development Strategy for 

Greater London, June 2002. 
• MCA Regeneration Ltd, Zones of Influence in the Thames Gateway London Partnership 

Area, report for TGLP, May 2003. 
• ODPM, Research Summary 5: Business-led regeneration of deprived areas, 2003. 
• PACEC (Public and Corporate Economic Consultants), Understanding London’s sub-

regional economies, report for the LDA, February 2003. 
• Roger Tym & Partners, South Dagenham - An Economic Assessment, report for LBBD, 

February 2003. 
• Thames Gateway London Partnership, Going East - Thames Gateway: the future of 

London and the South East, 2002. 
• URS, Barking and Dagenham and Havering Industrial Business Survey, report for LBBD 

and LBH, July 2003. 
• Various Beacon Councils, Economic Development or Business Growth Strategies, for 

Bexley, Eastleigh, Greenwich, Knowsley, Manchester.  
 
 

Page 121



Page 122

This page is intentionally left blank



E
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

in
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

D
R

A
F

T

Page 123



2

1
.

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti

o
n

2
.

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b
je

c
ti

v
e
s

3
.

T
h
e
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 a

n
d
 p

o
li
c
y
 c

o
n
te

x
t

4
.

T
h
e
 l

o
c
a
l 

e
c
o

n
o
m

y
 i

n
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

R
e
s
p
o

n
d
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
:

5
.

D
iv

e
rs

if
y
in

g
 t

h
e
 e

c
o

n
o
m

y
6
.

A
 l

o
n
g
-
te

rm
 f

u
tu

re
 f

o
r 

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g

T
h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
:

7
.

L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

, 
c
o
o
rd

in
a
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti

n
g
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

8
.

B
u
il
d
in

g
 a

n
 e

n
a
b
li
n
g
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

in
w

a
rd

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

9
.

B
e
c
o
m

in
g
 a

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
-
fr

ie
n
d
ly

 c
o
u
n
c
il

1
0

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 r

e
te

n
ti

o
n

1
1
.

P
ro

m
o
ti

n
g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
1
2
.

H
e
lp

in
g
 l

o
c
a
l 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
to

 w
o
rk

1
3
.

U
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's

 p
o
w

e
r 

a
s
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
r 

1
4
.

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ti

n
g
 t

h
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

C
o
n
te

n
ts

Page 124



1
.

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti

o
n

3

1
.1

B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 i
s
 a

b
o
u
t

to
 u

n
d
e
rg

o
 i

ts
 b

ig
g
e
s
t

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n
 s

in
c
e
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

w
a
s
 f

ir
s
t 

in
d
u
s
tr

ia
li
s
e
d
 a

n
d

u
rb

a
n
is

e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 T

h
a
m

e
s
 G

a
te

w
a
y
,

o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 i

t 
fo

rm
s
 t

h
e
 h

e
a
rt

, 
is

 t
h
e

la
rg

e
s
t 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

re
a
 i

n
E
u
ro

p
e
. 

 I
t 

is
 c

ru
c
ia

l 
to

 t
h
e

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t'
s
 p

la
n
s
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it

ie
s
 i

n
 t

h
e

s
o
u
th

e
a
s
t 

a
n
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o

n
M

a
y
o
r'

s
 a

m
b
it

io
n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

p
ro

s
p
e
ri

ty
 i

s
 m

o
re

 e
v
e
n
ly

 s
h
a
re

d
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 e

a
s
t 

a
n
d
 w

e
s
t 

in
L
o

n
d
o

n
. 

1
.2

O
v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

d
e
c
a
d
e
 a

n
d
 a

 h
a
lf

,
E
a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 w

il
l 

b
e
n
e
fi

t 
fr

o
m

1
5
0
,0

0
0
 n

e
w

 h
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

ro
u
n
d

a
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

o
f 

a
 m

il
li
o

n
 n

e
w

 j
o
b
s
.

N
e
w

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 c
o

n
n
e
c
ti

o
n
s
 w

il
l

m
a
k
e
 t

ra
v
e
l 

in
 t

h
e
 r

e
g
io

n
 a

n
d
 t

o
th

e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 e

a
s
ie

r 
th

a
n

e
v
e
r.

  
B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

's
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o

n
 w

il
l 

ri
s
e
 d

ra
m

a
ti

c
a
ll
y

a
n
d
 n

e
w

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 w

il
l

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti

a
ll
y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t

h
e

Page 125



c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
.

1
.3

O
u
r 

2
0
2
0
 V

is
io

n
 i

s
 f

o
r 

a
 v

ib
ra

n
t

lo
c
a
l 

e
c
o

n
o
m

y
, 

w
it

h
 a

 w
id

e
v
a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

lo
c
a
l 

re
ta

il
, 

le
is

u
re

 a
n
d

c
u
lt

u
ra

l 
fa

c
il
it

ie
s
, 

a
n
d
 a

 w
e
ll
-

e
d
u
c
a
te

d
, 

h
ig

h
ly

 s
k
il
le

d
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o

n
 a

b
le

 t
o
 c

o
m

p
e
te

 f
o
r

n
e
w

 j
o
b
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
, 

th
e

T
h
a
m

e
s
 G

a
te

w
a
y
 a

n
d
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 a

s
a
 w

h
o
le

. 
 T

h
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r

e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

is
in

te
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
e

2
0
2
0
 V

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t

a
ll
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 s
h
a
re

 t
h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi

ts
 o

f
g
ro

w
th

, 
re

g
a
rd

le
s
s
 o

f 
g
e
n
d
e
r,

e
th

n
ic

it
y
, 

d
is

a
b
il
it

y
 o

r 
th

e
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 i

n
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
y

li
v
e
. 

 T
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i

s
 c

lo
s
e
ly

li
n
k
e
d
 w

it
h
 o

u
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d

R
e
n
e
w

a
l 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

A
n
 U

rb
a
n

R
e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
. 

  
 

4

W
it

h
in

th
e

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

c
re

a
te

d
b
y

th
is

s
tr

a
te

g
y

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

w
il
l

w
o
rk

w
it

h
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

to
:

·
p
la

n
it

s
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

w
o
rk

;
·

s
e
t

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s

fo
r

a
c
ti

o
n

to
a
c
h
ie

v
e

th
e

o
b
je

c
ti

v
e
s

a
n
d

a
ll
o
c
a
te

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

;
·

d
e
s
ig

n
n
e
w

p
ro

je
c
ts

a
n
d

in
it

ia
ti

v
e
s

a
n
d

m
a
k
e

th
e

c
a
s
e

fo
r

e
x
te

rn
a
l

fu
n
d
in

g
to

h
e
lp

im
p
le

m
e
n
t

th
e
m

;
·

u
s
e

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

in
w

a
y
s

w
h
ic

h
w

il
l

c
o
m

p
le

m
e
n
t

a
n
d

b
u
il
d

o
n

th
e

w
o
rk

o
f

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

;
·

p
ro

v
id

e
a

c
le

a
r

b
a
s
is

fo
r

th
e

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

o
f

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
to

a
c
h
ie

v
e

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
g
ro

w
th

in
B
a
rk

in
g

a
n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

;
·

m
o
n
it

o
r

p
ro

g
re

s
s

a
n
d

e
v
a
lu

a
te

re
s
u
lt

s
,

a
d
ju

s
ti

n
g

a
c
ti

o
n
s

a
c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

.

A
rc

h
it

e
c
t’

s
 d

e
s
ig

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 B

ro
a
d
w

a
y
 T

h
e
a
tr

e
, 

B
a
rk

in
g

Page 126



5

2
.

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

o
b
je

c
ti

v
e
s

2
.1

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 a

 k
e
y
 r

o
le

 t
o
 

p
la

y
 i

n
 p

ro
m

o
ti

n
g
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
g
ro

w
th

 i
n
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

, 
b
u
t 

it
 i

s
 n

o
t 

th
e
 o

n
ly

p
la

y
e
r.

  
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt

e
d
 w

it
h
 a

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
u
b
li
c
 a

n
d
 p

ri
v
a
te

s
e
c
to

r 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 o
n
 t

h
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

a
n
d
 w

il
l 

w
o
rk

 w
it

h
 t

h
e
m

 t
o

im
p
le

m
e
n
t 

it
. 

 W
e
 w

il
l 

u
s
e
 t

h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
's

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

is
 a

 c
le

a
r 

ro
le

 w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il

is
 b

e
s
t 

fi
tt

e
d
 t

o
 p

la
y
, 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

is
 a

n
 i

d
e
n
ti

fi
e
d
 n

e
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s

n
o
t 

b
e
e
n
 f

il
le

d
, 

o
r 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e

c
o
u
n
c
il
 c

a
n
 l

e
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

th
e
r

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 i

m
p
a
c
t.

2
.2

S
e
c
ti

o
n
 3

 o
f 

th
is

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t

e
x
a
m

in
e
s
 t

h
e
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 a

n
d

p
o
li
c
y
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 w

il
l 

g
ro

w
 a

n
d
 S

e
c
ti

o
n
 4

d
e
s
c
ri

b
e
s
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

s
ta

te
 o

f 
o
u
r

lo
c
a
l 

e
c
o

n
o
m

y
. 

 S
e
c
ti

o
n
s
 5

 a
n
d
 6

s
e
t 

o
u
t 

o
u
r 

o
v
e
ra

ll
 a

im
s
 t

o
d
iv

e
rs

if
y
 i

n
to

 n
e
w

 a
re

a
s
 o

f
g
ro

w
th

, 
in

te
rv

e
n
in

g
 w

h
e
re

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 k

ic
k
-
s
ta

rt
 t

h
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

n
e
w

 s
e
c
to

rs
 o

r

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
, 

a
n
d
 s

e
c
u
re

 a
 l

o
n
g

te
rm

 f
u
tu

re
 f

o
r 

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 i

n
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

 T
h
e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

lo
o
k
s
 a

t 
th

e
 r

o
le

 t
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w

il
l 

p
la

y
 i

n
 i

m
p
le

m
e
n
ti

n
g

th
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
.

T
o

a
c
h
ie

v
e

th
e

2
0
2
0

V
is

io
n
's

o
b
je

c
ti

v
e

o
f

a
v
ib

ra
n
t

lo
c
a
l

e
c
o
n
o
m

y
a
n
d

a
w

e
ll
-
ee
d
u
c
a
te

d
,

h
ig

h
ly

s
k
il
le

d
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
,

w
e

w
il
l:

·
p
ro

v
id

e
le

a
d
e
rs

h
ip

a
n
d

c
o
o
rd

in
a
ti

o
n

to
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
c
ti

v
it

y
in

B
a
rk

in
g

a
n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

;
·

h
e
lp

b
u
il
d

th
e

e
n
a
b
li
n
g

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t

fo
r

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

g
ro

w
th

-
ttr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

,
th

e
b
u
il
t

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t

a
n
d

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

a
n
d

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti

o
n

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
(I
C

T
s
);

·
m

a
k
e

B
a
rk

in
g

a
n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

a
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
-
ffr

ie
n
d
ly

c
o
u
n
c
il
,

s
o

th
a
t

o
u
r

p
o
li
c
ie

s
ta

k
e

in
to

a
c
c
o
u
n
t

th
e

n
e
e
d
s

o
f

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
;

·
s
u
p
p
o
rt

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

g
ro

w
th

,
re

te
n
ti

o
n

a
n
d

c
o
m

p
e
ti

ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
,

w
o
rk

in
g

w
it

h
o
u
r

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

to
e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

a
re

a
b
le

to
fi

n
d

th
e

s
it

e
s
,

tr
a
in

in
g

a
n
d

a
d
v
ic

e
th

a
t

th
e
y

n
e
e
d

to
th

ri
v
e

w
it

h
in

o
u
r

b
o
ro

u
g
h
;

·
p
ro

m
o
te

s
o
c
ia

l
in

c
lu

s
io

n
,

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
th

e
g
ro

w
th

o
f

s
o
c
ia

l
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
,

in
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
la

b
o
u
r

m
a
rk

e
ts

a
n
d

lo
c
a
l

e
n
tr

e
p
e
n
e
u
rs

h
ip

,
s
o

th
a
t

a
ll

c
o
m

m
u
n
it

ie
s

a
n
d

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

b
e
n
e
fi

t;
·

h
e
lp

lo
c
a
l

p
e
o
p
le

in
to

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

a
n
d

in
to

m
o
re

re
w

a
rd

in
g
,

b
e
tt

e
r

p
a
id

jo
b
s
,

b
y

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
th

e
ir

a
c
c
e
s
s

to
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s

a
n
d

im
p
ro

v
in

g
th

e
ir

s
k
il
ls

,
m

o
b
il
it

y
a
n
d

e
m

p
lo

y
a
b
il
it

y
;

·
u
s
e

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
's

p
o
w

e
r

a
s

a
m

a
jo

r
lo

c
a
l

e
m

p
lo

y
e
r

a
n
d

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
r

o
f

g
o
o
d
s

a
n
d

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

to
fo

s
te

r
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic

Page 127



6

3
.

T
h
e

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
a
n
d

p
o
li
c
y

c
o
n
te

x
t

3
.1

T
h
e
 f

u
n
d
a
m

e
n
ta

l 
d
ri

v
e
r 

o
f

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 i

n
 L

o
n
d
o

n
o
v
e
r 

th
e
 p

a
s
t 

th
ir

ty
 y

e
a
rs

 h
a
s

b
e
e
n
 t

h
e
 s

h
if

t 
fr

o
m

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 t

o
 a

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 b

a
s
e
d

e
c
o

n
o
m

y
. 

 M
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 s

h
ru

n
k
 b

y
 t

w
o

th
ir

d
s
, 

to
 b

e
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 b

y
 n

e
w

jo
b
s
 i

n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
, 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l,
le

is
u
re

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
s
e

tr
e
n
d
s
 w

il
l 

c
o

n
ti

n
u
e
.1

3
.2

A
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l,
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

p
e
o
p
le

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

th
e
 M

a
y
o
r'

s
D

ra
ft

 L
o

n
d
o

n
 P

la
n
 i

d
e
n
ti

fi
e
s

c
re

a
ti

v
e
 a

n
d
 c

u
lt

u
ra

l 
in

d
u
s
tr

ie
s

a
n
d
 I

n
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n
 a

n
d

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti

o
n
 T

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
(I
C

T
s
) 

a
s
 n

e
w

 d
ri

v
e
rs

 o
f 

g
ro

w
th

.
T
h
e
 M

a
y
o
r 

h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 i

d
e
n
ti

fi
e
d
 a

n
"e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
im

p
e
ra

ti
v
e
",

c
re

a
te

d
 b

y
 i

n
te

rn
a
ti

o
n
a
l

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

E
U

 a
n
d
 U

K
 d

ir
e
c
ti

v
e
s
, 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
a
n
d
 t

a
rg

e
ts

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

il
l 

fo
rc

e
L
o

n
d
o

n
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
u
m

e
 f

e
w

e
r

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
, 

re
c
y
c
le

 m
o
re

 a
n
d

p
ro

m
o
te

 a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e
 e

n
e
rg

y
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

 T
h
is

 w
il
l 

le
a
d
 t

o
 m

a
jo

r
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i

n
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

fo
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d

m
o
v
e
 g

re
e
n
 t

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
 f

ro
m

th
e
 f

ri
n
g
e
 o

f 
L
o

n
d
o

n
's

 e
c
o

n
o
m

y
to

 n
e
a
re

r 
it

s
 c

e
n
tr

e
.2

3
.3

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

in
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n
 a

n
d

re
la

te
d
 i

n
d
u
s
tr

ie
s
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 g

ro
w

in
 t

h
e
 T

h
a
m

e
s
 G

a
te

w
a
y
 a

s
 t

h
e

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it

ie
s
 P

la
n

u
n
fo

ld
s
.3

M
a
jo

r 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

p
ro

je
c
ts

 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 R

iv
e
rs

id
e
 a

n
d

B
a
rk

in
g
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 w

il
l

g
e
n
e
ra

te
 m

u
c
h
 o

f 
th

is
 g

ro
w

th
.

O
th

e
r 

m
a
jo

r 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 i

n
 T

h
a
m

e
s

G
a
te

w
a
y
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

b
id

 i
f 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l)
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 c

re
a
te

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s
 f

o
r 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n
 t

h
e

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n
 s

e
c
to

r.

3
.4

R
e
s
p
o

n
d
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
s
e
 p

a
s
t 

a
n
d

p
re

d
ic

te
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
, 

th
e
 E

c
o

n
o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 (

E
D

S
) 

o
f

th
e
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

A
g
e
n
c
y

(L
D

A
) 

s
e
e
k
s
 t

o
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 a

s
 a

w
o
rl

d
 a

n
d
 E

u
ro

p
e
a
n
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l
c
e
n
tr

e
, 

w
it

h
 g

re
a
te

r 
s
o
c
ia

l
c
o
h
e
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 a

 b
ro

a
d
e
r 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f
e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 a

c
ti

v
it

y
. 

 I
n
 a

d
d
it

io
n
 t

o
c
re

a
ti

v
e
 a

n
d
 c

u
lt

u
ra

l 
in

d
u
s
tr

ie
s
,

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
te

c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
 a

n
d

IC
T
s
, 

th
e
 L

D
A

 w
il
l 

a
ls

o
 p

ri
o
ri

ti
s
e

h
e
lp

 t
o
 t

o
u
ri

s
m

 a
n
d
 l

e
is

u
re

in
d
u
s
tr

ie
s
, 

th
e
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti

o
n
 s

e
c
to

r
(m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
),

 l
if

e
 s

c
ie

n
c
e
s

a
n
d
 p

h
a
rm

a
c
e
u
ti

c
a
ls

, 
a
n
d
 t

h
e

p
u
b
li
c
 s

e
c
to

r.
  

T
h
e
 L

D
A

's
 c

h
o
ic

e
o
f 

th
e
s
e
 s

e
c
to

rs
 i

s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e

n
u
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

jo
b
s
, 

p
a
s
t

1
T
h
e
 D

ra
ft

 L
o

n
d
o

n
 P

la
n
 p

re
d
ic

ts
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 c

o
u
ld

 s
h
e
d
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

4
0
%

 o
f 

jo
b
s
 b

y
 2

0
1
6
, 

w
it

h
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

d
d
in

g
 a

s
 m

a
n
y
 a

s
 4

4
0
,0

0
 n

e
w

 j
o
b
s
 a

n
d
 l

e
is

u
re

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r

p
e
o
p
le

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

h
o
te

ls
, 

re
s
ta

u
ra

n
ts

, 
to

u
ri

s
m

 a
n
d
 r

e
ta

il
) 

1
7
8
,0

0
0
.

2
G

re
e
n
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

is
 g

ro
w

in
g
 r

a
p
id

ly
; 

w
a
s
te

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 a

lo
n
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 2

8
,0

0
0
 j

o
b
s
 i

n
 L

o
n
d
o

n
.

3
T
h
e
 C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n
 I

n
d
u
s
tr

ie
s
 T

ra
in

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 e
s
ti

m
a
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

3
8
0
,0

0
0
 n

e
w

 j
o
b
s
 w

il
l 

b
e
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

u
il
d
 t

h
e
 5

0
0
,0

0
0
 n

e
w

 h
o
m

e
s
 n

a
ti

o
n

w
id

e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it

ie
s
 P

la
n
 a

n
ti

c
ip

a
te

s
.

C
e
n
tr

e
 f

o
r 

E
n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 a

n
d
 M

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 E

x
c
e
ll
e
n
c
e
, 

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

Page 128



s
te

p
-
c
h
a
n
g
e
 i

n
 t

h
e
 l

e
v
e
l 

o
f

e
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 s

k
il
ls

 i
n
 t

h
e

re
g
io

n
's

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
.

3
.7

T
h
is

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t

h
e

c
o

n
te

x
t,

 b
u
t 

n
o
t 

a
 b

lu
e
p
ri

n
t 

fo
r

e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 i

n
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

. 
 O

u
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

a
k
e
s

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

lo
c
a
l 

re
a
li
ti

e
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

p
a
rt

 w
e
 p

la
y
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl

y
 i

n
 t

h
e

w
id

e
r 

T
h
a
m

e
s
 G

a
te

w
a
y
 a

n
d

L
o

n
d
o

n
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ie
s
 -

 b
u
t 

it
 a

ls
o

lo
o
k
s
 a

h
e
a
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

o
le

 w
e
 w

a
n
t

to
 p

la
y
 i

n
 1

0
 o

r 
1
5
 y

e
a
rs

 t
im

e
.

W
e
 d

o
 n

o
t 

h
a
v
e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
s
p
e
c
ts

 f
o
r

to
u
ri

s
m

 t
h
a
t 

G
re

e
n
w

ic
h
 h

a
s
, 

o
r

fo
r 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

th
a
t 

C
a
n
a
ry

 W
h
a
rf

 g
iv

e
s
 T

o
w

e
r

H
a
m

le
ts

. 
 B

u
t 

w
e
 d

o
 h

a
v
e

s
tr

e
n
g
th

 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g

s
e
c
to

r,
 a

 g
ro

w
in

g
 p

re
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f
g
re

e
n
 i

n
d
u
s
tr

ie
s
, 

a
n
 i

m
p
o
rt

a
n
t

p
u
b
li
c
 s

e
c
to

r 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
n
c
e
 t

o
d
e
v
e
lo

p
 n

e
w

 j
o
b
s
 i

n
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n
. 

 W
e
 a

ls
o
 i

n
te

n
d
 t

o
n
u
rt

u
re

 g
ro

w
th

 i
n
 l

e
is

u
re

, 
re

ta
il
,

7

a
n
d
 f

u
tu

re
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

g
ro

w
th

,
n
a
ti

o
n
a
l 

a
n
d
 i

n
te

rn
a
ti

o
n
a
l

c
o
m

p
e
ti

ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

to
h
e
lp

 s
o
c
ia

l 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
.

3
.5

T
h
e
 L

D
A

 r
e
c
o
g
n
is

e
s
 t

h
e

im
p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 a

"h
ig

h
 v

a
lu

e
-
a
d
d
e
d
, 

d
e
s
ig

n
-
le

d
"

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 s

e
c
to

r 
in

 t
h
e

re
g
io

n
. 

 I
t 

h
a
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 E

a
s
t

L
o

n
d
o

n
 a

 "
k
e
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

fo
c
u
s
 f

o
r 

L
o

n
d
o

n
"

a
n
d
 s

e
t 

o
b
je

c
ti

v
e
s
 o

f
m

o
d
e
rn

is
in

g
 i

ts
 i

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
(p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i

ts
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

,
te

le
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti

o
n
s
 a

n
d

h
o
u
s
in

g
) 

a
n
d
 c

re
a
ti

n
g
 n

e
w

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 l

a
n
d
 u

s
e

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s
 f

o
r 

e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
g
ro

w
th

.

3
.6

B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 w
a
s
 a

fo
u
n
d
e
r 

m
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 T

h
a
m

e
s

G
a
te

w
a
y
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

(T
G

L
P
),

 w
h
ic

h
 b

ri
n
g
s
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r

tw
e
lv

e
 l

o
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
 i

n
 t

h
e

re
g
io

n
, 

it
s
 u

n
iv

e
rs

it
ie

s
, 

th
e

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 S

k
il
ls

 C
o
u
n
c
il
 a

n
d

th
e
 L

D
A

. 
 T

h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

's
p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n
 t

h
e

re
g
io

n
 a

re
 d

iv
e
rs

if
ic

a
ti

o
n
 o

f 
th

e
e
c
o

n
o
m

y
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 i

n
to

 h
ig

h
-

v
a
lu

e
 m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 a

n
d

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
in

d
u
s
tr

ie
s
),

 t
h
e

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
k
e
y

b
ro

w
n
fi

e
ld

 s
it

e
s
, 

a
n
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
d

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 a

A
n
ta

li
s
 B

u
il
d
in

g
, 

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 D
o
c
k

c
re

a
ti

v
e
 a

n
d
 c

u
lt

u
ra

l 
in

d
u
s
tr

ie
s

a
ro

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 m

a
jo

r 
re

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
p
ro

je
c
ts

 i
n
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 L

o
n
d
o

n
R
iv

e
rs

id
e
.

Page 129



8

4
.

T
h
e

lo
c
a
l

e
c
o
n
o
m

y
in

B
a
rk

in
g

a
n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

4
.1

L
o

n
g
 s

y
n
o

n
y
m

o
u
s
 w

it
h

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 s

p
e
c
if

ic
a
ll
y

w
it

h
 F

o
rd

 M
o
to

r 
C

o
m

p
a
n
y
, 

th
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 s

u
ff

e
re

d
 a

n
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 l

o
s
s

o
f 

jo
b
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 1

9
9
0
s
. 

 T
h
e
 c

lo
s
u
re

o
f 

F
o
rd

's
 v

e
h
ic

le
 m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

re
o
p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it

h
 a

n
e
w

 d
ie

s
e
l 

e
n
g
in

e
 p

la
n
t,

 w
h
ic

h
re

d
u
c
e
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
t 

th
e
 p

la
n
t

to
 5

,0
0
0
, 

w
a
s
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 h

e
a
v
y

b
lo

w
. 

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g

s
ti

ll
 e

m
p
lo

y
s
 a

 f
a
r 

la
rg

e
r

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 i

n
B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 t
h
a
n
 i

n
L
o

n
d
o

n
 o

r 
th

e
 U

K
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o
le

.4

4
.2

A
s
 h

e
a
v
y
 i

n
d
u
s
tr

y
 s

h
ra

n
k
, 

a
ra

n
g
e
 o

f 
lo

w
e
r 

d
e
n
s
it

y
m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

,
s
to

ra
g
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti

o
n

o
p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 m

o
v
e
d
 i

n
to

 t
h
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
, 

a
tt

ra
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

e
x
c
e
ll
e
n
t 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 l
in

k
s
 i

n
to

L
o

n
d
o

n
 a

n
d
 o

u
t 

in
to

 t
h
e

c
o
u
n
tr

y
. 

 C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
ls

o
 g

re
w

 i
n
 t

h
e

1
9
9
0
s
, 

a
lb

e
it

 f
ro

m
 a

 s
m

a
ll
 b

a
s
e
.

V
e
h
ic

le
 r

e
p
a
ir

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

c
o

n
ti

n
u
e
d
 t

o
 c

lu
s
te

r 
in

 t
h
e

ri
v
e
rs

id
e
 a

re
a
s
. 

 T
h
e
 t

a
b
le

 b
e
lo

w
s
h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 e

c
o

n
o
m

y
.

4
.3

N
o
tw

it
h
s
ta

n
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

re
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f
la

rg
e
, 

n
a
ti

o
n
a
ll
y
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d

e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 l
ik

e
 F

o
rd

 a
n
d
 A

v
e
n
ti

s
P
h
a
rm

a
, 

th
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

jo
b
s
 i

n
B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 i
s
 n

o
w

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 s

m
a
ll
 a

n
d
 m

e
d
iu

m
s
iz

e
d
 e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s
 (

S
M

E
s
),

 w
it

h
 a

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 o

f 
1
7

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 p

e
r 

c
o
m

p
a
n
y
. 

 T
h
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
's

 s
to

c
k
 o

f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i

s
g
ro

w
in

g
, 

a
lt

h
o
u
g
h
 s

ti
ll
 l

o
w

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 o

th
e
r 

L
o

n
d
o

n
b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
.5

W
e
 w

il
l 

g
iv

e
 p

ri
o
ri

ty

S
e
c
to

r
N

o
 V

A
T

re
g
is

te
re

d
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

%
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

N
o
 o

f 
jo

b
s

%
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e

A
ll
 m

a
n
u
fr

a
c
tu

ri
n
g
, 

o
f 

w
h
ic

h
2
9
0

1
0
.9

1
0
,2

9
1

2
1
.4

M
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 o

f 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

 e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

5
,6

3
8

1
1
.7

O
th

e
r 

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g

4
,6

5
3

9
.7

W
h
o
le

s
a
le

/
re

ta
il
 d

is
tr

ib
u
ti

o
n

7
9
5

2
9
.8

9
,0

6
1

1
8
.8

P
u
b
li
c
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

7
,7

2
7

1
6
.1

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

5
6
0

2
1
.0

6
,3

4
4

1
3
.2

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

, 
s
to

ra
g
e
, 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti

o
n
s

2
7
5

1
0
.3

5
,0

4
0

1
0
.5

H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

3
,0

7
5

6
.4

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

4
1
0

1
5
.4

2
,3

5
4

4
.9

O
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

2
,1

0
9

4
.4

H
o
te

ls
 a

n
d
 c

a
te

ri
n
g

1
8
0

6
.7

5
2
,0

5
1

4
.3

T
o
ta

l
2
,6

6
5

4
8
,1

0
9

1
0
0
.0

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n
 f

ro
m

 V
A

T
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti

o
n
s
 a

n
d
 A

n
n
u
a
l 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 I

n
q
u
ir

y
 2

0
0
1

4
M

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 a

c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 f

o
r 

o
n
ly

 6
%

 o
f 

L
o

n
d
o

n
's

 j
o
b
s
 i

n
 2

0
0
1
; 

n
a
ti

o
n
a
ll
y
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 w

a
s
 1

3
%

5
V

A
T
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti

o
n
s
 g

re
w

 b
y
 a

lm
o
s
t 

2
0
%

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

9
9
4
 a

n
d
 2

0
0
1
, 

re
a
c
h
in

g
 2

,6
6
5
 i

n
 2

0
0
1

Page 130



to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

's
 S

M
E
s
 a

n
d
 g

ro
w

in
g

o
u
r 

s
to

c
k
 o

f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 s

ti
ll

fu
rt

h
e
r.

  
S
M

E
s
 s

ti
m

u
la

te
c
o
m

p
e
ti

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti

v
it

y
 i

n
th

e
 e

c
o

n
o
m

y
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o
le

, 
a
re

m
o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 e

m
p
lo

y
 l

o
c
a
l

p
e
o
p
le

 t
h
a
n
 l

a
rg

e
 c

o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
,

b
u
il
d
 l

o
c
a
l 

s
u
p
p
ly

 n
e
tw

o
rk

s
 a

n
d

to
 r

e
in

v
e
s
t 

th
e
ir

 p
ro

fi
ts

 w
it

h
in

th
e
 l

o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
. 

 A
 d

iv
e
rs

e
a
n
d
 t

h
ri

v
in

g
 S

M
E
 s

e
c
to

r 
w

il
l

e
n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 t

o
 w

e
a
th

e
r

e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 d

o
w

n
tu

rn
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n

o
v
e
r-

re
li
a
n
c
e
 o

n
 a

 f
e
w

 s
e
c
to

rs
a
n
d
 l

a
rg

e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

.

4
.4

U
n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 i

s
a
ro

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
,

a
lt

h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 h
o
ts

p
o
ts

 i
n

s
o
m

e
 w

a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 a

m
o

n
g
 s

o
m

e
e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
s
. 

 B
u
t 

th
e
 2

0
0
1

C
e
n
s
u
s
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
a
d
u
lt

s
 i

n
 t

h
e

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 i

s
 l

o
w

e
r 

a
t 

5
6
%

 t
h
a
n

th
e
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 (

6
0
%

) 
a
n
d

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
s
. 

 T
h
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 h

a
s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
s

o
f 

n
o

n
-
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

o
m

e
n
 a

n
d
 o

f
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 s
u
ff

e
ri

n
g
 l

o
n
g
-
te

rm
il
ln

e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 a

n
d
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 a

s
 a

w
h
o
le

, 
b
u
t 

it
 m

a
y
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 t

h
e

c
a
s
e
 t

h
a
t 

lo
c
a
l 

la
b
o
u
r 

is
 n

o
t

b
e
in

g
 f

u
ll
y
 u

s
e
d
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
lo

w
le

v
e
ls

 o
f 

e
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 s

k
il
ls

 i
n

th
e
 l

o
c
a
l 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
. 

4
.5

B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

's
e
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i

s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
fa

s
te

s
t 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 i

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
,

w
in

n
in

g
 n

a
ti

o
n
a
l 

re
c
o
g
n
it

io
n

th
ro

u
g
h
 a

 h
o
s
t 

o
f 

a
w

a
rd

s
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 B

e
a
c
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s
 f

o
r

s
e
c
o

n
d
a
ry

 e
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
. 

 B
u
t 

la
c
k
 o

f
a
s
p
ir

a
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
th

e
 p

a
s
t 

h
a
s
 l

e
ft

 a
 s

ig
n
if

ic
a
n
t

le
g
a
c
y
 o

f 
lo

w
 e

d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
 a

n
d

s
k
il
ls

. 
 O

n
e
 i

n
 t

h
re

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

h
a
v
e
 l

o
w

 l
it

e
ra

c
y
 a

n
d
 n

u
m

e
ra

c
y

s
k
il
ls

, 
le

s
s
 t

h
a
n
 o

n
e
 i

n
 f

o
u
r 

a
re

q
u
a
li
fi

e
d
 t

o
 N

V
Q

+
3
 l

e
v
e
l 

a
n
d

4
0
%

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
 q

u
a
li
fi

c
a
ti

o
n
s
 o

f 
a
n
y

k
in

d
. 

 L
o
c
a
l 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
re

d
is

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

ly
 l

ik
e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
 i

n
 u

n
s
k
il
le

d
 j

o
b
s
, 

w
it

h
o

n
ly

 1
3
%

 o
f 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
's

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o

n
 i

n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
ri

a
l 

o
r

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 

jo
b
s
 (

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
2
5
%

 i
n
 t

h
e
 w

id
e
r 

T
h
a
m

e
s

G
a
te

w
a
y
 a

n
d
 3

3
%

 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 a

s
 a

w
h
o
le

).
  

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt

, 
w

a
g
e
s
 a

re
lo

w
, 

w
it

h
 t

h
e
 m

e
d
ia

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e

e
a
rn

in
g
 2

8
%

 b
e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o

n
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 -

 t
h
e
 l

o
w

e
s
t 

o
f 

a
n
y

L
o

n
d
o

n
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il

h
a
s
 m

a
d
e
 r

a
is

in
g
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

' 
le

v
e
ls

o
f 

e
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 s

k
il
ls

 a
 t

o
p

p
ri

o
ri

ty
.

4
.6

T
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

re
c
e
n
t 

s
tu

d
y
 o

f 
th

e
b
o
ro

u
g
h
's

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 h
a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
th

a
t 

m
o
s
t 

v
a
lu

e
 t

h
e
ir

 e
x
is

ti
n
g

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 d

e
s
ir

e
 t

o
re

ta
in

 t
h
e
m

 i
s
 a

 f
a
c
to

r 
in

 t
h
e
ir

lo
c
a
ti

o
n
a
l 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
. 

 M
a
n
y

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
li
e
d
 i

n
 t

h
e

p
a
s
t 

o
n
 o

n
-
th

e
-
jo

b
 e

x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
ir

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s

g
a
in

 t
h
e
 s

k
il
ls

 t
h
e
y
 n

e
e
d
. 

 B
u
t

th
is

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 i

s
 l

ik
e
ly

 t
o

b
e
c
o
m

e
 i

n
c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 u
n
te

n
a
b
le

a
s
 a

 m
o
d
e
rn

 e
c
o

n
o
m

y
 d

e
m

a
n
d
s

n
e
w

 a
n
d
 t

ra
n
s
fe

ra
b
le

 s
k
il
l 

s
e
ts

a
n
d
 S

e
c
ti

o
n
 1

2
 o

f 
th

is
 s

tr
a
te

g
y

s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

o
u
r 

re
s
p
o

n
s
e
 t

o
 t

h
is

s
it

u
a
ti

o
n
. 

  

9

V
ic

a
ra

g
e
 F

ie
ld

s
 S

h
o
p
p
in

g
 C

e
n
tr

e
, 

B
a
rk

in
g
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e

Page 131



1
0

S
tr

e
n
g
th

s
W

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s

O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s

T
h
re

a
ts

·
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
o
s
it

io
n
 i

n
 T

h
a
m

e
s

G
a
te

w
a
y
 s

u
b
-
re

g
io

n

·
 E

x
c
e
ll
e
n
t 

e
a
s
t-

w
e
s
t 

p
u
b
li
c
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

li
n
k
s
 (

ro
a
d
, 

ra
il
, 

tu
b
e
),

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
to

 D
o
c
k
la

n
d
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 C

it
y

·
 B

a
rk

in
g
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 e

a
s
il
y

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le

·
 M

a
jo

r 
s
it

e
s
 a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

·
 M

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 b

a
s
e
 w

it
h
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

-
in

-
d
e
p
th

 i
n
 k

e
y
 s

e
c
to

rs

·
 M

a
jo

r 
p
ri

v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 (

e
g

F
o
rd

, 
A

v
e
n
ti

s
 P

h
a
rm

a
, 

H
a
p
a
g

L
lo

y
d
, 

D
a
ir

y
 C

re
s
t,

 T
h
a
m

e
s

P
o
w

e
r)

·
 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
 w

it
h

ra
p
id

ly
 i

m
p
ro

v
in

g
 e

d
u
c
a
ti

o
n

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

B
e
a
c
o

n
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 s

ta
tu

s
)

·
 C

u
lt

u
ra

l 
a
tt

ra
c
ti

o
n
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
B
a
rk

in
g
 A

b
b
e
y
, 

E
a
s
tb

u
ry

 M
a
n
o
r

H
o
u
s
e
, 

V
a
le

n
c
e
 H

o
u
s
e
 a

n
d

E
a
s
tb

ro
o
k
e
n
d
 C

o
u
n
tr

y
 P

a
rk

·
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
E
a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 a

n
d

B
a
rk

in
g
 C

o
ll
e
g
e
. 

·
 A

 l
o
w

 w
a
g
e
, 

lo
w

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

e
c
o

n
o
m

y
 w

it
h
 h

ig
h
 d

e
p
ri

v
a
ti

o
n

in
 s

o
m

e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

·
 L

o
w

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

b
a
s
ic

 s
k
il
ls

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
li
te

ra
c
y
 a

n
d
 n

u
m

e
ra

c
y

·
 S

m
a
ll
e
r 

th
a
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
o
f 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 

g
ro

u
p
s
 i

n
 t

h
e

lo
c
a
l 

e
c
o

n
o
m

y

·
 P

o
o
r 

p
u
b
li
c
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

th
e
 n

o
rt

h
 a

n
d
 s

o
u
th

 o
f 

th
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h

·
 P

o
o
r 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

p
e
rc

e
p
ti

o
n
 o

f 
to

w
n

c
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 i

n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 

a
re

a
s

·
 S

h
o
rt

a
g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

rt
-
u
p
 i

n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 

u
n
it

s
a
n
d
 m

o
v
e
-
o

n
 s

it
e
s
 f

o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

·
 L

a
c
k
 o

f 
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 i

n
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

h
o
u
s
in

g
s
to

c
k
 (

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 a

s
p
ir

a
ti

o
n
a
l

h
o
u
s
in

g
)

·
 L

o
w

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

ta
rt

 u
p
s
 a

n
d

s
e
lf

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

·
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 M

a
y
o
r'

s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r

T
h
a
m

e
s
 G

a
te

w
a
y
 a

s
 a

 c
ri

ti
c
a
l

re
g
io

n
 i

n
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 U

K
's

e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

·
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n
 t

o
 t

ra
n
s
fo

rm
 B

a
rk

in
g

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e

·
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

m
a
jo

r 
re

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
it

e
s
 a

t 
B
a
rk

in
g
 R

e
a
c
h
, 

S
o
u
th

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 a
n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 D
o
c
k

·
 N

e
w

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 -

 D
L
R

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
, 

C
ro

s
s
ra

il
, 

E
L
T
, 

C
2
C

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 T

h
a
m

e
s
 G

a
te

w
a
y

B
ri

d
g
e
.

·
 C

re
a
ti

o
n
 o

f 
2
5
0
,0

0
0
 n

e
w

 j
o
b
s
 i

n
T
h
a
m

e
s
 G

a
te

w
a
y
 a

re
a

·
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 C

e
n
tr

e
 f

o
r

M
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 E

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g

E
x
c
e
ll
e
n
c
e
 (

C
E
M

E
) 

a
n
d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s

In
n
o
v
a
ti

o
n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 (

B
IC

)

·
 E

s
ta

b
li
s
h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
n
 U

rb
a
n

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n

·
 A

v
a
il
a
b
il
it

y
 o

f 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 E

U
fu

n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s

·
 R

is
k
 o

f 
a
 n

a
ti

o
n
a
l/

g
lo

b
a
l 
re

c
e
s
s
io

n
c
a
u
s
in

g
 u

n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

c
u
tt

in
g
 i

n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

·
 S

o
m

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it

ie
s
 o

r 
g
ro

u
p
s

b
e
c
o
m

e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

m
a
rg

in
a
li
s
e
d

·
 L

a
c
k
 o

f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 p

re
v
e
n
ts

 o
r 

d
e
la

y
s

n
e
w

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 g

o
in

g
a
h
e
a
d

·
 O

th
e
r 

re
g
io

n
a
l 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 i

n
 E

a
s
t

L
o

n
d
o

n
 a

tt
ra

c
t 

th
e
 c

a
p
it

a
l

c
re

a
te

d
 b

y
 n

e
w

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

·
 L

o
c
a
l 

p
e
o
p
le

 u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 c

a
p
it

a
li
s
e
 o

n
n
e
w

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s

c
re

a
te

d
 b

y
 n

e
w

 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s

·
 A

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
O

ly
m

p
ic

s
 b

id
 d

iv
e
rt

s
p
o
li
ti

c
a
l 

im
p
e
tu

s
 a

n
d
 i

n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

a
w

a
y
 f

ro
m

 L
B
B
D

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 o

th
e
r

s
it

e
s
 i

n
 e

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
.

·
 N

e
w

 r
e
g
io

n
a
l 

b
o
d
ie

s
 a

n
d

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 i

n
it

ia
ti

v
e
s
 f

a
il
 t

o
w

o
rk

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
ly

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r.

B
a
rk

in
g

a
n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

's
E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t:

S
tr

e
n
g
th

s
,

W
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
,

O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s

a
n
d

T
h
re

a
ts

Page 132



1
1

R
e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
to

th
e

c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
:

5
.

D
iv

e
rs

if
y
in

g
th

e
e
c
o
n
o
m

y

5
.1

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
il
l 

c
o

n
ti

n
u
e
 t

o
d
ri

v
e
 g

ro
w

th
 i

n
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o

n
e
c
o

n
o
m

y
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o
le

 a
re

 l
e
s
s

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

a
s
 a

 s
o
u
rc

e
 o

f
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

in
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

. 
 I

f 
n
e
w

 j
o
b
s
 w

e
re

 t
o

re
p
li
c
a
te

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 p

a
tt

e
rn

s
w

it
h
o
u
t 

a
n
y
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
 p

o
li
c
y

in
te

rv
e
n
ti

o
n
s
, 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
's

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 c
o
u
ld

 f
a
c
e
 a

n
 u

n
c
e
rt

a
in

fu
tu

re
 o

f 
lo

w
 g

ro
w

th
 i

n
 l

o
w

 s
k
il
l

a
n
d
 l

o
w

 p
a
id

 j
o
b
s
.6

W
e
 n

e
e
d
 a

c
o
h
e
re

n
t,

 l
o

n
g
-
te

rm
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

o
d
iv

e
rs

if
y
 o

u
r 

lo
c
a
l 

e
c
o

n
o
m

y
, 

if
lo

c
a
l 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
re

 t
o
 b

e
n
e
fi

t 
fu

ll
y

fr
o
m

 e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
.

5
.2

Ju
s
t 

a
s
 t

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
B
e
c
o

n
tr

e
e
 E

s
ta

te
 i

n
 t

h
e
 1

9
2
0
s

b
ro

u
g
h
t 

F
o
rd

 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
,

th
e
 m

a
jo

r 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 n
o
w

p
la

n
n
e
d
 f

o
r 

S
o
u
th

 D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

,
B
a
rk

in
g
 R

e
a
c
h
 a

n
d
 B

a
rk

in
g
 T

o
w

n
C

e
n
tr

e
 p

re
s
e
n
t 

a
 m

a
jo

r
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

y
 t

o
 r

e
v
it

a
li
s
e
 t

h
e
 l

o
c
a
l

e
c
o

n
o
m

y
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 c

a
n
 c

re
a
te

 a
m

a
g
n
e
t 

fo
r 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n
 t

h
e

e
n
te

rt
a
in

m
e
n
t,

 l
e
is

u
re

, 
re

ta
il
, 

IC
T
,

c
re

a
ti

v
e
 a

n
d
 c

u
lt

u
ra

l 
in

d
u
s
tr

ie
s
.7

G
ro

w
th

in
re

ta
il
,

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

a
n
d

“p
e
o
p
le

”
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

5
.3

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 t

o
 i

m
p
le

m
e
n
t 

a
n

a
m

b
it

io
u
s
 p

la
n
 t

o
 t

ra
n
s
fo

rm
B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 i

t 
th

e
 t

o
w

n
c
e
n
tr

e
 o

f 
c
h
o
ic

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

c
o
m

m
u
n
it

ie
s
 o

f 
L
o

n
d
o

n
R
iv

e
rs

id
e
. 

  
L
o

n
d
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

"m
o
v
in

g
 e

a
s
t"

 f
o
r 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f

y
e
a
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 c

re
a
ti

o
n
 o

f 
a
 h

ig
h
-

q
u
a
li
ty

, 
d
e
s
ig

n
 l

e
d
,

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

ll
y
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

u
rb

a
n
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 

in
 B

a
rk

in
g

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 w

il
l 

h
e
lp

 a
tt

ra
c
t 

a
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o

n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e

e
n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
ri

a
l 

s
k
il
ls

 a
n
d

d
is

p
o
s
a
b
le

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 t

h
a
t 

c
a
n
 h

e
lp

k
ic

k
-
s
ta

rt
 g

ro
w

th
 i

n
 k

e
y

s
e
c
to

rs
.8

O
n
e
 o

f 
o
u
r 

m
o
s
t

e
x
c
it

in
g
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 i
s
 t

h
e
 c

re
a
ti

o
n

w
it

h
 t

h
e
 h

e
lp

 o
f 

th
e
 L

D
A

 o
f 

a
c
u
lt

u
ra

l 
in

d
u
s
tr

ie
s
' 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

in
 t

h
e

to
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t

h
e

M
a
lt

h
o
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 B

ro
a
d
w

a
y
 T

h
e
a
tr

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

.

5
.4

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

s
ta

g
e
 o

f 
o
u
r

p
la

n
s
 f

o
r 

B
a
rk

in
g
, 

w
e
 w

il
l

fo
rm

u
la

te
 a

 r
e
ta

il
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

th
e

to
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
, 

id
e
n
ti

fy
in

g
 a

 v
ia

b
le

ro
le

 f
o
r 

B
a
rk

in
g
 i

n
 t

h
e
 f

a
c
e
 o

f
c
o
m

p
e
ti

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 r

e
ta

il
c
e
n
tr

e
s
 i

n
 S

tr
a
tf

o
rd

, 
R
o
m

fo
rd

 a
n
d

B
lu

e
w

a
te

r.
  

W
e
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 d

is
c
u
s
s

w
it

h
 c

o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 t

o
w

n
c
e
n
tr

e
 t

h
e
 f

e
a
s
ib

il
it

y
 o

f 
a

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

D
is

tr
ic

t.
B
a
rk

in
g
 c

a
n
 a

ls
o
 a

tt
ra

c
t 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

ro
m

 c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
c
u
rr

e
n
tl

y
 l

o
c
a
te

d
 n

e
a
re

r 
to

 t
h
e

c
e
n
tr

e
 o

f 
L
o

n
d
o

n
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
b
a
c
k
-
o
ff

ic
e
 f

u
n
c
ti

o
n
s
 f

o
r 

C
a
n
a
ry

W
h
a
rf

. 
 B

a
rk

in
g
's

 l
a
n
d
 v

a
lu

e
s
 a

re
m

o
re

 c
o
m

p
e
ti

ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 i

ts
e
x
c
e
ll
e
n
t 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 l
in

k
s
 i

n
to

 t
h
e

c
e
n
tr

e
 o

f 
L
o

n
d
o

n
 a

n
d
 i

ts
p
e
ri

p
h
e
ry

 w
il
l 

b
e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

2
C

 u
p
g
ra

d
e

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 T

ra
n
s
it

,
li
n
k
in

g
 B

a
rk

in
g
, 

Il
fo

rd
 a

n
d

B
a
rk

in
g
 R

e
a
c
h
.

5
.5

B
a
rk

in
g
 c

a
n
 a

ls
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 r

e
ta

il
a
n
d
 l

e
is

u
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 m

o
re

th
a
n
 t

e
n
 t

h
o
u
s
a
n
d
 h

o
m

e
s
 t

h
a
t

w
il
l 

b
e
 b

u
il
t 

a
t 

B
a
rk

in
g
 R

e
a
c
h
.

T
h
is

 w
il
l 

n
o
t 

b
e
 a

 s
o
u
ll
e
s
s

h
o
u
s
in

g
 e

s
ta

te
, 

b
u
t 

a
 n

e
w

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 w

it
h
 i

ts
o
w

n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
h
e
a
lt

h
 f

a
c
il
it

ie
s
 a

n
d

g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
. 

 A
lt

h
o
u
g
h
 i

t 
is

 n
o
t

6
T
h
is

 i
s
 c

o
n
fi

rm
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

ra
l 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

je
c
ti

o
n
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 D

ra
ft

 L
o

n
d
o

n
 P

la
n
, 

w
h
ic

h
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 

o
n
ly

 a
 s

m
a
ll
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
 i

n
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

1
.8

%
 f

o
r 

B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

.
7

K
P
M

G
's

 w
o
rk

 f
o
r 

T
G

L
P
 p

re
d
ic

te
d
 t

h
a
t 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

w
il
l 

g
ro

w
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

te
n
 y

e
a
rs

 (
a
lb

e
it

 f
ro

m
 a

 l
o
w

 b
a
s
e
) 

in
 I

C
T
s
, 

c
re

a
ti

v
e
 a

n
d
 c

u
lt

u
ra

l 
in

d
u
s
tr

ie
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

8
R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
 b

y
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
 L

D
A

 a
n
d
 O

D
P
M

 c
o

n
fi

rm
s
 t

h
e
 i

m
p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
L
o

n
d
o

n
's

 t
o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 t

o
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 i

n
 t

h
e
 o

u
te

r 
L
o

n
d
o

n
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
s
. 

 D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 l

e
is

u
re

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

in
 E

a
s
t

L
o

n
d
o

n
 p

ic
k
e
d
 u

p
 s

h
a
rp

ly
 i

n
 t

h
e
 s

e
c
o

n
d
 h

a
lf

 o
f 

th
e
 1

9
9
0
s
, 

a
s
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
d
 i

ts
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 b

e
c
a
m

e
 m

o
re

 a
tt

ra
c
ti

v
e
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ti

a
l 

a
re

a
 f

o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

w
o
rk

in
g
 i

n
 t

h
e
 c

a
p
it

a
l.

B
a
rk

in
g
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 P
la

n

Page 133



in
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

ig
n
if

ic
a
n
t

a
m

o
u
n
ts

 o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 s

it
e
,

B
a
rk

in
g
 R

e
a
c
h
 w

il
l 

p
ro

v
id

e
 n

e
w

jo
b
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
li
c
 s

e
c
to

r 
a
n
d

s
m

a
ll
-
s
c
a
le

 r
e
ta

il
 o

u
tl

e
ts

. 
 W

e
 w

il
l

a
ls

o
 i

n
v
e
s
ti

g
a
te

 t
h
e
 p

o
s
s
ib

il
it

y
 o

f
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

 s
m

a
ll
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

li
v
e
-

w
o
rk

 u
n
it

s
 i

n
 B

a
rk

in
g
 R

e
a
c
h
 a

n
d

s
ta

rt
-
u
p
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 u

n
it

s
 i

n
 s

o
u
th

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

.

G
ro

w
th

in
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

5
.6

T
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 i

s
 a

ls
o
 w

e
ll
 p

la
c
e
d

to
 b

e
n
e
fi

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 g

ro
w

th
 i

n
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

re
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

T
h
a
m

e
s

G
a
te

w
a
y
 w

il
l 

b
ri

n
g
. 

 C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

jo
b
s
 a

re
 o

ft
e
n
 t

h
o
u
g
h
t 

o
f 

a
s
 l

o
w

-
w

a
g
e
, 

lo
w

-
s
k
il
le

d
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
rt

-
te

rm
. 

 B
u
t 

th
e
 s

iz
e
 o

f 
th

e
 T

h
a
m

e
s

G
a
te

w
a
y
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e

n
e
x
t 

1
0
-
1
5
 y

e
a
rs

 c
re

a
te

s
 a

 m
a
jo

r
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

y
 f

o
r 

B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 t
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 m
u
c
h

lo
n
g
e
r 

te
rm

 b
e
n
e
fi

ts
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt

e
r

p
a
id

 j
o
b
s
 i

n
 s

k
il
le

d
 o

c
c
u
p
a
ti

o
n
s
. 

 

5
.7

T
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 h

a
s
 a

 l
a
rg

e
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

g
e
n
e
ra

ll
y
 s

m
a
ll

b
u
il
d
in

g
 c

o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 a

n
d
 a

n
 L

D
A

p
il
o
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

in
n
o
v
a
ti

o
n

fo
u
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 a

re
 w

e
ll
 p

la
c
e
d

to
 m

e
e
t 

d
e
m

a
n
d
 f

ro
m

 a
 T

h
a
m

e
s

G
a
te

w
a
y
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n
 b

o
o
m

.9

W
e
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
E
a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 t

o

p
ro

d
u
c
e
 n

e
w

 b
u
il
d
in

g
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

fr
o
m

 r
e
c
y
c
le

d
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 a
n
d
 a

re
in

v
e
s
ti

g
a
ti

n
g
 w

a
y
s
 t

o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e

o
ff

-
s
it

e
 p

re
-
fa

b
ri

c
a
ti

o
n
 o

f
b
u
il
d
in

g
 u

n
it

s
. 

 A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 s

e
t

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

s
e
c
ti

o
n
 o

f 
th

is
s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

w
e
 w

il
l 

s
e
e
k
 t

o
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

re
rs

s
p
e
c
ia

li
s
in

g
 i

n
 o

ff
-
s
it

e
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n
 t

o
 l

o
c
a
te

 i
n
 t

h
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
. 

  

5
.8

O
u
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

m
a
k
e
s
 t

ra
in

in
g
 i

n
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n
 s

k
il
ls

 a
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

p
ri

o
ri

ty
. 

 T
h
is

 w
il
l 

m
e
a
n
 m

o
re

th
a
n
 s

im
p
ly

 t
ra

in
in

g
 l

a
b
o
u
re

rs
.

W
e
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
a
y
s
 t

o
e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

o
u
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d

o
th

e
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e

T
h
a
m

e
s
 G

a
te

w
a
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e
 f

u
ll

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
k
il
le

d
 t

ra
d
e
s
, 

s
p
e
c
ia

li
s
t

a
n
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 

s
k
il
ls

 (
e
g

a
rc

h
it

e
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 l

a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e

d
e
s
ig

n
) 

th
a
t 

w
il
l 

b
e
 i

n
 d

e
m

a
n
d
.

G
ro

w
th

in
th

e
p
u
b
li
c

s
e
c
to

r

5
.9

Jo
b
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
li
c
 s

e
c
to

r 
-

p
la

n
n
e
rs

, 
te

a
c
h
e
rs

, 
n
u
rs

e
s
 e

tc
 -

w
il
l 

g
ro

w
 a

s
 t

h
e
 r

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f
th

e
 T

h
a
m

e
s
 G

a
te

w
a
y
 u

n
fo

ld
s
. 

 T
o

p
re

p
a
re

 f
o
r 

th
is

 w
e
 w

il
l 

e
s
ta

b
li
s
h

a
 P

u
b
li
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 C

o
ll
e
g
e
 a

s
 p

a
rt

o
f 

th
e
 T

o
w

n
 S

q
u
a
re

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 i

n
B
a
rk

in
g
, 

a
 m

a
jo

r 
m

ix
e
d
-
u
s
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

  
T
h
e
 C

o
ll
e
g
e
 w

il
l

1
2

T
o

h
e
lp

b
u
il
d

g
ro

w
th

in
re

ta
il
,

p
e
o
p
le

a
n
d

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
,

w
e

w
il
l:

·
d
e
v
e
lo

p
a

v
ia

b
le

re
ta

il
s
tr

a
te

g
y

fo
r

B
a
rk

in
g

T
o
w

n
C

e
n
tr

e
;

·
d
is

c
u
s
s

w
it

h
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

th
e

fe
a
s
ib

il
it

y
o
f

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

D
is

tr
ic

t
in

B
a
rk

in
g
;

·
c
re

a
te

a
c
u
lt

u
ra

l
in

d
u
s
tr

ie
s

q
u
a
rt

e
r

in
B
a
rk

in
g

T
o
w

n
C

e
n
tr

e
;

·
c
o
n
s
id

e
r

h
o
w

to
p
ro

v
id

e
h
ig

h
q
u
a
li
ty

li
v
e
-
ww

o
rk

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti

o
n

a
t

B
a
rk

in
g

R
e
a
c
h

a
n
d

s
ta

rt
-
uu
p

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

u
n
it

s
a
t

S
o
u
th

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

;

T
o

h
e
lp

b
u
il
d

g
ro

w
th

in
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n
,

w
e

w
il
l

·
e
x
p
lo

re
n
e
w

w
a
y
s

o
f

m
e
e
ti

n
g

d
e
m

a
n
d

fo
r

b
u
il
d
in

g
w

o
rk

;
·

m
a
k
e

tr
a
in

in
g

in
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

s
k
il
ls

a
p
ri

o
ri

ty
fo

r
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d

u
s
e

S
e
c
ti

o
n

1
0
6

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

to
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e

th
e

tr
a
in

in
g

a
n
d

u
s
e

o
f

lo
c
a
l

la
b
o
u
r;

·
c
o
n
s
id

e
r

w
it

h
o
th

e
r

e
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

h
o
w

to
p
ro

v
id

e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n
-
rre

la
te

d
s
k
il
ls

,
s
u
c
h

a
s

fo
r

a
rc

h
it

e
c
ts

a
n
d

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e

d
e
s
ig

n
e
rs

;
·

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

re
rs

o
f

o
ff

-
ss
it

e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

m
a
te

ri
a
ls

to
lo

c
a
te

in
th

e
b
o
ro

u
g
h
;

T
o

s
u
p
p
o
rt

c
a
re

e
rs

in
th

e
p
u
b
li
c

s
e
c
to

r
w

e
w

il
l

e
s
ta

b
li
s
h

a
P
u
b
li
c

S
e
c
to

r
C

o
ll
e
g
e

in
B
a
rk

in
g

T
o
w

n
C

e
n
tr

e
.

T
o

h
e
lp

b
u
il
d

g
ro

w
th

in
e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
in

d
u
s
tr

ie
s
,

w
e

w
il
l

e
s
ta

b
li
s
h

a
h
o
m

e
fo

r
g
re

e
n

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

a
t

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

D
o
c
k
.

9
S

tu
d
y
 b

y
 A

n
g
le

 T
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
.

Page 134



1
3

b
u
il
d
 o

n
 i

n
it

ia
ti

v
e
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
h
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

q
u
a
li
fi

c
a
ti

o
n
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e

G
a
te

w
a
y
 t

o
 H

e
a
lt

h
 i

n
it

ia
ti

v
e
 a

n
d

th
e
 C

a
re

 H
o
m

e
s
 C

o
ll
a
b
o
ra

ti
v
e
.

W
e
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 n

e
w

 s
o
c
ia

l
h
o
u
s
in

g
 i

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 f

o
r 

k
e
y

w
o
rk

e
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 r

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f

B
a
rk

in
g
 R

e
a
c
h
 w

il
l 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

la
rg

e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

b
o
th

 r
e
n
t 

a
n
d

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
.

G
ro

w
th

in
e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
in

d
u
s
tr

ie
s

5
.1

0
T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's

 p
la

n
s
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 D
o
c
k
 i

n
to

 L
o

n
d
o

n
's

h
o
m

e
 f

o
r 

g
re

e
n
 i

n
d
u
s
tr

ie
s
 a

re
d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

s
e
c
ti

o
n
 o

f
th

is
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t.

B
a
rk

in
g
 M

a
rk

e
t.

  
S
e
t 

u
p
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 o

n
ly

 r
e
c
e
n
tl

y
, 

it
 i

s
 n

o
w

 a
 t

h
ri

v
in

g
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e

Page 135



1
4

6
.

A
lo

n
g
-
tte

rm
fu

tu
re

fo
r

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g

in
th

e
b
o
ro

u
g
h

6
.1

M
o
s
t 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 p
re

d
ic

ts
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

lo
n
g
 t

e
rm

 d
e
c
li
n
e
 i

n
m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

w
il
l

c
o

n
ti

n
u
e
, 

a
s
 l

o
w

e
r-

v
a
lu

e
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 c

o
n
ti

n
u
e
 t

o
 r

e
lo

c
a
te

o
u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 U

K
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 a

d
v
a
n
ta

g
e

o
f 

lo
w

e
r 

w
a
g
e
s
. 

 W
e
 d

o
 n

o
t

p
ro

p
o
s
e
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
e
te

 f
o
r 

lo
w

s
k
il
le

d
, 

lo
w

 w
a
g
e
 j

o
b
s
. 

 B
u
t 

u
s
in

g
th

e
 s

k
il
ls

 a
n
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 o

f 
o
u
r

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 b

a
s
e
 w

e
b
e
li
e
v
e
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
 c

a
n
 c

a
rv

e
 o

u
t 

a
n

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

n
ic

h
e
 i

n
 h

ig
h
 v

a
lu

e
p
ro

d
u
c
ti

o
n
 i

n
d
u
s
tr

ie
s
, 

in
 l

in
e

w
it

h
 t

h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t'
s

M
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
.

A
lt

h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
is

 m
a
y
 n

o
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
th

e
 l

e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e

p
a
s
t,

 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 j
o
b
s
 w

il
l 

b
e
 b

e
tt

e
r

s
k
il
le

d
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt

e
r 

p
a
id

. 
 T

h
e

c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
 i

s
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d

im
p
le

m
e
n
t 

p
o
li
c
ie

s
 t

h
a
t 

c
a
n

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 o
u
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 b

a
s
e
 w

h
il
e
 i

t
c
o

n
ti

n
u
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 v

ia
b
le

, 
b
u
t 

to
m

a
n
a
g
e
 a

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
 t

ra
n
s
it

io
n

in
to

 n
e
w

 f
o
rm

s
 o

f 
h
ig

h
e
r-

v
a
lu

e
m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
.

6
.2

T
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 c

o
n
ti

n
u
e
s
 t

o
 e

n
jo

y
a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
k
e
 i

t 
a

c
o
m

p
e
ti

ti
v
e
 l

o
c
a
ti

o
n
 f

o
r

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
.1

0
It

 i
s

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

a
ll
y
 p

la
c
e
d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 r

e
g
io

n
w

it
h
 e

x
c
e
ll
e
n
t 

ro
a
d
 l

in
k
s
 w

e
s
t 

to
th

e
 C

it
y
 a

n
d
 e

a
s
t 

to
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o

n
D

o
c
k
s
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 w

il
l 

b
e
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d

s
ti

ll
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

b
y
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o

th
e
 A

1
3
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d

T
h
a
m

e
s
 G

a
te

w
a
y
 B

ri
d
g
e
. 

 S
it

e
s
 i

n
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
e
ti

ti
v
e
ly

p
ri

c
e
d
 t

o
 a

tt
ra

c
t 

h
ig

h
e
r-

v
a
lu

e
in

d
u
s
tr

y
 d

is
p
la

c
e
d
 f

ro
m

 l
o
c
a
ti

o
n
s

c
lo

s
e
r 

to
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
th

e
 L

o
w

e
r 

L
e
a
 o

r 
R
o
y
a
l 

D
o
c
k
s
.

6
.3

W
e
 c

a
n
 a

ls
o
 b

u
il
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 l

o
n
g
-

s
ta

n
d
in

g
 p

re
s
e
n
c
e
 i

n
 t

h
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
n
a
ti

o
n
a
ll
y
 i

m
p
o
rt

a
n
t

c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 l

ik
e
 F

o
rd

, 
A

v
e
n
ti

s
P
h
a
rm

a
, 

H
i-

G
ra

d
e
, 

D
a
ir

y
 C

re
s
t

a
n
d
 W

e
lb

e
c
k
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 b
u
il
d
 l

o
c
a
l

s
u
p
p
ly

 c
h
a
in

s
 a

n
d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

s
.

F
o
rd

's
 f

u
tu

re
 i

n
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 n
o
w

lo
o
k
s
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 s
e
c
u
re

, 
w

it
h
 a

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 b
a
s
e
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 a

m
b
it

io
u
s
 p

la
n
s
 f

o
r 

n
e
w

T
o

h
e
lp

b
u
il
d

a
v
ia

b
le

h
ig

h
-
tte

c
h
n
o
lo

g
y

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g

s
e
c
to

r,
w

e
w

il
l:

·
p
ro

m
o
te

th
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
's

lo
c
a
ti

o
n
a
l

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e

fo
r

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
;

·
b
u
il
d

o
n

th
e

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

o
f

h
ig

h
-
pp
ro

fi
le

c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
li
k
e

F
o
rd

a
n
d

A
v
e
n
ti

s
P
h
a
rm

a
;

·
h
e
lp

s
m

a
ll
e
r

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g

c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
s
h
o
w

c
a
s
e

in
n
o
v
a
ti

v
e

p
ro

d
u
c
ts

a
n
d

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
;

·
h
e
lp

b
u
il
d

s
y
n
e
rg

ie
s

fo
r

in
n
o
v
a
ti

o
n

a
n
d

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

s
u
p
p
o
rt

b
e
tw

e
e
n

th
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
's

n
e
w

h
ig

h
-

te
c
h

c
e
n
tr

e
s

(C
E
M

E
,

E
T
R
C

L
a
n
d

B
IC

);
·

p
re

s
e
rv

e
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

s
it

e
s

fo
r

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g

th
ro

u
g
h

th
e

n
e
w

L
o
c
a
l

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

;
·

u
s
e

p
la

n
n
in

g
g
u
id

a
n
c
e

to
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

in
k
e
y

s
it

e
s

s
u
c
h

a
s

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

D
o
c
k
;

·
w

o
rk

w
it

h
G

a
te

w
a
y

to
In

d
u
s
tr

y
to

im
p
ro

v
e

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g

c
o
m

p
e
ti

ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
;

·
p
ro

v
id

e
s
u
p
p
o
rt

to
th

e
T
h
a
m

e
s

G
a
te

w
a
y

M
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g

G
ro

u
p

a
n
d

it
s

"s
e
c
to

r
c
lu

b
s
"

in
lo

b
b
y
in

g
fo

r
p
o
li
c
y

s
u
p
p
o
rt

to
m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
;

·
c
o
n
ti

n
u
e

to
p
ro

v
id

e
s
u
p
p
o
rt

to
th

e
L
S
C

-
ffu

n
d
e
d

E
x
e
c
u
ti

v
e

E
x
c
e
ll
e
n
c
e

in
In

d
u
s
tr

y
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

1
0
T

h
e
 L

D
A

re
p
o
rt

 o
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
’s

 s
u
b
-r

e
g
io

n
a
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ie
s
 g

iv
e
s
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

“l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 q

u
o
ti
e
n
t”

 f
o
r 

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
.

Page 136



in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t.

  
B
e
n
e
a
th

 t
h
is

 l
a
y
e
r 

o
f

la
rg

e
 c

o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
, 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

w
e
a
lt

h
 o

f 
s
m

a
ll
e
r,

 l
e
s
s
 w

e
ll
-

k
n
o
w

n
 e

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 c

o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
th

a
t 

c
a
n
 c

o
m

p
e
te

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
ly

 f
o
r

p
ro

to
ty

p
e
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
rt

 r
u
n
 w

o
rk

.
W

e
 w

il
l 

e
x
p
lo

re
 w

a
y
s
 o

f 
a
s
s
is

ti
n
g

th
e
m

 t
o
 s

h
o
w

c
a
s
e
 t

h
e
ir

 s
k
il
ls

, 
fo

r
e
x
a
m

p
le

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 t

o
B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 e

v
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 r

o
ll
in

g
e
x
h
ib

it
io

n
s
.

6
.4

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 f

o
r

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 

in
n
o
v
a
ti

o
n
 a

n
d

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 h
a
v
e
 g

ro
w

n
 u

p
re

c
e
n
tl

y
 o

r 
a
re

 p
la

n
n
e
d
. 

 T
h
e

C
e
n
tr

e
 f

o
r 

E
n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 a

n
d

M
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 E

x
c
e
ll
e
n
c
e
 (

C
E
M

E
)

w
il
l 

p
ro

v
id

e
 t

e
s
t 

b
e
d
 f

a
c
il
it

ie
s
 f

o
r

n
e
w

 m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 a

lo
n
g
s
id

e
e
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 i

n
m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 e

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g

s
k
il
ls

, 
fr

o
m

 N
V

Q
 t

o
 P

h
D

 l
e
v
e
l.

T
h
e
 a

d
jo

in
in

g
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s

In
n
o
v
a
ti

o
n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 w

il
l 

p
ro

v
id

e
o
th

e
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

In
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

s
e
c
ti

o
n
 w

e
 l

o
o
k
 a

t 
th

e
ro

le
 o

f 
th

e
 E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
T
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 C

e
n
tr

e
(E

T
R
C

L
) 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 f

o
r 

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

D
o
c
k
. 

 T
o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it

h
 B

a
rk

in
g

C
o
ll
e
g
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
E
a
s
t

L
o

n
d
o

n
, 

th
e
s
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 w
il
l

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 f
ir

m
 b

a
s
is

 f
o
r 

te
c
h
n
ic

a
l

a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 i

n
n
o
v
a
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 h

e
lp

a
tt

ra
c
t 

h
ig

h
 v

a
lu

e
 m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g

a
n
d
 e

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 c

o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 t

o
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

6
.5

W
it

h
 o

u
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e
 B

e
n
e
fi

ts
fo

r 
B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 f

o
ru

m
, 

w
e
 h

a
v
e

h
e
lp

e
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 P
ro

d
u
c
ti

o
n

In
d
u
s
tr

ie
s
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 i

n
th

e
 T

h
a
m

e
s
 G

a
te

w
a
y
. 

 I
t

e
n
v
is

a
g
e
s
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
a
c
ti

v
it

ie
s
 t

o
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 i

n
n
o
v
a
ti

o
n
, 

p
ro

m
o
te

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 t
o

s
e
c
u
re

 t
h
e
 a

v
a
il
a
b
il
it

y
 o

f
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 l
a
n
d
 a

n
d

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti

o
n
 f

o
r

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
in

c
re

a
s
e
 i

n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t.

  
T
h
e

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

il
l 

b
e
 d

e
li
v
e
re

d
th

ro
u
g
h
 p

o
li
c
y
 i

n
te

rv
e
n
ti

o
n
s
,

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 b

y
lo

b
b
y
in

g
 n

a
ti

o
n
a
l 

a
n
d
 r

e
g
io

n
a
l

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

fo
r 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 a

c
ti

o
n
.

6
.6

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 a

n
 i

m
p
o
rt

a
n
t

p
a
rt

 t
o
 p

la
y
 a

s
 a

 p
la

n
n
in

g
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
 i

n
 d

e
li
v
e
ri

n
g
 t

h
is

s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 I
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 p

ro
te

c
t

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
, 

w
e
 w

il
l 

s
e
e
k
 t

o
c
h
a
n
g
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

p
a
tt

e
rn

s
 o

f 
u
s
e
 i

n
th

e
 R

iv
e
rs

id
e
 i

n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 

e
s
ta

te
s
.

C
h
e
a
p
 l

a
n
d
 a

n
d
 l

a
b
o
u
r 

a
n
d
 g

o
o
d

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 l
in

k
s
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
d
e
 t

h
e
s
e

a
re

a
s
 a

tt
ra

c
ti

v
e
 t

o
 l

o
g
is

ti
c
s

o
p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
, 

b
u
t 

w
e
 d

o
 n

o
t 

w
a
n
t

th
e
s
e
 u

s
e
s
 t

o
 d

o
m

in
a
te

 B
a
rk

in
g

a
n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

's
 r

iv
e
rs

id
e
 t

o
 t

h
e

1
5

1
1
E

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 w

o
rt

h
 1

0
0
 b

ill
io

n
 E

u
ro

s
.

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 D
o
c
k
  

a
s
 i

t 
is

 n
o
w

Page 137



d
e
tr

im
e
n
t 

o
f 

o
th

e
r 

in
d
u
s
tr

ie
s
.

W
e
 w

il
l 

th
e
re

fo
re

 u
s
e
 t

h
e

p
la

n
n
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
 t

o
 d

is
c
o
u
ra

g
e

lo
w

-
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
. 

A
h
o
m

e
fo

r
g
re

e
n

in
d
u
s
tr

ie
s

in
D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

D
o
c
k

6
.7

T
h
e
 r

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

D
o
c
k
, 

n
o
w

 t
a
k
in

g
 s

h
a
p
e
, 

s
h
o
w

s
h
o
w

 t
h
e
s
e
 p

o
li
c
ie

s
 c

a
n
 b

e
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 p
ra

c
ti

c
e
. 

 T
h
e
 s

it
e

h
o
u
s
e
s
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
o
p
e
n
 s

to
ra

g
e
,

w
a
re

h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

is
tr

ib
u
ti

o
n

u
s
e
s
, 

w
it

h
 s

c
ra

p
 m

e
ta

ls
,

a
g
g
re

g
a
te

s
, 

b
u
lk

 l
iq

u
id

s
 a

n
d

w
a
s
te

 m
a
te

ri
a
ls

 s
to

re
d
 o

p
e
n
ly

.
B
o
th

 t
h
e
 i

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
o

n
d
it

io
n
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

s
it

e
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
te

ri
o
ra

te
d

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti

a
ll
y
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
rs

.

6
.8

B
u
t 

th
e
 s

it
e
 r

e
ta

in
s
 i

m
p
o
rt

a
n
t

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
s
. 

 I
t 

h
a
s
 a

 r
iv

e
r

fr
o

n
ta

g
e
 w

it
h
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
w

h
a
rv

e
s
; 

it
 i

s
 s

u
p
e
rb

ly
 l

o
c
a
te

d
fo

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 a

rt
e
ri

a
l 

ro
a
d
s
 (

A
1
3

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 A

4
0
6
) 

a
n
d
 i

s
 o

n
ly

 t
e
n

m
in

u
te

s
 d

ri
v
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 M

2
5
 a

n
d

th
e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 n

a
ti

o
n
a
l 

m
o
to

rw
a
y

n
e
tw

o
rk

. 
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 p
la

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

D
L
R
 t

o
 b

e
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 D
o
c
k
 b

y
 2

0
1
2
 a

n
d
 f

o
r

th
e
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 T

ra
n
s
it

 t
o

p
ro

v
id

e
 1

5
 b

u
s
e
s
 e

a
c
h
 h

o
u
r 

to
B
a
rk

in
g
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

y
 2

0
0
6
.

6
.9

O
u
r 

v
is

io
n
 i

s
 t

o
 b

u
il
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
s
e

n
a
tu

ra
l 

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
n
e
d

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 i

n
to

 a
fl

a
g
s
h
ip

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

in
d
u
s
tr

ie
s
 r

e
s
p
o

n
d
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

"e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
im

p
e
ra

ti
v
e
" 

a
n
d

to
 c

a
p
tu

re
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 h

u
g
e

E
u
ro

p
e
a
n
 m

a
rk

e
t 

fo
r 

g
re

e
n

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
.1

1
A

t 
th

e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 o

f 
th

e
s
it

e
 w

il
l 

b
e
 a

n
 E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
T
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 C

e
n
tr

e
 f

o
r

L
o

n
d
o

n
 (

E
T
R
C

L
),

 w
h
ic

h
 w

il
l

p
ro

v
id

e
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti

o
n
 u

n
it

s
 a

n
d

in
c
u
b
a
to

r 
s
p
a
c
e
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
s
h
a
re

d
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 a

n
d
 e

x
h
ib

it
io

n
fa

c
il
it

ie
s
. 

 A
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

In
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 

P
a
rk

 (
S
IP

) 
a
ro

u
n
d
 t

h
e

E
T
R
C

L
 w

il
l 

p
ro

v
id

e
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 f

o
r

g
re

e
n
 i

n
d
u
s
tr

ie
s
 a

n
d
 a

 f
u
tu

re
h
o
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
E
a
s
t

L
o

n
d
o

n
's

 M
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

re
d

A
g
g
re

g
a
te

s
 R

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 C

e
n
tr

e
.

6
.1

0
T
h
e
 E

T
R
C

L
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

n
e
w

b
u
il
d
in

g
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 S

IP
 w

il
l 

b
e

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

s
s
is

te
d
 t

o
im

p
ro

v
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir

 c
a
p
a
c
it

y
. 

 T
h
e

L
D

A
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 t

o
im

p
ro

v
e
 r

o
a
d
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

it
e
.

"G
re

e
n
 c

o
ll
a
r"

 z
o

n
e
s
 w

il
l 

c
o

n
ta

in
th

e
 S

IP
, 

w
it

h
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 a

g
g
re

g
a
te

s
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
y
c
li
n
g

a
c
ti

v
it

ie
s
 a

ls
o
 z

o
n
e
d
. 

 I
n
te

ri
m

p
la

n
n
in

g
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 l

im
it

s
 t

h
e

le
v
e
l 

o
f 

lo
g
is

ti
c
s
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s

w
it

h
in

 t
h
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 s
it

e
. 

 T
h
e

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
th

e
 M

a
y
o
r 

o
f 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 a

n
d
 w

e
e
x
p
e
c
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
 i

n
c
o
m

in
g
 U

rb
a
n

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n
 w

il
l

c
o

n
ti

n
u
e
 t

h
e
 p

o
li
c
y
. 

  
  

 

1
6

T
o

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

D
o
c
k

in
to

L
o
n
d
o
n
's

h
o
m

e
fo

r
g
re

e
n

in
d
u
s
tr

ie
s
,

w
e

w
il
l:

·
m

a
rk

e
t

th
e

s
it

e
to

g
re

e
n

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
;

·
d
e
v
e
lo

p
a
n

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
T
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
C

e
n
tr

e
a
t

th
e

h
e
a
rt

o
f

th
e

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

In
d
u
s
tr

ia
l

P
a
rk

;
·

p
ro

m
o
te

g
re

e
n

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

c
h
a
in

s
;

·
u
s
e

th
e

p
la

n
n
in

g
s
y
s
te

m
to

li
m

it
lo

g
is

ti
c
s

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s

o
n

th
e

s
it

e
;

·
w

o
rk

w
it

h
th

e
L
D

A
to

im
p
ro

v
e

th
e

s
it

e
's

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
a
n
d

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t;

·
w

o
rk

w
it

h
in

B
e
n
e
fi

ts
fo

r
B
u
s
in

e
s
s

to
e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t

n
e
w

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

re
c
e
iv

e
a

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
b
u
s
in

e
s
s

s
u
p
p
o
rt

s
e
rv

ic
e

o
n

th
e

s
it

e
.

O
u
r 

v
is

io
n
 i

s
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 D
o
c
k
 i

n
to

 a
 h

o
m

e
fo

r 
L
o

n
d
o

n
’s

 G
re

e
n
 I

n
d
u
s
tr

ie
s
 

Page 138



1
7

T
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
's

ro
le

in
p
ro

m
o
ti

n
g

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

7
.

L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

,
c
o
o
rd

in
a
ti

o
n

a
n
d

p
ro

m
o
ti

n
g

th
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h

7
.1

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 a

n
d
 i

ts
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a
v
e

a
n
 u

n
ri

v
a
ll
e
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 o

f 
th

e
a
re

a
 a

n
d
 i

ts
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 h

a
v
e

b
u
il
t 

u
p
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
n
e
tw

o
rk

s
 a

n
d

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 o

v
e
r 

m
a
n
y
 y

e
a
rs

.
W

e
 w

il
l 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
is

 e
x
p
e
rt

is
e

in
fo

rm
s
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 o

f
s
u
b
-
re

g
io

n
a
l 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

re
g
io

n
a
l 

p
o
li
c
ie

s
 o

f 
th

e
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 M

a
y
o
r,

in
 l

in
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
s
 o

f 
th

is
s
tr

a
te

g
y
.

7
.2

O
n
 o

u
r 

s
id

e
, 

w
e
 w

il
l 

w
o
rk

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

v
e
ly

 t
o
 a

v
o
id

 a
n
y

d
u
p
li
c
a
ti

o
n
 o

r 
o
v
e
rl

a
p
 i

n
a
c
ti

v
it

ie
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t

w
o
rk

 i
s
 f

u
ll
y
 c

o
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
. 

 W
e

h
a
v
e
 b

u
il
t 

g
o
o
d
 w

o
rk

in
g

re
la

ti
o

n
s
h
ip

s
 w

it
h
 o

u
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

in
 t

h
e
 L

D
A

, 
B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 L

in
k
 a

n
d

o
th

e
r 

e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti

o
n
s
. 

 W
e
 h

a
v
e
 d

ri
v
e
n

fo
rw

a
rd

 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f

m
a
jo

r 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 i
n
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

L
o

n
d
o

n
 R

iv
e
rs

id
e
 i

n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e

w
it

h
 o

u
r 

o
v
e
ra

ll
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

n
o
w

 w
e
lc

o
m

e
 t

h
e
 c

re
a
ti

o
n
 o

f 
a
n

U
rb

a
n
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n
w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n
 c

h
a
m

p
io

n
 o

u
r 

v
is

io
n

m
o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
ly

 a
n
d
 l

e
v
e
ra

g
e

g
re

a
te

r 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 i

t.

7
.3

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 a

 k
e
y
 r

o
le

 t
o

p
la

y
 i

n
 a

tt
ra

c
ti

n
g
 i

n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
to

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 b

y
 a

c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 a

n
d

c
h
a
n
n
e
ll
in

g
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 E

U
fu

n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 b

y
 p

ro
m

o
ti

n
g
 t

h
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 a

s
 a

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 f

ri
e
n
d
ly

lo
c
a
ti

o
n
. 

 D
e
s
p
it

e
 t

h
e
 f

a
c
t 

th
a
t

m
o
s
t 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 h
e
re

 f
e
e
l 

th
a
t

B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 i
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y

a
 g

o
o
d
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 d

o
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
,1

2

th
e
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

p
e
rc

e
p
ti

o
n
 o

f 
th

e
b
o
ro

u
g
h
 h

a
s
 o

ft
e
n
 b

e
e
n

n
e
g
a
ti

v
e
. 

 I
t 

m
u
s
t 

b
e
 c

h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
d

if
 i

t 
is

 n
o
t 

to
 d

is
c
o
u
ra

g
e

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 f

ro
m

 i
n
v
e
s
ti

n
g
,

v
is

it
o
rs

 f
ro

m
 e

n
jo

y
in

g
 t

h
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
's

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 f

u
tu

re
a
tt

ra
c
ti

o
n
s
, 

a
n
d
 n

e
w

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

fr
o
m

 c
h
o
o
s
in

g
 t

o
 l

iv
e
 i

n
 t

h
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
.

7
.4

O
v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

fe
w

 y
e
a
rs

, 
th

e
 o

ld
s
te

re
o
ty

p
e
s
 w

il
l 

b
e
c
o
m

e
c
o
m

p
le

te
ly

 o
b
s
o
le

te
. 

 T
h
e

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n
 o

f 
B
a
rk

in
g
 T

o
w

n
C

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 S

o
u
th

 D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 a
n
d

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 n

e
w

c
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 a

t 
B
a
rk

in
g
 R

e
a
c
h
 w

il
l

b
e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

to
 h

ig
h
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
. 

 O
u
r

In
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 

E
s
ta

te
s
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

E
a
s
tb

u
ry

 M
a
n
o
r 

H
o
u
s
e
, 

B
a
rk

in
g
, 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 r
ic

h
 c

u
lt

u
ra

l 
h
e
ri

ta
g
e

1
2
U

R
S

 s
u
rv

e
y,

 2
0
0
3
.

Page 139



P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

il
l 

im
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e

a
p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 o

f 
o
u
r 

o
ld

e
r

e
s
ta

te
s
. 

 T
h
e
 l

o
tt

e
ry

-
fu

n
d
e
d
 A

1
3

A
rt

s
c
a
p
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

-
 t

h
e
 b

ig
g
e
s
t

p
u
b
li
c
 a

rt
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i

n
 t

h
e

c
o
u
n
tr

y
 -

 w
il
l 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 t

h
e

a
p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 o

f 
a
n
 a

rt
e
ri

a
l 

ro
a
d

th
a
t 

o
ff

e
rs

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 e

x
c
e
ll
e
n
t

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 m

a
rk

e
ts

, 
b
u
t 

s
u
ff

e
rs

fr
o
m

 a
 b

a
d
 i

m
a
g
e
 p

ro
b
le

m
.

7
.5

A
s
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
, 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 w

il
l 

m
a
k
e

s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti

o
n
s
 o

f
p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 o

u
ts

id
e

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 w

it
h
 i

t.
  

W
e

h
a
v
e
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a

b
ro

c
h
u
re

 f
o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
, 

s
e
tt

in
g

o
u
t 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
's

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

o
ff

e
r,

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 i

ts
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
a
rk

s
a
n
d
 g

re
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
, 

c
u
lt

u
ra

l
a
tt

ra
c
ti

o
n
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 B

a
rk

in
g

A
b
b
e
y
 a

n
d
 E

a
s
tb

u
ry

 M
a
n
o
r

H
o
u
s
e
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 f

a
s
te

s
t 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
e
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
.

W
e
 w

il
l 

ta
k
e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

s
te

p
s
 t

o
p
u
b
li
c
is

e
 a

n
d
 d

is
s
e
m

in
a
te

 o
u
r

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

o
ff

e
r.

  
A

 c
e
n
tr

a
l

L
o

n
d
o

n
 e

v
e
n
t 

in
 J

u
ly

, 
s
e
tt

in
g
 o

u
t

th
e
 B

a
rk

in
g
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s
 t

o
 p

ro
s
p
e
c
ti

v
e

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
w

a
s
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

s
te

p
 i

n
 a

p
u
b
li
c
it

y
 a

n
d
 m

a
rk

e
ti

n
g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y

to
 a

tt
ra

c
t 

p
ri

v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
to

 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 t
o
w

n
c
e
n
tr

e
.

7
.6

T
h
e
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

B
a
rk

in
g

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 e

n
v
is

a
g
e
s
 a

 r
a
n
g
e

o
f 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 t

o
 i

m
p
ro

v
e

p
e
rc

e
p
ti

o
n
s
 o

f 
e
n
te

ri
n
g
 B

a
rk

in
g
.

T
h
e
 R

a
il
 S

ta
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 i

ts
s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
s
 w

il
l 

b
e
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
d

a
n
d
 n

e
w

 s
ig

n
a
g
e
 w

il
l 

b
e
 c

re
a
te

d
fo

r 
th

e
 m

a
in

 r
o
a
d
 r

o
u
te

s
 i

n
to

 t
h
e

c
e
n
tr

e
. 

 W
e
 w

il
l 

lo
o
k
 a

t 
a
ll
 t

h
e

m
a
jo

r 
g
a
te

w
a
y
s
 i

n
to

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

w
it

h
 a

 v
ie

w
 t

o
 i

m
p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e

im
p
re

s
s
io

n
 t

h
e
y
 c

re
a
te

 a
n
d

p
ro

m
o
ti

n
g
 m

o
re

 p
o
s
it

iv
e

p
e
rc

e
p
ti

o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
.

F
a
n
s
h
a
w

e
 A

v
e
n
u
e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 b

ri
n
g
s

tr
a
ff

ic
 i

n
to

 B
a
rk

in
g
 f

ro
m

 I
lf

o
rd

w
il
l 

b
e
 t

h
e
 f

o
c
u
s
 o

f 
s
o
c
ia

l,
e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 a

n
d
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 H
o
m

e
Z
o

n
e
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

1
8

T
o

p
ro

v
id

e
le

a
d
e
rs

h
ip

to
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

in
B
a
rk

in
g

a
n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

a
n
d

p
ro

m
o
te

th
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h

a
s

a
g
o
o
d

p
la

c
e

to
li
v
e

a
n
d

w
o
rk

,
w

e
w

il
l:

·
c
o
o
rd

in
a
te

a
c
ti

v
it

y
w

it
h

o
u
r

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

to
a
c
h
ie

v
e

th
e

a
im

s
o
f

th
is

s
tr

a
te

g
y
;

·
re

p
re

s
e
n
t

th
e

in
te

re
s
ts

o
f

th
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h

to
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t,

th
e

L
o
n
d
o
n

M
a
y
o
r,

th
e

L
D

A
a
n
d

s
u
b
-
rre

g
io

n
a
l

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti

o
n
s
;

·
c
h
a
n
n
e
l

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

a
n
d

E
U

fu
n
d
in

g
in

li
n
e

w
it

h
th

is
s
tr

a
te

g
y
;

·
c
o
n
ti

n
u
e

to
im

p
ro

v
e

th
e

a
p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e

o
f

th
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h

th
ro

u
g
h

p
ro

je
c
ts

s
u
c
h

a
s

th
e

A
1
3

A
rt

s
c
a
p
e

P
ro

je
c
t;

·
p
u
b
li
c
is

e
m

o
re

w
id

e
ly

th
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
's

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

b
ro

c
h
u
re

a
n
d

ta
k
e

fu
rt

h
e
r

s
te

p
s

to
p
u
b
li
c
is

e
B
a
rk

in
g

a
n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

's
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

"o
ff

e
r"

;
·

m
a
rk

e
t

th
e

n
e
w

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s

in
B
a
rk

in
g

T
o
w

n
C

e
n
tr

e
;

·
w

o
rk

w
it

h
G

a
te

w
a
y

to
L
o
n
d
o
n

to
p
ro

m
o
te

th
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h

a
s

a
lo

c
a
ti

o
n

o
f

c
h
o
ic

e
fo

r
h
ig

h
-
vv
a
lu

e
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
;

·
im

p
ro

v
e

th
e

a
p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e

o
f

th
e

g
a
te

w
a
y
s

in
to

th
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
th

o
s
e

in
to

B
a
rk

in
g

T
o
w

n
C

e
n
tr

e
.

N
e
w

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 i

n
 B

a
rk

in
g
 w

il
l 

b
e
 b

u
il
t 

to
 h

ig
h
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
d
e
s
ig

n

Page 140



1
9

8
.

B
u
il
d
in

g
a
n

e
n
a
b
li
n
g

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

8
.1

W
it

h
 o

u
r 

re
g
io

n
a
l 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
w

e
a
re

 a
c
ti

v
e
ly

 l
o
b
b
y
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

w
il
l

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 e

x
c
e
ll
e
n
t 

ro
a
d

a
n
d
 r

a
il
 l

in
k
s
. 

 A
n
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 t

o
th

e
 D

o
c
k
la

n
d
s
 L

ig
h
t 

R
a
il
w

a
y

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
, 

m
o
re

 f
re

q
u
e
n
t 

C
2
C

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
T
ra

n
s
it

 w
il
l 

p
ro

v
id

e
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
d

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 l
in

k
s
. 

 F
u
rt

h
e
r

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 t

h
e

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

C
ro

s
s
ra

il
 a

n
d
 a

n
e
w

 r
iv

e
r 

c
ro

s
s
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

W
o
o
lw

ic
h
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 R

o
y
a
l 

D
o
c
k
s
,

w
il
l 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
's

a
p
p
e
a
l 

to
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 i

n
v
e
s
to

rs
, 

a
s

w
e
ll
 a

s
 c

re
a
ti

n
g
 a

n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
in

g
n
e
w

 j
o
b
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s

th
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
. 

 W
e
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
n
d
 i

m
p
le

m
e
n
t 

a
 N

o
rt

h
-
S
o
u
th

B
u
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

o
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e

p
o
o
re

r 
li
n
k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
a
n
d
 s

o
u
th

 o
f 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
, 

li
n
k

th
e
 n

e
w

 R
iv

e
rs

id
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it

ie
s

to
 t

h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 o

n
e
s
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
th

e
A

1
3
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

n
e
w

 j
o
b
s

a
re

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 l

o
c
a
l 

p
e
o
p
le

.

8
.2

In
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
fu

rt
h
e
r 

o
u
r 

g
re

e
n
 a

g
e
n
d
a
, 

w
e
 w

il
l

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 w

h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
g
re

a
te

r 
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

iv
e
r 

fo
r 

th
e

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 o
f 

b
u
lk

 g
o
o
d
s
. 

 W
e
 w

il
l

a
im

 t
o
 f

a
c
il
it

a
te

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 w

h
a
rf

 o
w

n
e
rs

 a
n
d

p
o
te

n
ti

a
l 

u
s
e
rs

 f
o
r 

m
a
x
im

u
m

 u
s
e

o
f 

th
e
 w

h
a
rv

e
. 

 W
h
e
re

 t
h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t

p
ra

c
ti

c
a
l,
 w

e
 w

il
l 

in
v
e
s
ti

g
a
te

w
a
y
s
 i

n
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 c

a
n

w
o
rk

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

in
 t

ru
c
k
in

g
 g

o
o
d
s

in
 a

n
d
 o

u
t 

o
f 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

a
n
d

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti

o
n

T
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s

8
.3

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 -

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 S

M
E
s
 -

 a
re

 l
e
s
s
 l

ik
e
ly

to
 u

s
e
 I

T
 s

y
s
te

m
s
, 

th
e
 I

n
te

rn
e
t

a
n
d
 b

ro
a
d
b
a
n
d
 t

h
a
n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o

n
.1

3
T
h
is

w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 w

il
l 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

d
a
m

a
g
e
 t

h
e
ir

 a
b
il
it

y
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
e
te

.
W

e
 r

e
c
e
n
tl

y
 s

ig
n
e
d
 a

g
ro

u
n
d
b
re

a
k
in

g
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it

h
B
T
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f
b
ro

a
d
b
a
n
d
. 

 A
 h

ig
h
-
p
ro

fi
le

 e
v
e
n
t

in
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
3
 w

il
l 

k
ic

k
 o

ff
 a

s
e
ri

e
s
 o

f 
e
v
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 i

n
it

ia
ti

v
e
s

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s

a
n
d
 u

s
e
 b

y
 S

M
E
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
.

8
.4

W
e
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s

th
is

 i
s
s
u
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f
E
a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 (

U
E
L
).

  
U

E
L
 p

ro
v
id

e
s

tr
a
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

s
m

a
ll
 a

n
d
 m

e
d
iu

m
s
iz

e
d
 e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s
 i

n
 a

re
a
s
 s

u
c
h

a
s
 w

e
b
 s

it
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
, 

c
o
m

p
u
te

r
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g
, 

n
e
tw

o
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

m
a
rk

e
ti

n
g
. 

 I
t 

is
 n

o
w

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
w

it
h
 i

ts
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
 L

o
n
d
o

n
T
h
a
m

e
s
 G

a
te

w
a
y
 N

e
w

T
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 I

n
s
ti

tu
te

 p
ro

je
c
t

w
h
ic

h
 w

il
l 

e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
 a

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
to

 h
e
lp

 S
M

E
s
 u

s
e
 I

C
T
s
 t

o
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti

v
it

y
 a

n
d

c
o
m

p
e
ti

ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
,.
  

T
h
ro

u
g
h
 i

ts
K

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 D

o
c
k
 i

n
it

ia
ti

v
e
, 

U
E
L

m
a
n
a
g
e
s
 a

 s
e
ri

e
s
 o

f 
e
x
p
e
rt

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 i

n
 s

e
c
to

rs
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
p
ro

d
u
c
t 

d
e
s
ig

n
, 

fa
b
ri

c
 a

n
d
 p

ri
n
t

d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 m

u
lt

i-
m

e
d
ia

p
ro

d
u
c
ti

o
n
, 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 o

p
e
n
 t

o
d
ir

e
c
t 

u
s
e
 b

y
 s

m
a
ll
 a

n
d
 m

e
d
iu

m
s
iz

e
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
. 

 U
E
L
's

E
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 B

u
re

a
u
 o

ff
e
rs

 a
 w

id
e

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
o
p
ti

o
n
s
 f

o
r 

o
n
e
 o

r 
tw

o
y
e
a
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 g

ra
d
u
a
te

e
x
p
e
rt

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
to

 S
M

E
s
, 

a
s

w
e
ll
 a

s
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 i

n
n
o
v
a
ti

o
n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

. 

K
e
e
p
in

g
th

e
b
o
ro

u
g
h
's

in
d
u
s
tr

ia
l

a
re

a
s

c
le

a
n

a
n
d

g
re

e
n

8
.5

P
a
rt

s
 o

f 
B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

's
in

d
u
s
tr

ia
l 

a
re

a
s
 o

ff
e
r 

a
 p

o
o
r

q
u
a
li
ty

 e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

a
n
d
 s

u
ff

e
r 

fr
o
m

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 o

f
tr

a
ff

ic
 c

o
n
g
e
s
ti

o
n
, 

p
o
o
r 

ro
a
d

li
n
k
s
, 

d
u
m

p
in

g
 o

f 
ru

b
b
is

h
 a

n
d

a
b
a
n
d
o

n
e
d
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
. 

 "
B
a
d

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
r"

 i
n
d
u
s
tr

ie
s
 h

a
v
e

a
ff

e
c
te

d
 t

h
e
 i

m
a
g
e
 o

f 
th

e
b
o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

o
th

e
r 

in
d
u
s
tr

ie
s
.

W
e
 w

il
l 

a
s
s
is

t 
th

e
s
e
 i

n
d
u
s
tr

ie
s
 t

o
c
le

a
n
 u

p
 t

h
e
ir

 a
c
t.

  
B
u
t 

w
e
 w

il
l

n
o
t 

h
e
s
it

a
te

 t
o
 u

s
e
 o

u
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
p
o
w

e
rs

 t
o
 d

is
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r

g
ro

w
th

, 
w

h
e
re

 t
h
is

 c
o

n
fl

ic
ts

 w
it

h
o
u
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
b
je

c
ti

v
e
 o

f
a
tt

ra
c
ti

n
g
 h

ig
h
e
r 

v
a
lu

e
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i

n
to

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
.

W
e
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 i

n
v
e
s
ti

g
a
te

 t
h
e

1
3

T
h
e
 2

0
0
0
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

’ 
S
u
rv

e
y
 f

o
u
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

o
n
ly

 1
4
%

 o
f 

s
m

a
ll
 a

n
d
 m

e
d
iu

m
 e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s
 i

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 h

a
d
 I

C
T
 i

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 

a
g
a
in

s
t 

a
 L

o
n
d
o

n
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
3
2
%

.

Page 141



p
o
s
s
ib

il
it

y
 o

f 
c
re

a
ti

n
g
 a

n
 E

n
v
ir

o
-

C
ri

m
e
 U

n
it

, 
a
s
 p

io
n
e
e
re

d
 b

y
b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 L

e
w

is
h
a
m

 a
n
d

M
e
rt

o
n
.

8
.6

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

L
o

n
d
o

n
 R

iv
e
rs

id
e
 a

n
d
 M

a
d
e
 i

n
L
o

n
d
o

n
 (

a
 m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

re
rs

'
c
o
m

m
o

n
 i

n
te

re
s
t 

g
ro

u
p
) 

to
 m

a
k
e

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 i

n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l

e
s
ta

te
s
 w

h
o
s
e
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s

d
e
te

ri
o
ra

te
d
. 

 W
e
 w

il
l 

s
e
e
k
 t

o
w

id
e
n
 t

h
is

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
's

 c
o
v
e
ra

g
e

to
 t

h
e
 w

h
o
le

 b
o
ro

u
g
h
. 

 W
e
 a

re
a
ls

o
 t

a
c
k
li
n
g
 t

h
e
s
e
 p

ro
b
le

m
s

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 I

n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 

E
s
ta

te
s

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

A
ll
e
y
g
a
te

r 
p
ro

je
c
t,

 w
h
ic

h
 g

a
te

s
o
ff

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

o
a
d
s
 a

n
d
 a

ll
e
y
w

a
y
s

th
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 s

it
e
s
 f

o
r 

fl
y
-

ti
p
p
in

g
, 

a
n
ti

-
s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r

a
n
d
 g

ra
ff

it
i.
  

A
n
 L

D
A

-
fu

n
d
e
d

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 l

e
d
 t

o
 s

ig
n
if

ic
a
n
t

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 r

o
a
d
s
 i

n
D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 D
o
c
k
 a

n
d
 w

il
l 

s
h
o
rt

ly
ta

c
k
le

 C
h
e
q
u
e
rs

 C
o
rn

e
r,

 a
s
 p

a
rt

o
f 

th
e
 r

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S
o
u
th

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

. 
 W

e
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 e

n
s
u
re

th
a
t 

th
e
 T

h
a
m

e
s
 E

a
s
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r

u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

iv
e
r 

a
n
d
 a

d
jo

in
in

g
a
re

a
s
 r

e
fl

e
c
ts

 o
u
r 

a
m

b
it

io
n
s
 a

n
d

c
o
m

p
le

m
e
n
ts

 t
h
e
m

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
, 

fo
r

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
im

a
g
in

a
ti

v
e

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 p

o
li
c
ie

s
.

8
.7

O
u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
re

a
s
, 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 i

s
 t

y
p
ic

a
ll
y

in
te

rs
p
e
rs

e
d
 w

it
h
 "

h
ig

h
 s

tr
e
e
t"

s
ty

le
 s

h
o
p
p
in

g
 p

a
ra

d
e
s
. 

 A
s
 p

a
rt

o
f 

a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
R
e
n
e
w

a
l 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 i

s
d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 

to
 r

e
v
it

a
li
s
e

th
e
s
e
 s

h
o
p
p
in

g
 p

a
ra

d
e
s
, 

w
o
rk

in
g

w
it

h
 l

a
n
d
lo

rd
s
, 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e

a
p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
,

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 v

ia
b
il
it

y
 o

f 
th

e

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e

e
m

p
lo

y
a
b
il
it

y
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
's

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
H

o
m

e
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

Z
o

n
e
s
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
h
e
lp

 f
a
c
il
it

a
te

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

in
it

ia
ti

v
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 h

a
n
d
y
p
e
rs

o
n

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
.

T
a
c
k
li
n
g

c
ri

m
e

a
g
a
in

s
t

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

8
.8

B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 e
n
jo

y
s

lo
w

e
r 

le
v
e
ls

 o
f 

c
ri

m
e
 t

h
a
n
 t

h
e

L
o

n
d
o

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
is

 h
a
s

h
e
lp

e
d
 a

tt
ra

c
t 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
.1

4
W

e
 w

a
n
t 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

th
is

 g
o
o
d
 r

e
c
o
rd

 a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 t

a
c
k
le

th
e
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 e

x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 a

s
m

a
ll
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
,

m
a
in

ly
 l

o
c
a
te

d
 s

o
u
th

 o
f 

th
e
 A

1
3
.

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 u

n
d
e
r

th
e
 S

m
a
ll
 R

e
ta

il
e
rs

 i
n
 D

e
p
ri

v
e
d

A
re

a
s
 (

S
M

R
D

A
) 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 t

o
p
ro

v
id

e
 s

e
c
u
ri

ty
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 C

C
T
V

 a
n
d
 a

d
d
it

io
n
a
l

li
g
h
ti

n
g
 t

o
 s

h
o
p
p
in

g
 p

a
ra

d
e
s
 i

n
G

a
le

 S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 B

ro
a
d
 S

tr
e
e
t 

in
D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

. 
 W

e
 w

il
l 

e
x
te

n
d
 t

h
is

s
c
h
e
m

e
 t

o
 m

o
re

 s
h
o
p
p
in

g
 a

re
a
s

in
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

 W
e
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
in

tr
o
d
u
c
e
 i

n
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

H
e
a
th

w
a
y
, 

a
 s

y
s
te

m
 t

o
 l

in
k
 r

a
d
io

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 C

C
T
V

 w
h
ic

h
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 B
a
rk

in
g

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
. 

 W
e
 w

il
l 

c
o

n
ti

n
u
e

to
 w

o
rk

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 w
it

h
 l

o
c
a
l 

p
o
li
c
e

a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t

h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 S

a
fe

ty
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
to

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d

v
a
n
d
a
li
s
m

 a
g
a
in

s
t 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i

n
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
.

2
0

T
o

h
e
lp

b
u
il
d

th
e

e
n
a
b
li
n
g

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t

fo
r

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

a
n
d

g
ro

w
th

in
B
a
rk

in
g

a
n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

,
w

e
w

il
l:

·
lo

b
b
y

a
n
d

p
re

p
a
re

fo
r

th
e

s
p
e
e
d
y

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

o
f

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

s
u
c
h

a
s

th
e

D
L
R

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
,

C
2
C

u
p
g
ra

d
e
,

th
e

E
a
s
t

L
o
n
d
o
n

T
ra

n
s
it

,
C

ro
s
s
ra

il
a
n
d

a
n
e
w

T
h
a
m

e
s

B
ri

d
g
e
;

·
im

p
le

m
e
n
t

a
N

o
rt

h
-
SS
o
u
th

B
u
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y

to
li
n
k

re
s
id

e
n
ts

in
th

e
n
o
rt

h
o
f

th
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h

w
it

h
jo

b
s

s
o
u
th

o
f

th
e

A
1
3
;

·
w

o
rk

w
it

h
U

E
L
,

th
e

E
a
s
t

L
o
n
d
o
n

S
m

a
ll

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

C
e
n
tr

e
a
n
d

B
T

to
in

c
re

a
s
e

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

a
n
d

u
s
e

o
f

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

T
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
b
y

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
;

·
c
o
n
ti

n
u
e

to
im

p
ro

v
e

th
e

a
p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e

a
n
d

fa
c
il
it

ie
s

o
f

in
d
u
s
tr

ia
l

e
s
ta

te
s
;

·
in

v
e
s
ti

g
a
te

th
e

p
o
s
s
ib

il
it

y
o
f

c
re

a
ti

n
g

a
n

E
n
v
ir

o
-
CC

ri
m

e
U

n
it

;
·

w
o
rk

w
it

h
p
o
li
c
e

a
n
d

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

to
ta

c
k
le

c
ri

m
e

a
g
a
in

s
t

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
;

·
e
x
te

n
d

w
o
rk

to
im

p
ro

v
e

th
e

a
p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e

a
n
d

s
e
c
u
ri

ty
o
f

th
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
's

s
h
o
p
p
in

g
a
re

a
s
;

·
e
n
s
u
re

th
e

T
h
a
m

e
s

E
a
s
t

S
tr

a
te

g
y

c
o
m

p
le

m
e
n
ts

o
u
r

e
ff

o
rt

s
to

im
p
ro

v
e

th
e

R
iv

e
rs

id
e

th
ro

u
g
h

e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
p
o
li
c
ie

s
;

·
d
e
v
e
lo

p
p
o
li
c
ie

s
to

m
a
k
e

b
e
s
t

u
s
e

o
f

th
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
's

ri
v
e
r

w
h
a
rv

e
s

a
n
d

ra
il
-
hh
e
a
d
s
.

1
4

4
6
%

 o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
e
d
 b

y
 U

R
S
 i

n
 2

0
0
3
 c

it
e
d
 l

o
w

 c
ri

m
e
 a

s
 i

m
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
ir

 c
h
o
ic

e
 o

f 
lo

c
a
ti

o
n
.

Page 142



2
1

9
.

A
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
-
ffr

ie
n
d
ly

c
o
u
n
c
il

9
.1

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 i

s
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 d

ri
v
e
r 

o
f

e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
, 

c
re

a
ti

n
g

w
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 j

o
b
s
. 

 A
 k

e
y

e
le

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i

s
 t

o
d
e
v
e
lo

p
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 a

c
u
lt

u
re

 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it

h
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f
it

s
 n

e
e
d
s
 i

s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 a

n
d

a
c
c
e
p
te

d
. 

 T
h
is

 m
e
a
n
s
 f

ir
s
t 

o
f 

a
ll

in
fo

rm
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt

in
g

e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s
 o

n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t

d
ir

e
c
tl

y
 a

ff
e
c
t 

th
e
ir

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
. 

 F
o
r

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
m

a
jo

r 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
a
n
d
 r

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 l
ik

e
th

e
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 A

1
3

a
n
d
 C

h
e
q
u
e
rs

 C
o
rn

e
r,

 B
a
rk

in
g

R
e
a
c
h
 a

n
d
 B

a
rk

in
g
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
w

il
l 

c
a
u
s
e
  

-
 o

r 
a
re

 a
lr

e
a
d
y

c
a
u
s
in

g
 -

 s
h
o
rt

-
te

rm
 d

is
ru

p
ti

o
n

to
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 

e
v
e
n
 a

s
 t

h
e
y

p
re

p
a
re

 t
h
e
 w

a
y
 f

o
r 

lo
n
g
 t

e
rm

b
e
n
e
fi

ts
. 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 c

a
n
 h

e
lp

lo
c
a
l 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 p

re
p
a
re

 f
o
r

th
e
s
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 b
y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

ti
m

e
ly

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 k

e
e
p

th
e
m

 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 o

f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
.

E
s
ta

te
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 a

lr
e
a
d
y

b
e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

In
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 

E
s
ta

te
 R

e
v
it

a
li
s
a
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 w

il
l 

fo
rm

 a
v
a
lu

a
b
le

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 i

n
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

fl
o
w

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d

C
o
u
n
c
il
.

9
.2

B
u
t 

w
e
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e

lo
c
a
l 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 i

s
 f

u
ll
y

in
v
o
lv

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 l
e
v
e
l 

in

s
e
tt

in
g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 p

la
n
s
, 

lo
c
a
l

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

c
o

n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

o
f 

m
o
re

 s
p
e
c
if

ic
 p

o
li
c
y
 i

n
it

ia
ti

v
e
s
.

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d

fo
ru

m
s
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

w
it

h
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 o

n
 s

p
e
c
if

ic
 i

s
s
u
e
s
. 

 
T
h
e
 E

d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 d
e
a
ls

 w
it

h
 t

h
e
 l

in
k
s

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 e

d
u
c
a
ti

o
n

c
u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 s

k
il
ls

 n
e
e
d
s

o
f 

lo
c
a
l 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
. 

 W
e
 w

il
l

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 p

o
s
s
ib

il
it

y
 o

f 
a
 n

e
w

fo
ru

m
 f

o
r 

h
ig

h
-
le

v
e
l 

p
o
li
c
y

d
ia

lo
g
u
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il
 a

n
d

th
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it

y
,

a
tt

e
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

,
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's

E
x
e
c
u
ti

v
e
 a

n
d
 b

y
 l

o
c
a
l 

M
P
s
. 

 W
e

w
il
l 

a
im

 t
o
 f

a
c
il
it

a
te

 t
h
e
 c

re
a
ti

o
n

o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
-
to

-
b
u
s
in

e
s
s

n
e
tw

o
rk

s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 d

e
m

a
n
d

fr
o
m

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t

h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s

9
.3

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 o

ft
e
n
 i

d
e
n
ti

fy
in

fl
e
x
ib

le
 o

r 
in

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

re
g
u
la

ti
o

n
 a

s
 a

 c
o

n
s
tr

a
in

t 
o

n
g
ro

w
th

. 
 W

e
 w

il
l 

s
e
e
k
 t

o
 r

e
s
p
o

n
d

a
s
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 a
n
d
 f

le
x
ib

ly
 a

s
 w

e
 c

a
n

C
o
u
n
c
il
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d
 l

o
c
a
l 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
m

e
n
 w

o
rk

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

to
 r

e
g
e
n
e
ra

te
 t

h
e
 l

o
c
a
l 

e
c
o

n
o
m

y

Page 143



to
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

to
 u

s
 b

y
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 

c
o

n
s
is

te
n
t 

w
it

h
le

g
is

la
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 o

u
r 

d
u
ty

 t
o

b
a
la

n
c
e
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
li
c
 i

n
te

re
s
t.

  
W

e
w

il
l 

e
v
a
lu

a
te

 o
u
r 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 

w
it

h
 a

v
ie

w
 t

o
 i

n
tr

o
d
u
c
in

g
 a

 "
O

n
e
-
S
to

p
S
e
rv

ic
e
",

 s
o
 t

h
a
t 

o
n
e
 n

a
m

e
d

o
ff

ic
e
r 

d
e
a
ls

 w
it

h
 t

h
e
 f

u
ll
 r

a
n
g
e

o
f 

c
o

n
ta

c
ts

 w
it

h
 a

n
y
 g

iv
e
n

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
.

9
.4

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 t

h
e

E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

C
o

n
c
o
rd

a
t 

a
n
d
 w

il
l

w
o
rk

 w
it

h
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

th
e
m

 a
p
p
ly

 a
n
d
 e

n
fo

rc
e

re
g
u
la

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
 c

re
a
te

 a
n
d

m
a
in

ta
in

 a
 l

e
v
e
l 

p
la

y
in

g
 f

ie
ld

 f
o
r

a
ll
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
.

W
e
 a

im
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
 a

 L
o
c
a
l

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 f
o
r 

th
is

p
u
rp

o
s
e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

il
l 

b
ri

n
g

to
g
e
th

e
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
, 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's

re
g
u
la

to
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d
 t

ra
d
in

g
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 t

e
a
m

s
 a

n
d
 n

a
ti

o
n
a
l

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t

h
e
 I

n
la

n
d

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 a

n
d
 C

u
s
to

m
s
 a

n
d

E
x
c
is

e
. 

 W
e
 a

ls
o
 r

u
n
 s

e
c
to

r-
s
p
e
c
if

ic
 s

e
m

in
a
rs

 a
n
d
 t

ra
in

in
g

c
o
u
rs

e
s
 o

n
 h

e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
is

s
u
e
s
. 

 O
u
r 

fo
o
d
 a

n
d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e

c
o
u
rs

e
s
 a

re
 r

u
n
 i

n
 d

if
fe

re
n
t

la
n
g
u
a
g
e
s
, 

to
 c

a
te

r 
fo

r 
th

e
b
o
ro

u
g
h
's

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
e
th

n
ic

m
in

o
ri

ty
 s

m
a
ll
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
.

9
.5

W
e
 w

il
l 

w
o
rk

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e

c
o
rr

e
c
t 

a
ll
o
c
a
ti

o
n
 o

f 
fu

tu
re

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

s
it

e
s
 t

o
 s

u
s
ta

in
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s

c
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 a

n
d
 e

n
a
b
le

 n
e
w

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t

o
 g

ro
w

 a
n
d
 m

o
v
e

o
n
. 

 W
e
 w

il
l 

d
e
a
l 

s
p
e
e
d
il
y
 w

it
h

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti

o
n
s
 f

o
r

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

  
O

u
r

a
im

 i
s
 a

 t
ra

n
s
p
a
re

n
t 

a
n
d

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i

n
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 l

o
c
a
l

e
c
o

n
o
m

y
 a

n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

re
g
iv

e
n
 f

a
ir

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
.

2
2

T
o

e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t

th
e

c
o
u
n
c
il

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
s

a
n
d

re
s
p
o
n
d
s

to
b
u
s
in

e
s
s

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
,

w
e

w
il
l:

·
k
e
e
p

e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s

in
fo

rm
e
d

a
n
d

c
o
n
s
u
lt

e
d

a
b
o
u
t

m
a
jo

r
p
ro

je
c
ts

th
a
t

w
il
l

a
ff

e
c
t

th
e
ir

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
;

·
fu

ll
y

in
v
o
lv

e
th

e
b
u
s
in

e
s
s

c
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
in

p
o
li
c
y

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t;

·
h
e
lp

s
e
t

u
p

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
-
tto

-
bb
u
s
in

e
s
s

n
e
tw

o
rk

s
,

w
h
e
re

th
e
re

is
d
e
m

a
n
d

fo
r

th
e
m

;
·

e
s
ta

b
li
s
h

a
fo

ru
m

fo
r

re
g
u
la

r
d
ia

lo
g
u
e

a
t

a
s
e
n
io

r
le

v
e
l

b
e
tw

e
e
n

th
e

c
o
u
n
c
il

a
n
d

th
e

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

c
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
;

·
im

p
ro

v
e

o
u
r

s
e
rv

ic
e

to
e
s
ta

te
a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s

th
ro

u
g
h

th
e

E
s
ta

te
s

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
;

·
s
e
e
k

to
e
s
ta

b
li
s
h

a
"o

n
e
-
ss
to

p
"

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

fo
r

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

u
s
in

g
th

e
C

o
u
n
c
il
's

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
;

·
im

p
le

m
e
n
t

th
e

E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t

C
o
n
c
o
rd

a
t;

·
w

o
rk

w
it

h
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
,

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y

s
m

a
ll

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
,

to
h
e
lp

th
e
m

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d

a
n
d

c
o
m

p
ly

w
it

h
re

g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
;

·
ru

n
s
e
c
to

r-
ss
p
e
c
if

ic
s
e
m

in
a
rs

a
n
d

tr
a
in

in
g

o
n

h
e
a
lt

h
a
n
d

s
a
fe

ty
is

s
u
e
s
;

·
e
n
s
u
re

th
e

c
o
rr

e
c
t

a
ll
o
c
a
ti

o
n

o
f

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

s
it

e
s

to
s
u
s
ta

in
b
u
s
in

e
s
s

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t;

·
d
e
a
l

s
p
e
e
d
il
y

w
it

h
p
la

n
n
in

g
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti

o
n
s

a
ff

e
c
ti

n
g

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
.

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 w

o
rk

s
 w

it
h
 m

a
n
y
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti

o
n
s
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 l
o
c
a
l 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

Page 144



2
3

1
0
.

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

g
ro

w
th

1
0
.1

F
o
r 

m
a
n
y
 c

o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 i

n
 t

h
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
, 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 i

s
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t

p
o
in

t 
o
f 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

fo
r 

in
q
u
ir

ie
s

a
b
o
u
t 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t,

 p
re

m
is

e
s
, 

o
r

h
e
lp

 w
it

h
 t

ra
in

in
g
. 

 W
e
 w

il
l

c
o

n
ti

n
u
e
 t

o
 p

la
y
 t

h
is

 b
ro

k
e
ra

g
e

ro
le

, 
p
o
in

ti
n
g
 c

o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 i

n
 t

h
e

ri
g
h
t 

d
ir

e
c
ti

o
n
 t

o
 g

e
t 

th
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

th
e
y
 n

e
e
d
. 

 T
o
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
 o

u
r

s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

w
e
 a

re
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s

D
ir

e
c
to

ry
, 

w
it

h
 d

e
ta

il
s
 o

f 
a
ll

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 i

n
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n
 f

ro
m

c
o
u
n
c
il
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

, 
e
x
te

rn
a
l

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d

w
it

h
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

fo
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

to
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
 t

h
e
ir

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

1
0
.2

B
u
t 

w
e
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

s
e
n
s
ib

le
 d

iv
is

io
n
 o

f 
la

b
o
u
r

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 l

o
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti

o
n
s
.

T
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
is

 a
im

, 
w

e
 h

e
lp

e
d

e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
 B

e
n
e
fi

ts
 f

o
r 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

(B
4
B
),

 a
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

lo
c
a
l

a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
, 

s
u
b
-
re

g
io

n
a
l

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 o
f

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

, 
w

h
ic

h
 o

ff
e
r 

a
c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 

a
n
d

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i

n
 t

h
e

T
h
a
m

e
s
 G

a
te

w
a
y
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
s
. 

 W
e

w
il
l 

c
o

n
ti

n
u
e
 t

o
 p

la
y
 a

n
 a

c
ti

v
e

p
a
rt

 w
it

h
in

 B
4
B
 a

n
d
 s

e
e
k
 t

o
e
x
te

n
d
 i

ts
 c

o
v
e
ra

g
e
 t

o
 a

ll
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
.

A
tt

ra
c
ti

n
g

n
e
w

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

1
0
.3

W
it

h
 G

a
te

w
a
y
 t

o
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 (

G
T
L
),

th
e
 i

n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

a
g
e
n
c
y
 f

o
r

T
h
a
m

e
s
 G

a
te

w
a
y
, 

w
e
 w

il
l 

e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t 

c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 l

o
o
k
in

g
 t

o
 l

o
c
a
te

in
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 g
e
t 

th
e

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
, 

fr
o
m

a
 s

in
g
le

 p
o
in

t 
o
f 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

th
a
t 

w
il
l

fa
c
il
it

a
te

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t.

  
T
h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 l

o
c
a
ti

o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

ff
e
re

d
b
y
 G

T
L
 a

n
d
 o

u
rs

e
lv

e
s
. 

 W
e
 w

il
l

e
n
s
u
re

 a
 w

id
e
 d

is
tr

ib
u
ti

o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e

B
e
n
e
fi

ts
 f

o
r 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 d

ir
e
c
to

ry
 o

f
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
n
it

ia
ti

v
e
s
 f

o
r

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t

g
e
n
e
ri

c
 o

n
-
li
n
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

is
 a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's

w
e
b
 s

it
e
. 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

re
te

n
ti

o
n

1
0
.4

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 s

tr
o

n
g
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 -

 b
y

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

re
rs

 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
-
 f

o
r

s
it

e
s
 a

n
d
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 i

n
 B

a
rk

in
g

a
n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

, 
b
u
t 

a
 g

ro
w

in
g

la
c
k
 o

f 
a
v
a
il
a
b
il
it

y
 o

f 
c
o
s
t-

e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
 o

p
ti

o
n
s
, 

a
s
 p

ri
c
e
s
 r

is
e
.1

5

W
e
 w

il
l 

th
e
re

fo
re

 m
a
k
e
 i

t 
a
 h

ig
h

p
ri

o
ri

ty
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

la
n
d

a
n
d
 m

o
v
e
-
o

n
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 f

o
r

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 s

e
e
k
in

g
 t

o
 e

x
p
a
n
d

th
e
ir

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h
in

 B
a
rk

in
g

a
n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

. 
 W

e
 w

il
l 

w
o
rk

c
lo

s
e
ly

 w
it

h
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 t
o

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
ty

p
e
s
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 m

a
rk

e
t 

fa
il
u
re

 i
n

m
e
e
ti

n
g
 l

o
c
a
l 

d
e
m

a
n
d
, 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
s
m

a
ll
 f

a
c
to

ry
 u

n
it

s
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d

w
o
rk

s
p
a
c
e
 -

 a
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 c

le
a
rl

y
id

e
n
ti

fi
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

U
R
S

s
tu

d
y
. 

 W
e
 h

a
v
e
 h

e
lp

e
d
 t

ra
n
s
fo

rm
th

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 r
u
n
-
d
o
w

n
 F

re
s
h

W
h
a
rf

 e
s
ta

te
, 

w
it

h
 m

o
d
e
rn

 u
n
it

s
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 f

le
x
ib

le
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti

o
n
 f

o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
.

S
ta

rt
-
uu
p
s

1
0
.5

A
n
 i

m
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

a
im

 o
f 

th
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

is
 t

o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 m

o
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s

s
ta

rt
 u

p
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 w
it

h
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
e

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 s

u
rv

iv
e
 a

n
d

g
ro

w
. 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 p

ro
v
id

e
s

a
d
d
it

io
n
a
l 

fu
n
d
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 E

a
s
t

L
o

n
d
o

n
 S

m
a
ll
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

e
n
tr

e
(E

L
S
B
C

),
 w

h
ic

h
 h

o
ld

s
 t

h
e
 S

m
a
ll

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

fo
r

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 i

n
it

ia
l 

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

n
d

m
e
n
to

ri
n
g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

n
e
w

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
. 

 O
u
r 

fu
n
d
in

g
 t

o
p
s
 u

p
th

a
t 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

a
n
d
 h

e
lp

s
 p

a
y
 f

o
r

a
d
d
it

io
n
a
l 

a
d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
is

h
in

g
 t

o
 s

ta
rt

 u
p
 a

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
. 

 W
e
 w

il
l 

in
v
e
s
ti

g
a
te

 t
h
e

p
o
s
s
ib

il
it

y
 o

f 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 C

o
u
n
c
il

s
ta

rt
-
u
p
 g

ra
n
ts

 t
o
 s

m
a
ll

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 b
e
n
e
fi

t 
to

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

-
 f

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 b
y
 s

ti
m

u
la

ti
n
g
 t

h
e

g
ro

w
th

 o
f 

a
 k

e
y
 s

e
c
to

r.

1
5

U
R
S
 f

o
u
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
 t

e
n
th

 o
f 

re
s
p
o

n
d
e
n
ts

 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 R

iv
e
rs

id
e
 w

is
h
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
lo

c
a
te

 w
it

h
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 

h
e
lp

 w
it

h
 r

e
lo

c
a
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 w

a
s
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

p
o
p
u
la

r 
re

q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
t 

fo
r

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
  

s
u
p
p
o
rt

.

Page 145



1
0
.6

W
e
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 c

o
n
ti

n
u
e
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t

h
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s

In
n
o
v
a
ti

o
n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 (

B
IC

),
 w

h
ic

h
 i

s
c
o
-
lo

c
a
te

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

E
M

E
. 

 T
h
e

B
IC

's
 a

im
 i

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 o
n
e
-

s
to

p
 s

h
o
p
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

a
n
d
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it

h
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 i

d
e
a
s
,

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 v

e
n
tu

re
 c

a
p
it

a
l 

fu
n
d
in

g
,

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

a
le

s
, 

m
a
rk

e
ti

n
g
,

p
ro

to
ty

p
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s

p
la

n
n
in

g
, 

fi
n
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
t

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

  
W

e
 b

e
li
e
v
e
 t

h
a
t

th
e
 B

IC
 c

a
n
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

n
 i

m
p
o
rt

a
n
t

s
e
e
d
-
b
e
d
 f

o
r 

n
e
w

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t

h
a
t

a
re

 m
o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 s

ta
y
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
 l

o
c
a
l

p
e
o
p
le

.1
6

W
e
 w

il
l 

e
x
a
m

in
e

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
re

 i
s
 u

n
m

e
t 

n
e
e
d
 f

o
r

a
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i

n
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
w

it
h
 a

d
v
ic

e
, 

c
o

n
fe

re
n
c
e

ro
o
m

s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

, 
w

h
il
e

c
a
rr

y
in

g
 o

u
t 

th
e
ir

 c
o
re

 a
c
ti

v
it

ie
s
.

2
4

T
o

a
tt

ra
c
t,

re
ta

in
a
n
d

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

in
B
a
rk

in
g

a
n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

,
w

e
w

il
l:

·
p
ro

v
id

e
a

fi
rs

t
p
o
in

t
o
f

c
o
n
ta

c
t

a
n
d

re
fe

rr
a
l

s
e
rv

ic
e

fo
r

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

e
n
q
u
ir

ie
s
;

·
e
s
ta

b
li
s
h

a
n
d

m
a
in

ta
in

a
c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
B
u
s
in

e
s
s

D
ir

e
c
to

ry
fo

r
th

e
b
o
ro

u
g
h
;

·
c
o
n
ti

n
u
e

to
p
ro

v
id

e
a

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
lo

c
a
ti

o
n

s
e
rv

ic
e
;

·
w

it
h

o
u
r

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

e
x
te

n
d

B
e
n
e
fi

ts
fo

r
B
u
s
in

e
s
s
'
c
o
v
e
ra

g
e

fr
o
m

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g

to
o
th

e
r

s
e
c
to

rs
;

·
h
e
lp

d
is

tr
ib

u
te

th
e

B
e
n
e
fi

ts
fo

r
B
u
s
in

e
s
s

d
ir

e
c
to

ry
o
f

s
u
p
p
o
rt

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
;

·
p
ro

v
id

e
o
n
-
lli
n
e

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

a
n
d

s
u
p
p
o
rt

th
ro

u
g
h

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
's

w
e
b

s
it

e
;

·
e
n
s
u
re

a
n

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

la
n
d
;

·
w

o
rk

w
it

h
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

to
p
ro

v
id

e
s
m

a
ll

fa
c
to

ry
u
n
it

s
a
n
d

m
a
n
a
g
e
d

w
o
rk

s
p
a
c
e
;

·
c
o
n
ti

n
u
e

to
p
ro

v
id

e
fu

n
d
in

g
to

th
e

E
a
s
t

L
o
n
d
o
n

S
m

a
ll

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

C
e
n
tr

e
to

h
e
lp

n
e
w

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

s
ta

rt
u
p
;

·
c
o
n
ti

n
u
e

to
s
u
p
p
o
rt

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

in
n
o
v
a
ti

o
n
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
th

ro
u
g
h

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

s
u
p
p
o
rt

to
th

e
B
u
s
in

e
s
s

In
n
o
v
a
ti

o
n

C
e
n
tr

e
;

·
in

v
e
s
ti

g
a
te

th
e

p
o
s
s
ib

il
it

y
o
f

p
ro

v
id

in
g

s
ta

rt
-
uu
p

g
ra

n
ts

to
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
.

1
6

In
c
u
b
a
te

d
 f

ir
m

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

h
o
w

n
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 h

ig
h
e
r 

g
ro

w
th

 a
n
d
 s

u
rv

iv
a
l 

ra
te

s
 t

h
a
n
 o

th
e
r 

fi
rm

s
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i

n
 d

is
a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
 a

re
a
s
. 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 f

o
u
n
d
e
rs

 o
f 

m
o
s
t 

in
c
u
b
a
to

r 
b
u
s
i-

n
e
s
s
e
s
 c

o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 i

m
m

e
d
ia

te
 l

o
c
a
li
ty

 a
n
d
 r

e
m

a
in

 w
it

h
in

 i
t 

w
h
e
n
 l

e
a
v
in

g
 t

h
e
 i

n
c
u
b
a
to

r.

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 i

s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 m

o
d
e
rn

 u
n
it

s
 f

o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

Page 146



2
5

1
1
.

E
n
s
u
ri

n
g

th
a
t

a
ll

th
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
's

re
s
id

e
n
ts

b
e
n
e
fi

t
fr

o
m

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
g
ro

w
th

1
1
.1

S
o
m

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it

ie
s
 a

n
d
 g

ro
u
p
s

w
it

h
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 f

a
c
e

g
re

a
te

r 
o
b
s
ta

c
le

s
 i

n
 g

e
tt

in
g
 w

e
ll

p
a
id

 a
n
d
 s

a
ti

s
fy

in
g
 w

o
rk

, 
o
r 

in
s
e
tt

in
g
 u

p
 t

h
e
ir

 o
w

n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
.

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 h

u
g
e

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

th
a
t 

w
il
l 

g
o
 i

n
to

 a
re

a
s

s
o
u
th

 o
f 

th
e
 A

1
3
 a

n
d
 i

n
to

B
a
rk

in
g
 w

il
l 

p
o
la

ri
s
e
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 a

 m
o
re

 p
ro

s
p
e
ro

u
s
 w

e
s
t

a
n
d
 a

 c
o
m

p
a
ra

ti
v
e
ly

 n
e
g
le

c
te

d
e
a
s
t.

  
W

e
 w

il
l 

li
n
k
 t

h
e
 a

im
s
 o

f
th

is
 E

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

it
h
 o

u
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d

R
e
n
e
w

a
l 

a
c
ti

v
it

ie
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t

th
is

 p
o
la

ri
s
a
ti

o
n
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

ta
k
e

p
la

c
e
. 

 W
e
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 t

a
k
e
 a

c
ti

o
n
 t

o
e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

h
a
rd

-
to

-
re

a
c
h

g
ro

u
p
s
 d

o
 n

o
t 

m
is

s
 o

u
t 

o
n
 t

h
e

b
e
n
e
fi

ts
 o

f 
e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
. 

S
o
c
ia

l
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s

1
1
.2

W
e
 w

il
l 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
rm

s
 o

f
c
o
m

p
a
n
y
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti

o
n
 i

n
 t

h
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
a
t 

w
il
l 

b
e
 m

o
re

re
s
p
o

n
s
iv

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l

p
e
o
p
le

. 
 S

o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 i

s
a
lr

e
a
d
y
 a

n
 i

m
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

L
o

n
d
o

n
 e

c
o

n
o
m

y
1
7

a
n
d
 w

e
 a

im
to

 e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
 a

 v
ib

ra
n
t 

s
e
c
to

r 
in

B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

. 
 S

o
c
ia

l
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s
 a

re
 u

s
u
a
ll
y
 s

m
a
ll
 a

n
d

o
ft

e
n
 h

a
v
e
 s

tr
o

n
g
 l

in
k
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

lo
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it

ie
s
 i

n
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
y

a
re

 b
a
s
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
y
 a

re
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 a
n

e
x
c
e
ll
e
n
t 

w
a
y
 o

f 
p
ro

v
id

in
g

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

to
 g

ro
u
p
s
 t

h
a
t

m
ig

h
t 

o
th

e
rw

is
e
 b

e
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
d

fr
o
m

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e

c
o

n
v
e
n
ti

o
n
a
l 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

e
c
to

r.
W

e
 b

e
li
e
v
e
 t

h
a
t 

in
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 t
h
e
y
 c

a
n
 t

a
p
 i

n
to

g
ro

w
th

 i
n
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

u
c
h

a
s
 d

o
m

ic
il
ia

ry
 c

a
re

 a
n
d
 c

h
il
d
c
a
re

a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 h

e
lp

 g
ro

w
th

 i
n
 r

e
c
y
c
li
n
g

in
d
u
s
tr

ie
s
 w

h
e
re

 l
o
w

 p
ro

fi
t

m
a
rg

in
s
 c

a
n
 d

is
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 l

a
rg

e
r

c
o

n
v
e
n
ti

o
n
a
l 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
.

1
1
.3

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 h

e
lp

e
d
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
 a

s
o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 a
n
d

s
e
c
u
re

d
 L

D
A

 f
u
n
d
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e

c
h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e

n
e
tw

o
rk

. 
 W

e
 p

la
y
e
d
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
p
a
rt

in
 s

e
tt

in
g
 u

p
 a

 w
h
it

e
 g

o
o
d
s

re
c
y
c
li
n
g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i

n
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

c
a
ll
e
d
 R

e
n
e
w

 F
ri

e
n
d
s
. 

 T
h
is

c
o
m

b
in

e
s
 i

ts
 r

e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 a

c
ti

v
it

y
w

it
h
 t

ra
in

in
g
 l

o
n
g
 t

e
rm

u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 n

e
w

s
k
il
ls

. 
 W

e
 a

im
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 e
s
ta

b
li
s
h

a
t 

le
a
s
t 

a
n
o
th

e
r 

s
ix

 e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s

b
y
 2

0
0
5
.

In
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
la

b
o
u
r

m
a
rk

e
ts

a
n
d

h
a
rd

to
re

a
c
h

g
ro

u
p
s

1
1
.4

R
e
n
e
w

 F
ri

e
n
d
s
’ 

re
c
y
c
li
n
g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
fo

r 
w

h
it

e
 g

o
o
d
s
 i

s
 a

 f
ir

s
t 

s
te

p
 i

n
o
u
r 

a
m

b
it

io
n
s
 t

o
 c

re
a
te

 a
n

in
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 l

a
b
o
u
r 

m
a
rk

e
t 

to
b
ri

n
g
 i

n
to

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

th
e
 l

o
n
g
-

te
rm

 u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 n

e
v
e
r 

w
o
rk

e
d
,

b
u
t 

w
h
o
 w

is
h
 t

o
. 

 W
e
 w

il
l

e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
 m

o
re

 s
u
c
h
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 t

o
e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
ll
 w

h
o
 w

a
n
t 

to
 f

in
d

w
o
rk

 c
a
n
 f

in
d
 w

a
y
s
 b

a
c
k
 t

o
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.

  
T
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e

W
e
lf

a
re

 t
o
 W

o
rk

 f
o
r 

D
is

a
b
le

d
P
e
o
p
le

 i
n
it

ia
ti

v
e
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

a
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
o
rk

e
r 

in
 t

h
e

v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it

h
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
ir

 j
o
b

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s
. 

 W
e
 w

il
l 

e
x
p
lo

re
p
o
s
s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 f

o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

w
it

h
 t

h
e
 O

s
b
o
rn

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
a

lo
c
a
l 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti

o
n
, 

w
h
ic

h
p
ro

v
id

e
s
 j

o
b
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r

d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

.

B
la

c
k

a
n
d

e
th

n
ic

m
in

o
ri

ty
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

1
1
.5

W
e
 w

il
l 

p
a
y
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
a
tt

e
n
ti

o
n

to
 e

n
s
u
ri

n
g
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f
b
la

c
k
 a

n
d
 m

in
o
ri

ty
 e

th
n
ic

 (
B
M

E
)

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

re
p
ro

p
e
rl

y
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
. 

 L
ik

e
 s

o
c
ia

l
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s
, 

B
M

E
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
li
k
e
ly

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 s

tr
o

n
g
 l

in
k
s
 t

o
lo

c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it

ie
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

to
 g

ro
u
p
s
 t

h
a
t

m
ig

h
t 

o
th

e
rw

is
e
 b

e
d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 j

o
b
 m

a
rk

e
t.

B
u
t 

n
u
m

e
ro

u
s
 s

tu
d
ie

s
 h

a
v
e
 f

o
u
n
d

th
a
t 

B
M

E
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y

A
fr

o
-
C

a
ri

b
b
e
a
n
 o

n
e
s
, 

h
a
v
e

g
re

a
te

r 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
in

g
e
x
te

rn
a
l 

fi
n
a
n
c
e
. 

 W
e
 w

il
l 

s
e
e
k

fu
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
 s

u
rv

e
y
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

B
M

E
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i

n

Page 147



th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 t

o
 i

d
e
n
ti

fy
 t

h
e
ir

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 n
e
e
d
s
. 

H
e
lp

in
g

m
o
re

w
o
m

e
n

in
to

w
o
rk

1
1
.6

F
e
w

e
r 

w
o
m

e
n
 i

n
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 w
o
rk

 t
h
a
n
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o

n
a
v
e
ra

g
e
, 

p
a
rt

ly
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
b
o
ro

u
g
h
's

 t
ra

d
it

io
n
 o

f
m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.

R
e
d
re

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 w

il
l

re
q
u
ir

e
 p

ra
c
ti

c
a
l 

p
o
li
c
y

in
te

rv
e
n
ti

o
n
s
 i

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

c
h
il
d
c
a
re

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

.
T
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d

R
e
n
e
w

a
l 

F
u
n
d
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d

N
u
rs

e
ry

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 S

u
re

S
ta

rt
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

o
m

e
 c

h
il
d

c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

w
o
m

e
n

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
. 

 W
e
 a

re
 n

o
w

b
e
g
in

n
in

g
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 i

n
tr

o
d
u
c
e

C
h
il
d
re

n
's

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
, 

b
u
il
d
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 S

u
re

S
ta

rt
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 A
s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
e
n
a
b
li
n
g
 p

a
re

n
ts

 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 d

a
y

c
a
re

, 
C

h
il
d
re

n
's

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 w

il
l 

o
ff

e
r

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
a
t

w
il
l 

h
e
lp

 b
u
il
d
 w

o
m

e
n
's

 s
k
il
ls

 a
n
d

c
o

n
fi

d
e
n
c
e
 t

o
 e

n
te

r 
in

to
 t

h
e
 j

o
b

m
a
rk

e
t.

H
e
lp

in
g

y
o
u
n
g

e
n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
rs

1
1
.7

L
im

it
e
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s

n
e
tw

o
rk

s
, 

lo
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

s
a
v
in

g
s
, 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
k
il
ls

 a
n
d

e
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
, 

s
o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 c

u
lt

u
ra

l

n
o
rm

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
ro

le
m

o
d
e
ls

, 
a
ll
 a

c
t 

a
s
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o

e
n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
rs

h
ip

 i
n

d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
 a

re
a
s
. 

 T
h
ro

u
g
h

th
e
 l

o
c
a
l 

e
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

th
e
 E

d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
e
 w

il
l 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n

th
e
 c

u
lt

u
re

 o
f 

e
n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
rs

h
ip

in
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 b

y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
tr

o
n
g
e
r 

li
n
k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

a
n
d
 l

o
c
a
l 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 b

y
p
u
b
li
c
is

in
g
 g

o
o
d
 e

x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f
lo

c
a
l 

e
n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
ri

a
l 

a
c
ti

v
it

y
. 

 W
e

w
il
l 

c
o

n
ti

n
u
e
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e

Y
o
u
n
g
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
e
ti

ti
o

n
, 

w
h
ic

h
 e

n
a
b
le

s
s
c
h
o
o
l-

b
a
s
e
d
 t

e
a
m

s
 t

o
 s

e
t 

u
p

a
n
d
 r

u
n
 m

in
i-

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 f

o
r 

u
p

to
 o

n
e
 y

e
a
r.

  
L
o
c
a
l 

a
n
d
 n

a
ti

o
n
a
l

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
h
e
lp

a
n
d
 m

e
n
to

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e
 t

e
a
m

s
. 

 W
e

w
il
l 

e
x
a
m

in
e
 t

h
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 f

o
r

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

h
e
lp

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

P
ri

n
c
e
's

 T
ru

s
t.

  
 

H
e
lp

in
g

y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

w
h
o

h
a
v
e

o
p
te

d
o
u
t

o
f

e
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n

1
1
.8

T
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 h

a
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a
n
t

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o

h
a
v
e
 w

h
o
ll
y
 o

r 
p
a
rt

ia
ll
y
 o

p
te

d
o
u
t 

o
f 

s
e
c
o

n
d
a
ry

 e
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
. 

 W
e

h
a
v
e
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
b
e
s
p
o
k
e
 l

e
a
rn

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 i

n
it

ia
ti

v
e
s
 t

o
m

a
k
e
 s

u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
s
e
 y

o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

 d
o
 n

o
t 

re
a
c
h
 t

h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l

le
a
v
in

g
 a

g
e
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 p

ro
s
p
e
c
t

o
f 

a
 s

k
il
le

d
 j

o
b
 o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g
 p

la
c
e
.

2
6

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 w

il
l 

a
c
t 

to
 m

a
k
e
 s

u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
ll
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it

ie
s

b
e
n
e
fi

t 
fr

o
m

 e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th

Page 148



·
T
h
e
 F

le
x
i 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i

s
in

te
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti

v
e

v
o
c
a
ti

o
n
a
l 

e
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 l

o
n
g
-
te

rm
w

o
rk

 e
x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e
 t

o
 d

is
e
n
g
a
g
e
d

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

, 
s
o
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 a

re
 i

n
 a

p
o
s
it

io
n
 l

a
te

r 
o

n
 t

o
 b

e
n
e
fi

t 
fr

o
m

p
o
s
t-

1
6
 l

e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 m

e
a
n
in

g
fu

l
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.

  
L
o
c
a
l 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

a
re

 m
a
jo

r 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t,

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 w

o
rk

 e
x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 o

n
-
th

e
-
jo

b
tr

a
in

in
g
.

·
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 c

re
a
te

d
 a

 R
e
c
e
p
ti

o
n
 a

n
d

R
e
in

te
g
ra

ti
o

n
 U

n
it

 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

 a
g
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 1

1
 a

n
d
 1

6
w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
je

c
te

d
 t

h
e
 t

ra
d
it

io
n
a
l

s
c
h
o
o
l 

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 

e
n
ti

re
ly

.
T
h
e
 U

n
it

 w
il
l 

s
e
e
k
 t

o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e

th
e
s
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 b
a
c
k
 i

n
to

m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 s
c
h
o
o
li
n
g
, 

o
r 

to
m

o
v
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i

n
to

w
o
rk

 o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
. 

2
7

T
o

e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t

d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
,

o
r

h
a
rd

-
tto

-
rre

a
c
h

g
ro

u
p
s

b
e
n
e
fi

t
fr

o
m

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
g
ro

w
th

in
B
a
rk

in
g

a
n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

,
w

e
w

il
l:

·
d
e
v
e
lo

p
o
u
r

s
o
c
ia

l
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e

n
e
tw

o
rk

th
ro

u
g
h

L
D

A
-
ffu

n
d
e
d

c
h
a
m

p
io

n
s
;

·
h
e
lp

s
e
t

u
p

a
t

le
a
s
t

a
n
o
th

e
r

s
ix

s
o
c
ia

l
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s

b
y

2
0
0
5
;

·
s
u
p
p
o
rt

R
e
n
e
w

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

's
w

h
it

e
g
o
o
d
s

re
c
y
c
li
n
g

s
c
h
e
m

e
;

·
e
s
ta

b
li
s
h

m
o
re

in
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
la

b
o
u
r

m
a
rk

e
t

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
;

·
s
u
p
p
o
rt

th
e

P
ri

n
c
e
's

T
ru

s
t'
s

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
;

·
w

o
rk

w
it

h
B
u
s
in

e
s
s

L
in

k
a
n
d

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s

to
e
n
s
u
re

th
e

n
e
e
d
s

o
f

B
la

c
k

a
n
d

M
in

o
ri

ty
E
th

n
ic

c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
a
re

p
ro

p
e
rl

y
a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
;

·
c
o
n
ti

n
u
e

to
s
u
p
p
o
rt

th
e

Y
o
u
n
g

E
n
te

rp
ri

s
e

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
in

o
u
r

s
c
h
o
o
ls

;
·

p
ro

m
o
te

th
e

v
a
lu

e
o
f

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

c
h
il
d
c
a
re

to
e
n
a
b
le

m
o
re

w
o
m

e
n

to
w

o
rk

;
·

o
ff

e
r

a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

le
a
rn

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

fo
r

y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

o
f

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

s
c
h
o
o
l

a
g
e

w
h
o

h
a
v
e

d
is

e
n
g
a
g
e
d

fr
o
m

tr
a
d
it

io
n
a
l

s
c
h
o
o
li
n
g
.

H
e
lp

in
g
 l

o
c
a
l 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
to

 f
u
lf

il
li
n
g
, 

w
e
ll
 p

a
id

jo
b
s
 i

s
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 t

o
 e

n
d
in

g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e
x
c
lu

s
io

n

Page 149



2
8

1
2
.

H
e
lp

in
g

lo
c
a
l

p
e
o
p
le

in
to

w
o
rk

1
2
.1

L
o
w

 h
is

to
ri

c
 l

e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

s
k
il
ls

 a
n
d

e
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
 i

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d

th
e
 l

o
n
g
-
te

rm
 d

e
c
li
n
e
 i

n
 t

h
e

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

u
n
s
k
il
le

d
 a

n
d
 s

e
m

i-
s
k
il
le

d
 m

a
n
u
a
l 

jo
b
s

1
8

re
n
d
e
rs

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 t
o
 a

w
o
rs

t 
c
a
s
e
 s

c
e
n
a
ri

o
: 

th
a
t 

n
e
w

jo
b
s
 a

re
 c

re
a
te

d
, 

b
u
t 

lo
c
a
l

p
e
o
p
le

 l
a
c
k
 t

h
e
 s

k
il
ls

 a
n
d

q
u
a
li
fi

c
a
ti

o
n
s
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 t

h
e
m

.

V
a
le

n
c
e
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 V

il
la

g
e

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 i

s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 t

o
e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
is

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t

h
a
p
p
e
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
re

e
q
u
ip

p
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 f

u
ll
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f
s
k
il
ls

 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
e
te

 f
o
r

re
w

a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt

e
r 

p
a
id

 j
o
b
s
.

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

s
e
p
a
ra

te
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 f

o
r

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

H
e
lp

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 i
n
to

 W
o
rk

. 
  

1
2
.2

W
e
 a

re
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 a

 n
a
ti

o
n
a
l

re
p
u
ta

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

p
re

v
o
c
a
ti

o
n
a
l

G
C

S
E
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 i

n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

in
d
u
s
tr

y
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t

e
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
 i

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 e

q
u
ip

s
lo

c
a
l 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t,

 i
f 

th
a
t 

is
 w

h
a
t 

th
e
y

c
h
o
o
s
e
. 

 T
h
e
 E

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g

In
n
o
v
a
ti

o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 

ru
n

jo
in

tl
y
 w

it
h
 H

a
v
e
ri

n
g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

,

1
8
T
G

L
P
 s

tu
d
ie

s
 i

n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 

o
n
ly

 a
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

 o
f 

a
n
 e

s
ti

m
a
te

d
 2

0
,0

0
0
 n

e
w

 j
o
b
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

re
a
te

d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 b

y
 2

0
1
6
 w

il
l 

b
e
 i

n
 m

a
n
u

a
l 

o
r 

lo
w

e
r 

g
ra

d
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

c
c
u
p
a
ti

o
n
s
. 

 M
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 a

 t
h
ir

d
 w

il
l 

b
e
 i

n
m

a
n
a
g
e
ri

a
l 

o
r 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
.

Page 150



a
re

 a
b
le

 t
o
 l

e
a
rn

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 l

if
e
 a

n
d

to
 r

e
-
e
q
u
ip

 t
h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e

s
k
il
ls

 s
o
u
g
h
t 

b
y
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

, 
w

e
h
a
v
e
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it

ie
s
 F

u
n
d
 t

o
e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
 a

 L
if

e
lo

n
g
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

C
e
n
tr

e
 i

n
 B

a
rk

in
g
. 

 T
h
is

 w
il
l

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

to
 a

d
u
lt

s
 w

is
h
in

g
 t

o
 c

o
n
ti

n
u
e

th
e
ir

 e
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 w

il
l 

li
n
k
 i

n
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's

 s
e
c
to

r
p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
. 

 H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d
 c

a
re

 w
il
l

b
e
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
fo

c
u
s
. 

1
2
.5

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 g

o
o
d
 l

in
k
s
 w

it
h
 l

o
c
a
l

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 

b
u
t 

w
il
l 

s
e
e
k
 t

o
im

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
s
e
 s

ti
ll
 f

u
rt

h
e
r.

  
W

e
h
a
v
e
 e

m
b
ry

o
n
ic

 w
o
rk

 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y

w
it

h
 C

E
M

E
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
 a

b
o
ro

u
g
h
-
w

id
e
 q

u
a
li
fi

c
a
ti

o
n

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

a
ll
 a

re
a
s
 o

f
m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 e

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
.

W
e
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 s

ta
rt

in
g
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
G

T
I 

to
 b

u
il
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
ir

 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h

S
M

E
s
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
 m

e
n
to

ri
n
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
. 

 W
e
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

h
o
w

 t
o
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 l

in
k
s

w
it

h
 m

a
jo

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

n
d
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f

th
e
 E

d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

1
2
.6

W
e
 w

il
l 

c
o

n
ti

n
u
e
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 J

o
b

N
e
t,

 a
 t

ra
in

in
g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 t

h
a
t 

h
e
lp

s
p
e
o
p
le

 b
e
c
o
m

e
 "

w
o
rk

-
re

a
d
y
" 

a
n
d

w
it

h
 t

h
e
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

a
n
d
 S

k
il
ls

 C
o
u
n
c
il
, 

th
e

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 t

o
 d

e
li
v
e
r 

a
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
te

d
a
n
d
 s

e
a
m

le
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l

p
e
o
p
le

 s
e
e
k
in

g
 t

o
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
ir

s
k
il
ls

 a
n
d
 f

in
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.

  
W

e

2
9

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

s
te

p
s
 o

f
p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 t

o
 C

E
M

E
 o

r 
o
th

e
r

a
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 i

n
 e

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
.

E
x
c
e
ll
e
n
c
e
 i

n
 I

n
d
u
s
tr

y
, 

fu
n
d
e
d
 b

y
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 a

n
d
 D

T
I,
 i

d
e
n
ti

fi
e
s

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

s
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
g
e
d

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

0
 a

n
d
 1

3
 w

h
o
 i

n
te

n
d
 t

o
p
u
rs

u
e
 c

a
re

e
rs

 i
n
 i

n
d
u
s
tr

y
.

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

tu
d
ie

s
 i

s
 t

h
e
 l

a
rg

e
s
t

s
in

g
le

 s
u
b
je

c
t 

a
re

a
 i

n
 G

C
S
E
 a

n
d

p
o
s
t-

1
6
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
's

s
e
c
o

n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 i

s
s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 w

o
rk

 e
x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 E

d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

1
2
.3

T
o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 i

d
e
n
ti

fi
e
d
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 i

n
th

e
 l

o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 f

o
r 

c
a
re

e
rs

in
 h

e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

, 
w

e
 a

re
s
e
e
k
in

g
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
 a

 G
a
te

w
a
y
 t

o
H

e
a
lt

h
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
li
n
e
s
 a

s
 G

a
te

w
a
y
 t

o
 I

n
d
u
s
tr

y
 a

n
d

h
a
v
e
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 L

D
A

 f
u
n
d
in

g
. 

 O
u
r

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
q
u
a
li
fi

c
a
ti

o
n
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
 a

n
d

o
n
e
 i

s
 h

o
s
ti

n
g
 a

n
 L

S
C

 p
il
o
t 

o
f 

a
S
tu

d
e
n
t 

A
p
p
re

n
ti

c
e
s
h
ip

 f
o
r 

C
a
re

.
B
u
il
d
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f
E
x
c
e
ll
e
n
c
e
 i

n
 I

n
d
u
s
tr

y
, 

w
e
 i

n
te

n
d

to
 i

n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 a

 s
im

il
a
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 f

o
r

E
x
c
e
ll
e
n
c
e
 i

n
 H

e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d
 C

a
re

. 
  

1
2
.4

W
e
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 m

a
k
in

g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 t

o
a
d
d
re

s
s
 l

o
w

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

a
d
u
lt

li
te

ra
c
y
 a

n
d
 n

u
m

e
ra

c
y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's

 A
d
u
lt

 B
a
s
ic

 S
k
il
ls

In
it

ia
ti

v
e
. 

 T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
d
u
lt

s

T
o

e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t

lo
c
a
l

p
e
o
p
le

h
a
v
e

th
e

s
k
il
ls

a
n
d

tr
a
in

in
g

th
e
y

n
e
e
d

to
c
o
m

p
e
te

fo
r

h
ig

h
e
r

s
k
il
le

d
a
n
d

b
e
tt

e
r

p
a
id

jo
b
s
,

w
e

w
il
l:

·
s
u
p
p
o
rt

C
E
M

E
th

ro
u
g
h

o
u
r

E
n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g

In
n
o
v
a
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
a
n
d

a
n
e
w

b
o
ro

u
g
h
-
ww

id
e

q
u
a
li
fi

c
a
ti

o
n

fo
r

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g

a
n
d

e
n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
;

·
c
o
n
ti

n
u
e

w
it

h
o
u
r

E
x
c
e
ll
e
n
c
e

in
In

d
u
s
tr

y
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

to
s
u
p
p
o
rt

y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

w
h
o

w
a
n
t

c
a
re

e
rs

in
in

d
u
s
tr

y
;

a
n
d

·
e
s
ta

b
li
s
h

a
s
im

il
a
r

s
c
h
e
m

e
fo

r
E
x
c
e
ll
e
n
c
e

in
H

e
a
lt

h
a
n
d

C
a
re

;
·

im
p
ro

v
e

li
te

ra
c
y

a
n
d

n
u
m

e
ra

c
y

th
ro

u
g
h

th
e

B
a
s
ic

S
k
il
ls

In
it

ia
ti

v
e
;

a
n
d

·
e
s
ta

b
li
s
h

th
e

B
a
rk

in
g

L
if

e
lo

n
g

L
e
a
rn

in
g

C
e
n
tr

e
;

·
c
o
n
ti

n
u
e

to
im

p
ro

v
e

o
u
r

li
n
k
s

w
it

h
lo

c
a
l

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
th

ro
u
g
h

th
e

E
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

;
·

e
v
a
lu

a
te

a
n
d

im
p
ro

v
e

o
u
r

s
c
h
o
o
ls

'
c
a
re

e
rs

e
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
;

·
c
o
n
ti

n
u
e

w
o
rk

w
it

h
Jo

b
N

e
t

to
h
e
lp

m
a
k
e

jo
b

s
e
e
k
e
rs

"w
o
rk

-
rre

a
d
y
";

·
p
ro

v
id

e
h
ig

h
-
qq
u
a
li
ty

w
o
rk

-
bb
a
s
e
d

le
a
rn

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

fo
r

y
o
u
n
g

p
e
o
p
le

a
g
e
d

1
6
-
22
4

y
e
a
rs

;
·

c
o
n
s
id

e
r

w
it

h
o
u
r

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
o
w

w
e

c
a
n

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e

m
o
re

s
m

a
ll

a
n
d

m
e
d
iu

m
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s

to
m

a
k
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

fo
r

tr
a
in

in
g

a
n
d

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

T
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

h
a
s

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
fo

r
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d

H
e
lp

in
g

P
e
o
p
le

In
to

W
o
rk

.

Page 151



a
re

 e
v
a
lu

a
ti

n
g
 o

u
r 

c
a
re

e
rs

e
d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h
 a

 v
ie

w
 t

o
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
ir

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n
e
s
s
.

1
2
.7

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 w

il
l 

c
o

n
ti

n
u
e
 t

o
p
ro

v
id

e
 l

o
c
a
l 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it

h
w

o
rk

-
b
a
s
e
d
 l

e
a
rn

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

t 
B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 T
ra

in
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 B
y

o
ff

e
ri

n
g
 M

o
d
e
rn

 A
p
p
re

n
ti

c
e
s
h
ip

s
a
n
d
 p

re
-
v
o
c
a
ti

o
n
a
l 

E
n
tr

y
 t

o
E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
, 

w
e

w
il
l 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

ta
rg

e
ts

 t
h
a
t 

8
0
%

 o
f 

1
6
-
1
8
 y

e
a
r

o
ld

s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i

n
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
d

le
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 2

8
%

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
M

o
d
e
rn

 A
p
p
re

n
ti

c
e
s
h
ip

s
 b

y
2
0
0
4
. 

 A
b
o
u
t 

8
%

 o
f 

th
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
's

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
re

c
u
rr

e
n
tl

y
 i

n
 w

o
rk

-
b
a
s
e
d
 l

e
a
rn

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
.

1
2
.8

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's

 w
o
rk

 n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
c
o
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 b

y
 b

e
tt

e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 b

y
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

th
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
. 

 F
o
rd

s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r

la
rg

e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 a
re

 a
lr

e
a
d
y

c
lo

s
e
ly

 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
,

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 C

E
M

E
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 b
u
t 

fe
w

 s
m

a
ll
 a

n
d

m
e
d
iu

m
 e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e

m
u
c
h
 t

ra
in

in
g
.1

9
W

e
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 c

o
-

s
p
o

n
s
o
r 

G
a
te

w
a
y
 t

o
 I

n
d
u
s
tr

y
, 

a
b
o
d
y
 d

e
d
ic

a
te

d
 t

o
 h

e
lp

in
g

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 t
ra

in
th

e
ir

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 i

n
 c

h
a
n
g
in

g
s
k
il
ls

. 
 W

e
 w

il
l 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

w
it

h
 G

T
I,

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 L

in
k
, 

th
e
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 C
h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 a

n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

th
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 h

o
w

 w
e
 m

ig
h
t

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
b
e
tt

e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

3
0

1
9
A

c
c
o
rd

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 S

k
il
ls

 F
o
re

c
a
s
ti

n
g
 U

n
it

, 
o

n
ly

 2
4
%

 o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 E

a
s
t 

L
S
C

 a
re

a
 h

a
d
 a

 t
ra

in
in

g
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

in
 2

0
0

1
, 

th
e
 l

o
w

e
s
t 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 i

n
 L

o
n
d
o

n
.

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s
 f

o
r 

s
k
il
ls

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le

 t
o
 a

ll
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it

y

Page 152



3
1

1
3
.

U
s
in

g
th

e
c
o
u
n
c
il
's

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
p
o
w

e
r

1
3
.1

T
h
e
 p

u
b
li
c
 s

e
c
to

r 
a
s
 a

 w
h
o
le

 -
h
e
a
lt

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

p
o
li
c
e
 a

n
d
 f

ir
e

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 -

e
m

p
lo

y
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 a

 f
if

th
 a

n
d
 a

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
's

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
. 

  
T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 i

ts
e
lf

e
m

p
lo

y
s
 8

,5
0
0
 s

ta
ff

 a
n
d
 b

u
y
s

g
o
o
d
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

o
rt

h
 m

a
n
y

m
il
li
o

n
s
 e

v
e
ry

 y
e
a
r.

  
W

e
 w

il
l

th
e
re

fo
re

 u
s
e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's

in
fl

u
e
n
c
e
 t

o
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 t

h
e
 l

o
c
a
l

e
c
o

n
o
m

y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 i

ts
 o

w
n

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ra

c
ti

c
e
s
. 

 O
u
r

o
v
e
rr

id
in

g
 a

im
 -

 a
n
d
 l

e
g
is

la
ti

v
e

d
u
ty

 -
 i

s
 t

o
 g

e
t 

b
e
s
t 

v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r

lo
c
a
l 

p
e
o
p
le

, 
ir

re
s
p
e
c
ti

v
e
 o

f
w

h
e
re

 g
o
o
d
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
s
o
u
rc

e
d
. 

 B
u
t 

w
h
e
re

v
e
r

c
o

n
s
is

te
n
t 

w
it

h
 b

e
s
t 

v
a
lu

e
, 

w
e

w
il
l 

p
ro

c
u
re

 l
o
c
a
ll
y
 w

h
e
re

p
o
s
s
ib

le
, 

s
o
 a

s
 t

o
 r

e
-
in

v
e
s
t 

in
th

e
 l

o
c
a
l 

e
c
o

n
o
m

y
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
s
u
p
p
ly

 c
h
a
in

s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
.

A
n
d
 w

h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 w

e
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 o

u
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e

h
e
a
lt

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

p
u
b
li
c

s
e
c
to

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 t
o
 d

o
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
.

1
3
.2

W
e
 w

il
l 

c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

re
s
e
a
rc

h
 t

o
e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
 w

h
a
t 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
it

s
g
o
o
d
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
, 

w
h
a
t

th
e
 l

im
it

in
g
 f

a
c
to

rs
 a

re
 t

o
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
is

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 a

n
d

h
o
w

 w
e
 m

ig
h
t 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
m

.2
0

O
u
r 

fi
n
d
in

g
s
 w

il
l 

h
e
lp

 u
s
 b

u
il
d

lo
c
a
l 

c
a
p
a
c
it

y
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
e
te

 f
o
r

c
o
u
n
c
il
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

. 
 F

o
r 

s
o
m

e
 t

im
e

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
d
 (

w
it

h
 t

h
e

C
h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
) 

s
e
m

in
a
rs

fo
r 

lo
c
a
l 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d

v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti

o
n
s
 t

o
e
x
p
la

in
 t

h
e
 l

e
g
is

la
ti

v
e

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's

re
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t

h
e

p
ra

c
ti

c
a
li
ti

e
s
 o

f 
te

n
d
e
ri

n
g
. 

 W
e

w
il
l 

a
s
s
is

t 
s
o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s
,

o
n
c
e
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
, 

to
 b

id
 f

o
r

C
o
u
n
c
il
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

.

1
3
.3

W
e
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 t

a
k
e
 s

te
p
s
 t

o
im

p
ro

v
e
 o

u
r 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ti

n
g
 s

y
s
te

m
s

to
 h

e
lp

 l
o
c
a
l 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 c

o
m

p
e
te

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

ll
y
. 

 W
e
 w

il
l 

e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
 a

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ry
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's

In
tr

a
n
e
t,

 s
o
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll
 s

ta
ff

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d

in
 p

ro
c
u
ri

n
g
 g

o
o
d
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

fo
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 w

il
l 

h
a
v
e
 e

a
s
y

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 u

p
-
to

-
d
a
te

T
o

u
s
e

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
's

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
m

u
s
c
le

to
s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

in
B
a
rk

in
g

a
n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

,
w

e
w

il
l:

·
p
ro

c
u
re

lo
c
a
ll
y
,

w
h
e
re

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t

w
it

h
b
e
s
t

v
a
lu

e
;

·
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e

o
u
r

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

in
th

e
re

s
t

o
f

th
e

p
u
b
li
c

s
e
c
to

r,
th

ro
u
g
h

th
e

B
a
rk

in
g

a
n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

,
to

d
o

th
e

s
a
m

e
;

·
id

e
n
ti

fy
th

e
c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
to

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
th

e
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

o
f

C
o
u
n
c
il

g
o
o
d
s

a
n
d

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

s
o
u
rc

e
d

w
it

h
in

th
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h

a
n
d

d
e
v
e
lo

p
w

a
y
s

to
a
d
d
re

s
s

th
e
m

;
·

c
o
n
ti

n
u
e

to
o
rg

a
n
is

e
w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s

fo
r

lo
c
a
l

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

o
n

te
n
d
e
ri

n
g
;

·
a
s
s
is

t
s
o
c
ia

l
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s
,

o
n
c
e

e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
,

to
b
id

fo
r

c
o
u
n
c
il

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

;
·

in
v
e
s
ti

g
a
te

th
e

p
o
s
s
ib

il
it

y
o
f

a
jo

in
t

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

te
n
d
e
ri

n
g

s
c
h
e
m

e
o
f

E
a
s
t

L
o
n
d
o
n

b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
;

·
u
s
e

s
e
rv

ic
e

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

to
m

e
e
t

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

o
b
je

c
ti

v
e
s
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
s
k
il
ls

a
n
d

tr
a
in

in
g

p
ro

v
is

io
n
;

·
c
o
n
s
id

e
r

w
h
e
th

e
r

to
m

a
k
e

II
P

a
c
c
re

d
it

a
ti

o
n

a
c
o
n
d
it

io
n

in
o
u
r

s
e
rv

ic
e

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

;
·

e
x
te

n
d

th
e

w
o
rk

o
f

th
e

le
a
rn

in
g

c
h
a
m

p
io

n
s
.

2
0
R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
 b

y
 N

e
w

h
a
m

 C
o
u
n
c
il
 s

h
o
w

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

o
n
e
 i

n
 t

h
re

e
 o

f 
it

s
 s

u
p
p
li
e
rs

 w
e
re

 l
o
c
a
te

d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

 B
u
t 

m
a
n
y
 w

e
re

 s
m

a
ll
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 

o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 c

lo
s
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 m

a
rg

in
s
, 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 t
o

e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 s

h
o
c
k
s
 a

n
d
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
ll
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 r
e
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

e
-
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.

Page 153



in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
re

c
u
rr

e
n
tl

y
 t

e
n
d
e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t-

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n
 L

in
e
. 

 W
e
 w

il
l

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

to
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
 a

jo
in

t 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 f

o
r 

E
a
s
t 

L
o

n
d
o

n
b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

o
re

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
u
ld

m
a
x
im

is
e
 t

h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s
 f

o
r

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 e

m
p
lo

y
in

g
 l

o
c
a
l

la
b
o
u
r.

  
T
h
e
re

 m
a
y
 b

e
 g

re
a
te

r
s
c
o
p
e
 f

o
r 

a
w

a
rd

in
g
 t

h
e
 s

m
a
ll
e
s
t

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 (
u
n
d
e
r 

£
3
,0

0
0
 i

n
 v

a
lu

e
)

to
 l

o
c
a
l 

fi
rm

s
. 

 F
o
r 

la
rg

e
r

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 (
u
p
 t

o
 £

3
0
,0

0
0
) 

w
e
 w

il
l

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

a
 s

ti
p
u
la

ti
o

n
 t

h
a
t 

a
t

le
a
s
t 

o
n
e
 l

o
c
a
l 

fi
rm

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e

a
m

o
n
g
 t

h
e
 t

h
re

e
 f

o
rm

a
l 

q
u
o
te

s
re

q
u
ir

e
d
, 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 l

o
c
a
l

c
a
p
a
c
it

y
.

1
3
.4

W
e
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 e

x
a
m

in
e
 h

o
w

 t
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
's

 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
s

c
a
n
 b

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e

te
rm

s
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 f
o
r 

g
o
o
d
s
 a

n
d

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 W
e
 a

re
 s

ta
rt

in
g
 t

o
 d

o
m

o
re

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 h
e
lp

 l
o
c
a
l 

p
e
o
p
le

c
o
m

p
e
te

 f
o
r 

th
e
 j

o
b
s
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
d
,

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 b
y
 m

a
k
in

g
 t

ra
in

in
g

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

a
rg

e
t

w
it

h
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t.

  
W

e
 w

il
l

m
a
k
e
 s

u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f
b
la

c
k
 a

n
d
 e

th
n
ic

 m
in

o
ri

ty
 p

e
o
p
le

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

h
a
rd

-
to

-
re

a
c
h
 g

ro
u
p
s

a
re

 n
o
t 

o
v
e
rl

o
o
k
e
d
. 

1
3
.5

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 i

s
 c

o
m

m
it

te
d
 t

o
 t

h
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 w

e
ll
 b

e
in

g
 o

f
it

s
 s

ta
ff

 a
n
d
 i

s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 t

h
e

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

In
v
e
s
to

rs
 i

n
 P

e
o
p
le

a
c
c
re

d
it

a
ti

o
n
. 

 W
e
 w

il
l 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r

w
h
e
th

e
r 

to
 m

a
k
e
 I

IP
 a

c
c
re

d
it

a
ti

o
n

a
 c

o
n
d
it

io
n
 i

n
 o

u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

. 
 I

t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
h
e
lp

 o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a
l 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
ir

 s
ta

ff
 b

y
 s

h
a
ri

n
g

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 o

u
r 

p
ra

c
ti

c
e
,

w
h
e
re

 i
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 j

u
d
g
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
g
o
o
d
. 

 W
it

h
 o

u
r 

tr
a
d
e
s
 u

n
io

n
s
 w

e
w

il
l 

c
o

n
ti

n
u
e
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e

w
o
rk

 o
f 

"l
e
a
rn

in
g
 c

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
"

a
n
d
 s

e
e
k
 w

a
y
s
 t

o
 s

h
a
re

 t
h
e
ir

s
k
il
ls

 w
it

h
 o

th
e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
.

3
2

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 s

p
e
n
d
s
 m

il
li
o

n
s
 o

f 
p
o
u
n
d
s
 e

v
e
ry

y
e
a
r 

o
n
 e

v
e
ry

th
in

g
 f

ro
m

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 h

o
u
s
in

g
to

 f
u
e
li
n
g
 i

ts
  

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 f
le

e
t.

  
W

e
 w

il
l 

tr
y
 t

o
m

a
k
e
 s

u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
s
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 b
e
n
e
fi

t 
lo

c
a
l

p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 l

o
c
a
l 

e
c
o

n
o
m

y
.

Page 154



3
3

1
4
.

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ti

n
g

th
is

s
tr

a
te

g
y

1
4
.1

T
h
is

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

is
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

d
b
y
 a

n
 a

c
ti

o
n
 p

la
n
 t

h
a
t 

s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

in
m

o
re

 d
e
ta

il
 h

o
w

 w
e
 i

n
te

n
d
 t

o
a
c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 w

il
l 

b
e

c
o
o
rd

in
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it

o
re

d
 b

y
 a

c
ro

s
s
c
u
tt

in
g
 "

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

G
ro

w
th

" 
g
ro

u
p
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
, 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
's

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
B
o
a
rd

.

1
4
.2

O
u
r 

p
la

n
s
 a

re
 a

m
b
it

io
u
s
 a

n
d
 w

il
l

n
e
e
d
 a

 s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti

a
l 

in
je

c
ti

o
n
 o

f
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

 W
e
 w

il
l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

fu
n
d
in

g
 p

la
n
 t

o
 s

e
c
u
re

 t
h
is

. 
 W

e
a
lr

e
a
d
y
 b

e
n
e
fi

t 
fr

o
m

 E
u
ro

p
e
a
n

R
e
g
io

n
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

F
u
n
d

(E
R
D

F
) 

fu
n
d
in

g
, 

b
u
t 

th
is

 w
il
l

c
o
m

e
 t

o
 a

n
 e

n
d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

fe
w

y
e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 w

e
 w

il
l 

e
x
p
lo

re
 o

th
e
r

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 E

U
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
 t

o
re

p
la

c
e
 i

t.
  

W
e
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 b

id
 f

o
r

L
D

A
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

e
e
k
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

d
d
it

io
n
a
l

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it

ie
s
 P

la
n
.

In
 a

ll
 c

a
s
e
s
, 

w
e
 w

il
l 

b
id

 f
o
r

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 e

n
a
b
le

 u
s
 t

o
m

a
k
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 o

u
r

o
v
e
ra

ll
 v

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 w

il
l 

n
o
t 

c
h
a
s
e

fu
n
d
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
ir

 o
w

n
 s

a
k
e
.

1
4
.3

W
e
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 b
y
 t

h
e

T
re

a
s
u
ry

 a
n
d
 O

D
P
M

 t
o
 a

ll
o
w

lo
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
 t

o
 r

e
ta

in
 m

o
re

o
f 

th
e
 i

n
c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s

ra
te

s
. 

 W
e
 w

il
l 

re
s
p
o

n
d
 t

o
 t

h
e

c
o

n
s
u
lt

a
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 a

re
 a

c
ti

v
e
ly

c
o

n
s
id

e
ri

n
g
 a

 b
id

 t
o
 m

a
k
e

B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 o
n
e
 o

f
th

e
 p

il
o
t 

lo
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

n
e
w

 s
c
h
e
m

e
. 

 I
f 

w
e
 a

re
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l,
 w

e
 w

il
l 

p
lo

u
g
h
 b

a
c
k

a
ll
 a

d
d
it

io
n
a
l 

in
c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
is

s
o
u
rc

e
 i

n
to

 t
h
e
 i

m
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
o
f 

th
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
.

1
4
.4

T
h
e
 m

a
jo

r 
h
o
u
s
in

g
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

L
o

n
d
o

n
 R

iv
e
rs

id
e
, 

th
e
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n

o
f 

th
e
 r

e
g
io

n
's

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

re
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 D
o
c
k
,

w
il
l 

c
re

a
te

 m
a
jo

r 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s

fo
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 g

a
in

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o

fu
n
d
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

 W
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

lr
e
a
d
y

u
s
e
d
 t

h
e
s
e
 t

o
 g

re
a
t 

e
ff

e
c
t 

in
b
e
g
in

n
in

g
 t

h
e
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

 D
o
c
k
. 

 W
e
 w

il
l

e
x
p
lo

re
 w

a
y
s
 t

o
 u

s
e
 S

e
c
ti

o
n
 1

0
6

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 m
o
re

 c
re

a
ti

v
e
ly

 i
n

fu
n
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 i

m
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f
th

is
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
.

1
4
.5

W
e
 w

il
l 

re
p
o
rt

 e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

o
n

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f

th
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 i

ts
 a

c
ti

o
n
 p

la
n
,

u
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
's

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 s

e
t 

o
f

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 f

o
r

e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

  
T
h
is

 w
il
l

b
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
-

li
g
h
t,

 i
n
te

rn
a
l 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

 T
h
e
re

w
il
l 

b
e
 a

 m
o
re

 i
n
-
d
e
p
th

 r
e
v
ie

w
,

in
v
o
lv

in
g
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
a
ft

e
r

th
re

e
 y

e
a
rs

, 
w

h
e
n
 a

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 t

o
d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 n
e
w

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 m

a
y
 b

e
ta

k
e
n
.

In
im

p
le

m
e
n
ti

n
g

th
is

s
tr

a
te

g
y
,

w
e

w
il
l:

·
c
re

a
te

a
c
ro

s
s
-
cc
u
tt

in
g

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

a
n
d

jo
b
s

g
ro

u
p

w
it

h
in

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
;

·
d
e
v
e
lo

p
a

fu
n
d
in

g
s
tr

a
te

g
y

to
s
e
c
u
re

E
U

,
L
D

A
a
n
d

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

fu
n
d
in

g
;

·
b
id

o
n
ly

fo
r

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

th
a
t

fi
t

w
it

h
o
u
r

v
is

io
n

a
n
d

s
tr

a
te

g
y

fo
r

th
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
;

·
m

a
k
e

fu
ll

u
s
e

o
f

S
e
c
ti

o
n

1
0
6

p
la

n
n
in

g
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

to
s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

g
ro

w
th

;
·

e
v
a
lu

a
te

p
ro

g
re

s
s

e
a
c
h

y
e
a
r

a
g
a
in

s
t

th
e

A
u
d
it

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
;

·
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e

a
n

in
-
dd
e
p
th

re
v
ie

w
w

it
h

o
u
r

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

a
ft

e
r

th
re

e
y
e
a
rs

.

Page 155



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
B
a
rk

in
g

a
n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

:
c
u
rr

e
n
t

p
ro

v
is

io
n

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
o
r

p
e
rs

o
n
n
e
l 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

w
o
rk

in
g
 i

n
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

D
a
g
e
n
h
a
m

.

1
. 

G
a
te

w
a
y
 t

o
 I

n
d
u
s
tr

y
: 

a
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

im
e
d

a
t 

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
, 

o
ff

e
ri

n
g

b
e
s
p
o
k
e
 t

ra
in

in
g
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
a
n
d
 a

n
 i

n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti

o
n
 t

o
m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 f

o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

.
(C

o
n
ta

c
t 

D
e
b
b
ie

 W
re

n
 0

2
0
8
 5

2
6

1
4
9
2
)

2
. 

G
a
te

w
a
y
 t

o
 L

o
n
d
o

n
: 

a
 s

u
b
-

re
g
io

n
a
l 

in
w

a
rd

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

a
g
e
n
c
y
 s

e
rv

in
g
 T

h
a
m

e
s
 G

a
te

w
a
y

(L
o

n
d
o

n
).

  
G

T
L
 w

o
rk

s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e

b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
lo

c
a
te

 w
it

h
in

 t
h
e
 G

a
te

w
a
y
 a

re
a

a
n
d
 h

a
s
 a

 d
e
d
ic

a
te

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

fo
r

B
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e
n
h
a
m

.
(C

o
n
ta

c
t 

Ju
d
y
 C

h
a
p
m

a
n
 0

2
0
7

5
4
0
 5

5
7
1
)

3
. 

In
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 

E
s
ta

te
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
:

c
u
rr

e
n
tl

y
 h

a
s
 t

w
o
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s

o
ff

e
ri

n
g
 g

ra
n
ts

 (
w

h
ic

h
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
m

a
tc

h
e
d
 b

y
 c

o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
) 

to
im

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

in
d
u
s
tr

ia
l

e
s
ta

te
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

 (
C

o
n
ta

c
t

Jo
 S

in
c
la

ir
 0

1
0
8
 2

2
7
 2

2
8
0
.)

  
T
h
e

A
ll
e
y
g
a
te

r 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 s

e
e
k
s
 t

o
p
re

v
e
n
t 

fl
y
-
ti

p
p
in

g
 a

n
d

v
a
n
d
a
li
s
m

 i
n
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 p

a
rt

s
 o

f
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

 (
C

o
n
ta

c
t 

C
li
v
e

V
a
ll
is

 o
n
 0

2
0
8
 2

2
7
 5

4
3
7
) 

4
. 

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti

o
n
 t

o
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
: 

th
e
 E

a
s
t

L
o

n
d
o

n
 S

m
a
ll
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

e
n
tr

e
p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t

ra
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

s
ta

rt
-
u
p

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

 T
h
is

is
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

d
 b

y
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s

a
d
v
ic

e
. 

 E
L
S
B
C

 a
ls

o
 o

p
e
ra

te
s
 l

o
w

-
c
o
s
t 

lo
a
n
s
 o

f 
u
p
 t

o
 £

1
0
,0

0
0
.

(C
o

n
ta

c
t 

P
a
u
li
n
e
 B

a
rn

e
tt

 o
n
 0

2
0
7

3
7
7
 8

8
2
1
)

5
. 

G
a
te

w
a
y
 t

o
 H

e
a
lt

h
: 

a
 t

ra
in

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 w

a
n
t

to
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 t

h
e
 h

e
a
lt

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
.

(C
o

n
ta

c
t 

T
e
rr

y
 R

e
g
a
n
 o

n
 0

2
0
8

2
2
7
 2

2
3
9
)

6
. 

S
o
c
ia

l 
E
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 N

e
tw

o
rk

: 
a

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 n
e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
s
e
c
to

r 
g
ro

u
p
s
 w

is
h
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
s
o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 n

e
tw

o
rk

is
 a

s
s
is

te
d
 b

y
 a

 S
o
c
ia

l 
E
n
te

rp
ri

s
e

C
h
a
m

p
io

n
 w

h
o
 w

o
rk

s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e

g
ro

u
p
s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 t
h
e
ir

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

  
(C

o
n
ta

c
t 

Jo
S
in

c
la

ir
 o

n
 0

1
0
8
 2

2
7
 2

2
8
0
)

7
. 

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
a
d
v
ic

e
: 

a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 o

n
 e

n
e
rg

y
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,

 w
a
s
te

  
  

re
d
u
c
ti

o
n

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
te

c
h
n
iq

u
e
s
 i

s
 a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
B
u
s
in

e
s
s

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 1

-
2
-
3

p
ro

je
c
t.

  
(C

o
n
ta

c
t 

M
a
tt

 R
o
b
in

s
o

n
o
r 

S
im

o
n
 G

o
ld

s
m

it
h
 o

n
 0

2
0
7

2
2
9
6
).

  
S
M

E
s
 w

it
h
 u

ti
li
ty

 b
il
ls

 o
f

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 £

5
,0

0
0
 a

n
d
 £

5
0
,0

0
0

c
a
n
 g

a
in

 e
n
e
rg

y
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 h

e
lp

w
it

h
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

fr
o
m

 S
M

E
A

C
 o

n
0
2
0
8
 5

2
1
 6

4
1
7
).

 

8
. 

A
d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 r

e
g
u
la

ti
o

n
s
: 

h
e
lp

 w
it

h
fo

o
d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r

re
g
u
la

to
ry

 m
a
tt

e
rs

 i
s
 a

v
a
il
a
b
le

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
's

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt

h
D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t.

  
(C

o
n
ta

c
t 

C
li
v
e

V
a
ll
is

 o
n
 0

2
0
8
 2

2
7
 5

4
3
7
).

3
4

Page 156



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

28 OCTOBER 2003 
 

REPORT FROM THE DIRECTOR OF LEISURE AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
 

TANTONY GREEN OPEN SPACE: DOORSTEP GREEN 
SCHEME BID AND MARKS GATE AGENDA 21 
NEIGHBOURHOOD PARTNERSHIP 
 

FOR DECISION 
 

The funding for this scheme is not in the current estimates and therefore the consent of the 
Executive is required before the scheme can proceed further.  In addition this is a new 
venture for the Council for which the policy needs to be set. 
 
 
Summary 
 
There is a small amount of expenditure available for improvements to Tantony Green in the 
Neighbourhood Action Plan, however, there is now an opportunity to obtain a much larger 
Capital injection by working with the Marks Gate Agenda 21 Neighbourhood Partnership.  
A joint bid between the Agenda 21 Partnership and Council for grant aid to the Countryside 
Agency, under their Doorstep Greens Programme, together with funds from Section 106 
Agreements could provide additional funding in the region of £62,700 for further 
enhancements. 
 
The conditions of the grant would require the Council, as landowner, to enter into 
agreements with a community organisation and the grant-making organisation regarding 
the future use, maintenance and management of one of its open spaces. 
 
This is an ideal opportunity to encourage local residents to participate in the improvement 
of their local environment and taking ‘moral ownership’ of the area to ensure the area is 
maintained to a high standard in the future. 
 
The project’s progress and match funding by the Council will be subject to the Council’s 
project assessment process. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The Executive is recommended to agree to: 
 
(i) The Council working with the local community and Marks Gate Agenda 21 

Neighbourhood Partnership to set out a Management Plan for the future 
maintenance of Tantony Green (which will then be implemented in conjunction with 
the Marks Gate Agenda 21 Neighbourhood Partnership);and, 

 
(ii) To bid on behalf of the partners for grant aid from the Countryside Agency and any 

other potential funding bodies, and if the Doorstep Green application is successful 
 

(a) To the Council entering into a Deed of Covenant with the Countryside 
Agency regarding the future disposal of all or part of Tantony Green. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 11

Page 157



(b) The future maintenance, to be undertaken in association with the Marks 
Gate Agenda 21 Neighbourhood Partnership, in line with a Management 
Plan and to standards agreed with the Agenda 21 Partnership and 
Countryside Agency at the outset; 

(c) And subject to grant funding being obtained for improvements to Tantony 
Green to agree to the Council acting as Project Managers and accordingly 
that funding is set aside in the Estimates to enable the use of any grant 
money awarded by the Countryside Agency (the Creation Grant) for the 
purposes of making improvements to Tantony Green in line with the 
master plan. 

 
Ward Affected - Chadwell Heath 
 
Reason 
 
To assist the Council in achieving its Community Priorities of “Making Barking and 
Dagenham Cleaner, Greener and Safer”, Raising General Pride in the Borough” and 
“Developing Rights and Responsibilities with the Local Community”. 
 
Contact 
Peter Parkin 

 
Parks and Countryside 
Manager 
 

 
Tel: 020 8227 3079  
Fax: 020 8227 3129 
Minicom: 020 8227 3034 
E-mail: peter.parkin@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1 Tantony Green is the Public Open Space in the centre of Marks Gate Estate.  

Funding of £15,000 in the Single Regeneration Budget (SRB Round 6) Fund was 
allocated for improvements to the Green.  After consultation with the local 
community, the money is to be used to fund the provision of a football pitch, 
including reseeding an area with a hard-wearing grass seed mix, and tree and 
shrub planting. 

 
1.2 Improvements over the last 5 years have included refurbishment of children’s play 

equipment, provision of a new toddler’s playground, a “wheels” area, a basketball 
court and a teen shelter.  However, these have all been on the southern side of 
the Green.  The current proposals will enable works to balance the overall effect 
and make the impact of the improvements more visually and practically appealing 
to a wider range of potential users and create a safe play environment.  In recent 
years bids have been made under the ‘major non-recurring maintenance scheme’ 
to fund the removal of the existing remains of the derelict concrete fence, currently 
estimated at £25,000, but other work of a higher priority, and shortage of funding 
has meant that to date it has not been possible to do this work. 

 
2. Current Position and Proposals 
 
2.1 Enthused by their involvement in recent improvements, and seeing the possibility 

of what could be achieved, the local community, represented by the Marks Gate 
Agenda 21 Neighbourhood Partnership, have encouraged Officers to approach the 

Page 158



Countryside Agency, under their Doorstep Greens programme.  This could provide 
potential funding in the region of £62,700 for further enhancements, including the 
removal of the remains of the derelict concrete fence (which once surrounded the 
Green) and its replacement with more appropriate ornamental railings, and 
planting and may include the provision of paths, mounding and seating, to 
transform what is currently a flat, wide open space into an area of greater 
landscape interest.  A sketch master plan of the area showing some of the ideas 
put forward by the community is attached as Appendix A.  However, this initial 
scheme may change as the options that can be provided will need to meet the 
funding that is available. 

 
2.2 Doorstep Green funding is not available to local authorities in isolation; 

applications will only be accepted where there are partnerships with community-
based organisations.  However, in order to ensure that any money they make 
available will be properly spent to the long-term benefit of the community, the 
Countryside Agency require there to be in place a formal agreement between 
themselves and the landowner (in this case the Council) covering not only the 
improvements planned, but also the long-term ongoing use, management and 
maintenance of the improved area.  It is envisaged that the community would also 
be involved in the future maintenance and management of the area. 

 
3. Agreements and Obligations 
 
3.1 In order to benefit from the grant the Council will need to enter into three separate 

Agreements. 
 

3.2 Deed of Covenant  
  

Under this the Council will be required to agree to not, sell, lease or otherwise 
dispose of all or part of the Green without the prior consent of the Countryside 
Agency and will not create any legal charge over the land. 

 
3.3 Grant Application Conditions 

 
In accepting the grant the Council will be required to accept the terms and 
conditions in respect of that grant, which will include: 
 
(a) that Tantony Green must only thereafter be used and maintained as an 

open space available for informal recreation, play, a place for local 
community events or other lawful purposes and consistent with uses for 
the general benefit of the community.  Access to Tantony Green must be 
free for all members of the community save that a charge can be levied for 
access to all or part of Tantony Green if it is being used for a charitable or 
similar event, provided the entrance fee is used for the maintenance of 
Tantony Green. 

 
(b) that the grant will only be used in respect of Tantony Green. 
 
(c) that the Council will enter into a Partnership Agreement with the Local 

Community Group relating to the implementation of the initial plan and the 
onward maintenance of and use of Tantony Green.  

 

Page 159



3.4 Partnership Agreement 
 

3.4.1 The Council will need to enter into a partnership agreement with Marks 
Gate Agenda 21 Neighbourhood Partnership, which will cover such 
aspects as: 

 
(a) Creation of a Steering Group to oversee the improvements and 

the subsequent maintenance of the area; 
 
(b) How the Agenda 21 Partnership will become involved, in a 

voluntary capacity, in the ongoing works, as set out in the 
Management Plan; 

 
(c) Preparation of a Management Plan (referred to as The Ongoing 

Works). 
 

3.4.2 Even though the Council would enter into a Partnership Agreement the 
Council would still retain ownership of the land and, therefore, all 
obligations in respect of it. 

 
3.5 The fine details of all the above agreements remain to be worked out between the 

prospective parties, but the above headings will give a flavour of the areas to be 
covered. 

 
4. Financial Implications 
 
4.1 The conditions surrounding the Doorstep Greens programme of grants to 

community groups reflects the Government’s agenda of encouraging the direct 
involvement of individuals and groups in improving, maintaining and managing the 
facilities within their community.  It also reflects a concern to ensure that, once 
initial grant money has been used, the improved facilities continue to be 
maintained to an acceptable standard, agreed by and also involving, members of 
the local community.  There is therefore an ongoing Revenue consequence of 
becoming involved in a partnership which has the potential to bring about 
significant improvements to community facilities which have, until now, been 
regarded as the sole responsibility of the Council to fund and to maintain.   

 
4.2 Capital Costs 
 

4.2.1 A Doorstep Green grant would enable significant improvements to be 
made to Tantony Green, in line with the wishes of the local community, 
and would represent an injection of external funding which is in line with 
the Funding the Future segment of the Council’s Balanced Scorecard. 

 
4.2.2 The maximum potential funding from external sources to improve Tantony 

Green and to create a Doorstep Green therefore is:  

Page 160



 
External sources 
 
Single Regeneration Budget Round 6 
(already in place) 

£  15,000

Section 106 Funds (Gravel Extraction) 
 

£    5,700

Countryside Agency – Doorstep Green (potential grant) £  57,000
 

TOTAL  £77,700
 
 
4.3 Revenue Costs 
 

4.3.1 Current maintenance costs of the grass areas of Tantony Green are 
minimal, as the majority of the area is flat, short-mown grass.  The 
contract cost is £1,735.33 per year. 

 
4.3.2 Future Revenue costs will increase as a result of enhancements to the 

landscaping, tree and shrub planting, and the provision of paths and a 
fence, all of which will require maintenance, repair and periodic 
replacement.  This is an inevitable consequence of enhancing the area.   

 
4.3.3 Until the detailed landscape plans are agreed, the revised cost cannot be 

accurately estimated.  However, on the basis of a current master plan 
drawn up following consultation with the community, maintenance costs 
are estimated at £2,797.82.  In addition, further enhancements might be 
carried out by the use of volunteers from the local community, although 
the financial value of this cannot be accurately estimated at present.   

 
4.3.4 This shortfall between future costs and current costs could theoretically be 

met from the Parks contract contingency sum.  However, the Executive is 
asked to note that this will reduce the budget for maintenance or minor 
improvements in all the other parks, which could be seen by the public as 
detrimental to the rest of the parks. 

 
4.4 Claw Back  
 
 The Council would not be able to dispose or change the use of Tantony Green 

without the Countryside Agency’s consent.  Even if consent were to be granted, 
the Agency will require repayment of the grant. 

 
5. Project Timetable 
 
 The timetable below is based upon funding being made available from 2005 

onwards. 

Page 161



 
Draw Up Draft Agreements and Submit Application 
to Countryside Agency 

Autumn 2003 

Result of Application Known December 2003 
Project Pre Start Preparation Phase  
(inc tender preparation) 

Jan 2004 to Spring 2004 

Complete Existing SRB 6 Funded Works Spring 2004 
Start on Site Summer 2004 
Completion Summer 2005 

 
6. Consultation 
 
 Consultation on the proposals has been held with the following and indications are 

that there are no objections to the way forward and this report as it stands.   
 

External 
 
Local community at Marks Gate, via the Marks Gate Agenda 21 Neighbourhood 
Partnership Sarah Wicks, Groundwork Trust 
 
Internal 
 
Corporate Strategy: 
Bill Bennett, Property and Contracts Law, Legal Services 
 
Leisure and Environmental Services: 
Laura Williams and Bob Cooper, Acting Head of Finance 
Gordon Glenday, Interim Head of Statutory Planning 
Simon Swift, Group Manager, Parks & Leisure Development  
 
Housing and Health Department: 
Sarah Kingston, Neighbourhood Management Coordinator 

  
 
 
 
Background Papers 

• Executive Minute 12, 27 May 2003 re: Parks and Green Spaces Strategy 
• Assembly Minute 5, 2 July 2003 re Report of Executive (item A2)  
• www.countryside.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 162



Arneways Av.

Rose Hatch Av.

N
ew

ho
us

e 
A

v.

2 picnic tables 
'Heathland'

football pitch 

existing shelter

existing play area

existing basket ball area

skate board equipment

new single 
gate entrance

new single 
gate entrance

new double gate maintenance 
entrance with drop kerb to road

new single 
gate entrance

new single 
gate entrance

1 bench 
'Tenby'

1 bench 
'Tenby'

1 bench 
'Tenby'

1 bench 
'Tenby'

Existing retained fencing

New 1m high round top fence 
with mowing strip below

New 1m high round top fence 
with mowing strip below

New 1m high round top fence 
with mowing strip below

new double gate maintenance 
entrance with drop kerb to road

TANTONY GREEN SKETCH MASTERPLANExisting trees

Proposed / recently 
planted trees

Existing retained railings

Proposed railings 

KEY

Scale : 1:750 on A3 sheet

Date : September 2003

Client : Doorstep Greens, Marks Gate LA21

north

- Existing concrete fence posts to be removed
- New railings to follow line of removed fence posts
- New railings and gates to be painted black
- New single gates to have self closing mechanism
- New double gates (for mintenance access) to have 
  drop bolt and means of locking
- Picnic tables to be 'Heathland', benches to be 'Tenby'
  manufactured from recycled plastic, supplied by
  Streetmaster Street Furniture, Tel: 01639 845394
- Picnic tables and benches to be on in-situ concrete 
  base and ground fixings to prevent removal

NOTES:

Page 163



Page 164

This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

28 OCTOBER 2003 
 

REPORT FROM THE DIRECTOR OF LEISURE AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TERM CONSULTANCY CONTRACT 
 

FOR DECISION 

This report deals with proposals for a contract(s) with a value in excess of £200,000.  The 
Executive is being asked to advise if Members wish to be involved in the contract 
packaging and specification of this / these contract(s)and the nature of their involvement in 
the subsequent evaluation and award of contract as required by Constitution Part D 
(Contract Rules 3.6) 
 
Summary 
 
This report sets out a procurement strategy for Professional Services within the Leisure 
and Environmental Services Department, to support in-house capability to meet peak 
workloads and a proposal for a bespoke contract to achieve this. 
 
The contract will cover multi skill and expertise services and offer a panel of consultants, 
already vetted and approved, to be called upon by all departments of this Council to assist 
Officers as and when the need arises.  The intention being to ensure delivery of projects on 
a needs basis where in-house capability is already saturated with work. 
 
The consultants to be used under this contract should not be confused with management 
consultants that stay for long periods of time.  Commissions will be on an individual project 
or part of project basis and each commission will be specifically targeted and limited to the 
life of each individual project.  They will not be used to cover staff vacancies, except whilst 
recruitment takes place, and will also reduce the need to employ agency staff for long 
periods. 
 
This will achieve a combination of internal and technical resource that will provide a fast 
response pool of expertise and this will be an ideal way of ensuring delivery of 
programmes particularly where work loads are unpredictable. 
 
This is a ‘Call-Off Contract, which means that no guarantee of work is given to the 
successful tenderers. 
 
It is proposed to we enter into a Strategic Alliance with the London Borough of Camden 
Consultancy Services, who already operate this type of contract, to produce advertise and 
assist in analysis of the contract and tender returns.  A fee will be payable to Camden to 
purchase the rights to the contract and their expertise in such contracts.  The alternative 
would be to undertake the full tender process and obtain specialist legal advice at 
considerable cost. 
 
The need for a panel of Consultants and the setting up of an alliance with London Borough 
of Camden was identified as part of the Street Safe ‘Best Value’ Review Action Plan, which 
was reported to the Executive on 5 August 2003. 

AGENDA ITEM 12

Page 165



 
Recommendation 
 
The Executive is recommended to support the setting up of a Strategic Alliance with the 
London Borough of Camden in order to produce a Professional Services Team 
Consultancy Contract, at a total estimated cost of £28,000. 
 
Members are also asked to advise if they wish to be involved in the contract packaging and 
specification of this contract and the nature of their involvement in the subsequent 
evaluation and award of contract as permitted by Constitution Part D (Contract Rules 3.6) 
 
Reason 
 
To assist the Council in achieving it’s Community Priority of “Making Barking and 
Dagenham Cleaner, Greener and Safer”. 
 
Wards Affected No specific wards affected, these are Borough-wide services 
 
Contact:  
Mike Mitchell 
 
 
Mike Livesey 
 

 
Head of Environmental 
Management 
 
Head of Traffic and 
Highway Engineering 
 

 
Tel: 020 8227 2677 
E-mail: mike.mitchell@lbbd.gov.uk 
 
Tel: 020 8227 3110 
Fax: 020 8227 3231 
Minicom: 020 8227 3034 
E-mail: mike.livesey@lbbd.gov.uk 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1 The key aim of utilising such a service is to ensure that the main drivers, culture 

and ethos behind the delivery of Professional Services Term Consultancy is based 
on principals of strategic alliances.  It is important to recognise that this panel of 
consultants will provide a vital support through an integrated working relationship. 

 
1.2 Officers hope to share our skills and resources between other Councils and 

Consultants rather than replace or increase them.  It is envisaged that this five 
year Contract will be used to jointly develop and implement these strategic alliance 
principles. 

 
1.3 The Panel of Consultants would be asked to tender for the following professional 

services on a ‘Call-Off Contract’.  A Call-Off Contract enables services to be used 
as and when required but does not guarantee of work to the successful tenderers. 

 
1.4 The proposed Professional Services Call-Off Contract will cover a full spectrum of 

professional services; including, surveys, site inspection and testing, feasibility 
studies, consultation, design, monitoring (including post implementation) and 
contract management, administration and supervision of various schemes relating 
to: 

Page 166



Transport Planning 
Development Control 
Traffic Management, Safety and Parking 
Urban Design 
Street Lighting 
Highway Improvements 
Highway Drainage 
Structural Engineering 
Bridge Engineering 
Topographical Surveys 
Traffic Monitoring Surveys 
Architecture  
Mechanical and Electrical Design 
Quantity Surveying 
Planning Supervision 
Clerk of Works 
Landscape Architecture 
Project Management 
Project Planning 
Financial Monitoring 
Thames Gateway London Partnership 

 
2. Tender Selection 
 
2.1 As required by the European Union Law, an advert inviting expressions of interest 

to tender will need to be placed in the Official Journal of European Union (OJEU). 
 
3. Contract Details 
 
3.1 It is proposed that the London Borough of Camden will undertake on London 

Borough of Barking and Dagenham’s behalf the production of the Professional 
Services Call-Off Contract; from drafting through to long listing.  The two Councils 
would need to work closely together on the evaluation of the returned tenders 
leading to the recommendation of appointment by the Executive next year. 

 
3.2 The fee this Council will pay Camden to do this work on our behalf is £25,000.  

The contract process would run jointly with Camden’s own consultancy contract 
advertisement and evaluation and selection process in order to share and mitigate 
costs.  The alternative would be to employ specialist legal advice to draw up a 
bespoke contract and also bear all the advertisement and assessment cost alone.  
It is understood that in developing this contract Camden have spent in excess of 
£100,000. 

 
3.3 The Contract document will be inclusive of all services being tendered.  The 

Tenderers can select what services they wish to tender for.  The type of Contract 
is ‘Call Off’ in nature and therefore no guarantee of work is given. 

 
3.4 The Contract period is for five years, the tenders have to submit fee rate 

schedules for each service tendered. 
 

Page 167



3.5 Under this type of Call-Off tender companies can decide which services they wish 
to tender for; they do not have to tender for all aspects of work.  There is no 
guarantee of work given to successful tenderers for all or any of the areas they 
have tendered for. 

 
4.  Tender Evaluation 
 
4.1 The Panel of Consultants will follow the tender process, as required by The 

European Union Legislation and Council Constitution.  An advert inviting 
expressions of interest to tender will be placed in the Official Journal of European 
Union (OJEU) and Civil Engineering Journal.  Companies that respond will be 
vetted and tender documents will then sent out to companies passing the vetting 
procedure. 

 
4.2 Interested companies will be required to submit fee based Schedule of Rates for 

each service they wish to be considered for, together with written responses to 
seven evaluation criteria as follows: 
 
i) Resource statement 
ii) Qualification and Experience to carry out the tender  
iii) Health and Safety Policy arrangements 
iv) Quality Control and Quality Assurance Arrangements 
v) Equal Opportunities in Employment and Delivery of Service 
vi) Approach to the provision of services under this contract. List of objectives 

and aims 
vii) Insurance Details 

 
4.3 The intention of the above criteria is to provide some specific and supplementary 

information on their intentions and philosophy for delivery of this contract. 
 
4.4 Following the initial tender evaluation process, selected companies will be 

interviewed by an Evaluation Panel to clarify any queries on the responses and 
where appropriate to question the submissions in more detail.  The Evaluation 
Panel will then make recommendation to the Executive to appoint companies to 
the panel of consultants. 

 
4.5 It is anticipated that the tender evaluations will be undertaken based on 70% 

quality and 30%price.   
 
4.6 In view of the above the Executive is asked if Members wish to be involved in the 

Evaluation Panel (i.e. the specification, subsequent evaluation and award of 
contract as required by Constitution Part D (Contract Rules 3.6). 
 

5. Financial Implications 
 

5.1 Camden used one of the top legal firms (Masons) to write this contract.  The 
hourly rates for Barristers are expensive and can easily range from £160 to over 
£300 per hour. 

 

Page 168



5.2 Camden have offered us the rights to use this contract at a cost of £10,000.  
However there will still be a need to adapt the Camden contract to meet the 
requirements of a LBBD contract and add in a number of additional professional 
services that we want to include that are not included in the Camden ‘base’ 
contract.  Camden have offered to undertake this work on our behalf from re-
drafting the contract to meet our requirements, and assisting us in short listing and 
selection on an hourly rate basis caped at £15,000.  They will be sharing their 
expertise in setting up and running a similar contract for the last 2 years.  A sum of 
£3,000 has also been allowed for in the £28,000 to cover extra legal advice costs 
in altering the contract to LBBD requirements. 

 
5.3 The £28,000 will be met by taking an equal share across all budgets from the fees 

allocated to individual projects and schemes. 
 
5.4 The Contracts are designed to support the Professional Services within the 

Leisure and Environmental Services Department and can be used corporately.  
Regardless of whether the work is undertaken in-house or by Consultants, the 
funds required to pay the fees in both cases will come from scheme and project 
allocations, as is the current practice.  It is expected that the cost of undertaking 
this work through these Contracts will not be significantly different from the existing 
practice of tendering individual work packages. 

 
6. Consultation 
 
The following people have seen this report and are happy with it as it stands. 
 
Leisure and Environmental Services: 
Bob Cooper 
Jim Mack 
Mike Mitchell 
Peter Wright,  
Jeremy Grint,  
Kevin Wilkins 
Heather Cutler, Procurement and Stores Manager, LESD 
 
Social Services: 
Peggy Green 
 
DEAL: 
Andy Carr 
 
H&H: 
Ken Jones, Housing 
 
 
 
Background Paper 
Executive Minute 73, 12 August 2003.  Re: Street Scene Best Value Review. 
 

Page 169



Page 170

This page is intentionally left blank


